
Board of Directors 
  Bruce E. Dandy, President 
  Sheldon G. Berger, Vice President 
  Lynn E. Maulhardt, Secretary/Treasurer 

  Mohammed A. Hasan  
  Catherine P. Keeling 
  Gordon Kimball   
  Daniel C. Naumann 

General Manager 
  Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr. 

Legal Counsel 
  David D. Boyer 

AGENDA 

      REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, December 14, 2022, 12:00 P.M. 

Board Room, UWCD Headquarters 

1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard CA 93030 

BOARD MATTERS 
Normally, Action (Motion) Items will be considered and acted upon separately; Consent Items will be considered and 

acted upon collectively, although a Consent Item may be considered and acted upon separately; 

and Information Items will be considered separately without action. 

The Board of Directors in its discretion may change the order of agenda items. 

1. FIRST OPEN SESSION   12:00 P.M.

Items to be discussed in Executive (Closed) Session will be announced. 

1.1 Public Comments 

Information Item 

1.2 

1.3 

Members of the public may address the Board on any matter on the Closed Session 

agenda or on any non-agenda item within the jurisdiction of the Board. All 

comments are subject to a five-minute time limit.  

Oath of Office Administered to Directors Gordon Kimball, Catherine P. 
Keeling, and Mohammed A. Hasan 
Motion 
The newly appointed and elected Directors for Division 1,2 and 3 will take an 
Oath of Office administered by the Clerk of the Board, beginning their new four-
year terms. 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION   12:15 P.M. 

The Board will discuss matters outlined in the attached Executive (Closed) 

Session Agenda (Exhibit A). 

2. SECOND OPEN SESSION AND CALL TO ORDER 1:15 P.M.

2.1 Pledge of Allegiance 

2.2 Public Comment 

Information Item 

Members of the public may address the Board on any item on the Consent Calendar 

or on any non-agenda item within the jurisdiction of the Board.  No action will be 

taken by the Board on any non-agenda item. All comments are subject to a five-

minute time limit. 

REVISED



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

December 14, 2022 

Page 2 

2.3 

2.4 

2.5 

2.6 

Approval of Agenda 

Motion 

Oral Report Regarding Executive (Closed) Session 

Information Item 

Presented by District Legal Counsel David D. Boyer. 

Board Members’ Activities Report 

Information Item  

The Board will receive and file information regarding meeting participation 

provided by each of the Board Members through Monthly Activities (aka per diem) 

Reports. 

General Manager’s Report 

Information Item 

The General Manager will present information on his activities of possible 

interest to the Board and that may have consequence to the District.   

3. CONSENT CALENDAR: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are 
considered routine by the Board and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no 
separate discussion of these items unless a Board member pulls an item from the 
Calendar. Pulled items will be discussed and acted on separately by the Board. 
Members of the public who want to comment on a Consent Calendar item should do 
so under Public Comments. (ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED)

A. Approval of Minutes

Motion

Approval of the Minutes for the Special Board Meeting of November 7, 2022, and 
the Regular Board Meeting of November 9, 2022.

B. Groundwater Basin Status Reports

Information Item

Receive and file Monthly Hydrologic Conditions Report for the District.

C. Monthly Investment Report
Information Item
Report on the District’s investments and the availability or restriction of these 
funds.  All investments are in compliance with the District’s investment policy, 
which is reviewed and approved annually by the Board.

D. First Quarter Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Financial Reports (July 1, 2022 –
September 30, 2022)
Information Item
The Board will receive a presentation from staff on the First Quarter 2022-2023 
Financial Reports for the period of July 1, 2022, through September 30, 2022.



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

December 14, 2022 

Page 3 

E. Resolution 2022-45 Subsequent Finding that the Governor of California issued a     
            Proclamation of a State of Emergency on March 4, 2020 relating to the
            COVID-19 virus and local officials continue to recommend social distancing
            measures to mitigate the spread of the COVID-19 virus and Authorizing remote   
            teleconference meetings of the legislative bodies of United Water Conservation
            District for the period of December 14, 2022, through January 13, 2023 pursuant 
            to Brown Act provisions
 Motion
 The Board will consider adopting Resolution 2022-45 continuing subsequent findings
  that the requisite conditions exist for remote teleconference meetings of the District’s
  legislative bodies without compliance with Government Code section 54953(b)(3), as
  authorized by Government Code section 549539(e.)
 

4. PRESENTATIONS AND MONTHLY STAFF REPORTS (By Department)

Operations and Maintenance Department – Brian Collins   

4.1 Monthly Operation and Maintenance Department Report 

Information Item 

Summary report on monthly activities of the Operations and Maintenance 

Department, including but not limited to the District’s facilities (Santa Felicia Dam 

and hydroplant; the Piru Groundwater Recharge facility; the Freeman Diversion; 

the Saticoy and El Rio Groundwater Recharge facilities; the Pleasant Valley and 

Pumping Trough Pipeline systems; and the Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline system), 

encompassing operating plans, the quantity and quality of water diverted and 

delivered, fish ladder operations, major maintenance problems and repairs, status 

of Operations and Maintenance projects and safety and training issues. 

Park and Recreation Department – Clayton Strahan 

4.2 Monthly Park and Recreation Department Report 

Information Item 

Summary report on monthly activities of the Park and Recreation Department, 

including but not limited to the Lake Piru Recreation Area, encompassing camping 

and boating policies at the lake; operations and activities; financing and status of 

facility improvement projects; maintenance activities; security issues; and 

emergency response activities. 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

December 14, 2022 

Page 4 

Water Resources Department – Dan Detmer 

4.3 Monthly Water Resources Department Report and Update on Activities of 

Local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) 

Information Item 

Summary report on the monthly activities of the Water Resources Department  

including but not limited to updates to the Ventura Regional Groundwater Flow 

Model; brackish water treatment feasibility study; upper Santa Clara River Chloride 

TMDL; hydrologic and well conditions statewide and locally; available Forebay 

storage; Ventura County well ordinance update; Fox Canyon GMA issues; City of 

Oxnard’s recycled water program; potential water supply and recycled water 

projects, including use of United’s terminal reservoirs; and various user groups 

(including but not limited to Oxnard Plain and Pumping Trough Pipeline groups) 

and the activities of the three local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) – 

Mound Basin GSA, Fillmore and Piru Basins GSA, and the Fox Canyon 

Groundwater Management Agency, for which the District serves as a member 

director and the Santa Paula basin (adjudicated) Technical Advisory Committee.  

Administrative Services Department – Brian Zahn and Josh Perez 

4.4 Monthly Administrative Services Department Report – Josh Perez and Brian 

Zahn 

Information Item 

Summary report on the monthly activities of the Administrative Services 

Department including but not limited to issues associated with budget development, 

financial performance versus budget plan, financial accounting requirements and 

procedures, potential debt issuance and related financial services, status of District 

investments and reserves, updates on its capital improvement programs, human 

resources and safety, District property and facilities maintenance and 

administration, District records and reports, groundwater extraction statements 

administration, risk management and District liability insurance matters, 

management of District contracts, policy development, governance procedures, and 

supporting activities of Board and staff. 

Engineering Department – Dr. Maryam Bral 

4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 

Information Item 

Summary report on the monthly activities of the Engineering Department, 

including but not limited to water resources, planning efforts and department 

programs impacting the District, such as project design and construction; dam 

safety; FERC license compliance; Freeman Diversion; recycled water; pipeline 

operations and various engineering analysis. 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

December 14, 2022 

Page 5 

Environmental Services Department – Linda Purpus 

4.6 Monthly Environmental Services Department Report 

Information Item 

Summary report on the monthly activities of the Environmental Services 

Department, including but not limited to environmental and regulatory issues of 

note to the District, water releases, operations of the fish ladder at the Freeman 

Diversion, various monitoring efforts, study plans and issues associated with the 

Endangered Species Act, including the Section 10 MSHCP process, future fish 

passage requirements, compliance with the District’s FERC license/Biological 

Opinion, the Santa Felicia Dam, studies and operations in and near Piru Creek, and 

any interactions with Rancho Temescal and Rancho Camulos. 

5. MOTION ITEMS (By Department)

Administrative Services Department – Brian Zahn and Josh Perez 

5.1 Resolution 2022-38 Adoption of Unmanned Aircraft System – Authorization 

and Operations Policy 

Motion 

The Board will consider approving Resolution 2022-38 adopting an unmanned 

aircraft system (drone) authorization and operations policy. 

Engineering Department – Dr. Maryam Bral 

5.2 Contract Award to Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. for Design Services 

Related to the Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water 

Treatment Project (CIP 8019) 

Motion 

The Board will consider authorizing the General Manager to execute a professional 

consulting services agreement with Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc.  in the amount 

of $2,069,912 [$1,881,738 plus 10% contingency ($188,174)] to complete the 

design and bid documents for Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish (EBB) 

Water Treatment Project (CIP 8019). 

Environmental Services Department – Linda Purpus 

5.3       Authorize a Contract with Environmental Science Associates (ESA) to 

provide Consultant Services for CEQA and NEPA Documentation and 

Regulatory Permitting for the Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish 

Water Treatment Project 

Motion 

The Board will consider authorizing the General Manager to execute an agreement 

with Environmental Science Associates (ESA) in the amount of $908,256 

[$825,687 + 10% contingency ($82,569)] to provide consultant services for the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and National Environmental Policy 

Act (NEPA) Documentation, Processing, and Regulatory Permitting for the Phase 

1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment Project (EBB Water). 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
December 14, 2022 
Page 6 

Operations and Maintenance Department - Brian Collins 
5.4 Authorize an Amendment to the University of Iowa Contract for the Physical 

Modeling of the Vertical Slot for the Freeman Expansion Project 
Motion 
The Board will consider authorizing an amendment to the University of Iowa 
contract for the operational and stress physical modeling of the Vertical Slot for the 
Freeman Expansion Project in the amount of $387,165. The original professional 
consulting services agreement between UWCD and University of Iowa was 
executed on September 3, 2021; the first amendment to the agreement, executed on 
March 4, 2022, extended the scope of work for the original agreement with 
University of Iowa. 

6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS READING FILE

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

8. ADJOURNMENT
The Board will adjourn to the Regular Board Meeting scheduled for Wednesday,

January 11, 2023 or call of the President.

All testimony given before the Board of Directors is recorded. Materials, which are non-exempt public records and are provided to the Board of 
Directors to be used in consideration of the above agenda items, including any documents provided subsequent to the publishing of this agenda, 
are available for inspection at the District's offices at 170 I N. Lombard Street, Suite 200, Oxnard CA 93030 during normal business hours. 

The Americans with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied the 
benefits of, the District's services, programs or activities because of any disability. if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, or 
if you require agenda materials in an alternative format, please contact the District Office at (805) 525-4431. Notification of at least 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will enable the District to make appropriale arrangements. 

Posted: (date) (time) (attest) Kris Sojley 

At: www.unitedwater.org 
Revised December 13, 2022

Posted: (date) Revised December 13, 2022 (time) 10:30a.m. (attest) Kris Sojley
At: United Water Conservation District Headquarters, 1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard CA 93030 

10:45a.m.



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

December 14, 2022 

Page 7 

EXHIBIT A 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION AGENDA 

1. LITIGATION

1.1 Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated Litigation 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), one (1) case. 

1.2 Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1) 

A. City of San Buenaventura v. United Water Conservation District, et al,

Santa Barbara County Superior Court Case No. 19CV06168, pending

before the Court of Appeal of the Stat eof California, Second Appellate

District, Division 6, Court of Appeal No. B312471.

B. Wishtoyo Foundation, et al v. United Water Conservation District, U.S.

District Court for the Central District of California, Case No.2:16-cv-

03869 GHK (PLAx).

C. OPV Coalition v Fox Canyon Groundwater Management Agency, Superior

Court of the State of California, County of Ventura, Case No. 56-2021-

00555357-CU-PT-VTA; Complaint for Comprehensive Groundwater

Adjudication of the Oxnard Groundwater Subbasin (No. 4-004.02) and

Pleasant Valley Subbasin (No. 4-006) Pursuant to Sections 830, Et Seq. of

the Code of Civil Procedure; Declaratory Relief; Quiet Title; and Petition

for Writs of Mandate.

D. United Water Conservation District v United States, U.S. Court of Federal

Claims, Case No. 22-542L; Complaint for Just Compensation under the 5th

Amendment.

E. United Water Conservation District v. California Fish and Game Commis- 

sion, Los Angeles County Superior Court Case No. 2STCP02661;

Petition for Writ of Mandate (CESA)



Staff Report 

To: 

Through: 

From: 

Date: 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 

Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board 

December 13, 2022 (December 14, 2022 Meeting)

Agenda Item:   1.2 Oath of Office – Administered to Directors Gordon Kimball,
Catherine P. Keeling, and Mohammed A. Hasan
Motion 

Staff Recommendation:  
The newly appointed and elected Directors for Division 1,2 and 3 will take an Oath of 
Office administered by the Clerk of the Board, beginning their new four-year terms.

Attachment: A – Oath of Office Division 1, Gordon Kimball
B  - Oath of Office Division 2, Catherine P Keeling
C - Oath of Office Division 3, Mohammed A. Hasan

. 



OATH OF OFFICE 
(California Government Code §1360) 

UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 
DIVISION 1 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
COUNTY OF VENTURA  

As a Director for the UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, DIVISION 1 

I, Gordon Kimball, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the 
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California against all 
enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution 
of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this 
obligation freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well 
and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter. 

_______________________________ 
Gordon Kimball 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 14th day of December, 2022. 

By: ___________________________________________ 
Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board/Deputy County Clerk 

}  ss.



OATH OF OFFICE 
(California Government Code §1360) 

UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 
DIVISION 2 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  
COUNTY OF VENTURA  

As a Director for the UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, DIVISION 2 

I, Catherine P. Keeling, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the 
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California against all 
enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution 
of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this 
obligation freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well 
and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter. 

_______________________________ 
Catherine P. Keeling 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 14th day of December, 2022. 

By: __________________________________ 
Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board, UWCD 

}  ss.



OATH OF OFFICE 
(California Government Code §1360) 

UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, 
DIVISION 3 

STATE
COUNTY 

OF
OF 

CALIFORNIA
VENTURA 

 } ss.

As a Director for the UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, DIVISION 3 

I, Mohammed A. Hasan, do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California against all
enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution
of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this
obligation freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well
and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 14th day of December, 2022.

__
Mohammed A. Hasan

By:__________________________________________
Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board, UWCD



To: 

Through: 

From: 

Date: 

Staff Report 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 

Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board 

November 28, 2022 (December 14, 2022 Meeting)

Agenda Item:     2.5 Board Members’ Activities Reports
Information Item 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Board will receive and file information regarding meeting participation provided by each of the 
Board of Directors through Monthly Activities (aka per diem) Reports. 

Discussion: 
This item is provided on the agenda of each regular District Board of Directors meeting in order to 
allow Directors to report on non-agenda activities such as: 

1. UWCD Committee participation – Committee Chair to report on Committee’s objectives and
actions to Board.

2. Meetings, workshops, conferences and functions attended during the previous month on
behalf of the District.

3. Possible conflicts that Directors might have with respect to issues on the Agenda.

Attachments:  A – Directors' Monthly Activities Reports (per diem) 
B - 2022 Calendar of District's Standing Committee and Outside Agency meetings
C - 2022 AWA VC Calendar of Meetings and Events



Board of Directors Due on last day of month 
Activities and Expenses for Month November Year __ _

Director: Berger -�------------

1. UWCD Board Meetings

Regular, special or emergency meetings.

2. UWCD Committee/ Advisory Body Meetings

Environmental, Executive, Finance/Audit,
Groundwater, Operations, Planning, Recreation and
RiverParkJPA Committees.

3. Meeting with GM or District legal W/GM orlC
Counsel (LC)

4. Conferences/Trainings. Includes conferences or
educational activities organized by ACWA, AWAVC &
CSDA.

S. Appointed representative to meetings of other
entities' Boards. Includes FCGMA, LAFCO, RiverPark
JPA, AWAVC BoD, Oxnard Chamber of Commerce
Water Committee, ACWA, CSDA and GSA. Or 
preparatory meetings with GM regarding above
meetings.

6. Meetings of other government entities at

request of BoD, BP or GM. Such as PVCWD, FCGMA
or Oxnard City Council.

7. Meetings with board members or executive

management of other agencies. Includes FCGMA,
LAFCO, RiverPark JPA, AWAVC BoD, Oxnard
Chamber of Commerce Water Committee, ACWA,
CSDA, GSA.

8. Public meetings hosted by District regarding

District matters

I 

I 

I 

Committee Name & location 

I 

I 

. 

Meeting Description & locatiqn 

I 

Event Name & location 

I 

Entity Name & location I 

AWA Waterwise 

I 

Entity Name & location 

I 
Entity Name & location 

Meeting Description & Location 

Date 

11/3 
11/9 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Date 

11/17 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Mileage 
-
-

Mileage 

Mileage 

Mileage 

Mileage 

20 

Mileage 

Mileage 

Mileage 

I 
/ 

/ 



Board of Directors Due on last day of month 

Per Diem and Expenses for Month _;.;N
c=
o

..:.
v ____ Year2022 

9. Meetings with state or federal legislators or
officials or representatives from other entities. 

At the request of the BoD, BP or GM. 

Other EKpenses Total 

Days of out of town travel 
Lodging* $ 
Meals* $ 
Transportation* $ 
Misc.• $ 
• attach all receipts

Official Name/Meeting 
Description & Location Date Mileage 

I 

I 

This section to be completed by Finance Department only 

P-hone Allowance 
Total # of meetings** 3 x$248 $ 

$50.00 / 
744.00 / 

**not to exceed 10 meetings and $2,260. per month or 1 meeting per day 

Total days of travel x $100.00/day 
Total# of miles 20 x $0.625/mile $ 12.50 ./ 
1---------------'--------+----"--'-''--f 

Total other expenses $ 

$ 806.50 

Director Signature 

Definitions 

BoD: Board of Directors 

BP: Board President 

GM: General Manager 

General Manager Signature Date: 



Board of Directors Due on last day of month 
Activities and Expenses for Month _1_1 ____ Year _2_2 __

Director: Mohammed A. Hasan, P.E. 

1. UWCD Board Meetings Date Mileage 

Regular, special or emergency meetings. 11-7 83 v 
11-9 12 / 

2. UWCD Committee/ Advisory Body Meetings Committee Name & Location Date Mileage 

Environmental, Executive, Finance/Audit,

Groundwater, Operations, Planning, Recreation and 
RiverPark JPA Committees. 

3. Meeting with GM or District Legal W/ GM or LC Meeting Description & Location Date Mileage 

Counsel (LC)

4. Conferences/Trainings. Includes conferences or Event Name & Location Date Mileage 

educational activities organized by ACWA, AWAVC & WVBusiness Alliance state of port 11-10 8 

CSDA. Cal. Water Environment Assoc. annual 11-19

/Mound Basin 11-17

ACWAFa/1 11-28, 29 and 30 225 /' 
5. AE!E!Ointed reeresentative to meetings of other Entity Name & Location Date Mileage 
entities' Boards. Includes FCGMA, LAFCO, RiverPark 
JPA, AWAVC BoD, Oxnard Chamber of Commerce 
Water Committee, ACWA, CSDA and GSA. Or 
preparatory meetings with GM regarding above 
meetings. 

6. Meetings of other government entities at Entity Name & Location Date Mileage 

request of BoD, BP or GM. Such as PVCWD, FCGMA
or Oxnard City Council. 

7. Meetings with board members or executive Entity Name & Location Date Mileage 
management of other agencies, Includes FCGMA,
LAFCO, RiverParkJPA, AWAVC BoD, Oxnard 
Chamber of Commerce Water Committee, ACWA, 
CSDA, GSA. 

8. Public meetings hosted by District regarding Meeting Description & Location Date Mileage 

District matters

Such as Section 10 HCP, Vern Freeman Fish Panel. 

Page 1 



Board of Directors Due on last day of month 
Per Diem and Expenses for Month _1_1 ____ Year _2_2 __

9. Meetings with state or federal legislators or

officials or representatives from other entities. 

At the request of the BoD, BP or GM. 

Other Expenses Total 

Days of out of town travel 3 

Lodging* $ 
Meals* $ 
Transportation* $ 
Misc.* $ 
* attach all receipts

Official Name/Meeting 

Description & Location Date Mileage 

This section to be completed by Finance Department only

Phone Allowance $50.00 
Total# of meetings** i X $248 $ 1�i1.,... 
**not to exceed 10 meetings and $2,260. per month or 1 meeting per day 
Total days of travel 3 x $100.00/day 3e:v./ 
Total # of miles �z� x $0.625/mile $ :JIJ5/ 
Total other expenses $ 
TOTAL MILEAGE AND OTHER EXPENSES $ .2_,5i;ff, / 

/ 

/ 

Director Signature Date: 12-3- 2 2 

Definitions 

BoD: Board of Directors 

BP: Board President 
GM: General Manager 

General Manager Signature Dat�:'-f b/zl 

Page 2 



Board of Directors Due on last day of month 
Activities and Expenses tor Month November Year 2022 

Director: Michael W. Mobley 

1. UWCD Board Meetings
Regular, special or emergency meetings.

2. UWCD Committee/Advisory Body Meetings Committee Name & Location 
Environmental, Executive, Finance/Audit,
Groundwater, Operations, Planning, Recreation and 

RiverPark JPA Committees. 

3, Meeting with GM or District Legal W/GMorLC Meeting Description & Location 
Counsel (LC) 

4. Conferences/Trainings. Includes conferences or Event Name & Location 
educational activities organized by ACWA, AWAVC &
CSDA. 

s. A!;!12ointed re12resentative to meetings of other Entity Name & Location 
entities' Boards. Includes FCGMA, LAFCO, RiverPark Mound Basin GSA Board Mtg 
JPA, AWAVC 80D, Oxnard Chamber of Commerce
Water Committee, ACWA, CSDA and GSA. Or 

preparatory meetings with GM regarding above 
rneetlngs 

6. Meetings of other government entities at Entity Name & Location 
request of BoD, BP or GM. Such as PVCWD, FCGMA

or Oxnard City Council.

7, Meetings with board members or executive Entity Name & Location 
management of other agencies. Includes FCGMA, 
LAFCO, RiverPark JPA, AWAVC B0D

1 
Oxnard 

Chamber of Commerce Water Committee, ACWA, 
CSDA, GSA. 

8, Public meetings hosted by District regarding Meeting Description & Location 
District matters 
Such as Section 10 HCP, Vern Freeman Fish PcJnel. 

Date Mileage 
11/7 65.0 

11/9 26.0 

Date Mileage 

Date Mileage 

Date Mileage 

Date Mileage 

11 /17 a.a / 

Date Mileage 

Date . Mileage 

Date Mileage 

Page 1 



Board of Directors Due on last day of month 
Per Diem and Expenses for Month November Year 2022 

Official Name/Meeting 
9. Meetings with state or federal legislators or Description & Location Date Mileage 
officials or representatives from other entities.

At the request or the BoD, BP or GM. 

Other Expenses 
Days of out of town travel 
Lodging• 
Meals* 
Transportation• 
Misc.• 
• attach all receipts

Definitions 
BoD: Board of Directors 
BP: Board President 
GM: General Manager 

Total 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

This section to be completed by Finance Department only 
Phone Allowance $50.00 
Total# of meetings*"! � Ix s24s $ ffl./
unotto exceed 10 meetings and $2,480. per month or 1 meeting per day 
Total days of travel I Ix $100.00/day
Total ti of miles I C// lx $0.625/mile 
Total other expenses 
TOTAL MILEAGE ANO OTHER EXPENSES 

Director Sienature 

General Manager Signature 

$ 5'1p.qf/ 
$ 

$ ;t6Z),5ft-

Date:/' .:l_ 

11.,,,, 
Date: 

Page 2 



Board of Directors 
Activities and Expenses for Month October Year 2022 

Director: Michael W. Mobley

1. UWCD Board Meetings
Regular, special or emergency meetings.

2. UWCD committee/Advisory Body Meetings Committee Name_&_tocatioo 
Environmental, Executive, Finance/Audit, 
Groundwater, Operations, Planning, Recreation and 
RiverPark JP/\ Committees. 

3. Meeting with GM or District Legal W/ GM or LC Meeting Description & Location 
Counsel (LC) 

4. Conferences/Trainings, Includes conferences or Event Name & location 
educational activities organized by ACWA, AWAVC & Water Sustainability Conf. 

CSDA. 

5. Ai:212ointed reg;resentative to meetings of other Entity Name & Location 
entities' Boards. Includes FCGMA, LAFCO, RiverPark Mound Basin GSA Special Board Mtg 

JPA, AW/\VC BoO, Oxnard Chamber of Commerce Mound Basin GSA Board Mtg 
Water Committee, ACWA, CSDA and GSA. Or 

preparatory meetings with GM regarding above 
meetings. 

6. Meetings of otller government entities at Entity Name & Location 
request of BoD, BP or GM. Such as PVCWD, FCGMA

or Oxnard City Council.

7. Meetings with board members or executive Entity Name & Location 
management of other agencies. Includes FCGMA,
LAFCO, RiverPark JPA, AWAVC BoD, Oxnard 

Chamber of Commerce Water Committee, ACWA, 
CSDA, GSA. 

s. Public meetings hosted by District regarding Meeting Description & Locatfon 
District matters
Such as Section 10 HCP, Vern Freeman Fish Panel.

Due on last day of month 

Date 
10/12 

Date 

Date 

Date 

10/19 

Date 
10/6 
10/20 

Date 

Date 

Date 

Mileage 
26.0 

Mileage 

Mileage 

Mileage 
2(i.O 

Mileage 
0.0 
0.0 

Mileage 

Mileage 

Mileage 

./ 

./ 

./ 

Page 1 



Board of Directors 
Per Diem and Expenses for Month October 

Official Name/Meeting 
9, Meetings with state or federal legislators or Description & Location 
officials or representatives from other entities. 

At the request of the BoD, BP or GM. 

Year 2022 
Due on last day of month 

Date Mileage 

Other Expenses Total This section to be completed by Finance Department only 

Days of out of town travel 
Lodging" 
Meals" 
Transportation• 
Misc.� 
• attach all receipts 

Definitions 
BoD: Board of Directors 
BP: Board President 
GM: General Manager 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

Phone Allowance $50.00 
Total # of meetings"'* I -4 Ix s24s $ 1'7cff, 

,/ 

0not to exceed 10 meetings and $2,480. per month or 1 meeting per day 
Tota I days of travel I� Ix $100.00/day 
Total# of miles I 52.. Ix $0.625/mile 
Total other expenses 
TOTAL MILEAGE AND OTHER EXPENSES 

Director Signature 

General Manager Signature 

$ 3;)..� 

$ 
$ I tF?f,.!-fJ,.,...

Date: / J. 

/2](p(1._ 'LDate: 

Page 2 







 

             2022 UWCD Standing Committee and Outside Agencies Meeting Dates 

JANUARY 04- Water Resources (9am-10:05am) 
05- Recreation (9am-9:28am) 
05 Special UWCD Board Meeting (10am-10:02am) 
06- Engineering and Operations (9am-10:53am) 
11- Finance and Audit (9am-10:02am) 
12- Board Meeting (12noon-3:48pm) 
19- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
20- Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
       Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 
26- Fox Canyon GMA (1:30pm) 
FEBRUARY: 01- Water Resources (canceled) 
02- Recreation (9am-9:48am) 
03- Engineering and Operations (9am-10:30am) 
08- Finance and Audit (9am-10:04am) 
09- Board Meeting (12noon-3:54pm) 
16- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
17- Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
       Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 
23- Fox Canyon GMA (1:30pm) 
28- Finance and Audit (9am-9:33am) 
       Special Board Meeting (12noon-12:14pm) 
MARCH: 01- Water Resources (9am-11:23am) 
02- Recreation (canceled) 
03- Engineering and Operations (canceled) 
09- Board Meeting (12noon) 
16- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
17- Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
       Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 
23- Fox Canyon GMA (1:30pm) 
APRIL: 05- Water Resources (9am) 
06- Recreation (9am) 
07- Engineering and Operations (9am) 
12- Finance and Audit (9am) 
13- Board Meeting (12noon) 
20- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
21- Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
       Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 
27- Fox Canyon GMA (1:30pm) 
MAY: 03 - Water Resources (9am) 
04- Recreation (9am) 
05- Engineering and Operations (9am) 
10- Finance and Audit (9am) 
11- Board Meeting (12noon) 
18- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
19- Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
       Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 
25- Fox Canyon GMA (1:30pm) 
31 – Water Resources* (9am) 
JUNE: 01- Recreation (9am) 
02- Engineering and Operations (9am) 
07- Finance and Audit (9am) 
08- Board Meeting (12noon) 
15- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
16- Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
       Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 

22- Fox Canyon GMA (1:30pm) 
JULY: 05- Water Resources (9am) 
06- Recreation (9am) 
07 - Engineering and Operations (9am) 
12- Finance and Audit (9am) 
13- Board Meeting (12noon) 
20- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
21- Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
       Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 
27- Fox Canyon GMA (1:30pm) 
AUGUST – 17- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
18- Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
       Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 
24- Fox Canyon GMA (1:30pm) 
SEPTEMBER: 01- Engineering and Operations (9am-10:51am) 
06- Water Resources (9am-10:33am) 
06- Finance and Audit (10:35am-11:41am) 
07- Recreation (9am-9:36am) 
14- Board Meeting (12noon-4:02pm) 
15- Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
       Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 
21- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
28- Fox Canyon GMA (1:30pm) 
OCTOBER: 03- Finance and Audit (9am-9:59am) 
04- Water Resources (canceled) 
05- Recreation (canceled) 
06- Engineering and Operations (9am- 10:59am) 
12- Board Meeting (12noon-2:45pm) 
19- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
20- Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
       Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 
26- Fox Canyon GMA (1:30pm) 
NOVEMBER: 10/31- Finance and Audit (canceled) 
01 - Water Resources (9am-11:05am) 
02- Recreation (canceled) 
03- Engineering and Operations (9am-9:44am) 
07- Special Board Meeting (Lake Piru) (10:30am-11:42am) 
09- Board Meeting (12noon-3:27pm) 
16- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
17- Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
17- Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 
DECEMBER: 01- Engineering and Operations (9am-10:17am) 
05- Finance and Audit (9am-10:06am) 
06 – Water Resources (canceled) 
07- Recreation (canceled) 
09- Fox Canyon GMA (1:30pm) 
14- Board Meeting (12noon) 
15 -Mound Basin GSA (1pm) 
      Fillmore and Piru Basin GSA (5pm) 
21- CoLAB VC WHEEL (1pm) 
*scheduled to prevent dual meetings on the same day 



ASSOCIATION OF WATER AGENCIES OF VENTURA COUNTY

5156 McGrath St., #104 . Ventura, Ca 93003 · Email: awa@awavc.org · Tel: 805.644.0922 · Web: www.awavc.org

2 0 2 2   C A L E N D A R   O F   E V E N T S 
DATES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE

AWA meetings are offered virtually until further notice. Hybrid (in-person & virtual) will occur when advisable.  
Meeting/Event notices with all details will be sent via email prior to each occurrence. Contact AWA for more information

JANUARY 6 Board Meeting  3:00 pm, Thursday 
18 Water Issues Committee  8:00 am, Tuesday  (AWA Members Only)
20 WaterWise Program  8:00 am, Thursday  
26 Channel Counties/ Water Systems 8:00 am, Wednesday

FEBRUARY 3 Executive Committee Meeting  3:00 pm, Thursday 
15 Water Issues Committee  8:00 am, Tuesday (AWA Members Only)
17 WaterWise Program  8:00 am, Thursday  
23 Channel Counties/ Water Systems 8:00 am, Wednesday

MARCH              3 Board Meeting (Annual Meeting-Elections)  3:00 pm, Thursday 
15 Water Issues Committee  8:00 am, Tuesday (AWA Members Only)
17 WaterWise  Program (Installation/Directors)   8:00 am, Thursday  (United Water Oxnard)

                              23 Channel Counties/ Water Systems 8:00 am, Wednesday

APRIL 7 Executive Committee Meeting  3:00 pm, Thursday
19 Water Issues Committee  8:00 am, Tuesday (AWA Members Only)

    20 Math Workshop: Water Distribution Exam Review 8:30am –Noon (Virtual)
21 WaterWise Program  8:00 am, Thursday (United Water Oxnard)
27       Channel Counties/ Water Systems 8:00 am, Wednesday

MAY 5 Board Meeting   3:00 pm, Thursday 
 26 Annual Water Symposium & Exposition (Hybrid) 7:30am–1:00pm, Thurs.      Location T.B.A.
 26 Operators Tech Workshop & Exposition 7:30 am-3:00pm, Thurs.      Location T.B.A.

JUNE 2 Executive Committee Meeting 3:00 pm, Thursday
16 WaterWise Program                                                8:00 am, Thursday            (Location T.B.A.)
21 Water Issues Committee 8:00 am, Tuesday (AWA Members Only)
22        Channel Counties/ Water Systems 8:00 am, Wednesday
            Math Workshop: Water Treatment  Exam Review 8:30am –Noon (T.B.A)

JULY 7 Board Meeting   3:00 pm, Thursday
  19 Water Issues Committee 8:00 am, Tuesday (AWA Members Only)

21 WaterWise Program   8:00 am, Thursday  (Location T.B.A.)
27 Channel Counties/Water Systems 8:00 am, 

Wednesday

AUGUST DARK

SEPTEMBER       1 Board Meeting  3:00 pm, Thursday 
   15 Reception for Members/Elected Officials 4:00 pm, Thursday (AWA Members/Guests 

Only)
20 Water Issues Committee  8:00 am, Tuesday (AWA Members Only)
28 Channel Counties/ Water Systems Luncheon 8:00 am, Wednesday

OCTOBER 6 Executive Committee Meeting  3:00 pm, Thursday
  18 Water Issues Committee 8:00 am, Tuesday (AWA Members Only)

    19 Math Workshop: Water Distribution Exam Review 8:30am–Noon (Location T.B.A.)
20 WaterWise Program   8:00 am, Thursday  (Location T.B.A.)
26 Channel Counties/ Water Systems Luncheon 8:00 am, Wednesday

NOVEMBER        3        Board Meeting   3:00 pm, Thursday
 9        Math Workshop: Water Treatment  Exam Review 8:30am–Noon (Location T.B.A.)
15 Water Issues Committee   7:00 am, Tuesday (AWA Members Only)
 17       WaterWise Breakfast Program  8:00 am, Thursday (Location T.B.A.)

 *29       Channel Counties/Water Systems Lunch 8:00 am, Wednesday
  Date to be Confirmed      __      Annual VC Water Supply Bus Tour   8:00 am – 3:00 PM

DECEMBER    1 Executive Committee Meeting 3:00 pm, 
                    *6 or 8 Holiday Mixer /Corporate Night  (T.B.D.)  4:00 pm, Tues or Thurs  (AWA Members/Guests Only)
-----------------------------------------------

Date to be Confirmed  __ CCWUC/Water Systems Workshop (Confined Space) 8-Noon  (Fire Dept-Camarillo/ T.B.A.)

* Indicates change from typical event date                  ver: 5/01/22

mailto:awa@awavc.org


To: 

From: 

Date: 

Agenda Item: 

Staff Report  

UWCD Board of Directors

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 

December 13, 2022 (December 14, 2022 meeting) 

2.6  General Manager’s Report 
Information Item 

Staff Recommendation:   
The General Manager will present information on his activities of possible interest to the Board
and that may have consequences to the District.   

Discussion: 
The General Manager’s primary responsibility is to ensure that the policies and directions of the 
Board of Directors are adhered to as he oversees and manages the efforts of the department 
managers and their staff in the day-to-day operation and administration of the District.  All of 
these efforts are to be consistent with the District’s Mission Statement and within the fiscal 
constraints set by the Board of Directors. 

The District’s managers provide detailed monthly updates to the Board of Directors which outline 
projects’ statuses, accomplishments, issues of concern, projects planning, etc.  The monthly 
General Manager’s report provides an opportunity for the General Manager to discuss issues that 
may impact the efforts of the separate departments as they pursue their defined goals and 
objectives.  The report also provides the Board with information on the District’s efforts and 
involvement in local, regional and state-wide issues.  

Finally, the monthly General Manager’s report offers the Board of Directors an overview of how 
their policies and directions are being administered through discussion of the work plan and efforts 
of the General Manager.  



MINUTES 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

Monday, November 7, 2022, 10:30 A.M. 
Lake Piru Recreation Area – Park Rangers Office 

4780 Piru Canyon Rd, Piru, CA 93040 
Directors Present:
Bruce E. Dandy, Board president 
Mohammed A. Hasan, director 
Gordon Kimball, director 
Lynn Maulhardt, Board secretary 
Mike Mobley, director (joined the meeting during the tour of the facilities) 

Directors Absent: 
Sheldon G. Berger, Board vice president 
Daniel C. Naumann, director 

Staff Present: 
Mauricio Guardado, general manager 
Suparna Jain, District legal counsel 
Josh Perez, chief human resources officer 
Zachary Plummer, technology systems manager 
Taylor Sabia, reservation coordinator 
Kris Sofley, executive assistant to the GM/clerk of the Board 
Clayton Strahan, chief park ranger 
Peter Whitman, park ranger III 
Dan and Joann Perrault, volunteer work campers at Lake Piru 
Barry and Lisa Thompson, volunteer work campers at Lake Piru 

Public Present: 
Nancy Bengry Kimball 

1. FIRST OPEN SESSION 10:30 a.m.
President Dandy called the Special Board Meeting to order at 10:30a.m.

1.A       Pledge of Allegiance 
The group recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

1.B Public Comment
Information Item 
President Dandy asked if there were any public comments.  None were offered. 



UWCD Special Board Meeting MINUTES 
November 7, 2022 
Page 2 

1.C Approval of Agenda 
Motion 
Motion to approve the agenda, Director Maulhardt; Second, Director Hasan.  Voice vote:  
four ayes (Dandy, Hasan, Kimball, Maulhardt); none opposed; three absent (Berger, 
Mobley, Naumann) 

1.D General Manager’s Report

Information Item 
General Manager Mauricio Guardado updated the Board on the District’s clean-
up efforts along the Santa Clara River.  Chief Park Ranger Strahan and his team 
have been notified of two brush fires in the watershed over the past 10 days, 
south of Saticoy at North Bank.  Chief Strahan has been working with Ventura 
County Supervisor Matt LaVere’s office to address the homeless encampments 
and are working with County offices to develop a collaborative process for 
dealing with illegal trespassing, homeless encampments and trash dumping 
among other issues.  Mr. Guardado also addressed how Chief Strahan, working 
with Operations and Maintenance team, have been handling weed abatement 
which all believe deters the encampments.   

President Dandy recalled how he, Mr. Guardado and Chief Strahan met with 
Supervisor LeVere and his staff to address the homeless issue and that the 
Supervisor offered support and to step up the County’s involvement in 
identifying a workable solution for this continuing problem.   

Mr. Guardado added that while the County is responsible, the District is working 
with the City and other offices to curtail these issues and suggested that this is an 
opportunity to collaborate with Supervisor LaVere and his administrative team 
on developing a collaborative and multilevel approach to addressing trespassing, 
homeless encampments, trash dumping and other issues that continue to plague 
the watershed. 

President Dandy asked if there were any questions or comments.  None were 
offered. 

1.E Tour of Lake Piru Recreation Area Improvements 

Information Item 
Chief Strahan invited the Board members to join him outside and explained 
that the volunteer work campers would be driving them in utility carts so they 
wouldn’t have to walk all over the Recreation area in the rain. 



UWCD Special Board Meeting MINUTES 
November 7, 2022 
Page 3 

First stop on the tour was the recently remodeled Welcome (Entry) Kiosk.  The 
Directors were then driven to the Olive Grove Campground to observe new security 
fencing and the sites of proposed future improvements.  The group carried on to the 
Day Use Park Area to observe the irrigation improvement project which was 
completed in early 2022.   

Next stop was the proposed RV Park site (known as overflow camping currently) 
where Chief Strahan highlighted the proposed future improvements to the area which 
will accommodate more RV type camping as well as offer tremendous views of the 
surrounding mountains and observations of wildlife. 

Moving on to the Dry Storage area, where boats are stored, Chief Strahan showed the 
group the newly installed security and privacy fencing which encompasses the facility 
(720 linear feet of fencing), enhancing the esthetics of the facility and bolstering 
security. 

Next stop was the Condor Point picnic area where the group toured the recently 
improved facilities at the area which were mandated by FERC.  This included six new 
shade ramadas, landscaping improvements, new BBQ grills, and picnic structures and 
ADA compliant picnic structures.  The group also went inside the Condor Point store 
and discussed possible usage of the structure, including reopening merchant 
operations.   

The last stop of the tour was the Lake Piru Marina launch facility.  Board members 
were introduced to the boat concession service (Tommy’s Boats) and were provided 
with a tour of the “fleet” of rental vessels. 

ADJOURNMENT 11:42a.m. 
At the completion of the tour, President Dandy adjourned the meeting to the next 
Regular Board Meeting scheduled for Wednesday, November 9, 2022 or call of the 
President. 

I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the UWCD Special Board of 

Directors meeting of November 7, 2022. 

ATTEST:____________________________________________ 

Lynn E. Maulhardt, Board Secretary 

ATTEST:_____________________________________________ 

Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board 



 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, November 9, 2022, 12:00 P.M. 
Board Room, UWCD Headquarters 

1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard CA 93030 
 
DIRECTORS PRESENT: 
Bruce E. Dandy, president 
Lynn E. Maulhardt, secretary/treasurer 
Mohammed A. Hasan, director 
Gordon Kimball, director (departed at 1:35pm) 
Michael W. Mobley, director 
Daniel C. Naumann, director 
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
Sheldon G. Berger, vice president 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Mauricio Guardado, general manager 
David Boyer, legal counsel 
Anthony Emmert, assistant general manager 
Maryam Bral, chief engineer 
John Carman, operations and maintenance program supervisor 
Brian Collins, chief operations officer 
Dan Detmer, water resources manager 
Zachary Hanson, hydrogeologist 
Tony Huynh, risk and safety manager 
John Lindquist, supervising hydrogeologist 
Craig Morgan, engineering manager 
Zachary Plummer, technology systems manager 
Linda Purpus, environmental services manager 
Ed Reese, technology systems specialist 
Bram Sercu, senior hydrologist 
Daryl Smith, controller 
Brian Zahn, chief financial officer 
 
PUBLIC PRESENT: 
Sam Collie, OPV Group 
 
1. FIRST OPEN SESSION 12:00 P.M. 

President Dandy called the meeting to order at 12noon.   
 

1.1 Public Comments 
Information Item 
President Dandy asked if there were any public comments.  None were 
offered. 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 
November 9, 2022 
Page 2 
 

President Dandy asked District Legal Counsel David Boyer to provide an outline of the 
topics being discussed during Executive (Closed) Session. 

Mr. Boyer stated that the Board would discuss one case of anticipated litigation and five 
cases on existing litigation, those being the City of San Buenaventura v UWCD; the 
Wishtoyo Foundation v. UWCD; OPV Coalition v Fox Canyon GMA; UWCD v United 
States and UWCD v California Fish and Game Commission. 

1.2 EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 12:05 P.M. 
President Dandy adjourned the meeting into Executive (Closed) session at 
12:05pm.  

2. SECOND OPEN SESSION AND CALL TO ORDER 1:23 P.M.
President Dandy called the Second Open Session of the UWCD Board of Directors 
meeting to order at 1:23p.m. 

2.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
  President Dandy invited Director Michael Mobley to lead everyone in reciting     
  the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2.2 Public Comment 
Information Item 
President Dandy asked if there were any public comments.  None were 
offered. 

2.3 Approval of Agenda 
Motion 

  Motion to approve the agenda, Director Naumann; Second; Director Mobley.   
  Voice vote: six ayes (Hasan, Kimball, Maulhardt, Mobley, Naumann, Dandy); 
  none opposed; one absent (Berger).  Motion carries unanimously 6/0/1. 

2.4 Oral Report Regarding Executive (Closed) Session 
Information Item 
President Dandy asked Mr. Boyer to report out of Executive Session. Mr. Boyer 
reported that the Board took no action during Executive session that is reportable 
under the Brown Act. 

2.5 Board Members’ Activities Report 
Information Item 

  President Dandy asked if there were any questions or comments regarding the 
  Board’s monthly activities reports.  None were offered. 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 
November 9, 2022 
Page 3 
 

 
2.6 General Manager’s Report 

Information Item 
  General Manager Mauricio Guardado stated he just had a quick reminder that    
  tomorrow’s AWA WaterWise event would feature presentations from the Three    
  GMs representing Calleguas, Casitas and UWCD and the event was being held in   
  the UWCD Boardroom and was also available online. 

 
2.7 Ventura Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) Ballot for Special 

District Regular Member and Special District Alternate Member 
Representatives (one each) 
Motion 
President Dandy explained the voting process for the LAFCo Special District 
Regular Member and Alternate Member of the Ventura Local Agency Formation 
Commission ballot for the term beginning January 1, 2023 and ending on 
December 31, 2026. 

 
Director Hasan asked to read his candidate statement aloud (it was included in the 
Board packet materials along with the other candidates’ written statements 
provided by LAFCo). 

 
Motion to vote for Raul Avila as Regular Member and Mohammed Hasan as 
Alternate Member, President Dandy; Second, Director Naumann.  Roll call vote: 
six ayes (Hasan, Kimball, Maulhardt, Mobley, Naumann, Dandy); none opposed; 
one absent (Berger).  Motion carries unanimously 6/0/1. 

 
 
3. CONSENT CALENDAR: All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are 
considered routine by the Board and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless a Board member pulls an item from the Calendar. Pulled 
items will be discussed and acted on separately by the Board. Members of the public who 
want to comment on a Consent Calendar item should do so under Public Comments. (ROLL 
CALL VOTE REQUIRED) 
 

A. Approval of Minutes 
Motion 
Approval of the Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting of October 12, 2022. 

 
B. Groundwater Basin Status Reports 

Information Item 
Receive and file Monthly Hydrologic Conditions Report for the District. 

 
C. Monthly Investment Report 

Information Item 
Report on the District’s investments and the availability or restriction of these 
funds. All investments are in compliance with the District’s investment policy, 
which is reviewed and approved annually by the Board. 

 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 
November 9, 2022 
Page 4 
 

D. Resolution 2022-43 Subsequent Finding that the Governor of California issued  
a Proclamation of a State of Emergency on March 4, 2020 relating to the 

 COVID-19 virus and local officials continue to recommend social distancing 
 measures to mitigate the spread of the COVID-19 virus and Authorizing 
 remote teleconference meetings of the legislative bodies of United Water 
 Conservation District for the period of November 9, 2022 through December 
 9, 2022, pursuant to Brown Act provisions 

Motion 
The Board will consider adopting Resolution 2022-43 continuing subsequent 
findings that the requisite conditions exist for remote teleconference meetings of 
the District’s legislative bodies without compliance with Government Code 
section54953(b)(3), as authorized by Government Code section 54953(e). 

  
 President Dandy asked if any of the Consent Calendar items needed to be pulled for discussion.  
 None were requested. 
 
 Motion to approve the Consent Calendar, Director Naumann; Second, Director Mobley.  Roll call 
 vote: six ayes (Hasan, Kimball, Maulhardt, Mobley, Naumann, Dandy); none opposed; one absent 
 (Berger).  Motion carries unanimously 6/0/1. 
 
 
4. PRESENTATIONS AND MONTHLY STAFF REPORTS (By Department) 
 

Administrative Services Department – Brian Zahn and Josh Perez 
4.1 Monthly Administrative Services Department Report  

Information Item 
Chief Financial Officer Brian Zahn addressed the Board stating that he had no 
official presentation for them, but did want to advise the Board that the District’s 
Standard & Poor’s (S&P) rating was upgraded from AA- negative to AA stable.  
He stated that due to the prolonged drought, S&P was reviewing the ratings of 
most water agencies and thanks to the numerous major accomplishments of the 
District, and the reviewers virtual attendance at the District’s Water Sustainability 
Summit on October 19, the District earned an improved rating. 
 
President Dandy asked if there were any questions or comments from the Board.  
None were offered. 
 

Engineering Department – Dr. Maryam Bral 
4.2 Monthly Engineering Department Report 

Information Item 
Chief Engineer Dr. Bral addressed the Board and shared a presentation (see 
attached slides) highlighting the key activities of the Engineering Department 
during the previous month, including the sixth Board of Consultants two-day 
meeting for the Santa Felicia Dam Safety Improvement Project in September 
which included members of FERC, DSoD, consultants and staff (participating in 
person and virtually).  The group reviewed the 30% design for the spillway and 
90% design for the Outlet works and will issue a report to UWCD which was then 
submitted to FERC and DSoD on October 14.   
 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 
November 9, 2022 
Page 5 
 

On October 20, engineering staff hosted a table top exercise for 58 people.  The 
workshop was an exercise of a hypothetical emergency to test the reliability of the 
District’s Emergency Action Plan. 

There was a brief shut down of the Iron and Manganese Treatment facility to 
replace pipes on October 26; and the PTP Metering project continues to secure 
additional easements.  Dr. Bral reported that 40 of the 61 easements have been 
secured and that an additional 5 easements will be completed by the end of 2022, 
which leaves 17 easements still to go. 

Dr. Bral also included public outreach efforts of the department, including the 
Water Sustainability Summit on October 19, and the teams’ participation at the 
Southern California Salinity Coalition (SCSC) One Water Salinity Management 
Innovation Summit on October 26. 

President Dandy asked if there were any questions or comments for Dr. Bral.  
Director Maulhardt asked if any members of the Metropolitan Water District were 
working on desal projects.  Dr. Bral sited projects in southern California and stated 
that no other agencies in Ventura are working on desal projects except UWCD. 

Environmental Services Department – Linda Purpus 
4.3 Monthly Environmental Services Department Report 

Information Item 
Environmental Services Manager Linda Purpus addressed the Board, asking if 
there were any questions based on the department’s summary report of monthly 
activities.  None were offered.  She then shared a presentation (see attached slides) 
outlining the department’s efforts in securing permitting for the Freeman 
Sediment Management project; the Fish and Game Commission’s approval of the 
District’s request for a six-month extension to complete CDFW’s status review of 
the petition to include southern California steelhead under CESA; and an 
invitation from USGS and UCLA to collaborate on publishing the findings of the 
Pulsed Flow Study in a peer reviewed journal, and that the District staff would 
take the lead on the report. 

President Dandy asked if there were any questions or comments for Ms. Purpus.  
Director Maulhardt asked some questions about the advantages of publishing the 
Pulsed Flow Study report, which Ms. Purpus answered in greater detail. 

Operations and Maintenance Department – Brian Collins 
4.4 Monthly Operation and Maintenance Department Report 

Information Item 
Chief Operations Officer Brian Collins addressed the Board asking if they had any 
questions regarding his department’s summary report on monthly activities; none 
were offered.  He then shared a presentation (see attached slides) documenting 
maintenance work on the Freeman Diversion, the replacement of the motor on the 
Oxnard Hueneme pipeline Well 16; and the emergency replacement of the pump 
on Pumping Trough pipeline well #3, which experienced a catastrophic failure.  
Mr. Collins reported that staff leveraged PTP well #12 to supplement the PTP 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 
November 9, 2022 
Page 6 
 

system during the repair period. 

Director Hasan asked Mr. Collins if these emergency situations are covered in the 
District’s budget.  Mr. Collins replied that the emergency repair for PTP well #3 
followed District protocol and there was no disruption of service. 

President Dandy asked if there were any additional questions or comments for Mr. 
Collins.  None were offered. 

Director Kimball departed the meeting at approximately 1:35pm. 

Park and Recreation Department – Clayton Strahan 
4.5 Monthly Park and Recreation Department Report 

Information Item 
Chief Park Ranger Strahan was not at the Board meeting and since the November 
Recreation Committee meeting was canceled, there were no presentations for the 
Board.   

President Dandy reported that several Directors were in attendance for the Special 
Board Meeting on Monday at the Lake Piru Recreation Area and were given a 
tour of the many improvements completed at the lake over the past year.  Director 
Maulhardt added that it was a great tour of all of the facilities and Director Hasan 
commented on the abundance of wildlife visible in the park.   

Water Resources Department – Dan Detmer 
4.6 Monthly Water Resources Department Report 

Information Item 
Water Resource Manager Dan Detmer addressed the Board reporting that, based 
on the response to the department’s presentation to the Water Resources 
Committee, staff made some updates and changes to its presentation for the Fox 
Canyon GMA entitled Modeling of Projects for OPV Basins’ Sustainability (see 
attached slides).  The presentation was a collaborative effort between Supervising 
Hydrogeologist John Lindquist, Senior Hydrologist Dr. Bram Sercu and 
Hydrogeologist Dr. Zachary Hanson. 

Throughout the presentation there was an extensive discussion regarding the 
definition of sustainable yield and how the understanding of that term has changed 
over the years.   

Director Maulhardt stated that slide 24, specifically, had great potential to bring 
projects online, which is the primary mission of the District.  President Dandy 
added that this presentation is very important and will have a huge impact, which 
is why he wanted a better understanding of the information provided, especially 
moving forward over the next 50 years.  Director Mobley added that the slides are 
great at conveying important information regarding how the projects, pipelines 
and pumping fit into the groundwater sustainability plans and explain how much 
water these projects are bringing into the region.   



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 
November 9, 2022 
Page 7 
 

 
Mr. Lindquist said that staff is looking for important conclusions and implications 
based on the modeling data and looks to the Board for additional input and ideas. 
 
Director Naumann suggested including the 1500AF per year that is needed by the 
Navy.  Mr. Detmer said it is an alternate supply of water and Dr. Sercu, addressing 
slide 25, said that if there is no demand, that water would be used for basin 
recharge and when there is demand, the water can be moved to accommodate the 
demand.  He added that the average modeling outcome with project recharge and 
pipeline development accounts for an additional 10,500AF per year (slide 27) and 
the projects reduce pumping by 39 percent along the coast, which also helps with 
seawater intrusion. 
 
Mr. Lindquist said that with the projects modeled, the region can reach 
sustainability without having to reduce pumping and effectively mitigate nearly 
all seawater intrusion, improving the water quality.  Addressing slide 35, Mr. 
Lindquist said “optimization” may not be needed to decrease or mitigate seawater 
intrusion, but the EBB Water project needs to be a lifelong commitment.  He said 
Fox Canyon GMA will be working on the five-year update to the GSPs and based 
on modeling may not need to ramp down. 
 
President Dandy asked about subsidence and climate change locally and Mr. 
Lindquist replied that the planning includes requirements for climate change and 
seawater rise.  Director Maulhardt recalled how, back in the early 1960s, elected 
officials opted not to build three dams and didn’t think there would be such a great 
need for water.  Director Maulhardt said that the modeling shows that “we must 
to these projects to get these results.”  He added that Ventura County is the seventh 
or eighth largest agricultural economy in the United States and needs to be more 
efficient at using water. 

 
5. MOTION ITEMS (By Department) 

Engineering Department -  Craig Morgan 
5.1 Contract Amendment to the Engineering Support Contract with Stantec 

Consulting Services, Inc. for the Vertical Slot Fish Passage Alternative 
Motion 
Engineering Manager Craig Morgan addressed the Board and presented a slide 
which outlined the needs for the amendment to the Stantec professional 
consulting services agreement for the Vertical Slot fish passage alternative. 
 
Motion to authorize the General Manager to execute an amendment to the 
professional consulting services agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. 
(Stantec) in the amount of $150,820 to provide continued engineering design 
support of the Vertical Slot as a Freeman Diversion Fish Passage Facility 
alternative, Director Maulhardt; Second, Director Naumann.  Roll call vote: five 
ayes (Hasan, Maulhardt, Mobley, Naumann, Dandy); opposed, none; absent, two 
(Berger, Kimball)  Motion carries unanimously 5/0/2. 
 
 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES 
November 9, 2022 
Page 8 
 

 
6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS READING FILE 
 
7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

President Dandy asked if there were any topics for consideration by the Board on future 
agendas.  None were offered. 
 
Director Maulhardt said he wanted to thank staff or the tour of the Lake Piru Recreation 
Area, and that it was a great tour and he especially appreciated being included in the all 
staff BBQ. 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT  3:27p.m. 

President Dandy adjourned the meeting at 3:27p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting 
 scheduled for Wednesday, December 14, 2022 or call of the President. 
 
 
I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the UWCD Special Board of Directors 
meeting of November 9, 2022. 

 
 
ATTEST:____________________________________________ 
                Lynn E. Maulhardt, Board Secretary 
 
 
 
ATTEST:_____________________________________________ 
  Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board 

 



UWCD Board Meeting 2022‐11‐09

1

1

November 9, 2022 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY UPDATE

UPDATE PHOTO

2

Santa Felicia Dam Safety Improvement Project
BOC Meeting No. 6 on Sept 28-29

• Review of 60% Design of the new Outlet Works and 30% Design of the Spillway Improvements
• BOC report and BOC tracking form e-filed with FERC on October 14 and submitted hardcopy

to DSOD

1

2



UWCD Engineering and Operations Committee 
Agenda Item 4.1

2022‐11‐03

2

3

• Held on October 20 at District Headquarters
• 58 people attended (41 in person,17 virtual)
• Emergency Action Plan updated
• Gannett Fleming provided support with TTX

Dam Safety and Regulatory Compliance
SFD Tabletop Exercise 

4

Iron and 
Manganese 
Treatment 

Facility

New 14” RAW Bypass connection 
to Existing 42” Upper Aquifer 

System Pipeline

New 24” Filtered Water Connection 
to Existing 42” Upper Aquifer 

System Pipeline

3

4



UWCD Engineering and Operations Committee 
Agenda Item 4.1

2022‐11‐03

3

5

• Meters installed to date: 65% completion (40 of 61)

• A new meter installed at TO # 134 on September 29

• Future installation of five meters by the end of 2022

• Progress meeting with HJA on October 13 to 
discuss easement acquisition progress

PTP Metering System 
Improvement

6

Public Outreach
2022 Water Sustainability Summit

Dr. Bral attended the SCSC 
2022 One Water Salinity 
Management Innovation 
Summit at MWD on October 26

Santa Felicia Dam Safety 
Improvement Project

Extraction Barrier and 
Brackish Water Project

Laguna Rd Recycled 
Water Interconnection

Iron and Manganese 
Treatment Plant Project 

Overview of Benefits 
and Costs

5

6



UWCD Engineering and Operations Committee 
Agenda Item 4.1

2022‐11‐03

4

7

QUESTIONS

7



UWCD Board Meeting 2022‐11‐09

1

1

November 9, 2022

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
MONTHLY UPDATE

2

Department 
Summary Updates

• Permitting
- Status update on Freeman 

Sediment Management project 

• CESA
- F&G Commission approved 

CDFW’s request for six-month 
extension to complete status review

• Pulsed Flow Study
- Partnership with USGS and UCLA 

to publish findings in peer reviewed 
journal

1

2



UWCD Engineering and Operations Committee 
Agenda Item 4.2

2022‐11‐03

2

3

QUESTIONS

3



UWCD Board meeting 2022‐11‐09

1

1

November 9, 2022

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 
DEPARTMENT MONTHLY UPDATE

2

2

2

Freeman Diversion
Canal Expansion Joint Seal – Trash Rack Bearing – TID Meter

1

2



UWCD Engineering and Operations Committee 
Agenda Item 4.3

2022‐11‐03

2

3

OH Delivery 
OH 42” Pipeline Bore – UAS Shutdown – OH Well 16 Motor 

4

4

4

PTP
PTP Well #3 – Peak System Demand – Well 12  

3

4



UWCD Engineering and Operations Committee 
Agenda Item 4.3

2022‐11‐03

3

5

5

5

Questions?

5



1

4.6 MODELING OF PROJECTS FOR OPV 
BASINS SUSTAINABILITY

Prepared by Bram Sercu,  PhD/Senior  Hydrologist
John Lindquist ,  Supervising Hydrogeologist
Zachary Hanson,  PhD/Hydrogeologist

Board of  Directors Meet ing
November 9,  2022

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

Acre-
Feet
per 

Year

Decade

Ag Groundwater
Ag in-lieu Surface Water
M&I Groundwater

CHANGING YIELD ESTIMATES OVER TIME

2

VC Public Works, 1985
“Use Storage” = 110,600 AFY 

“Balance” = 80,600 AFY
Base period = 1970-78

FCGMA + others, 2007
“Basin yield” = 73,000 AFY 

(or 65,000 AFY)
Base period = 1944-98

Dudek (FCGMA), 2019
Sustainable Yield = 

50,600 AFY
Base period = 1930-79

John Mann (United), 1959
“Safe Yield” = 65,000 AFY

Base period = 1936-57

SCR Diversions (recharge 
+ conjunctive use)

DWR (Bull. 46), 1933
“Balance” = 33,800 AFY

Base period = 1892-1932

SWRB (Bull. 12), 1956
“Safe Yield” = 26,400 AFY

Base period = 1944-51

United (“GSP-Lite”), 2016
Sust. yield = 50,000 AFY

(uniform rampdown)

2040 Deadline

1

2



2

STAKEHOLDER PROCESS FOR DEVELOPING A 
PREFERRED FUTURE PROJECT SCENARIO

3

1. Major pumping reductions contemplated in Oxnard and Pleasant Valley basin GSPs
• Many stakeholders were concerned

2. In 2020 FCGMA convened an ad hoc Stakeholder Projects Committee

3. Committee recommended a “Hybrid Scenario”—combining optimization efforts and 
a seawater-intrusion barrier—for United to model 

• Referred to herein as “Stakeholder Scenario”

4. United was asked to model potential effects of this scenario

5. United shared preliminary results with stakeholders at several meetings in 2021

6. United made some updates and adjustments, prepared report in 2022 
• Now available on United’s website

4

Surface Water 
Distribution Model*

Groundwater 
Model*~Sustainable?

Recharge/SW deliveries 
+ PumpingProjects

n

y

 Open-File Report
 Outreach
 Refine modeling

STAKEHOLDER SCENARIO MODELING APPROACH

*50-yr modeled forecast (2020-2069)

3

4



3

5

STAKEHOLDER SCENARIO PROJECTS:
CURRENT FACILITIES

STAKEHOLDER SCENARIO PROJECTS:
EXTRACTION BARRIER + INCREASE SUPPLIES

6

6,000 AF (2020)9,900AF (2027/2035)

Increase SY (2027)
500 AF (2027)

Increase SY (2020)

2,700 AF (2020)

4,600 AF (2020)

4,500 AF (2027)
+ Increase SY 

5

6



4

STAKEHOLDER SCENARIO PROJECTS:
SURFACE WATER DISTRIBUTION MODELING (DAILY MODEL)

7

GW Pumping
(demand – deliveries)

GW Recharge

Water supply inputs

SW Model outputs

STAKEHOLDER SCENARIO PROJECTS INCREASE 
WATER DELIVERIES*

8*50-yr modeled forecast (2020-2069)

Recharge
+ 10,500 AFY 

Pipeline
+ 10,400 AFY 

7

8



5

EBB Water

EBB Water

STAKEHOLDER SCENARIO PROJECTS REDUCE 
PUMPING NEAR COAST BY 39%

9

Total Pumping
20,550 AFY

Total Pumping
33,900 AFY

Without projects (no pumping reductions)

Voluntary fallowing

Stakeholder Scenario (SW barrier, new supplies & 
optimization)

EBB WaterEBB Water

THE BOTTOM LINE

10

Modeling results show that the EBB Water extraction barrier 
+ new and expanded water-supplies proposed by stakeholders 
=  Sustainable yield (without reducing current Ag and M&I pumping)

• Effective mitigation of nearly all seawater intrusion in our aquifers

• Equal to or better than mitigation provided by “Reduction with Projects” scenario in the 
GSPs for the OPV Basins

• EBB Water and other projects provide improved groundwater quality 

9

10



6

The Evolution of 
Seawater 

Intrusion Barriers 
in California

Los Angeles County
• 290 injection wells
• 17.2 miles
• -30,000 AFY

Orange County
• 108 injection wells
• 2.5 miles
• -30,000 AFY

Alameda County (Newark Aquifer 
Reclamation Program)
• ~10 brackish extraction wells
• ~3 miles
• +11,000 AFY treated brackish 

water produced for M&I use
Monterey County (proposed)
• 22 brackish extraction wells
• 8.5 miles
• Treated brackish water to be 

produced for recharge or use

Brackish extraction 
now proposed in 
LA and Orange Co. 11

Ventura County EBB Water Project 
Phase 1 (in design)
• 7 brackish extraction wells
• 1 mile
• Brackish water to be returned to its 

source

Issue
Stakeholder 

Scenario

GSP “Reduction 
with Projects” 

Scenario
Change in water supply compared to 

current use No change -27,000 AFY

Net change in area of seawater 
intrusion:  Oxnard Aquifer -3,600 acres -3,800 acres

Mugu Aquifer -300 to -800 acres +100 acres

Hueneme Aquifer +100 to +200 acres +100 acres

Fox Canyon Aquifer -100 acres +400 acres

Grimes Canyon Aquifer -100 acres Not applicable

High-quality treated water to 
NBVC-Pt Mugu and Forebay? Yes No

COMPARISON OF STAKEHOLDER SCENARIO TO 
GSP “REDUCTION WITH PROJECTS” SCENARIO

1
2

11

12



7

STAKEHOLDER SCENARIO WITHOUT INJECTION:
OXNARD AQUIFER SEAWATER PARTICLE TRACKS

13

Benefits:
• No reduction in total supply 

(compared to 2017-21 averages) 
except incentivized fallowing

• Provides new high-quality, sources 
of water (some are “drought-proof”)

• Over 50 years, pulls seawater 
intrusion in Oxnard Aquifer back south 
0.5 to 1.5 miles

• No discharge from UAS to Pacific 
Ocean southeast from Channel 
Islands Harbor

Challenges:
• Somewhat higher costs for water

GSP “REDUCTION WITH PROJECTS” SCENARIO:
OXNARD AQUIFER SEAWATER PARTICLE TRACKS

14

Benefits:
• Over 50 years, seawater intrusion 

front in Oxnard Aquifer migrates south 
0.5 to 0.8 miles

Challenges:
• ~27,000 AFY less local water supplies 

available to Ag + M&I
• 3,300 AFY discharge from Upper 

Aquifer System (UAS) to Pacific 
Ocean

• 1,500 AFY seawater intrusion 
continues in Lower Aquifer System 
(LAS)

• Elimination of seawater intrusion 
in LAS requires further cutbacks, 
more discharge to Pacific Ocean

Assumes uniform 
reduction in pumping 

throughout basins

13

14



8

STAKEHOLDER SCENARIO WITHOUT INJECTION:
FOX CANYON AQUIFER SEAWATER PARTICLE TRACKS

15

Benefits:
• Reversal of seawater in east and 

northwest
Challenges:
• Minor excursion of seawater 

intrusion to west

GSP “REDUCTION WITH PROJECTS” SCENARIO: 
FOX CANYON AQUIFER SEAWATER PARTICLE TRACKS

Benefits:
• None

Challenges:
• Northward and westward 

expansion of seawater intrusion 
front

16

15

16



9

CONCLUSIONS
1. The “Stakeholder Scenario” and its variations achieve equal or better 

mitigation of seawater intrusion than the GSP “Reduction with 
Projects Scenario”
 Some improvements possible in all scenarios, including GSP scenario
 But are they really needed?

 Optimizing pumping depths and locations is not very impactful when a 
seawater intrusion barrier is in place (maybe we can save $60 million?)

2. The Stakeholder Scenario does not require large reductions in Ag and 
M&I water supply
 However, it requires long-term commitment to both expanding water supplies 

and mitigating seawater intrusion (even after this drought ends)
17

RECOMMENDATIONS
1. Ask stakeholders for their input, concerns, questions:

• Are small advances of the seawater intrusion front in some areas “significant 
and unreasonable” in context of overall success in mitigating past intrusion?

• Is recycled water for Ag use going to be available over the long term?

2. Further investigation:
• Better refine benefits of some optimization components vs. costs
• Conduct detailed transport modeling of preferred scenarios

• Provides more details regarding future salinity changes in groundwater over time

18

17

18



10

NEXT STEPS

1. Keep moving forward on design of EBB Water
2. Keep moving forward on expanding other water supply 

sources
3. Keep updating and refining cost estimates
4. Plan stakeholder meetings
5. Plan additional modeling—transport and subsidence
6. Plan for 5-year update of GSPs, based on Stakeholder 

Scenario
• Hard to envision why a rampdown would be needed

19

Questions?

20

19

20



UWCD Board Meeting 2022‐11‐09

1

1

Motion Item 5.1
Contract Amendment with Stantec for Vertical 

Slot Fish Passage Alternative
 Contract Amendment with Stantec for $150,820

 Additional Engineering Design Updates to include:

o continued support to address agency comments on the physical
modeling for submittal, in accordance with the latest stipulated
order;

o continued support provided by principal-level staff throughout the
remainder of the physical modeling;

o 3D drawings development in support of the design; and

o CFD modeling software refinement.

1



 

Staff Report 
 
To: UWCD Board of Directors 
 
Through: Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
 Dan Detmer, Water Resources Manager  
 
From: Kathleen Kuepper, Hydrogeologist 
 Bram Sercu, Senior Hydrologist 
 
Date: December 6, 2022 (December 14, 2022 Meeting) 
 
Agenda Item:     3.B Groundwater Basin Status Report 
  Informational Item 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
The Board will receive and file the Monthly Hydrologic Conditions Report for the District for 
the month of November 2022.  
 
Summary: 
Diversions, Recharge and Ag Pipeline Deliveries for Month of November 2022* 

Activity Amount (acre-feet) 
Total Diversions at Freeman Diversion 0 
Lloyd-Butler Mutual Water Company surface water use 0 
Recharge to Saticoy basins (metered + unmetered) 0 
Recharge to Noble and Rose basins 0 
Recharge to El Rio basin 0 
Total Ag Pipeline Deliveries of water diverted at Freeman 0 
Total Ag Pipeline Deliveries of water pumped from    
Saticoy Well Field 0 

Recharge to Piru spreading grounds 0 
*Provisional data. Final data are made available in the September Hydrologic Conditions Report of each water year. 
 
Groundwater Basin Available Storage at End of Month of November 2022 

Basin Available Storage (acre-feet) 
Oxnard Forebay 121,300 

 
 
Precipitation for Month of November 2022  

Location Precipitation (inches) 
Lake Piru 1.86 
Santa Paula 0.86 
El Rio  0.62 

 



November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report
2022/23 Water Year

December 6, 2022

UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 1

Note: This report may contain provisional data until final review at the end of the water year.



Page Intentionally
Left Blank

UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 2



Precipitation

UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report

District-wide percent of normal precipitation = 48%

D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
d

D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
d

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

PRECIP IN
NOVEMBER

CUMULATIVE FOR
WATER YEAR

2022/23

0.86 0.92

2.01 2.38

PR
EC

IP
IT

AT
IO

N 
(IN

CH
ES

)

SANTA PAULA #245

Current year
Historical Average

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

PRECIP IN
NOVEMBER

CUMULATIVE FOR
WATER YEAR

2022/23

0.62 0.73

1.76 2.11

PR
EC

IP
IT

AT
IO

N 
(IN

CH
ES

)

EL RIO #239

Current year
Historical Average

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

22

24

PRECIP IN
NOVEMBER

CUMULATIVE FOR
WATER YEAR

2022/23

1.86 1.92

2.57 2.95

PR
EC

IP
IT

AT
IO

N 
(IN

CH
ES

)

LAKE PIRU #160

Current year
Historical Average

3



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 4

Lake Piru Storage and Outflow

Castaic Lake releases to 
downstream water users (DWU) Pyramid Lake releases to UWCD

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

Oc
t-2

2

No
v-2

2

De
c-2

2

Jan
-23

Fe
b-2

3

M
ar-

23

Ap
r-2

3

M
ay

-23

Jun
-23

Jul
-23

Au
g-2

3

Se
p-2

3

St
or

ag
e (

ac
re

-fe
et

)

Cumulative flows passing Santa Felicia Dam for 
water year 2022/23  951 A-F

Monthly water release = 466 A-F

Maximum Storage

-2,000

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

N
ov

-2
1

D
ec

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

F
e

b-
2

2

M
a

r-
2

2

A
pr

-2
2

M
a

y-
22

Ju
n-

22

Ju
l-2

2

A
ug

-2
2

S
ep

-2
2

O
ct

-2
2

N
ov

-2
2

A
cr

e -
Fe

et

Balance Natural Flows (+ Owed to DWU/- Owed to DWR)

Pyramid Lake Imported Water by UWCD

Pyramid Lake Natural Inflow

Pyramid Lake Total Outflow

-1,000

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

N
ov

-2
1

D
ec

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

F
e

b-
2

2

M
a

r-
2

2

A
pr

-2
2

M
a

y-
22

Ju
n-

22

Ju
l-2

2

A
ug

-2
2

S
ep

-2
2

O
ct

-2
2

N
ov

-2
2

A
cr

e-
Fe

et

Balance Natural Flows (+ Owed to DWU/- Owed to DWR)

Castaic Lake Natural Inflows

Castaic Lake Total Outflow

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep
Hydro Plant Outflow (Acre-Feet) 0 0
Cumulative Hydro Plant Outflow (A-F) 0 0



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 5

Locations of Key Wells, 
Monthly Groundwater Elevation Monitoring



Groundwater Elevation Records – Piru Basin

UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 6

Well 04N18W29M02S (29M2)

Well 04N19W25M01S (25M1)

400
420
440
460
480
500
520
540
560
580
600
620
640

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation -29M2= 636.7 feet
Reference Elevation -29C1= 663.03 feet

29M2 well dry 
29C1 data from 1/15 to 6/17

29M2 last data on 11/30/2022

400
420
440
460
480
500
520
540
560
580
600
620
640

1925 1945 1965 1985 2005 2025

Complete Record 1926 to1971, wel l -30G2 R.P.= 628.8 feet
1968 to present, well -29M2 R.P.= 636.7 feet

460
480
500
520
540
560
580
600

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation = 582.02 feet

last data on 11/30/2022

460
480
500
520
540
560
580
600

1925 1945 1965 1985 2005 2025

Complete Record Reference Elevation = 582.02 feet



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 7

Well 03N20W02A01S (2A1)

Well 04N20W24C02S (24C2)

Groundwater Elevation Records – Fillmore Basin

340

360

380

400

420

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023

Last 10 Years

last data on 11/30/2022

340

360

380

400

420

1950 1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020

Complete Record 1978 to 2014, wel l 23Q2, R.P. = 513.99 feet
2015 to 2019, wel l 23N1, R.P. = 559.00 feet

2019 to present, well 24C2, R.P. = 497.02 feet

300

320

340

360

380

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation = 376.61 feet

last data on 11/30/2022

300

320

340

360

380

1950 1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020

Complete Record Reference Elevation = 376.61 feet



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 8

Groundwater Elevation Records – Santa Paula Basin

Well 02N22W09K04S (9K4)

Groundwater Elevation Records – Mound Basin

Well 03N21W16K01S (16K1)

160

180

200

220

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation = 237.31 feet

last data on 11/30/2022

160

180

200

220

1920 1940 1960 1980 2000 2020

Complete Record Reference Elevation = 237.31 feet

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

80

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023

Last 10 years Reference Elevation = 244.49 feet

last data on 11/30/2022

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

80

1945 1955 1965 1975 1985 1995 2005 2015 2025

Reference Elevation = 244.49 feetComplete Record



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 9

Well 02N22W22R02S (22R2)

Groundwater Elevation Records – Oxnard Basin, Forebay 

Wells 02N22W12R01S (12R1), 02N22W12R04S (12R4), and 02N21W07M04S (7M4)

-40
-20

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023

Last 10 Years

last data on 11/21/2022

-12R1; RP = 134.19 ft; - 7M4; RP = 142.84 ft; -12R4; RP = 137.11 ft

Note:  Well 12R1 was destroyed in 2014 and replaced with well 12R4.  When well 12R4 goes dry at 
approximately 9 ft msl, well 7M4 is used to measure groundwater level. 

-40
-20

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

1930 1950 1970 1990 2010 2030

Complete Record

Note:  Well 12R1 was destroyed in 2014 and replaced with well 12R4.  When well 12R4 goes 
dry at approximately 9 ft msl, well 7M4 is used to measure groundwater level. 

-12R1; RP = 134.19 ft; - 7M4; RP = 142.84 ft; -12R4; RP = 137.11 ft

-60
-40
-20

0
20
40
60
80

100

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation -22R2 = 93.09 feet

last data on 11/30/2022

-60
-40
-20

0
20
40
60
80

100

1930 1950 1970 1990 2010 2030

Complete Record
1931 to 2004, wel l -22R1, RP = 93.6 feet

2004 to present, well -22R2, RP = 93.09 feet



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 10

LAS well 01N22W13D03S (13D3)

UAS Well 01N22W02A02S (2A2)

Groundwater Elevation Records – Oxnard Basin

-60

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation = 60.73 feet 

last data on 11/30/2022

-60

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

1945 1955 1965 1975 1985 1995 2005 2015 2025

Complete Record
1948 to 1994, wel l 1P1, R.P.= 51.7  feet

1995 to present, well2A2, R.P.= 60.73 feet

-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation = 42.04 feet

last data on 11/21/2022

-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

1945 1955 1965 1975 1985 1995 2005 2015 2025

Complete Record Reference Elevation= 42.04 feet



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 11

Groundwater Elevation Records – eastern Oxnard/Pleasant Valley 
Basin Boundary Area

Groundwater Elevation Records – Pleasant Valley Basin 

PV Nested Monitoring Wells

-180
-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20
40
60

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023
2N/21W-34G5 (UAS) 2N/21W-34G2 (LAS)

Reference Elevation = 92.45 feetLast 10 Years

last data on 11/30/2022

-180
-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20
40
60

1990 2000 2010 2020
2N/21W-34G5 (UAS) 2N/21W-34G2 (LAS)

Reference Elevation = 92.45 feetComplete Record

-180
-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

Oct-2013 Oct-2015 Oct-2017 Oct-2019 Oct-2021 Oct-2023

Last 10 Years 2006 to 6/2022, well -15J4 R.P.= 29.69 feet
7/2022 to present, well -16P10S R.P.= 25.56 feet

last data on 11/30/2022

-180
-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

1945 1955 1965 1975 1985 1995 2005 2015 2025

Complete Record 1948 to 2006, wel l -15Q2, R.P.= 21.47 feet
2006 to 6/2022, wel l -15J4 R.P.= 29.69 feet

7/2022 to present, well -16P10S R.P.=25.56 feet

LAS Well 01N21W16P10S (16P10)



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 12

Groundwater Elevation Records – Coastal Nested Monitoring Wells

-60
-40
-20

0
20
40

1990 2000 2010 2020
1N/23W-1C5 (UAS) 1N/23W-1C2 (LAS)

CM3 Groundwater Elevations

-60
-40
-20

0
20
40

1990 2000 2010 2020

A1 Groundwater Elevations

1N/22W-20J8 (UAS) 1N/22W-20J4 (LAS)

-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

1990 2000 2010 2020
1N/22W-36K9 (UAS) 1N/22W-36K5 (LAS)

DP Groundwater Elevations

CM3 A1 CM4

DP

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20
40
60
80

Coastal Groundwater Elevation Transect, Upper Aquifer SystemA

Mugu 
Canyon

A'

sea level

Hueneme
Canyon

MP
CM3 A1 CM4

DP
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

Coastal Groundwater Elevation Transect, Lower Aquifer SystemA

Mugu 
Canyon

A'
sea level

Hueneme
Canyon



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 13

Cumulative deliveries by system Cumulative deliveries by source/type

Cumulative Water Deliveries, acre-feet  (Water Year 2022/23)

Monthly Water Deliveries, acre-feet  (Water Year 2022/23) 
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

PV Pipeline (surface water) 0.0 0.0
PV Pipeline (saticoy well field) 0.0 0.0
Total to Pleasant Valley Pipeline 0.0 0.0

Saticoy Well Field 0.0 0.0
PTP (surface water) 0.0 0.0
PTP (groundwater) * 823.4 532.5
PTP (Saticoy well field) 0.0 0.0
Total PTP 823.4 532.5

O-H Pipeline (groundwater) 952.3 850.2

Total Surface Water Delivery (PTP & PV) 0.0 0.0
Total Groundwater Delivery (OH & PTP) 1,775.7 1,382.7
Total Delivery, Surface Water & GW 1,775.7 1,382.7

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep
PV Pipeline (surface water) 0.0 0.0
PV Pipeline (saticoy well field) 0.0 0.0
Total to Pleasant Valley Pipeline 0.0 0.0

Saticoy Well Field 0.0 0.0
PTP (surface water) 0.0 0.0
PTP (groundwater) * 823.4 1,355.9
PTP (Saticoy well field) 0.0 0.0
Total PTP 823.4 1,355.9

O-H Pipeline (groundwater) 952.3 1,802.5

Total Surface Water Delivery (PTP & PV) 0.0 0.0
Total Groundwater Delivery (OH & PTP) 1,775.7 3,158.4
Total Delivery, Surface Water & GW 1,775.7 3,158.4

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

2,000

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

Pleasant Valley Pipeline
Pumping Trough Pipeline
Oxnard-Hueneme Pipeline

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

Total Surface Water Delivery (PTP & PV)
Total Groundwater Delivery (OH & PTP)
Total Delivery, Surface Water & GW

*Includes OH-12/13: 116.5 AF in Oct.; 32.05 AF in Nov.



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 14

Monthly diversion and recharge totals by facility, 2022/23, in acre-feet

Cumulative diversions to Piru Spreading Grounds, 2022/23 = 0 AF

Cumulative diversion at Freeman, and distribution to recharge facilities

Cumulative diversion and recharge totals by facility, 2022/23, in acre-feet

0 0
0

5,000
10,000
15,000
20,000
25,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Ac
re

-F
ee

t

Freeman Diversion Saticoy Spreading (metered + unmetered) El Rio Spreading Noble Pit

Month Piru Spreading
Freeman 
Divers ion

Saticoy Spreading 
(metered + unmetered)

El  Rio Spreading Noble Pi t LBMWC 
Water Use

Oct 0 0 0 0 0 0
Nov 0 0 0 0 0 0
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Jul

Aug
Sep

Month Piru Spreading
Freeman 
Divers ion

Saticoy Spreading 
(metered + unmetered)

El  Rio Spreading Noble Pi t LBMWC 
Water Use

Oct 0 0 0 0 0 0
Nov 0 0 0 0 0 0
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Jul

Aug
Sep



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 15

Monthly 2022/23 diversion at Freeman, compared to average monthly 
diversions (1991-2021) 

Monthly 2022/23 pipeline deliveries (surface water deliveries), compared to 
average monthly pipeline deliveries (1991-2021) 

Cumulative diversion at Saticoy and Freeman Diversion, in acre-feet

0 0
0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Fr
ee

m
an

 D
iv

er
si

on
 (A

F)

Average Monthly Diversions 1991-2022 2022/23 Monthly

0 0
0

200
400
600
800

1,000
1,200
1,400
1,600
1,800
2,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Pi
pe

lin
e 

De
liv

er
ie

s (
AF

)

Average Monthly Deliveries 1991-2022 2022/23 Monthly

0
500,000

1,000,000
1,500,000
2,000,000
2,500,000
3,000,000
3,500,000
4,000,000
4,500,000

Jan-25 Jan-35 Jan-45 Jan-55 Jan-65 Jan-75 Jan-85 Jan-95 Jan-05 Jan-15 Jan-25

C
um

. S
at

ic
oy

/F
re

em
an

 D
iv

er
si

on

Cumulative Saticoy/Freeman Diversion Cumulative Freeman Diversion (1991 to Present)

3,922,632 Acre-Feet

1,821,825 Acre-Feet



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 16

Santa Clara River water quality near Los Angeles/Ventura County line

Piru Creek water quality below Santa Felicia Dam

Water Quality

0
200
400
600
800
1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000
2200
2400

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200
220
240

Oc
t-1

8

Ja
n-

19

Ap
r-1

9

Ju
l-1

9

Oc
t-1

9

Ja
n-

20

Ap
r-2

0

Ju
l-2

0

Oc
t-2

0

Ja
n-

21

Ap
r-2

1

Ju
l-2

1

Oc
t-2

1

Ja
n-

22

Ap
r-2

2

Ju
l-2

2

Oc
t-2

2

Ja
n-

23

Ap
r-2

3

Ju
l-2

3

Oc
t-2

3

TO
TA

L D
IS

SO
LV

ED
 SO

LID
S 

(M
G/

L)

NI
TR

AT
E 

AS
 N

 an
d 

CH
LO

RI
DE

 (M
G/

L)

Nitrate as N
Chloride
TDS

Last 5 Years

0
200
400
600
800
1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000
2200
2400

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200
220
240

Oc
t-1

8

Ja
n-

19

Ap
r-1

9

Ju
l-1

9

Oc
t-1

9

Ja
n-

20

Ap
r-2

0

Ju
l-2

0

Oc
t-2

0

Ja
n-

21

Ap
r-2

1

Ju
l-2

1

Oc
t-2

1

Ja
n-

22

Ap
r-2

2

Ju
l-2

2

Oc
t-2

2

Ja
n-

23

Ap
r-2

3

Ju
l-2

3

Oc
t-2

3

TO
TA

L D
IS

SO
LV

ED
 SO

LID
S 

(M
G/

L)

NI
TR

AT
E 

AS
 N

 an
d 

CH
LO

RI
DE

 (M
G/

L)

Nitrate as N
Chloride
TDS

Last 5 Years



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 17

Santa Clara River water quality near Fillmore Fish Hatchery

Santa Clara River water quality at Freeman Diversion

Water Quality

No 
SCR 
flow

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

2200

2400

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

220

240

Oc
t-1

8

Ja
n-

19

Ap
r-1

9

Ju
l-1

9

Oc
t-1

9

Ja
n-

20

Ap
r-2

0

Ju
l-2

0

Oc
t-2

0

Ja
n-

21

Ap
r-2

1

Ju
l-2

1

Oc
t-2

1

Ja
n-

22

Ap
r-2

2

Ju
l-2

2

Oc
t-2

2

Ja
n-

23

Ap
r-2

3

Ju
l-2

3

Oc
t-2

3

TO
TA

L D
ISS

OL
VE

D 
SO

LID
S (

M
G/

L)

NI
TR

AT
E A

S N
 an

d C
HL

OR
ID

E (
M

G/
L)

Nitrate as N
Chloride
TDS

Last 5 Years

No 
SCR 
flow

No 
SCR 
flow

0
200
400
600
800
1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000
2200
2400

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200
220
240

O
ct

-1
8

Ja
n-

19

Ap
r-

19

Ju
l-1

9

O
ct

-1
9

Ja
n-

20

Ap
r-

20

Ju
l-2

0

O
ct

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

Ap
r-

21

Ju
l-2

1

O
ct

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

Ap
r-

22

Ju
l-2

2

O
ct

-2
2

Ja
n-

23

Ap
r-

23

Ju
l-2

3

O
ct

-2
3

TO
TA

L 
DI

SS
O

LV
ED

 S
O

LI
DS

 (M
G

/L
)

N
IT

RA
TE

 A
S 

N
 a

nd
 C

HL
O

RI
DE

 (M
G

/L
) Nitrate as N

Chloride

TDS

Last 5 Years



UWCD November 2022 Hydrologic Conditions Report 18

Water quality of Upper Aquifer System wells, El Rio well field

Water Quality

0
200
400
600
800
1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000
2200
2400

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50
55
60

Oc
t-1

8

Ja
n-

19

Ap
r-1

9

Ju
l-1

9

Oc
t-1

9

Ja
n-

20

Ap
r-2

0

Ju
l-2

0

Oc
t-2

0

Ja
n-

21

Ap
r-2

1

Ju
l-2

1

Oc
t-2

1

Ja
n-

22

Ap
r-2

2

Ju
l-2

2

Oc
t-2

2

Ja
n-

23

Ap
r-2

3

Ju
l-2

3

Oc
t-2

3 TO
TA

L D
IS

SO
LV

ED
 SO

LID
S 

AN
D 

CH
LO

RI
DE

 (M
G/

L)

NI
TR

AT
E 

AS
 N

  (
M

G/
L)

Nitrate as N
TDS
Chloride

Last 5 Years



U
W

CD
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

02
2 

Hy
dr

ol
og

ic
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 R
ep

or
t

19



U
W

CD
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

02
2 

Hy
dr

ol
og

ic
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 R
ep

or
t

20



U
W

CD
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

02
2 

Hy
dr

ol
og

ic
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 R
ep

or
t

21



U
W

CD
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

02
2 

Hy
dr

ol
og

ic
 C

on
di

tio
ns

 R
ep

or
t

22



 
 

Staff Report 
 
To:  UWCD Board of Directors 
 
Through: Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
 Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 
 
From: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer 
 Daryl Smith, Controller 
 
Date: November 30, 2022 (December 14, 2022 meeting) 
 
Agenda Item: 3.C  Monthly Investment Report (October 31, 2022) 

   Information Item 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
The Board will receive and review the most current investment report for October 31, 2022, 
that is enclosed.  
 
Discussion: 
Informational purposes. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
As shown.  
 
Attachment: 
Combined Investment Report  
   



���������	
� ��
����������������� ������������
������������ ����������� �������� ��� ����!"#$�%&�'()�*+),," -.//-.012�������������������������� 3���������������������������������������������� 240567*�!"#$�8�5959�:;<�!%#=�!">"#?) 39.3-0.21/������������������������ 3���������������������������������������������� 554//6<)''@�:"A( /./99���������������������������������� 3���������������������������������������������� 94936:%B#'@�C,)"AB,@ 3.235���������������������������������� 3���������������������������������������������� 94996DEFG�F#H)A'I)#'A -3.J12.3K-������������������������ 3���������������������������������������������� 0K4K36 �����L��M�L���NO��
����������P�������� QRMSTUMTTV������������������������ SWWXWWY��
�����������������Z��� ������[����\��� QRMSTUMTTV������������������������ ������[����\��� ]������������������������������������� �����\��� QRMSTUMTTV������������������������������	��������
�������\����̂�	�\_ ����������������� �������̂��̀�������_ N�������������-3./2J.-95������������������������ 333.1K3����������������������������������� -3.J12.3K-���������������� �������N������a � �����
���a � b�����a����8������������������������������������� 30K.525����������������������������������� 34-J6!"A)=�%#�cB=d)')=�?"A(�&>%eA�'()�f+A',+?'�"gg)",A�'%�("H)�'()�"c+>+'@�'%�I))'�+'A�)hg)#=+'B,)�,)iB+,)I)#'A�&%,�'()�#)h'�A+h�I%#'(A4

j������������L����
�����������������������
�������������k���̀���USM�lWll

>>�f+A',+?'�+#H)A'I)#'A�",)�A(%e#�"c%H)�"#=�?%#&%,I�'%�'()�f+A',+?'mA�F#H)A'I)#'�<%>+?@4��E>>�+#H)A'I)#'�',"#A"?'+%#A�=B,+#d�'(+A�g),+%=�",)�+#?>B=)=�+#�'(+A�,)g%,���������NX���������M�n�XM���������������� �����L��������	�������N�����M�	��������������������� �����L��������������[X�o���M�L�����\���������k������ �����L��������pqrGFsEs:tru)g%,'+#drv%#'(>@�!%",=�u)g%,'Ar!"#$+#d�!">"#?)A�w�F#H)A'I)#'�u)g%,'��8��Gx�55855

yz{|}~��������z����y������������������������������������y�

�������������� �¡¢£¤¥�¦§�̈©¥� ª�¦ª�«�£�§�¬�¥§
�������������������



��������	��
�����
�	��������
����	�������������������������� !" #��$% &�'(�)*�*�! +�)��*��*�!),-�)*.!$�*�!)/�!��$%,0$����&�!)��1$�*�!�� !"2 +�1�! ����%%����"�3���"*)��*����(��$�*�!)4565789:;8<57�=>6?57@8<A>6 BCDEFEDBGH������������ IBJBDBCKL����������������������� M6N9OP5?�4565789D��Q5N�R�Q86S57D�;8<57�=>6?57@8<A>6JDKTHDGGG��������������������� Q5?57@5P�U>7�95S89�5VW56PA<O75?TDBFJDGGG��������������������� X5?AS68<5P�U>7�75W98N5Y56<D�N8WA<89�AYW7>@5Y56<?D�86P�56@A7>6Y56<89�W7>Z5N<?HDEFHDHJB��������������������� [OWW95Y56<89�;8<57�\O7N]8?5�̂O6P4565789�=M\�̂O6P? FDGCCDBEK�������������� FDGCCDBEK��������������������� _WW7>W7A8<5P�U>7�N8WA<89�W7>Z5N<?HGHG�=̀ \�a>6P�̂O6P? TDHTbDbHG�������������� TDHTbDbHG��������������������� Q5?57@5P�U>7�=M\�\7>Z5N<?c(��*$%�+�1�! ��� !")2 +�1�! ����%%����"�3���$�)(��*$%�( �(�)�[<8<5�;8<57�\7>Z5N<�̂O6P? bDTGbDJKF�������������� bDTGbDJKF��������������������� \7>NO75Y56<�>U�d8<57:7AS]<?�U7>Y�?<8<5�d8<57�W7>Z5N<e!���(�*)��� !")2 +�)��*���"����3 !"� )$.�f7̂55Y86�̂O6P BDGJEDbEb�������������� BDGJEDbEb��������������������� Ẁ578<A>6?D�X5g<�[57@AN5�86P�=8WA<89�\7>Z5N<?h�������������������������������� X5?AS68<5P�U>7�75W98N5Y56<�86P�N8WA<89�AYW7>@5Y56<?h�������������������������������� Q5?57@5P�U>7�95S89�5VW56PA<O75?7̂55Y86�=M\�̂O6P BDKBJDFJB�������������� BDKBJDFJB��������������������� _WW7>W7A8<5P�U>7�N8WA<89�W7>Z5N<?ì�\AW59A65�̂O6P HDbGCDEKK�������������� HDbGCDEKK��������������������� X59A@57j�>U�d8<57�<>�̀i�NO?<>Y57?ì�=M\�̂O6P HDbEEDFGE�������������� HDbEEDFGE��������������������� _WW7>W7A8<5P�U>7�N8WA<89�W7>Z5N<?ì�\AW59A65�;599�Q5W98N5Y56<�̂O6P bbCDHTF����������������� bbCDHTF������������������������ ;599�75W98N5Y56<�UO6P\k�\AW59A65�̂O6P bGEDTbF����������������� bGEDTbF������������������������ X59A@57j�>U�d8<57�<>�\k�NO?<>Y57?\k�=M\�̂O6P HCbDbJT����������������� HCbDbJT������������������������ _WW7>W7A8<5P�U>7�N8WA<89�W7>Z5N<?\l�\AW59A65�̂O6P KKKDHGF����������������� KKKDHGF������������������������ X59A@57j�>U�d8<57�<>�\l\�NO?<>Y57?\l�=M\�̂O6P BDBJHDEEb�������������� BDBJHDEEb��������������������� _WW7>W7A8<5P�U>7�N8WA<89�W7>Z5N<?#��$%�-*)��*���&$)m�n�o!1�)�'�!�) pq��r��rrs������������ pq��r��rrs�������������������h������������������������� h�������������������������������� tuv̂Mw_w=xvQ5W>7<A6Svy>6<]9j�a>87P�Q5W>7<?vy>6<]9j�=8?]�\>?A<A>6�75W>7<?����̂z�HHhHC

{|}~����������|����{������������������������������������{�



 

 
 

 
Staff Report 

          
To: UWCD Board of Directors 
 
Through: Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
 Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 
 
From: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer 
 Daryl Smith, Controller 
 
Date: November 28, 2022 (December 14, 2022 meeting) 
 
Agenda Item:     3.D First Quarter Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Financial Reports (July 1, 2022 –  
  September 30, 2022) 
   Information Item 
 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
The Board will receive a presentation from staff on the First Quarter 2022-2023 Financial Reports 
for the period of July 1, 2022, through September 30, 2022. 
 
Discussion:  
The District normally prepares quarterly financial reports which provide an analysis of District 
operations at the end of each quarter to highlight variances and for fiscal accountability.   
 
This report represents the first three months of financial information for District operations for FY 
2022 - 23 (or 25 percent of the total fiscal year).  Included in this report are budget to actual 
comparisons to date for District revenues, expenditures and water deliveries, and discussion of any 
significant variances. This report is based on unaudited financial data and therefore is subject to 
revisions as staff makes any necessary adjustments.   
 
The following budget modifications are being recommended as of the fourth quarter review: 
 
• Staff currently offers no recommendations for budget adjustments. 
 
Attachments: 

Attachment A – FY 2022-23 First Quarter Report, Capital Improvement Projects 
Attachment B – FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Reports 



Board of Directors 
  Bruce E. Dandy, President 

           Sheldon G. Berger, Vice President 
           Lynn E. Maulhardt, Secretary/Treasurer 
           Mohammed A. Hasan  

  Gordon Kimball 
  Michael W. Mobley   
  Daniel C. Naumann 
   
General Manager 
  Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr. 
 
Legal Counsel 
  David D. Boyer 
 

 

 
November 30, 2022 
 
 
 
Board of Directors 
United Water Conservation District 
 
Subject:  First Quarter Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Financial Reports 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
Enclosed for your review are the District’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023 First Quarter (July 1, 2022, 
through September 30, 2022) Financial Reports. These reports represent three months of financial 
information for District operations and three months of CIP updates. 
 
The report focuses primarily on the operating funds of the District and corresponding Capital 
Improvement Project (CIP) funds: 
 

 General/Water Conservation Fund 
 Recreation and Ranger Activities Sub-fund  
 Freeman Fund 
 Oxnard/Hueneme Pipeline (OHP) Fund  
 Pleasant Valley Pipeline (PVP) Fund  
 Pumping Trough Pipeline (PTP) Fund  
 State Water Import Fund 
 Overhead Fund 

 
Staff provides the Board's Finance and Audit Committee with monthly cash position and pipeline 
delivery activities reports throughout the fiscal year. Quarterly financial reports are submitted to the 
Board to provide information on the financial status of the District and to assure the Directors and 
District customers that staff is operating within the parameters of the annual adopted budget, including 
any supplemental appropriations. At the end of each fiscal year, an outside certified public accounting 
firm performs an independent financial audit to test staff's financial reporting accuracy and internal 
controls. It is staff's responsibility to ensure that the Board has received adequate financial information 
throughout the year so that there are no surprises, and so that fiscally prudent decisions can be made 
when the Board is asked to consider approval of budgeted and unbudgeted expenditure requests. 
 
This report compares the revenues and budget appropriations for the fiscal year-to-date with data to 
provide the Board and District customers a preliminary financial view (subject to audit adjustments 
at year-end). The following discussion will provide a summary of the Districts’ projected revenues 
and approved spending plan compared to what actually occurred throughout the fiscal year. It also 
provides an update on approved and funded capital improvement projects. 
 
 
 
1701 N. Lombard Street, Suite 200, Oxnard CA 93030                 Tel: (805)525-4431 www.unitedwater.org 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 26C85A65-54DE-478F-A413-8665736437D9



UWCD Board of Directors 
First Quarter Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Financial Reports 
Page 2 

   

OPERATING FUNDS 
 
Narrative and graphical analyses are provided by fund (and the Recreation sub-fund) on the pages 
following the Capital Improvement Program Status. 
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM STATUS 
 
A one-page summary of the District’s current Five-Year Capital Improvement Program appears along 
with Benchmark Interest Rates as part of Attachment B. As of September 30, 2022, all capital 
improvement projects (CIP) expenditures are within the total amount appropriated by the Board. 
 
The majority of the CIP’s that have been funded are currently underway, either in the planning, design, 
or construction stages of the project. 
 
 Well Replacement Program (CIP Project # 8000) 

No financial updates to report this period. 
 

 Freeman Diversion Expansion (CIP Project # 8001) 
Physical modeling for the Hardened Ramp at the Bureau of Reclamation’s Denver Test Center 
and the Vertical Slot at the University of Iowa, continues with the goal of completing and 
submitting the physical modeling reports by the court mandated deadline of October 31, 2022. 
Northwest Hydraulic Consultants (Hardened Ramp) and Stantec (Vertical Slot) continue to 
provide engineering support during the design development phase of physical model testing. 
 

 Santa Felicia Dam Outlet Works Rehabilitation (CIP Project # 8002) 
Board of Consultants contracts and design contracts with GEI. 
 
On August 9, staff submitted the draft Biological Assessment (BA) to the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) for review and use for the purpose of consultation with the U.S. 
Fish and Wildlife (USFWS) and the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS). FERC forwarded 
a copy of the BA to NMFS on August 15. 
 
The 60% design analyses were completed during the month of September. The Santa Felicia Dam 
Safety Improvement Project Board of Consultants (BOC) meeting No. 6 was held at the District 
headquarters on September 28 and 29. A total of 25 individuals from FERC, California 
Department of Water Resources, Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD), BOC, GEI Consultants 
(GEI), and District staff attended this meeting. The 60% design Outlet Works improvement results 
and reports were reviewed by the BOC and recommendations were provided to advance the design 
to the next design phase (90% design). The 60% Design Phase was completed on schedule and 
within the approved budget. 
 
Staff finalized and submitted the fully executed contract in amount of $1,502,018 for developing 
the 90% Design Phase of the Outlet Works improvement to GEI. The Notice to Proceed (NTP) 
was issued on September 21. 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 26C85A65-54DE-478F-A413-8665736437D9



UWCD Board of Directors 
First Quarter Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Financial Reports 
Page 3 

   

 Santa Felicia Dam Probable Maximum Flood Containment (CIP Project # 8003) 
The 30% design analyses were completed during the month of September. The Santa Felicia Dam 
Safety Improvement Project BOC meeting No. 6 was held at the District headquarters on 
September 28 and 29. The 30% design Spillway improvement results and reports were reviewed 
by the BOC and recommendations were provided to advance the design to the next design phase 
(60% design). The 30% Design Phase was completed on schedule and within the approved budget. 

 
Staff finalized and submitted the fully executed contract in amount of $917,004 for developing 
the 60% Design Phase of the spillway improvement to GEI. The Notice to Proceed (NTP) was 
issued on September 21. 
  

 Santa Felicia Dam Sediment Management (CIP Project # 8005) 
No financial updates to report this period.  

 
 Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline Iron and Manganese Treatment Facility (CIP Project # 8007)  

As of September 30, 2022, construction of the Iron and Manganese Treatment Facility was 
approximately 69% complete. The following change orders to the Construction Agreement with 
GSE Construction Company dated August 26, 2021, were executed during this period: 
 
o No.12 – Additional Crossings per USA Markings (July 26, 2022) for $62,998.78 
o No.13 – Power Feed Duct Bank Credit (July 26,2022) for ($34,476.16) 
o No.14 – Additional Pipe Sleeves (July 28, 2022) for $8,626.59  
o No.15 – Sample Line Relocation (July 28, 2022) for $12,590.72  
o No.16 – Temporary Six-Inch Water Supply High-Line (July 28, 2022) for $79,391.89 
o No.17 – Chlorine Solution Pipeline Upsize (August 16, 2022) for $129,372.97  
o No.18 – Demolition of Abandoned Water Pipeline (September 16, 2022) for $22,376.24 
o No.19 – Repair of Residual Chlorine Analyzer Sample Pipeline (September 16, 2022) for 

$5,457.19 
o No.20 – Relocation of 20” OF Pipeline (September 16, 2022) for $4,784.25  
 

 Freeman Conveyance System Upgrade – Freeman to Ferro Recharge Basin (CIP Project # 
8018) 
Staff have been working with Kennedy Jenks on the application for DWR’s IRWM Round 2 grant 
program for the Vineyard Road undercrossing which will connect the Noble and Ferro basins. 
The $1,000,000 grant will require a fifty percent match and the project associated with the grant 
must be complete by 2027. 
 

 Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment (CIP Project # 8019) 
Staff held meetings with the U.S. Navy, SWRCB Division of Drinking Water, Los Angeles 
RWQCB and Calleguas Municipal Water District. On June 8, 2022, the Board of Directors 
approved Resolution 2022-28 for authorizing and designating the District’s General Manager to 
enter into a grant funding agreement with the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for 
the Phase 1B “Demonstration Phase” Project under the Proposition 1 Round 3 Groundwater Grant 
Program (GWGP). On July 15, a full proposal was submitted with a requested grant amount of 
$8,449,062 and a total estimated project cost of $18.6 million. Staff executed a grant agreement 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 26C85A65-54DE-478F-A413-8665736437D9



UWCD Board of Directors 
First Quarter Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Financial Reports 
Page 4 

   

with the Department of Water Resources (DWR) through the Fox Canyon Groundwater 
Management Agency (FCGMA) for the Sustainable Groundwater Management (SGM) Grant 
Program. On June 8, 2022, the Board of Directors approved Resolution 2022-27 for the adoption 
of the CEQA Notice of Exemption (NOE) prepared for the Information Collection for the 
Proposed Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Project (Phase 1A exploration phase).  
 
Staff prepared two Technical Memorandum (TM) entitled: “Extraction Barrier and Brackish 
Water Treatment Project: Baseline Water Quality Sampling Results” and “Phase 1 Extraction 
Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment Project Feasibility Study: Groundwater Modeling”. Staff 
issued two RFQ/Ps for CEQA/Regulatory Permitting consultant services and design services for 
the Phase 1B demonstration phase project. Proposals were received in September 2022. 

  
 Rice Ave. Overpass PTP (CIP Project # 8021) 

No financial updates to report this period. 
   

 PTP Metering Improvement Project (CIP Project # 8022) 
Received signed easement deeds for PTP Turnout Nos. 135, 139 and 146 with the assistance of 
Hamner, Jewell & Associates. Staff installed a new meters at PTP Turnout Nos. 101, 120, 135 
and 139.  
 

 Pothole Trailhead (CIP Project # 8023) 
No financial updates to report this period. 
 

 State Water Interconnection (CIP Project # 8025) 
No financial updates to report this period. 
 

 Replace El-Rio Trailer (CIP Project # 8028) 
No financial updates to report this period. 

 
 Lake Piru Campground Electrical System Upgrade (CIP Project # 8034) 

This project is currently on hold until the feasibility of the recreation improvement plan can be 
evaluated.   

 
 Asset Management System/CMMS System (CIP Project # 8041) 

No financial updates to report this period.  
 

 PTP Recycled Water Connection – Laguna Road Pipeline (CIP Project # 8043) 
The preliminary design progress continued during this reporting period. Staff reviewed the 
Technical Memorandum prepared by Kennedy Jenks (KJ) and discussed the hydraulic modeling 
results and options to modify or pivot the project to address hydraulic and operational constraints. 
Staff reviewed the initial draft of the Preliminary Design Report (PDR), draft Geotechnical 
Report, and drawings and submitted their comments to KJ to be incorporated in the final PDR. 
 
On August 16, staff and KJ attended the fourth coordination meeting with Pleasant Valley County 
Water District (PVCWD) and their consultant MKN and discussed hydraulic model results and 
possibility of adding Booster Pump Station to overcome hydraulic constraints.  On September 22, 
Staff attended Prop 1 SGMA Grant kick-off meeting. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 26C85A65-54DE-478F-A413-8665736437D9



UWCD Board of Directors 
First Quarter Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Financial Reports 
Page 5 

   

 SCADA Hardware Update (CIP Project # 8046) No financial updates to report for this period. 
 

 Lake Piru Recreation Area Pavement Maintenance Program (CIP Project # 8047)  
Engineering has initiated the design work of this project.  The anticipated construction for this 
project is expected to occur in November 2022.   
 

 Condor Improvement Project (CIP Project # 8048)  
A construction agreement with MDJ Management LLC (MDJ) was executed on July 13, 2022, 
for a fee of $249,592.06. Construction began on July 15, 2022. 
 

 Lake Piru Entry Kiosk Renovation (CIP Project # 8049) This project was completed in May of 2022. 
 

 Security Gate Upgrade (CIP Project # 8050) 
New badge reader with mobile app compatibility and keypad has been installed at the Saticoy 
main gate. Extensive coordination between staff and external agencies, private companies, and 
on-site tenants for authorized access resulted in a successful transition. The remaining gates at 
Saticoy along with El Rio and Santa Felicia Dam are scheduled to be worked on and integrated 
into the new security system in late November (after the Thanksgiving holiday) while the Upper 
and Lower Access gates are waiting for the arrival of additional parts needed for the project. 
 

 Server Replacement (CIP Project # 8051) 
The project was completed during the third quarter of the fiscal year 2021-2022. 
 

 SCADA Continuous Threat Detection System (CIP Project # 8052)  
This project is currently in process. During this fiscal period, the scope of the project was 
evaluated, and a finalized proposal was provided by Royal CED to United Water for authorization.  
Staff acquired authorization to proceed and provided purchase order and signed agreements to 
Royal CED in November 2022. Staff are working to schedule the anticipated completion dates 
with the third parties performing the work. The project will have a phased approach that will 
include preliminary assessments of systems and network assets which provide architectural and 
design requirements. Deployment of new monitoring equipment and threat training is expected to 
extend into the next fiscal year.  
 

 Main Supply Pipeline Sodium Hypochlorite Injection (CIP Project # 8053) 
No financial updates to report this period. 
 

 Dry Storage Fencing (CIP Project # 8054) 
This project was initiated in September 2022 and work began on October 24, 2022. Anticipated 
completion on November 7, 2022. 
 

 Lake Piru Campground and Recreation Area Renovations (CIP Project # 8055)  
This project is currently in process. Stantec Consulting Service inc. was contracted in the 
amount of $135,000 to complete three conceptual alternative designs at a 5% design and to 
expand the preferred alternative of the three designs to a 20% conceptual design.  That work has 
been completed and the staff is currently reviewing the draft product.  Request for payment has 
been submitted by Stantec and is currently awaiting engineering's approval.      
 

 OHP Low-Flow Upgrades (CIP Project # 8056) No financial updates to report for this period. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 26C85A65-54DE-478F-A413-8665736437D9



UWCD Board of Directors 
First Quarter Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Financial Reports 
Page 6 

   

 

CASH POSITION AND INVESTMENTS OF THE DISTRICT  
 
As of September 30, 2022, the District had a total of $45.3M in cash and investments. As noted on 
the cash position report, some of the District’s resources are readily available for use while other 
funds have restrictions that limit how they can be used. The District must adhere to any legal, bond 
or contractual restrictions placed on funds. However, some restrictions are based on Board 
designations and can be redirected for other uses if the Board so determines. 
 
The District’s cash, cash equivalents and securities held in the various accounts as compared to the 
prior year are as follows: 
 

 
 
The only current restriction is the $10.1M for CIP projects in the 2020 COP Bonds. Any restrictions 
on the remaining $ 35.2M are listed in this report. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this report on the financial position, please let me know.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Mr. Brian H. Zahn 
Chief Financial Officer  
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 26C85A65-54DE-478F-A413-8665736437D9



in $ thousands CY Actuals CY Revised Budget Variance % Variance PY Actuals Variance % Variance
Revenues

Water Delivery 582 784  (201) -26% 716  (133) -19%
Groundwater  (4) 0  (4) 0% 2  (7) -297%
Supplemental Water 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0%
Property Taxes 17 85  (68) -80% 11 6 52%
Earnings on Investments 299 27 272 1001% 10 289 2896%
Other 457 357 100 28% 475  (18) -4%
Transfers in 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0%

Total Revenues 1,351 1,253 98 8% 1,214 137 11%

Expenses
Personnel Costs 1,713 1,957  (244) -12% 1,594 119 7%
Operating Expenditures 1,814 3,329  (1,515) -46% 1,415 399 28%
Capital Outlay 33 77  (44) -57% 197  (164) -83%
Transfers out 4,708 8,900  (4,191) -47% 2,470 2,239 91%

Total Expenses 8,268 14,263  (5,994) -42% 5,676 2,592 46%

Net Surplus / (Shortfall)  (6,917)  (13,010) 6,093 -47%  (4,462)  (2,455) 55%

($ thousands)

FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

25% of Fiscal Year Completed

General/Water Conservation Fund

Revenues Expenses 
($ thousands)

  -

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

  -

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

Revenue Status vs. Budget

• Revenue received through First Quarter is $1.4M, $98K (8%) above Plan. Earnings on Investments $272K above Plan due to GAAP
market value adjustment to LAIF reversal in addition to increase in rate of return. Grant Revenue higher $93K due to Brackish Water
Treatment Grant.

• Savings are offset by Pipeline deliveries $201K lower than Plan (1,022 AF less delivered for three pipelines combined) and lower
Property Taxes $68K received from County of Ventura. Some Property taxes are budgeted over 12 months but most property taxes
are paid in December and April.

Revenue Status vs. Prior Year

• First Quarter Revenue $137K (11%) higher than Prior Year.

• Earnings on Investments $289K higher due to GAAP market value adjustment to LAIF reversal. Contributing to the increase is higher
grant revenue $94K.

• Offsetting the increase are lower Pipeline deliveries $133K (943 AF less delivered than Prior Year) and lower revenue $21K received at
the Lake.

1



FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

25% of Fiscal Year Completed

General/Water Conservation Fund - Continued

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Budget

• Total Expenditures were $6M (42%) under Plan primarily due to CIP Transfers Out $4M lower than budget. This is a timing issue as
the budgeted amount is front-loaded. Contributing to the variance are Operating Expenditures $1.5M under budget. Professional
Fees $894K savings from under-utilized Admin and Finance consulting budget, FERC – Fish Passage and CESA Fisheries timing
difference of invoices. Overhead costs $396K under due to timing difference. Maintenance $124K under due to emergency funds
not being needed in First Quarter. Savings in Office Expense $26K, Travel $52K, Miscellaneous $46K expected to be fully utilized by
the end of the fiscal year. Principal payments $152K due to 2020 COP Payments budgeted as expense but paid to liability. Interest
expense $195K due to 2020 COP Payments budgeted in Fund 710 which is the fund used for long term liabilities. Salaries and
Benefits $244K under budget due to vacant Park Ranger Cadet, Field Technician, Park Ranger Assistants, and Part-Time Engineer
positions.

• Savings slightly offset by overrun in Insurance Premiums $374K.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Prior Year

• Expenditures are $2.6M (46%) higher than Prior Year, primarily due CIP transfers $2.2M for the Brackish Water Treatment and Lake
Piru Renovation Projects. Operating expenditures were up $400K due to higher Environmental Professional Fees $110K, Overhead
Costs $124K, and Insurance Expense $98K. Also contributing to the variance are higher Salaries and Benefits $119K due to Board
Approved 2% COLA increase, annual merit increases, and new Reservations Coordinator position at the Lake.

• Offsetting these increases were lower Capital Outlay expenditures $164K due to the purchase of the SLR excavator in Prior Year.

Fund Balance
The projected ending undesignated working capital balance at the end of FY 22-23 is approximately $8M.    

The District's reserve policy requires a $4 - $5 million minimum undesignated balance which is expected to be met.  If the expected 
expenditures are realized, the fund is expected to finish the year within the District anticipated reserves.

2



in $ thousands CY Actuals CY Revised Budget Variance % Variance PY Actuals Variance % Variance
Revenues

Water Delivery 1 1  (0) -2% 2  (2) -70%
Earnings on Investments 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0%
Lake Piru Revenue 267 229 38 20 246 0%
Other 24 1 22 1666% 292  (268) -92%

Total Revenues 291 231 61 26% 315  (23) -7%

Expenses
Personnel Costs 187 225  (38) -17% 165 22 14%
Operating Expenditures 216 302  (86) -28% 197 19 10%
Capital Outlay 3 11  (7) -69% 20  (16) -83%
Transfers out 1,186 1,186 0 0% 709 478 67%

Total Expenses 1,593 1,725  (132) -8% 1,090 503 46%

Net Surplus / (Shortfall)  (1,301)  (1,494) 192 -13%  (775)  (526) 68%

($ thousands) ($ thousands)

FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

25% of Fiscal Year Completed

Recreation Sub-Fund

Revenues Expenses 

  -

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

  -

50

100

150

200

250

300

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Budget

Revenue Status vs. Budget

• Operational Revenue received through First Quarter above Budget by $61K (26%) due to higher Day Use, Camping, Boating fees
and reservations.

Revenue Status vs. Prior Year

• First Quarter Operational Revenue $23K lower due to lower Filming Fees and reservations in the Current Year.

3

• Total expenditures are $132K (8%) under Budget primarily due to Operating Expenditures of $87K. Professional Fees $19K under 

due to under-utilized Marketing and Advertising fees. Maintenance $27K due to emergency funds not being needed in Q1 but 
expected to be fully utilized by end of the fiscal year. Permits $19K due to timing differences.

• Contributing to the variance is Salaries and Benefits  $39K due to vacant Park Ranger Cadet and Park Ranger Assistants positions.

• Savings are partially offset by increase in Insurance Premiums $25K.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Prior Year

• Expenditures are $503K (46%) higher than Prior Year primarily due to CIP Transfers Out $478K over PY for the Lake Piru 

Campground and Recreation Area Renovations. Contributing to the variance is higher Salaries and Benefits  at $22K due to the Board 
Approved 2% COLA increase and annual merit increases.

• Increase slightly offset by a decrease in Capital Outlay $16K due to the Side by Side vehicle purchased in Prior Year. Professional 
fees and Maintenance expenses each lower $10K, but expecte 3d to be caught up by the end of the fiscal year.



in $ thousands CY Actuals CY Revised Budget Variance % Variance PY Actuals Variance % Variance
Revenues

Groundwater  (2) 0  (2) #DIV/0! 0  (2) #DIV/0!
Water Delivery 360 485  (125) -26% 442  (82) -18%
Earnings on Investments  (4) 6  (9) -165% 2  (5) -323%
Other 9 12  (4) -29% 51  (42) -83%
Transfers in 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0%

Total Revenues 364 503  (139) -28% 494  (131) -26%

Expenses
Personnel Costs 245 356  (112) -31% 231 14 6%
Operating Expenditures 456 1,027  (571) -56% 378 78 21%
Capital Outlay 7 10  (3) 0% 42  (35)
Transfers out 17 975  (957) -98% 111  (93) -84%

Total Expenses 725 2,368  (1,643) -69% 762  (37) -5%

Net Surplus / (Shortfall)  (361)  (1,866) 1,504 -81%  (268)  (94) 35%

($ thousands) ($ thousands)

FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

25% of Fiscal Year Completed

Freeman Diversion Fund (Zone B)

Revenues Expenses 

  -

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

 (50)

  -

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

Revenue Status vs. Budget
• Revenue received in Q1 $364K, down $139K (28%) primarily due to lower Pipeline deliveries $125K which was 1,089 AF under Plan for 

OH Pipeline

Revenue Status vs. Prior Year
• Current Year lower by $131K. The decrease is primarily due to $45K National Wild Life Grant revenue received in Prior Year and lower

Pipeline deliveries of $82K, which was 940 AF less than Prior Year.

4



FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

25% of Fiscal Year Completed

Freeman Diversion Fund (Zone B) - continued

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Budget
• Total expenditures through first quarter are $725K, which is $1.6M (69%) below Plan. Savings are primarily

due to CIP Transfers Out for Freeman at $957K less than budgeted. This is a timing issue as the budgeted
amount is front-loaded and expected to be used by year-end. Operating Expenditures are favorable by $571K
primarily due to under-utilized Environmental Services Legal Fees of $427K. Contributing to the favorability
are Overhead costs of $113K under budget due to timing issues. Salaries and Benefits are also favorable
$112K due to vacant Principal Environmental Scientist for a majority of Q1 and Field Technician positions.
Maintenance costs are favorable $40K due to emergency funds not being needed in Q1. Permits are
favorable $33K due to timing differences. Principal payments are $44K favorable due to 2020 COP payments
budgeted as expense but paid directly to liability.

• Savings are partially offset by an increase in Insurance Premiums of $109K and Interest Expenses of $40K due
to payments higher than originally allocated amount.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Prior Year
• Total Expenditures are $37K lower than Prior Year. The variance is largely due to lower CIP transfers out $93K

in Q1. Contributing to the variance is lower Capital Outlay $35K due to the SLR Excavator purchased in Prior
Year.

• Slightly offsetting the decrease are higher Operating Expenditures of $78K. Salaries and Benefits are $14K
higher than PY due to Board approved 2% COLA increase and annual merit increases. Insurance expense
$24K higher than Prior Year. Interest expense is $36K higher due to 2020 COP Bond allocated to Freeman in
Current year.

Fund Balance
• The projected ending undesignated working capital balance at the end of FY 22-23 is approximately $2.2M.
• The District's reserve policy requires an undesignated balance of $1.5M which is expected to be met.

5



in $ thousands CY Actuals CY Revised Budget Variance % Variance PY Actuals Variance % Variance
Revenues

Water Delivery 1,390 1,786 (396) -22% 1,071 319 30%
Earnings on Investments 45 5 40 849% 3 42 1555%
Grants 1,845 2,890  (1,045) -36% 460 1,385 301%
Other 121 157 (36) -23% 151 (30) -20%

Total Revenues 3,401 4,837  (1,436) -30% 1,685 1,717 102%

Expenses
Personnel Costs 292 328 (36) -11% 290 2 1%
Operating Expenditures 133 1,034 (901) -87% 315 (182) -58%
Capital Outlay 11 63 (52) -82% 51 (40) -78%
Transfers out 391 3,339  (2,948) -88% 1,491  (1,101) -74%

Total Expenses 827 4,764  (3,937) -83% 2,148  (1,320) -61%

Net Surplus / (Shortfall) 2,574 74 2,501 3401% (463) 3,037 -656%

($ thousands)
Expenses 

($ thousands)

FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

25% of Fiscal Year Completed
Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline Fund

Revenues

  -

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

Revenue Status vs. Budget and vs. Prior Year
• Total revenue for Q1 of $3.4M is under budget by $1.4M (30%) primarily due to lower grants received from 

Iron and Manganese Grant and CAL OES state grant for OH emergency generators Grant revenues will not be 

earned until construction has been completed. Grant revenues are up$1.3M (301%) over prior year.
• Water Delivery Revenue is $396K (22%) lower than Budget; 2,641AF (29.2%) less delivered than Plan. 

Deliveries revenue is up from prior year by $319K even though 940 AF less were delivered. The 30% increase in 

revenue over prior year is due to increased fixed and variable rates in FY 22-23.
• Fox Canyon revenues down by $44K in Q1 and $38K lower than Prior Year due to lower water deliveries.

  -

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

1,800

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

6



25% of Fiscal Year Completed

Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline Fund - continued

July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022
FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Review

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Budget and vs. Prior Year
• Total expenses of $827K is under budget by $4M (83%) and lower than prior year by $1.3M (61%), primarily

due to transfers out which are $3M less than budgeted and $1.1M less than prior year. This is a timing issue
as the budgeted amount is front-loaded.

• Capital Outlay under budget by $52K (82%) and under prior year by $39K (78%). Staff anticipates budget to
be fully utilized by the end of the year.

• Fox Canyon $409K under budget due to an extraction fee accrual from FY 21-22 carried over to the current
fiscal year that reversed 9/30/2022 and a delay in their billing.

• Electrical costs down $212K from Q1 budget and down $23K from prior year. This is a timing issue as billing
is delayed.

• Personnel Costs are down $36K from budget primarily due to two internal promotions expected later in year.
Professional fees are also down $21K as Environmental and IT consulting services were under-utilized.
Additionally, maintenance expense was under budget by $52K but is expected to be fully utilized by end of
year.

• Principal payments are $89K under Plan and down $133K from FY 21-22 due to 2020 COP payments
budgeted as expense but paid directly to liability.

• Interest Expense is $66K under Plan due to payments lower than originally allocated amount and down $98K
compared to Prior Year due to changes in 2020 COP allocation.

Fund Balance
• The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 22-23 is approximately $1.3M.
• The District's reserve policy requires an undesignated balance of $1.1M for this fund, which is expected to

be met.

7



in $ thousands CY Actuals CY Budget Variance % Variance PY Actuals Variance % Variance
Revenues

Water Delivery 78 78 0 0% 78 0 0%
Earnings on Investments 6 1 5 724% 0 6 2616%
Other 1 1 0 5% 2 (0) -27%

Total Revenues 86 80 6 7% 80 5 7%

Expenses
Personnel Costs 17 29 (12) -43% 22 (5) -23%
Operating Expenditures 18 34 (17) -48% 198 (180) -91%
Capital Outlay 1 1 (0) 0% 3 (2)
Transfers out 50 50 0 0% 44 6 14%

Total Expenses 85 114 (29) -26% 267 (181) -68%

Net Surplus / (Shortfall) 0 (34) 35 -101% (186) 187 -100%

($ thousands)
Revenues Expenses

($ thousands)

FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

25% of Fiscal Year Completed
Pleasant Valley Pipeline Fund

  -

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

  -

50

100

150

200

250

 Actual YTD
 Budget YTD
 Prior Year YTD

Revenue Status vs. Budget and vs. Prior Year
• Revenue received in Q1 is on target.
• Revenue is up $5K from prior fiscal year due to Earnings on Investments.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Budget and vs. Prior Year
• Operating expenditures under budget by $29K in First Quarter. Variance due to maintenance costs $12K

lower than Budget due to emergency funds not being needed but expected to be utilized by end of the fiscal
year and Salaries and Benefits $12K lower than Budget due to less staff spending time working on Pleasant
Valley Pipeline.

• Compared to prior year, Operating Expenditures are down $180K primarily due to $195K spent on PV
reservoir maintenance work.

Fund Balance
The projected ending undesignated working capital balance at the end of FY 22-23 is approximately $641K. The 
District's reserve policy requires a $258K minimum undesignated balance which is projected to be met. 

8



in $ thousands CY Actuals CY Revised Budget Variance % Variance PY Actuals Variance % Variance
Revenues

Water Delivery 614 598 16 3% 616 (1) 0%
Earnings on Investments 21 2 18 818% 1 20 1790%
Grants 0 0 0 21 (21) 0%
Other 63 61 2 4% 63 0 1%

Total Revenues 698 661 37 6% 700 (2) 0%

Expenses
Personnel Costs 135 149 (14) -10% 122 13 11%
Operating Expenditures 175 471 (296) -63% 217 (43) -20%
Capital Outlay 130 155 (25) -16% 30 100
Transfers out 393 528 (134) -25% 246 147 60%

Total Expenses 833 1,302 (470) -36% 616 217 35%

Net Surplus / (Shortfall) (134) (641) 507 -79% 85 (219) -259%

($ thousands)
Expenses 

($ thousands)
Revenues

FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

25% of Fiscal Year Completed

Pumping Trough Pipeline Fund

  -

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

Revenue Status vs. Budget
• Revenue received through Q1 is $699K, up $37K (6%). The increase is due to higher pipeline deliveries $17K

(67AF more water delivered than Plan) and higher LAIF to Market value adjustment reversal $18K.

Revenue Status vs. Prior Year
• $20K PTP grant received in Prior Year is offsetting the increase in Earnings on Investments LAIF to Market

value $20K, resulting in a variance of $2K in total revenues compared to Prior Year’s Actuals.

  -

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

9



FY 2022‐23 First Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

25% of Fiscal Year Completed

Pumping Trough Pipeline Fund ‐ continued

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Budget
 Total expenditures through Q1 are $833K, $470K (36%) below Budget primarily due to lower Operating

Expenditures of $296K. Fox Canyon expenses are down $123K due to delay in billing. Maintenance is

$54K under budget due to emergency funds not being needed in the First Quarter as well as less than

projected maintenance on corroding PTP turnouts. Overhead costs $53K and Utilities $54K under due

to timing difference. Principal payments $34K under due to 2020 COP payments budgeted as expense

but paid directly to liability.

 Contributing to the variance are lower Transfers Out $134K to PTP Capital Improvement Projects. This is

a timing issue as the budgeted amount is front‐loaded. Capital outlay is $25K lower than anticipated

due to fewer than planned PTP isolation valves and VFD replacements.

 Slightly offsetting the savings is increase in Insurance Premiums of $49K.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Prior Year
 Compared to last fiscal year, expenditures are higher by $217K (35%) primarily due to higher CIP

Transfers Out $147K for PTP Recycled Water Connection. Capital Outlay also higher in Current Year due

to more PTP isolation valves being replaced. Salaries and Benefits $13K higher than Prior Year due to

Board Approved 2% COLA increase and annual merit increases.

 Offsetting the increase are lower Operating Expenditures $43K mainly due to lower Fox Canyon

expenses.

Fund Balance

 The projected ending undesignated working capital balance is approximately $700K.

 The District's reserve policy requires an undesignated balance of $1M for this fund.

10



in $ thousands CY Actuals CY Revised Budget Variance % Variance PY Actuals Variance % Variance
Revenues

Earnings on Investments 51 4 47 1264% 1 50 4395%
Property Taxes 19 69  (50) -73% 0 19 30004%

Total Revenues 70 73  (3) -4% 1 69 5738%

Expenses
Personnel Costs 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0%
Operating Expenditures 428 402 26 6% 272 156 57%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0%
Debt Service 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0%
Transfers out 0 0 0 0% 0 0 0%

Total Expenses 428 402 26 6% 272 156 57%

Net Surplus / (Shortfall)  (358)  (329)  (29) 9%  (271)  (87) 32%

($ thousands) ($ thousands)

FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

25% of Fiscal Year Completed

State Water Fund

Revenues Expenses 

  -

100

200

300

400

500

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Yer YTD

  -

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Yer YTD

Revenue Status vs. Budget and vs. Prior Year
• Revenue received through Q1 is under plan by $3K (4%). This is primarily due to lower property tax revenue ($50K) which are

budgeted monthly but typically not received prior to December and April based on the due date of the taxes.
• Offsetting this was higher earnings on investments of $47K.
• Compared to Prior Year, revenue is $69K favorable due to higher Property Taxes received from Ventura County and higher LAIF

to Market Value adjustment.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Budget and vs. Prior Year
• Total expenditures of $428K are over budget by $26K (6%). This is primarily due to higher fixed costs, offset by reduced variable

costs.
• Compared to Prior Year, expenditures up by $155K (57%). This is mainly due to higher fixed costs in FY 22-23.

Fund Balance

• The beginning working capital for FY 22-23 is $5.7M. Assuming FY 2022-23 activity is consistent with the approved budget, the
projected ending balance will exceed the District’s fund reserve minimum of $4.9M.

• The entire fund balance is designated for the fixed and variable costs related to the District's State Water Project allocation of
5,000 AF per year, plus allowable Table A water.

11



in $ thousands CY Actuals CY Revised Budget Variance % Variance PY Actuals Variance % Variance

Expenses
Personnel Costs 777 897 (120) -13% 697 80 12%
Operating Expenditures 282 819 (537) -66% 216 66 30%
Capital Outlay 40 10 30 0% 0 40 0%

Total Expenses 1,099 1,726 (627) -36% 913 186 20%

FY 2022-23 First Quarter Financial Review
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

25% of Fiscal Year Completed

Overhead Fund

Expenses 
($ thousands)

  -

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD  Prior Year YTD

Appropriation/Expenditure Status vs. Budget and vs. Prior Year

• Expenditures under budget by $627K (36%).

• The largest savings were in Professional Fees at $498K primarily due to Admin and Financial Advisory
consulting under-utilized. Costs for consulting is expected to catch up by the end of the fiscal year.
Contributing to the variance are Salaries and Benefits at $120K due to vacant Receptionist and
Administrative Assistant III positions for majority of Q1 and Retirement Benefit  budget of $30K expected to
be realized before the end of the fiscal year. Maintenance $19K under budget due to emergency funds not
being needed in Q1. Safety Supplies $10K and Travel $16K are expected to be fully utilized by the end of the
year.

• This was slightly offset by $40K Capital Outlay expense for the HQ generator connection equipment.

• Compared to prior year, expenditures are higher by $186K (20%). The variance is from higher Professional
Fees of $31K, office expense of $34K and personnel costs of $80K due to Board Approved 2% Cost of Living
increase and annual merit increases.

12



006299.0000534
556128.1 

Staff Report 

To: 

Through: 

From: 

Date: 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 

Kris Sofley, Clerk of the Board

November 28, 2022 (December 14, 2022 meeting)

Agenda Item:     3.E Resolution 2022-45 Subsequent Finding that the Governor of
California issued a Proclamation of a State of Emergency on March 4, 
2020 relating to the COVID-19 virus and local officials continue to  
recommend social distancing measures to mitigate the spread of the  
COVID-19 virus and Authorizing remote teleconference meetings of  
the legislative bodies of United Water Conservation District for the  
period of December 14, 2022 through January 13, 2023, pursuant to 
Brown Act provisions 
Motion 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Board will consider adopting Resolution 2022-45 continuing subsequent findings that the 
requisite conditions exist for remote teleconference meetings of the District’s legislative bodies 
without compliance with Government Code section 54953(b)(3), as authorized by Government 
Code section 54953(e).  

Background: 
Starting in March 2020, amid rising concern surrounding the spread of COVID-19 throughout 
communities in the state, California Governor Gavin Newsom issued a series of Executive 
Orders aimed at containing the novel coronavirus. These Executive Orders (N-25-20, N-29-20, 
N-35-20) collectively modified certain requirements created by the Ralph M. Brown Act (“the 
Brown Act”), the state’s local agency public meetings law.

On June 11, 2021, the Governor issued Executive Order N-08-21 which rescinds the 
aforementioned modifications made to the Brown Act, effective September 30, 2021. After that 
date, local agencies are required to observe all the usual Brown Act requirements status quo 
ante (as they existed prior to the issuance of the orders). Local agencies must once again 
ensure that the public is provided with access to a physical location from which they may 
observe a public meeting and offer public comment. Local agencies must also resume 
publication of the location of teleconferencing board members, post meeting notices and 
agendas in those locations, and make those locations available to the public in order to observe 
a meeting and provide public comment.  



3.E Resolution 2022-45 Subsequent Finding that the Governor of
California issued a Proclamation of a State of Emergency on March 4, 
2020 relating to the COVID-19 virus and local officials continue to  
recommend social distancing measures to mitigate the spread of the  
COVID-19 virus and Authorizing remote teleconference meetings of   
the legislative bodies of United Water Conservation District for the  
period of December 14, 2022 through January 13, 2023, pursuant to 
Brown Act provisions 
Motion 

2 

On September 16, the Governor signed AB 361 into law, effective immediately, which extends 
the flexibilities provided in the Governor’s prior executive order to local and state bodies to hold 
public meetings remotely beyond the executive order’s September 30, 2021 expiration date. 

On September 20, the Governor signed an executive order (N-15-21) waiving the application 
of AB 361 until October 1, 2021, when the provisions of prior Executive Orders that established 
certain requirements for public agencies to meet remotely during the COVID-19 emergency will 
expire.  The September 20 order makes clear that, until September 30, local agencies may conduct 
open and public remote meetings relying on the authority provided under prior Executive Orders 
(rather than AB 361). The revised Order also explicitly permits a local agency to meet pursuant to 
the procedures provided in AB 361 before October 1, so long as the meeting is conducted in 
accordance with the requirements of AB 361. 

All local agencies are being asked to be aware that they may not conduct remote teleconference 
meetings pursuant to the authority in the Governor’s prior Executive Orders beyond September 
30; after that date, all meetings subject to the Brown Act must comply with standard teleconference 
requirements (as they existed “pre-pandemic”) OR must comply with the newly enacted 
provisions of AB 361. The adoption of this Resolution provide the District with compliance as it 
relates to the newly enacted provisions of AB 361. 

Fiscal Impact: 
There is no fiscal impact related to the approval of this Resolution. 

Attachment: Resolution 2022-45



 

006299.0000534
528021.1 

RESOLUTION 2022-45 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF UNITED WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT REAFFIRMING THAT THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY 
BY THE GOVERNOR OF CALIFORNIA ISSUED ON MARCH 4, 2020 RELATING TO THE 
COVID-19 VIRUS REMAINS IN EFFECT AND LOCAL OFFICIALS CONTINUE TO 
RECOMMEND SOCIAL DISTANCING MEASURES TO MITIGATE THE SPREAD OF THE 
COVID-19 VIRUS AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF 
THE LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT FOR THE 
PERIOD OF DECEMBER 14, 2022 THROUGH JANUARY 13, 2023 PURSUANT TO BROWN 
ACT PROVISIONS.  
 

WHEREAS, United Water Conservation District (“District”) is committed to preserving and 
nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and  
 

WHEREAS, all meetings of District’s legislative bodies are open and public, as required by the 
Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code §54950 et seq.) (“Brown Act”), so that any member of the public 
may attend, participate, and watch the District’s legislative bodies conduct their business; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for remote 
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance with the 
requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of certain conditions; and 
 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor 
pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or of 
extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as described in 
Government Code section 8558; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended 
measures to promote social distancing; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors previously adopted a Resolution, Number 2022-43 on 
November 9, 2022, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the legislative bodies of the District to 
conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of 
section 54953; and  
 

WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section 54953(e), the 
Board of Directors must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency that exists, and the Board 
of Directors has done so; and  
 

WHEREAS, the State of Emergency proclaimed by the Governor of California on March 4, 2020, 
due to the outbreak and spread of the COVID-19 virus remains in effect and active in order to be able to 
prepare, respond, and implement measures to mitigate the spread of the COVID-19 virus; and 
 

WHEREAS, local officials within the County of Ventura continue to recommend social 
distancing measures to mitigate the spread of the COVID-19 virus; and  
 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the proclaimed state of emergency pursuant to the COVID-19 
virus which continues to remain in effect, and local officials continuing to recommend social distancing 
measures to mitigate the spread of the COVID-19 virus, the Board of Directors does hereby find that the 
legislative bodies of the District shall continue to conduct their meetings without compliance with 



 

006299.0000534
528021.1 

paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as authorized by subdivision (e) of 
section 54953, and that such legislative bodies shall comply with the requirements to provide the public 
with access to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and   
 

WHEREAS, the meetings of the District’s legislative bodies continue to be open to the public, in 
accordance with the law.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DISTRICT DOES HEREBY 
RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into this 
Resolution by this reference. 
 

Section 2. Reaffirmation of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board hereby 
finds that the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of Emergency pursuant to the 
COVID-19 virus, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020, continues to remain in effect.  

 
Section 3. Reaffirmation of Local Officials Recommendation of Social Distancing Measures. The 

Board hereby finds that local officials within the County of Ventura continue to recommend social 
distancing measures to mitigate the spread of the COVID-19 virus.  
 

Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager of the District and legislative 
bodies of the District are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the 
intent and purpose of this Resolution including, continuing to conduct open and public meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 
 

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) January 13, 2023, or such time the Board of 
Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to 
extend the time during which the legislative bodies of the District may continue to teleconference without 
compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of United Water Conservation District, this 14th 
day of December, 2022, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  

 
ATTEST:_____________________________________ 

     Bruce E. Dandy, Board President 
 
 
ATTEST:_____________________________________ 

    Lynn E. Maulhardt, Board Secretary/Treasurer 



 

 
 

 
Staff Report 

         
To: UWCD Board of Directors 
 
Through: Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
                            Brian Collins, Chief Operations Officer 
                               
From: John Carman, Programs Supervisor 
 
Date: November 30, 2022 (December 14, 2022, Meeting) 
 
Agenda Item:   4.1  Monthly Operations and Maintenance Department Report  
   Information Item                                                                               
 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
The Board will receive and file this staff report from the Operations and Maintenance department 
regarding its activities for the month of November. 
 
1. Water Releases, Diversions  

• Lake Piru dropped 1.1 feet in November to 14,041 acre-feet (AF) of storage. 
• 0 AF of water was diverted by the Freeman Diversion facility in November. 
• 0 AF of water was diverted to the Saticoy recharge basins in November (metered).  
• 0 AF of surface water was delivered to the El Rio recharge basins in November. 
• 0 AF of surface water was delivered to the PTP system in November. 
• 0 AF of surface water was delivered C customers in November.  
• 0 AF of surface water was delivered to Pleasant Valley County Water District in 

November. 
 
2. Major Facilities Update 

• Santa Felicia Dam 
o On December 1, 2022, the lake level was 80.0 feet below the spillway lip.  
o Habitat water releases from Santa Felica Dam (SFD) were maintained at 7 cubic feet 

per second (cfs), for the month of November, as per the Water Release and Ramping 
Rate Implementation Plan for Lower Piru Creek.  

o November 15, 2022, staff attended EAP & IRRM workshop with DWR & LADWP 
and toured Lake Pyramid facilities.  

o Staff completed PLC conversion for low flow bypass valves on November 29, 2022. 
 
 

• Freeman Diversion, Saticoy, and El Rio Recharge Facilities 



Agenda Item:  4.1   Monthly Operations and Maintenance Department Report  
                                  Information Item 

 
 

 
 
 2 

o Flows at the Freeman Diversion averaged zero cfs for the month of November, with 
zero cfs of surface water being diverted on December 1, 2022.  

o District staff from all locations convened at Saticoy for the annual month long Desilt 
Basin Cleanout Project, 42,390 cubic yards hauled as of November 29, 2022.  

o November 8, 2022, staff provided tour of Desilt Basin Cleanout project and Freeman 
Diversion Facilities to Palmdale Water District.  

o Static water levels (distance of water from the well pad to the water table): 
         

  2022 2021 2020 

Saticoy 142' 148' 117' 

El Rio 145.4' 138.7' 115.5' 

PTP  144' - 176' 129' - 174'  118' - 155' 

        
 
 

• Oxnard-Hueneme (OH) Delivery System  
o Staff maintained a collaborative presence with daily inspections for the City of Oxnard 

sewer line upgrades, contractor Toro Construction which will be boring below United’s 
42 inch OH Pipeline on Rose Avenue.  

o Quarterly TTHM Disinfection Byproduct report submitted to State Water Resources 
Control Board Division of Drinking Water. 

 
 

• Pleasant Valley County Water District (PVCWD) 
o PVCWD received surface water from the Conejo Creek Project and received some 

highly treated recycled water from the City of Oxnard’s Advanced Water Purification 
Facility (AWPF).  
 
 

• Pumping Trough Pipeline (PTP) 
o During the month of November, the PTP system demand was met with PTP wells and 

supplemented with Wells 12 and 13 via gooseneck air gap piping.  
o Staff installed radio antenna on PTP Res tower, linking PTP turnout #139 to network.  
o Staff configured and replaced PTP #157  six inch Endress Hauser mag meter.   

 
 

• Instrumentation 
o Staff completed security camera installation and server transition to Genetec systems.  
o Instrumentation staff installed Yagi antennae at PTP Well # 5.  
o Staff replaced batteries stolen from PTP Turnouts #148 and #153. 
o November 30, 2022, staff replaced Santa Felicia Dam Emergency Action Plan Piru Fire 

Station siren batteries.  
 



Agenda Item:  4.1   Monthly Operations and Maintenance Department Report  
                                  Information Item 

 
 

 
 
 3 

 
 

 
 

• Lake Piru Water System 
o All chlorine residuals and turbidity readings for the drinking water system were within 

proper ranges for the month of November.  
o Staff performed quarterly inspection and added media to filter vessels.   
o Monthly pH, turbidity and coliform samples were obtained for Lake Piru, as part of the 

Long Term 2 Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule compliance monitoring.  
 
 
3. Operations and Maintenance Projects Update 

• The Iron and Manganese grant funded project is progressing well at El Rio Booster Plant, 
projected completion date March 30, 2023. 
 
 

4. Other Operations and Maintenance Activities 
• The Santa Felicia Dam Emergency Action Plan sirens located in Piru were exercised on 

November 4, 2022. 
• The monthly inspection of Santa Felicia Dam was performed. 
• Monthly bacteria samples were obtained for the PTP system. 
• Monthly meter readings were obtained for the OH, PTP, and PV Pipelines. 
• Completed and electronically transmitted the monthly OH Pipeline report to the State 

Water Resources Control Board Division of Drinking Water. 
• Static water levels were obtained for all El Rio, Saticoy, and PTP wells. 
• Weed abatement continued throughout the District. 
• Action priority update biweekly meetings for operations staff were continued. 

 
 
 

5. Safety and Training 
• During the months of November, approximately 3100 hours of O & M department work 

were performed with no reportable accidents.  
• With the Desilting project requiring support across multiple sites, this month’s safety 

training was postponed to the following month. Each morning, tailgate safety meetings 
were conducted prior to commencing operations. The Risk and Safety Manager also 
visited the project site (in some cases, unannounced) and reported staff was operating 
safety and all the proper road signage and communication tools were in place. The 
Control Systems team also completed the NFPA 70E Electrical Safety training, which 
complies with NFPA 70E and Cal/OSHA requirements for staff who work at or near 
energized electrical systems at or less than 600 volts.   



Agenda Item:  4.1   Monthly Operations and Maintenance Department Report  
                                  Information Item 

 
 

 
 
 4 

• Tailgate safety meetings were conducted at all individual O&M field locations and the 
topics included refresher training on equipment used at the various O & M locations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment: Operations Log for November 



SFD El. Stor. Surface Evap.
Inflow 

Balance

Outflow 

USGS
Hydro

Rain 

106E
River Diverted

Fish* * *  

Facility

Bypass 

Channel
Crest El Rio

Noble/ 

Rose
Piru T.I.D. P.T.P. L.P.

Saticoy 

Wells
Total Cl2

Ft. A/F Acres Inches Av. CFS Av. CFS Kw Inches Av. CFS Av. CFS Av. CFS Av. CFS Av. CFS Av. CFS Weir CFS Av. CFS Av. CFS A/F A/F A/F % A/F A/F A/F Lbs.

A/F* 14604 0 485 0.06 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0.0 0 952 7,440

11/1/22 976.04 14584 480.20 0.139 -1 7.86 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 30.1 226

11/2/22 976.00 14565 479.90 0.077 -1 7.86 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 29.2 222

11/3/22 975.97 14551 479.70 0.187 3 7.87 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 28.8 260

11/4/22 975.94 14536 479.50 0.159 2 7.86 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 31.0 234

11/5/22 975.88 14508 479.10 0.148 -5 7.86 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 30.1 243

11/6/22 975.85 14493 478.90 0.128 2 7.86 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 28.4 207

11/7/22 975.81 14474 478.70 0.096 -1 7.86 0 0.04 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 25.6 221

11/8/22 975.70 14421 477.90 0.031 -19 7.86 0 0.73 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 25.0 200

11/9/22 975.76 14450 478.30 0.090 23 7.86 0 1.09 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 25.4 200

11/10/22 975.72 14431 478.10 0.130 0 7.86 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 25.2 222

11/11/22 975.68 14412 477.80 0.110 -1 7.86 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 21.7 159

11/12/22 975.63 14388 477.40 0.139 -3 7.86 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 23.3 168

11/13/22 975.60 14374 477.20 0.108 2 7.86 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 24.4 284

11/14/22 975.56 14355 477.00 0.129 0 7.86 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 30.5 244

11/15/22 975.52 14335 476.70 0.085 -1 7.86 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 29.4 268

11/16/22 975.47 14312 476.40 0.205 -2 7.85 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 32.3 237

11/17/22 975.42 14288 476.00 0.197 -2 7.85 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 30.2 200

11/18/22 975.39 14274 475.80 0.087 2 7.85 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 27.1 220

11/19/22 975.34 14250 475.50 0.134 -3 7.85 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 31.8 245

11/20/22 975.31 14235 475.30 0.182 2 7.85 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 25.9 199

11/21/22 975.26 14212 475.00 0.086 -3 7.85 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 31.0 243

11/22/22 975.22 14193 474.70 0.130 0 7.85 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 31.8 246

11/23/22 975.18 14174 474.40 0.094 -1 7.84 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 32.2 250

11/24/22 975.11 14141 473.90 0.113 -8 7.84 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 28.3 234

11/25/22 975.09 14131 473.80 0.191 5 7.84 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 30.5 233

11/26/22 975.06 14117 473.60 0.133 2 7.84 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 30.8 250

11/27/22 975.04 14107 473.50 0.105 4 7.84 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 26.2 210

11/28/22 975.00 14088 473.20 0.069 -1 7.84 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 29.2 224

11/29/22 974.96 14070 472.90 0.068 -1 7.84 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 29.4 233

11/30/22 974.93 14055 472.60 0.067 1 7.84 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 25.4 195

TOTAL CFS -5 236 1.86 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0

AVERAGE CFS 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0

TOTAL A/F -11 466 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0.0 850 6777

MONTHLY REVENUE TO DATE (approx.) $0 K

AVERAGE A/F 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0% 0 0.0 28 226

WATER YEAR TOTALS A/F -11 951 1.92 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 1,802 14,217

*  Input total A/F previous month

** Daily averages imported from Ranch Systems 

***Fish facility flows include Denil fishladder, aux pipe and smolt bypass pipe

0

FREEM AN DIVERSION**SANTA FEL ICIA DAM

DATE

OPERATIONS LOG v 12/5/22

Saticoy Facility PVCWD

O-HIRRIGATIONRECHARGE

0



 

 
 
 

 
Staff Report 

 
 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 
 
Through: Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
 
From: Clayton W. Strahan, Chief Park Ranger 
 
Date: November 27, 2022 (December 14, 2022, meeting) 
 
Agenda Item:     4.2 Monthly Park and Recreation Department Report  
   Information item 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
The Board will receive and file this staff report from the Parks and Recreation Department 
regarding its activities for the month of November 2022. 
 
Discussion:  
During the month of November staff and guests alike enjoyed the first significant rainfall of the 
season, which occurred on November 7 and 8, bringing approximately 1.9 inches of rain to the 
Piru area. Some maintenance work was required following this storm, including clearing of roads 
impacted by rockfall and spraying of herbicide to prevent noxious weed growth. Despite the rain, 
visitation remained strong, and financial numbers continue to trend positively. Staff hopes for more 
rain in the coming months to raise the lake level and provide additional water for United customers. 
 
Rangers continue to train seasonal Park Ranger Michael Groeneveld, who has been offered a 
conditional job offer to become the district’s newest Park Ranger Cadet and full-time employee 
upon successful completion of a background investigation.  Michael is progressing well in his 
training process. Additionally, staff has been focused on initiating the recruitment process for a 
second Park Ranger Cadet resulting from the resignation of a full time Park Ranger, which has 
created a vacancy.  
 
Staff also had the opportunity to assist the Environmental Services Department and Cramer Fish 
Sciences with fisheries surveys in the Piru Creek Watershed.  This was an excellent opportunity 
for Recreation staff to learn more about movement patterns and the biology of trout living in the 
watershed.  
 
1. Staff Tasks and Activity Highlights 

• November 1, 2: Staff decontaminated several boats which had been stored in wet slips on 
the marina and were being removed by their owners for the winter. Decontamination is 
required to maintain compliance with state law and the District’s Quagga Mussel Control 
Plan. 



 
4.2 Monthly Park and Recreation Department Report 
            Page 2 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 

• November 1-4: Fenceworks LLC installed a new eight-foot-tall security fence around the 
dry storage facility.  The fence, which runs 720 linear feet, included a two-strand barbed 
wire top and privacy slats.   

• November 1-7: Staff worked to prepare the Recreation Area for a Special Board Meeting 
to provide the Board of Directors with an opportunity to observe the progress made on 
various improvements at the Recreation Area. Projects completed include repainting the 
Condor Point store and assorted picnic structures, landscaping, road and curb striping, 
vehicle cleaning, and installation of new signs.  

• November 1-27: Rangers worked to train Seasonal Park Ranger Michael Groeneveld in 
applicable state law, District policies and procedures, and different skills required to be 
successful in his new role upon the completion of his background check.  The hope is that 
this field training program will catapult Michael into his proposed new role as a Park 
Ranger cadet. 

• November 8-10: Staff mitigated damage from a small storm that impacted the area on 
November 8, resulting in several small mud and rockslides across Piru Canyon Road and 
the lower launch ramp. 

• November 9: Initiated discussions with Ventura County Flood Protection District to 
discuss measures to remove homeless encampments in the Santa Clara River. Staff is 
currently working with County staff to implement efforts to finalize the removal of these 
illegal encampments.   

• November 15: Staff began spraying herbicide to prevent excess growth of weeds and brush 
following the storm earlier in the month. 

• November 15: Staff flew the District UAS over homeless encampments on District 
property in the Santa Clara River to provide real-time aerial images for County partners as 
we work to assist with the extraction of the homeless population from the and surrounding 
watershed area. 

• November 15: Staff moved and set up a tool shed in the private area of the Olive Grove 
campground to better organize District equipment.  

• November 21-30: Pacific Vista Landscape Services began work to finalize the landscaping 
efforts associated with the FERC mandated Condor Point improvement project.  This work 
included brush removal, tree stump removal, the removal of two nonnative trees, the 
planting of six native sycamore trees, the installation of an entirely new irrigation system, 
slope grading and hydro-seeding three quarters of an acre with fescue park grass seed.  The 
project is slated to be completed by the second week of December.   
 

2. Staff Training/Meetings/Events 
• November 2: Staff participated in a final inspection of improvements made at Condor 

Point area to comply with FERC requirements. 
• November 7: Staff hosted a Special Board Meeting at the Recreation Area to allow the 

Board members to inspect completed and future improvements. All employees attended an 
all-staff lunch meeting. 

• November 22: Staff met with Chief Human Resource Office Josh Perez and General 
Manager Mauricio Guardado to discuss Recreation Department staffing and succession 
planning within the department. 



 
4.2 Monthly Park and Recreation Department Report 
            Page 3 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 

• November 29: Staff met with representatives of Tommy’s Boats to discuss ongoing efforts 
associated with a proposed five-year contract extension. Tommy’s Boats operates the 
boating concessions at Lake Piru.   
 
 

 Revenue and Visitation Recap 

2022 Combined Revenue (Jan. 1 – Oct. 31) $830,457.50 
2021 Combined Revenue (Jan. 1 – Oct. 31) $809,497.30 
Annual Increase in % 2.6% 

 
It should be noted that 2019 was one of the highest revenue years in the history of the park. 2022 is on pace to exceed 
the 2019 day-use and camping figures. 

 
2022 Total Visitation Figures 

Month # Nights/Sites # People # Vehicles # Vessels 
January 153 1,450   822 155 
February 203 1,372   685 155 
March 314 4,585 1,405 292 
April 527 16,175 2,314 437 
May 614 11,130 2,816 574 
June 634 10,417 2,677 508 
July 887 16,949 3,714 574 
August 491   8,501 2,121 456 
September 538   3,637 2,287 367 
October 410   6,547 1,573 262 
Total        4,771 80,763          20,414         3,780 

 
3. Incidents/Arrests/Medicals 

Rangers responded to one incident of note during the month of November. 
• November 15 – Rangers responded to a report of missing property in the campground. 

Following a brief investigation, rangers were unable to locate the missing property and no 
witnesses were located that could provide information regarding the incident. The reporting 
party did not request any further action. 

2022 Day Use Revenue Recap and Comparison 
2022 Day Use Revenue (Jan. 1 – Oct. 31) $333,552.89 
2021 Day Use Revenue (Jan. 1 – Oct. 31)  $331,581.39 
Total Revenue Increase from Prior Year      $1,971.50 
Annual Increase in % 0.6% 

2022 Camping Revenue Recap and Comparison 
2022 Camping Revenue (Jan. 1 – Oct. 31) $496,904.61 
2021 Camping Revenue (Jan. 1 – Oct. 31) $477,915.91 
Total Revenue Increase/Decrease from Prior Year   $18,988.70 
Annual Increase in % 4.% 

Current and Previous Year Comparison (2021 vs. 2022) 



 
4.2 Monthly Park and Recreation Department Report 
            Page 4 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 

4. Citations/Enforcement Summary 
Throughout November, one citation was issued for violations of Ordinance 15.  It should be 
noted that numerous other enforcement contacts were made for violations of District 
ordinances. However, as it is the District’s goal to use education as a means for compliance in 
most cases, Park Rangers used these incidents as an opportunity to educate the guests via a 
verbal warning. Citations are typically issued as a last resort when the violation is egregious 
or voluntary compliance cannot be obtained. 

 
5. Grants 

Nothing new to report at this time.   



 

 

 

Staff Report 
          
To: UWCD Board of Directors 
 
Through: Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
 
From: Maryam Bral, Chief Engineer 
 Dan Detmer, Water Resources Manager 
  
Date: November 30, 2022 (December 14, 2022 meeting) 
 
Agenda Item:    4.3 Monthly Water Resources Department Report and Update on 

 Activities of Local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs)  
   Information Item  
 

Staff Recommendation:  
The Board will receive a summary report on various Water Resources Department activities for 
the month of November 2022, including a summary of the monthly activities of the three local 
Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (Fox Canyon Groundwater Management Agency, Fillmore 
and Piru Basins GSA, and Mound Basin GSA), for which District board members serve as member 
directors, and the Santa Paula basin (adjudicated) Technical Advisory Committee, for which 
District staff serve as members.  Staff may also report on state-wide issues related to the 
implementation of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) of 2014. 
 
Discussion: 
Staff Activities 
In addition to the Department’s routine, ongoing groundwater monitoring and reporting programs 
and its support of Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (summarized below), notable efforts and 
activities conducted by staff during the past month included the following: 

• Groundwater Modeling: 
o Staff continue to develop a break-out Perched Aquifer Model (PAM) for groundwater 

flow in the unconfined Semi-perched aquifer in the EBB Water Project study area.  The 
break-out model will allow higher resolution (both horizontally and vertically) 
forecasting of groundwater flow paths and the inland extent of the natural seawater 
density wedge at the base of the aquifer near the coastline. 

o Staff are applying MODFLOW’s “Subsidence package” to the District’s existing 
groundwater flow model of the OPV basins to forecast potential occurrence and 



Agenda Item:  4.3 Monthly Water Resources Department Report and update on 
 Activities of local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs)  

   Information Item  
Page 2 

 

magnitude of land subsidence during the model calibration period (1985-2019) and 
under future assumed pumping scenarios and basin conditions. 

o Staff continue to model the potential effectiveness of various pumping-optimization 
projects and strategies in the Oxnard and Pleasant Valley (OPV) basins to mitigate 
seawater intrusion and help in achieving sustainable yield. 

• Staff are assisting the Environmental Services and Engineering Departments in evaluating 
fish passage design modifications under consideration for United’s Habitat Conservation 
Plan (HCP), including assisting with planning of physical modeling efforts at the Bureau 
of Reclamation’s facility in Denver and at the University of Iowa. 

• Staff assisted the Environmental Services and Engineering Departments in interviewing 
and selecting consultants to conduct the environmental permitting and engineering design 
efforts for Phase 1 of United’s EBB Water Project. 

• Staff are assisting the Engineering Department in evaluating the feasibility and water 
resources impacts of releasing water from Lake Piru and operating at lower reservoir levels 
as an Interim Risk Reduction Measure prior to the beginning of the construction of the new 
outlet works. 

• Staff continue to assist with planning and coordination for the purchase and release of 
Table A water and supplemental State Water Project (SWP) water acquired from other 
SWP contractors. 

• Staff continue to collaborate with the Engineering Department to develop, design, and 
implement a portfolio of new or improved water-supply projects within the District’s 
service area.  The collaborative effort is currently focused on refining the conceptual design 
of water-supply projects and new conveyance systems so that they produce the best value 
in terms of sustainable yield for the groundwater basins in United’s service area.   
o Staff continue to support selection of site locations and design specifications for 

extraction and monitoring wells to be included as Phase 1 of the EBB Water project. 
o Staff submitted a proposal for a Prop 1, Round 3, grant to develop Phase 1B of the 

EBB Water project on July 15.  United proposed the design and construction of 
extraction wells and control systems, and discharge pipes and related design, 
permitting, sampling and reporting to build the initial phase of the EBB Water project 
before additional investments are made for water treatment and distribution.  The 
Phase 1B project grant proposal cost is estimated at $18.6 million and the requested 
funding is $8.4 million or 46% of the estimated project cost.     

o Staff completed an open-file report (OFR) describing the methods and results for a 
modeling effort to optimize sustainability and environmental benefits of water-supply 
and conveyance infrastructure projects currently being designed and/or implemented 
by United and other project proponents.  The combination of projects to be evaluated 
was initially proposed by the FCGMA’s OPV Stakeholders ad hoc Projects 
Committee and was updated with information or suggestions provided by the 
FCGMA, the OPV Stakeholders group, and project proponents (including United’s 



Agenda Item:  4.3 Monthly Water Resources Department Report and update on 
 Activities of local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs)  

   Information Item  
Page 3 

 

Engineering Department) as the evaluation proceeded.  This report is available to view 
on United’s web site (https://www.unitedwater.org/key-documents/). 

o Staff completed an OFR summarizing the development and effects of past and current 
efforts to define and achieve safe or sustainable yield in the OPV basins, to understand 
how those efforts might be integrated with future projects and regulations intended to 
improve groundwater conditions in the basins.  This report is available to view on 
United’s web site (https://www.unitedwater.org/key-documents/). 
 

Outreach and Educational Activities 

• Supervising Hydrogeologist John Lindquist attended a webinar describing how to use the 
application programming interface (API) to download evapotranspiration (ET) data from 
the OpenET website on November 4. 

• Staff from various departments coordinated presentations for the Oxnard Union High 
School District's STEAM Day (Science, Technology, Engineering, Art, Math) scheduled 
for Saturday, December 10, 2022 -- staff will present several 55-minute workshops to 
students in a classroom related to water resources in the region and various career paths 
within the field of water resources. 

 
Fox Canyon Groundwater Management Agency (FCGMA) 
Staff continue to monitor and, where appropriate, participate in the FCGMA’s groundwater 
sustainability planning and implementation efforts in the Oxnard, Pleasant Valley, and Las Posas 
Valley basins.  United staff continue to meet periodically with FCGMA staff and other 
stakeholders to develop analyses of benefits and impacts of water-supply projects and different 
variations of those projects in support of developing a sustainable, resilient water-supply portfolio 
for the service areas of both agencies.  On November 17, United staff participated in an online 
meeting with FCGMA staff and their consultant, Dudek, to see preliminary results of Dudek’s 
modeling forecasts of seawater intrusion flux rates resulting from simulated changes in total 
pumping rates from each management zone in the Oxnard basin.  This modeling was conducted 
by Dudek to inform the FCGMA of the potential effects of shifting pumping patterns that could 
result from the use of CombCodes by pumpers in the basin.  The modeling results could potentially 
also apply to temporary or permanent assignment of a pumping facility’s allocation, or to transfers 
related to future expansion of the FCGMA’s water market in the OPV basins.  United staff also 
attended and, where appropriate, contributed to, FCGMA Board and Committee meetings, as 
follows: 
Board of Directors meetings – The FCGMA Board held a regular meeting October 26.  Notable 
topics included: 

• The annual review of Resolution No. 2020-05, which imposes a $20 per AF fee on 
groundwater extractions to provide revenue to the GEMES fund for legal fees.  The Board 
received a presentation by staff and agreed not to take action with regard to the reserve fee 
and plans to review again in October 2023. 



Agenda Item:  4.3 Monthly Water Resources Department Report and update on 
 Activities of local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs)  

   Information Item  
Page 4 

 

• The Board adopted Resolution No. 2022-06, approving increased tiered groundwater 
extraction surcharge rates consistent with Calleguas Municipal Water District’s recent rate 
increase, effective January 1, 2023. 

• The Board received a presentation by staff on Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) 
implementation and preliminary tasks and schedule for conducting five-year evaluations 
and amendments to the GSPs.  The Board recommended having a public workshop to 
further discuss proposed projects and updated scheduling. 

• The Board adopted Resolution No. 2022-07, authorizing application for a SGM 
Implementation Round 2 Grant for the recommended project components in the Las Posas 
Valley Basin.  

• The next regular FCGMA Board meeting is scheduled for December 9, at 1:30 p.m.   

Operations Committee meetings – An Operations Committee special meeting was held on 
November 7.  The primary focus of the meeting was to continue discussion on draft criteria to rank 
and prioritize water-supply and infrastructure projects for funding and inclusion in the OPV 
groundwater sustainability plans.  The Committee directed staff to revise the draft checklist of 
project ranking criteria in accordance with input received during the meeting from stakeholders 
and Committee members, share the revised draft with attendees of the Operations Committee 
meeting, and be prepared to present the revised draft with the full Board of Directors during their 
January 2023 meeting. 
Executive Committee meetings – None were held last month.     
Fiscal Committee meetings – None were held last month.   
OPV Variance Review Committee meeting – None were held last month.   
Ad Hoc OPV Projects Committee meetings – None were held last month. 
 
Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency (FPBGSA) 
Staff continue to participate in FPBGSA activities supporting SGMA compliance and GSP 
preparation for the Fillmore and Piru basins, as follows: 
Board of Directors meetings – The FPBGSA held a regular board meeting on October 20 and 
November 17.  Notable topics during the October 20 meeting included: 

• The Agency’s Well Permitting Review Process was discussed by the Board, legal counsel, 
Daniel B. Stephens and Associates, and staff.  Questions concerning the responsibilities 
of the GSA and the County were raised during the discussion.   

• The Board received a presentation from Daniel B. Stephens and Associates reviewing the 
Agency’s proposed Projects and Management Actions from the Fillmore and Piru Basins 
included in the GSPs, and on some potential projects, studies, and programs for inclusion 
in a SGM Implementation Round 2 Grant application.   

Notable topics during the November 17 meeting included: 



Agenda Item:  4.3 Monthly Water Resources Department Report and update on 
 Activities of local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs)  

   Information Item  
Page 5 

 

• The Board adopted Resolution 2022-17, directing and authorizing the Agency to prepare 
and submit an application to DWR for a SGM Implementation Round 2 Grant and 
authorizing the Chair or designee to execute the funding agreement and all associated 
documents. 

• The Board approved Task Order 2022-03 with Daniel B. Stephens & Associates for the 
preparation and submittal of annual reports for the Fillmore basin and the Piru basin for 
Water Year 2022 and updating of the Agency’s Online Database. 

• The Board ratified Change Order 1 to the Agreement with BC2 Environmental, LLC for 
the Monitoring Wells Project, for the addition of a fourth (deep) nested monitoring well 
at the East Grove site.   

• The Board approved the proposed dates for regular meetings during calendar year 2023.  
The Board agreed to change the meeting start time from 5:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m., starting 
in January 2023.   

The next FPBGSA Board meeting is scheduled for December 8, at 5:00 p.m.  
GSP implementation – Staff completed coordination and construction activities for the shallow 
monitoring wells at Cienega Spring Restoration Project and the deeper nested monitoring well at 
the East Grove Site.  Staff is assisting with preparation of the grant application for the SGM 
implementation Round 2 funding. 
Data Resources - A web-based data management and mapping system that includes well 
construction information and available water level and water quality records for wells within the 
Piru and Fillmore basins remains available on the agency website, as are numerous technical 
references relating to the basins and development of the GSPs.  Staff recently shared spring water 
level records with agency consultant DBS&A for formatting and upload to the agency website and 
to DWR. 
 
Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (MBGSA) 
Staff continue to participate in MBGSA activities supporting SGMA compliance and GSP 
implementation for the Mound basin, as follows: 
 
Board of Directors meetings – The MBGSA Board held a regular meeting on November 17.  Notable 
topics included: 

• The Board approved the proposed 2023 Regular Board Meeting Schedule.  Based on a 
request received from the Board of Directors during the Regular Board of Directors 
meeting on October 20, 2022, staff prepared an updated meeting calendar for the 2023 
Board of Directors meetings based on poll responses received from the Directors.  While 
the MBGSA has previously held their regular meetings on the third Thursday of each 
month at 1:00 p.m., during 2023 the regular Board meetings will occur on the fourth 
Monday of each month at 3:00 p.m.       

• The Board approved Resolution 2022-09, authorizing a SGM Round 2 Implementation 
Grant Application.  
 



Agenda Item:  4.3 Monthly Water Resources Department Report and update on 
 Activities of local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs)  

   Information Item  
Page 6 

 

GSP implementation – Staff provide the MBGSA’s Executive Director and consultants various 
groundwater level and quality data periodically, as requested.  Staff are also monitoring pressure 
transducers to monitor groundwater levels at selected wells in support of data collection efforts 
being conducted in support of the Mound Basin GSP.   
 
Santa Paula Basin Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
Staff continue to participate in the Santa Paula basin TAC in support of the Santa Paula Basin 
Judgment and in conformance with SGMA reporting requirements for adjudicated basins, as 
follows: 

• Staff prepared a draft Santa Paula Basin Annual Report for 2021 and it is currently being 
reviewed by TAC members. 

• A TAC meeting is scheduled for December 12 at 10:00 a.m.  Potential items of discussion 
may include the new/destroyed wells in Santa Paula basin, allocation transfers, and the 
draft 2021 Santa Paula Annual Report.   
 



 

 
 

 
Staff Report 

 
To:        UWCD Board of Directors 
 
Through:      Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
       Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 
 
From:  Josh Perez, Chief Human Resources Officer 
 Brian Zahn, Chief Financial Officer 
 Zachary Plummer, Technology Systems Manager 
 Tony Huynh, Risk and Safety Manager 
 Kris Sofley, Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board 
 
Date:  November 29, 2022 (December 14, 2022 meeting) 
 
Agenda Item:     4.4 Monthly Administrative Services Department Report  
   Information Item   
 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
The Board will receive this staff report and attached presentation from the Administrative Services 
Department regarding its activities for the month November 2022. 
 
Discussion: 
Finance 

• Continued work on Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
which will be completed by first week of December (see attachment A ACFR Final Draft). 

• Bank transfer process from Bank of the Sierra to Citizens Business Bank is in progress. 
Bank of the Sierra account will be kept open until staff is able to ensure all deposits and 
checks issued are cleared. 

• Started FY 2022-2023 Budget development process. Budget kickoff meeting is scheduled 
for January 25, 2023. 

• Finance completed all year end entries for Fillmore and Piru Basins GSA and Mound Basin 
GSA. Final FY 2021-2022 Financial Statements were presented to the Boards in October. 
 

Administrative 
• Provided administrative assistance for drafting, finalizing, and distributing/posting 

materials for the UWCD Finance and Audit (10/31), Water Resources (11/1) and 
Engineering and Operations (11/3) Committee meetings as well as a Special Board 
Meeting at Lake Piru Recreation Area (11/7) and the regular UWCD Board meeting 
(11/12). 



4.4  Monthly Administrative Services Department Report  
  Information Item 
 
 

 
 
 2 

• Organized set up, food and beverages for an All Staff BBQ at Lake Piru Recreation Area 
on 11/7, but due to rain, and with assistance from the Park Rangers and Operations and 
Maintenance staff, transported the All Staff BBQ to Saticoy, where everyone enjoyed a 
filling lunch, including some of the Board Directors! 

• Prepared UWCD Boardroom for a meeting between UWCD staff and Palmdale Water 
District executives.  Chief Operations Officer Brian Collins provided a tour of the District’s 
facilities to the Palmdale Water District participants. 

• Provided administrative assistance for drafting, finalizing, and distributing/posting 
materials for the Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency’s Regular 
Board meeting November and for the Mound Basin GSA Regular Board meeting in 
November. 

• Provided administrative assistance and support for the AWA VC Water Wise (Three GMs) 
event as well as its Board meeting, Water Issues and Executive Committee meetings 
utilizing UWCD’s Boardroom and technical support. 

• Provided administrative assistance and support as well as technical support to the VC Farm 
Bureau’s VCAILG Workshop on November 18.  The workshop drew a large crowd, and 
the Farm Bureau staff was very appreciative of UWCD’s support. 

• Provided administrative assistance in registering, securing hotel accommodation, and 
organizing meetings for the Board and General Manager at the November 28 through 
December 1 ACWA Fall Conference in Indian Wells, CA. 
 

Human Resources  
• Held interviews for the Environmental Services Manager position. 
• Began onboarding process for new Lake Piru Ranger Cadet Michael Groeneveld. 
• Continued enrollment for Health Equity Flexible Spending Account. 
• Provided health contribution spreadsheet numbers to Finance. 
• Processed exit documents for several part-time staff that submitted resignations.  For also, 

one full-time staff member. 
• Distributed total compensation sheets for all full-time employees. 
• Continued work on the salary survey in preparation for negotiations. 
• Processed multiple annual evaluations for employees. 
• Commenced process for employee service awards to be awarded in January. 
• Completed conversion of 457 plan, routed all employee elections to Lincoln Financial 

Group. 
• Reposted Environmental Services Manager position. 
• Posted Environmental Scientist Regulatory Affairs position. 

 
Safety and Risk Management 

• Finalized District’s UAS Authorization and Operations Policy for Committee and Board 
Consideration in December. 

• Managed Security Project Gate Upgrade efforts with Security Systems Integrator in 
collaboration with IT and O&M staff which included communication and provided updated 
security capabilities to onsite staff and tenants. 



4.4  Monthly Administrative Services Department Report  
  Information Item 
 
 

 
 
 3 

• Researched and evaluated request from the Mountains Recreation and Conservation 
Authority (MRCA) to utilize Santa Felicia Dam for emergency response access to 
Hathaway Ranch in consult with Assistant GM, Chief Engineer, and Chief Park Ranger. 

• Completed CSDA Ethics and Sexual Harassment Prevention trainings in compliance with 
AB 1234, AB 1825, and AB 1661. 

• Provided safety supervision and periodic visits to Desilt Project in support of O&M 
Department. 

• Coordinated internal webinar participation of FERC-D2SI Security Branch Fall Webinar. 
• Finalized SFD Vulnerability Security Risk Assessment with Engineering staff with 

additional support from IT and O&M staff. 
• Coordinated enrollment of NFPA 70E (Electrical Safety for Qualified Workers) training 

for O&M Control Systems staff. 
 
Technology Systems   

• Assisted the Instrumentation staff with IT network and IT security components associated 
with the Genetec security system upgrades. Completed an installation of a new badge 
reader and replacement video feed viewing station at the Saticoy facility during this 
reporting period.  

• Routinely providing technology and A/V services during the events held in United's 
multipurpose Board Room. This month included two large hybrid webinars with AWAVC 
Breakfast and Learn, and Ventura County Farm Bureau Workshop.  

• Performed routine security checkups with executive and professional staff which included 
setting authentication requirements to require multiple factor options for remote accessible 
systems.  

• Technology Systems staff worked towards submission completion of United's remaining 
documentation and evidence requested from United's financial auditors, majority 
addressing supplemental requests or follow up questions from the audit team.  

• The Technology Systems staff and the Risk and Safety Manager assisted the Operations 
team with tech support during the replacement of the modern gas monitor system as part 
of United's Safety Program enhancements.  

• Began efforts with a contract vendor to enhance the audio and visual effects in the UWCD 
Board Room which will eventually relocate sound equipment and is anticipated to lead to 
improved video capability and hybrid options offered in the meeting space.  

o Monthly ticket overview summarized below:  
 

 
 



4.4  Monthly Administrative Services Department Report  
  Information Item 
 
 

 
 
 4 

 



 

 
 
 1 

Staff Report 
 
To: UWCD Board of Directors 
 
Through: Mauricio E. Guardado Jr., General Manager 
 
From: Maryam A. Bral, Chief Engineer 
 Craig A. Morgan, Engineering Manager 
 Robert J. Richardson, Senior Engineer 
 Michel Kadah, Engineer 
 Adrian Quiroz, Associate Engineer 
 Erik Zvirbulis, GIS Analyst 
 
Date: November 29, 2022 (December 14, 2022 meeting) 
 
Agenda Item:     4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report  
   Information item 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
The Board will receive and file this summary report from the Engineering Department regarding 
its activities for the month of November 2022. 
 
Discussion: 
1. Santa Felicia Dam Safety Improvement Projects 

• Spillway Improvement Project 
o On November 7, Staff submitted to the California Department of Water Resources, 

Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD) an Application for Dam Repair or Alteration to 
initiate the review process of the Spillway Improvement Project. An electronic payment 
of $75,382 was submitted to DSOD. This payment is 20% of the total application fee 
that was calculated based on the project estimated cost. The remaining application fee 
will be submitted to DSOD in two future payments along with future design packet 
submittals. 

o On November 9, Engineering, Water Resources, and Environmental Service 
Department staff met with GEI Consultants (GEI) and Catalyst Environmental 
Solutions (Catalyst) to discuss construction schedule and environmental constraints. 

o Staff prepared a PowerPoint presentation on the Santa Felicia Dam Safety 
Improvement Project (SFDSIP) for the Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
interagency meeting. 

o Staff coordinated with GEI and updated the proposed construction schedule to be as 
consistent as possible with the construction schedule that was confirmed to be 
acceptable to the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) by FERC via a letter 
correspondence date September 29, 2022 letter to the District. 



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 2 

o Based on the proposed construction schedule and the required level of reservoir 
elevation during construction of the new Outlet Work and the spillway improvements, 
Engineering and Water Resources staff updated the hydrological risk assessments and 
prepared a reservoir elevation probability analysis to be discussed at the November 15 
DWR interagency meeting (Please see the additional discussions in the Santa Felicia 
Dam Safety updates).  

o On November 15, Staff attended the interagency meeting with DWR and the Los 
Angeles Department Water and Power (LADWP) at the DWR Southern California 
Operations and Maintenance Center at Castaic (Castaic Office). During the meeting, 
the SFDSIP, project construction schedule and hydrological risk assessments were 
discussed.  

• Outlet Works Improvement Project 
o The above updates reported for the Spillway Improvement Project are also applicable 

to the Outlet Works Improvement Project.  
 

• FERC License Amendment Application, NEPA Documentation and Section 7 
Consultation 
o On November 10, Staff met with NMFS engineer, Mr. Steve Thomas to answer his 

questions related to the design of the fish screen for the new Outlet Works. This meeting 
was requested by Mr. Thomas who has recently got involved with the project and 
started reviewing the 30% design of the fish screens. Mr. Thomas acknowledged the 
receipt of the District’s response to NMFS pre-consultation comments dated January 
27, 2022. During this brief meeting, Staff informed Mr. Thomas that the District has 
completed the 30% design phase in 2021 and the 60% design phase in September 2022 
and started the 90% design of the outlet works in October 2022. Staff answered some 
of the questions related to the fish screen design and respectfully requested Mr. Thomas 
to provide his comments in writing to FERC for the District’s review and response. Mr. 
Thomas was informed that per NMFS request, correspondence between the District and 
NMFS should take place via FERC.  

o Staff has received FERC comments on the draft Biological Assessment (BA) report 
that was submitted to FERC on August 9. FERC forwarded a copy of the draft BA to 
NMFS for review and comment on August 15 but to date Staff has not received NMFS 
comments on the draft BA.   

o On October 24, Staff e-filed a response letter to the January 27, 2022 NMFS comment 
letter on the fish screen design with FERC.  The response letter was prepared on April 
18, 2022 but due to an administrative error it was not e-filed with FERC.   

o FERC has requested Staff to e-file the revised BA after receiving both FERC and 
NMFS comments on the draft BA. On November 14, 2022, via an email to FERC, Staff 
informed FERC that the District is planning to request a time extension to submit the 
revised BA to FERC.  The requested due date cannot be determined until NMFS 
comments are received.  



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 3 

• Loan and Grant Applications 
2021 FEMA HMGP 
o No update to report.  

 
Prepare CA Match – FEMA HMGP  
o No update to report.  

  
WIFIA Loan 
o Engineering and Finance departments meet with the EPA WIFIA loan administrator 

weekly for half an hour to discuss the loan process and advancement. On November 
16, Staff received a list of legal due diligence questions from the EPA WIFIA loan 
administrator. Both engineering, water resources and finance departments are working 
on the questions and expect to have it completed by early December. Prior to 
submission, the legal counsel will review Staff response to the legal due diligence 
questions. 

 
• Santa Felicia Dam Safety  

o On November 15, 2022, Staff participated in an interagency workshop with the DWR’s 
Southern Field Division and the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 
(LADWP) at DWR’s Castaic Office (See Figure 1). The purpose of the workshop was 
to discuss the Santa Felicia Dam Safety Improvement Project and ways that DWR and 
LADWP could support the district to reduce risk during construction of the project. It 
was acknowledged by the agencies that additional coordination meetings are needed 
between DWR, LADWP and United. This is expected to be the first of several 
workshops between these agencies. The next workshop is expected to take place in 
early February 2023. Following the workshop, DWR offered staff a tour of Pyramid 
Dam (See Figure 2).  

o The District is required to conduct an EAP Tabletop and an EAP Functional Exercise 
on a 5-year basis. The last tabletop exercise was conducted in 2018 while the last 
functional exercise was conducted in 2019. These exercises were due in 2023 and 2024 
respectively, however, as an Interim Risk Reduction Measure (IRRM), the District 
committed to conducting these exercises one year earlier to enhance emergency 
preparedness. The District has retained GF to support the planning and facilitating of 
these exercises per an agreement with GF that was executed on August 9, 2022. The 
tabletop exercise was completed on October 20, 2022. A draft after-action report will 
be submitted for District review on December 2, 2022. Staff and GF have begun 
planning for the 2023 SFD EAP Tabletop Exercise. The first planning meeting was 
conducted on November 3, 2022, On November 18, 2022, Staff e-filed the 90-day 
notification letter to FERC notifying them that the 2023 SFD EAP Functional Exercise 
will be held on February 23, 2023.  



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 4 

o Per the SFD Dam Safety Surveillance Monitoring Plan, the spillway underdrain system 
is to be inspected on a three-year basis. On November 15, 2022, Staff executed Task 
Order No.2 under the On-Call Services Agreement with HDR Engineering, Inc for 
services related to the 2022 SFD Spillway Underdrain Inspection. The video inspection 
was conducted on November 17 and 18, 2022 (See Figure 3). HDR will summarize 
their findings in an inspection report and submit the first draft to staff by December 07, 
2022.  

o Per FERC guidelines, the Santa Felicia Dam Owner’s Dam Safety Program is to receive 
an independent external audit on a 5-year basis. On May 09, 2022, staff executed a 
professional services agreement with Gannett Fleming (GF), Inc to conduct the audit. 
In September 2022, GF conducted interviews with dam safety personnel. On September 
26, 2022, GF conducted an inspection of the SFD and Lombard Headquarters facilities. 
GF summarized their findings in a draft report that was submitted to staff on October 
28, 2022. Staff are in the process of reviewing the report and will submit comments to 
GF no later than December 02, 2022. The final ODSP Audit report will be submitted 
to FERC by December 31, 2022.  

 
2. Condor Point Improvement Project 

• Construction of the picnic site improvements at Condor Point and at the Juan Fernandez 
Boat Launch Facility were completed on November 04, 2022 (See Figures 4 and 5). The 
improvements include six (6) new ramada shaded picnic sites at Condor Point and two (2) 
new metal shaded picnic sites at Juan Fernandez. An informational kiosk structure was also 
installed however, due to production delays the informational panels will be delivered in 
February 2023. In addition, new picnic tables have been ordered for the new sites but due 
to supply chain delays, these will not be delivered until May of 2023. A status update on 
the advancement of the project was e-filed with FERC on November 04, 2022. On 
November 09, 2022, FERC granted an extension of time through May 31, 2022, for the 
District to complete the installation of the new picnic tables and the informational panels.  

 
3. Freeman Diversion Expansion- 

• Staff, USBR, the University of Iowa, Stantec and NHC participate in rotating weekly calls 
with NMFS and CDFW to provide updates on physical modeling, CFD modeling and 
design alternations. 

• On October 31, staff shared electronic physical model reports from both USBR and the 
University of Iowa with NMFS and CDFW. This met the deadline set forth in the 
10/13/2021 order granting United Water Conservation District’s motion to modify the 
injunction. 

 
4. Iron and Manganese Treatment Facility 

• Meetings: 



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 5 

o Weekly coordination meetings between staff and the District’s construction manager 
(HDR, Inc.) 

o Weekly construction progress meetings hosted by HDR and attended by GSE 
Construction, Taft Electric, Kennedy Jenks Consultants (KJ) and staff.  

• GSE Construction has submitted approximately 326 out of a total of 359 submittal 
packages anticipated for the project. HDR and design engineer (KJ) have provided 
responses on approximately 308 submittal packages including a requirement to comply 
with the Buy American Act (BAA).  

• GSE Construction has submitted approximately 118 Requests for Information (RFIs) to 
date. HDR, KJ and the District have been providing responses. 

• Twenty (20) Change Orders (COs) have been fully executed to date amounting to a net 
total of $1,118,384.12. This represents 12% of the original contract amount 
($9,342,900.00). Four (4) of these COs amounting to $662,910.19 or 7.1% of the original 
contract amount are directly related to compliance with the BAA which is a federal grant 
requirement (the project was not originally bid with this requirement in place). Therefore, 
only $455,473.93 or 4.9% of COs have resulted in additions or modifications to the original 
scope of work.  

• Staff reviewed and provided comments on the final draft Operations, Maintenance and 
Monitoring Plan (OMMP) which is required by the State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB) Division of Drinking Water (DDW) prior to start-up and operation of the 
facility. The OMMP was finalized and submitted to DDW on November 10, 2022.  

• GSE Construction continued construction of the following (See Figures 6, 7 and 8): 
o 24” Raw Water Pipeline (RAW) 
o 24” Filtered Water (FW) Connection 
o 20” Backwash Supply Pipeline (BWS) 
o 18” connections to RAW 
o 12” RAW Flushing Pipelines  
o Backwash Supply Metering Vault 
o 8” Air Supply Pipeline 
o 8” Filter Drain (FD) Pipe 
o 8” Return Wash Water (RWW) 
o 8” Overflow (OF) 
o 4” Utility Water (UW) 
o 3” Chlorine Solution Lines, Double Contained 
o 2.5” Utility Water (UW) 
o Various underground sample lines 
o Various underground electrical conduits 
o Filter face piping 
o Filter vessel internals 
o Laboratory/Electrical/Blower Building 

i. Framing for drywall 



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 6 

ii. HVAC 
iii. Interior electrical 
iv. Special inspections (fire dept., mechanical/electrical/plumbing) 

• The tentative date for construction completion and implementation is January 26, 2023. A 
total of seven (7) inclement weather days have been counted.  

 
5. OH System Backup Generator at the El Rio Booster Plant 

• No update to report. The project was completed, and Staff are currently waiting on FEMA 
programmatic grant closeout. 

 
6. PTP Metering Improvement Project- 

• Total number of Meters installed: 40 of 61 or 65.5% complete.  
• An additional four (4) Meter installations are planned by the end of 2022.  
• Easement acquisition completion: 23 of 41 obtained or 56.1% complete  
• On October 25, staff met internally to discuss the progress of the easement acquisition 

which HJA is performing for the District. 
  
7. PTP Recycled Water Connection – Laguna Road Pipeline Project 

• On November 11, Staff received the final draft of the Preliminary Design Report and 
drawings along with Kennedy Jenks responses to Staff comments. Staff is currently in the 
process of reviewing the final drafts.  
 

8. Rice Avenue Grade Separation Project and Impact on PTP 
• In a correspondence letter dated July 6, 2022 to CalTrans District 7 Right of Way 

(CalTrans), the District pointed out that granting the two easements (a grant deed and a 
temporary construction easement for Parcels 81216-1 and 81216-2, respectively)  
requested by CalTrans at the PTP Well Site No. 4 will obstruct and potentially delay future 
well repairs and maintenance work unless the County of Ventura guarantees the transfer of 
parcel located on the southeast side of the well site to the District.  

• In response, CalTrans modified the Right of Way Contract – State Highway (agreement) 
by including the July 6, 2022 correspondence letter in the agreement and submitted it to 
the District for signature on August 15. Through this agreement, CalTrans has offered a 
sum of $6,300 for the two easements and stated that the temporary construction easement 
for a period of 45 months starting on November 17, 2023 will expire on July 16, 2027.   

• On October 17, the District received a Notice of Intent (NOI) from CalTrans related to 
acquisition of the two easements. Through this NOI CalTrans notified the District that the 
California Transportation Commission (Commission) will be asked by CalTrans on 
December 7 and December 8, 2022 to adopt a Resolution of Necessity (Resolution). If 
adopted, the Resolution authorizes CalTrans to acquire the District property by eminent 
domain. Within six months of the adoption of the Resolution, CalTrans will decide whether 
to file a complaint in Superior Court commencing the eminent domain proceedings. The 



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 7 

District is not planning to contest the NOI and this position is supported by the legal 
counsel.   

• On November 16, through a phone conversation with Staff, CalTrans expressed interest in 
reaching a mutual agreement with the District in lieu of a lawsuit. CalTrans encouraged the 
District to provide a counteroffer to CalTrans offer of a sum of $6,300 for the two 
easements.  CalTrans also informed Staff that the State is in the process of acquiring the 
land next to the PTP Well Site No. 4 but the process could take a long time. Staff restated 
the District’s need for more space at the well site and a guarantee that the parcel adjacent 
to the well site once purchased will be transferred to the District at the completion of the 
Project.   

• On November 21, via an email correspondence to CalTrans, Staff restated the District’s 
counteroffer which is the advanced approval of the County’s Board of Supervisors for the 
parcel transfer to the District pending the completion of the land purchase by the State and 
the Project.   
 

9. State Water Project (SWP) Interconnection Pipeline Project 
• On October 26, 2022, the City informed Staff via email that at the October 25 Ventura 

Water Commission meeting, the Commission directed the City Staff to proceed with 
modifying the interagency agreement to include three parties, the City, Calleguas 
Municipal Water District (CMWD) and United Water Conservation District (United). 
Casitas Water District (Casitas) could be added as a party to the agreement at a future date 
if Casitas decides to do so and the proposed contract terms are acceptable to the City and 
other project participants. This decision was reached because despite Casitas commitment 
to pay towards the project design, Casitas is not ready to commit to the terms of the 
interagency agreement.  

• The City of Ventura, CMWD, Casitas and United (joined the meeting virtually) met on 
October 28 to receive Stantec’s presentation on the hydraulic model results that have been 
reported in a technical memorandum titled: State Water Project Interconnection Pipeline 
and Blending Station Project Hydraulic Analysis, Draft Technical Memorandum 04. The 
key assumptions, baseline criteria and findings of the hydraulic analysis include the 
following:  

• Bidirectional flow delivery between the City and Calleguas.  
• An interconnection pipeline of approximately 7 miles, with turn outs for future 

connections for United use. The City leads the design of approximately 4 miles (or five 
segments) pipeline and facilities and Calleguas will lead the design of approximately 3 
miles (or one segment) of the 7 miles pipeline.   

• Interconnection pipeline will be constructed using both open and trenchless technologies.  
• 13 cubic feet per second (cfs) flow delivery from the City to Calleguas by gravity  
• 14.7 cfs flow from Calleguas to the City by gravity.  
• 24-inch HDPE DR 7 or 28-inch HDPE DR 7 or DR 7.3 pipes for the SCR undercrossing 

using trenchless horizontal directional drilling technology and 30-inch steel pipes for all 



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 8 

other pipeline segments. Jack and bore construction will be used at key intersections. 
Micro tunneling is not a viable method due to the length of the SCR undercrossing.  

• Alternative scenarios include upsizing the HDPE pipeline to 28-inch and steel pipe to 36-
inch. 

Note - that Casitas continues to participate in project meetings even though it is not 
formally a party of the interagency agreement. 

• The City is modifying the interagency agreement with three participating parties and once 
completed, it will be submitted to Calleguas and United for review and approval 

• The City also reported that the oral arguments hearing for the California Water Impact 
Network (CWIN) vs City of Buenaventura case has been rescheduled to December 14, 
2022.  
 

10. Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment Project 
• Meetings: 

o November 1, 2022 
▪ 1st interview (formal) with Environmental Science Associates (ESA) for 

CEQA/Permits services 
o November 8, 2022 

▪ 1st interview (formal) with Rincon Consultants for CEQA/Permits services 
▪ Scoping meeting with Kennedy/Jenks Consultants for design services 

o November 14, 2022 – Interview (formal) with Catalyst Environmental Solutions for 
CEQA/Permits services 

o November 16, 2022 – 2nd interview (informal) with Rincon Consultants for 
CEQA/Permits services 

o November 17, 2022 
▪ 2nd interview (informal) with ESA for CEQA/Permits services 
▪ Staff held a CEQA/Permits consultant selection meeting 

• Grants: 
o Phase 1 Extraction Barrier Project - Prop 1 Round 3 Ground Water Grant Program 

(GWGP) – State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) – preliminary award 
announcements anticipated in Fall 2022. 

o Monitoring Wells - Sustainable Groundwater Management (SGM) Grant Program – no 
updates to report 

• CEQA/NEPA: 
o Selected ESA and UWCD entered negotiations to provide environmental consultant 

services for California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) documentation, processing, and regulatory 
permitting. A separate staff report (motion item) provides background and discussion 
of the procurement process. 

• Design: 



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 9 

o Selected Kennedy/Jenks for design services and entered negotiation. A separate staff 
report (motion item) provides background and discussion of the procurement process. 

 
11. Asset Management/ CMMS System 

• Staff continues to work on tables and graphs for the end of year reporting from the Santa 
Felicia Dam monthly inspection reporting Survey123 app data exports. 

• Cd Beach Community Services District 
12. Main Supply Line Sodium Hypochlorite Injection Facility- 

• No updates to report.  
 

13. Lake Piru Recreation Area – 2022 Pavement Maintenance Program 
• Staff received a proposal in the amount of $246,798.41 from Horizons Construction Co. 

Int'l, Inc. (Horizons) to perform the 2022 asphalt pavement repair.  The project will include 
repair of approximately 34,600 square feet of the existing damaged asphalt concrete 
pavement for Olive Grove Campground adjacent roads. It also includes the pavement repair 
of approximately 18,500 square feet to the area between the park ranger’s office and the 
Marina parking lot in the Lake Piru Recreation Area. The work is anticipated to start after 
the Thanksgiving holidays and expected to be completed in approximately 3-4 weeks. 

   
14. Other Topics, Meetings and Training 

• November 2 – Craig Morgan, Michel Kadah, and Adrian Quiroz attended FERC, D2SI 
Security Branch Fall Webinar Annual Security Compliance Certification (ASCC) 
Requirements and Security Inspection Findings. 

• November 14-18 – Robert Richardson, Craig Morgan and Dr. Bral observed construction 
progress of a jack and bore operation under the District’s 42” OH Pipeline at Rose Avenue 
and La Puerta Avenue as part of the Del Sol High School project.  

• November 15 – Staff from Engineering, Environmental Services and Water Resources 
departments received a tour of Pyramid Dam from the DWR Southern Field Division.   

• November 16 – Dr. Bral and Robert Richardson met with Third Pillar Solar and Pleasant 
Valley County Water District staff at the Pleasant Valley Terminal Reservoir to discuss a 
potential floating solar power cover project.  

• November 17 – Robert Richardson virtually attended the California Coastal Commission 
meeting to observe California American Water Co.’s appeal regarding the decision to deny 
a permit for construction and operation of a well field, pipelines, and associated 
infrastructure at CEMEX sand mining facility to be used to provide source water for a 
desalination facility located in the coastal zone in Monterey County. The Appeal and 
Coastal Development Permit application was approved. 

• November 17 – Dr. Bral and Craig Morgan attended the AWA Waterwise water 
information series and received a briefing from Anthony Goff, GM from Calleguas, 
Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., GM UWCD and Mike Flood, GM, Casitas. 

 



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 10 

 

 
Figure 1 – Staff participating at workshop with DWR on November 15, 2022 

 

 
Figure 2 – Staff at tour of Pyramid Dam on November 15, 2022 

 



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 11 

 
Figure 3 – Santa Felicia Dam Spillway Underdrain Inspection 

 

 
Figure 4 – New ADA Accessible Picnic Site at Condor Point 

 



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 12 

 
Figure 5 – New Metal Shaded Picnic Sites at Juan Fernandez 

 

 
Figure 6 – Filter Face Piping Construction on November 17, 2022 

 



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 13 

 
Figure 7 – RAW Pipeline Tie-In to Well 12 and 13 Manifold 

 

 
Figure 8 – New Fe/Mn Treatment Plant Site on November 17, 2022 

 



4.5 Monthly Engineering Department Report 
 Information Item 
 

 
 
 14 

 
Figure 9 – Rose Avenue and La Puerta Jack & Bore Crossing under 42” OH Pipeline 

 

 
Figure 10 – Jack & Bore Machine in Pit on La Puerta Avenue 

 



 

 

 
 

Staff Report 
 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 
 
Through: Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
 Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 
 
cc: Dr. Maryam Bral, Chief Engineer 
 
From: Linda Purpus, Environmental Services Manager 
 
Date: November 30, 2022 (December 14, 2022 meeting) 
 
Agenda Item: 4.6 Monthly Environmental Services Department Report  
  Information Item 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
The Board will receive and file this staff report from the Environmental Services Department regarding 
its activities for the month of November 2022.  
 
Discussion: 
1. Santa Felicia Project Operations and Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) License 

Support 
 
• Water Release Plan and Water Release and Ramping Rate Implementation Plan 

 
Under the Water Release Plan and FERC license for the Santa Felicia Project, United Water 
Conservation District (United) is required to make certain water releases from the Santa Felicia 
Dam for steelhead habitat and migration, when specific triggers are met. Triggers for habitat 
water releases are based on cumulative rainfall within the water year. United evaluates whether 
the trigger is met on the first day of each month, between January and June. Each month that the 
trigger is not met, the minimum required habitat water release is seven (7) cubic feet per second 
(cfs). The trigger for enhanced habitat water releases was not met on June 1, therefore, the 
minimum required habitat water release will remain at 7 cfs for the rest of the calendar year.  
 

• Dissolved Oxygen Monitoring Plan 
 
On November 15, 2022, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) issued a letter 
approving the 2022 Dissolved Oxygen Monitoring Report for the Santa Felicia Project. The 
annual report detailed the results of monitoring activities conducted during the 2021 calendar 
year, consultation meetings held between United and SWRCB staff, and proposed improvement 
measures intended to provide supplemental dissolved oxygen to water releases conducted 
through the hydropower turbine units at the Santa Felicia outlet works. Environmental Services 
staff  is  and  has  been coordinating  efforts  with  Engineering  and  O&M  staff  to  implement  



 
4.6 Monthly Environmental Services Department Report  
 Information Item 
 

 

 
 
2 

measures proposed in the 2022 annual report. The next annual Dissolved Oxygen Monitoring 
Report will summarize the results of the improvement measures and will be submitted to SWRCB 
by March 31, 2023. 
 

• Santa Felicia Fish Passage Pre-Implementation Studies 
 
During the month of November, fall field sampling was conducted in accordance the Santa 
Felicia Fish Passage Pre-Implementation Study Plan. Crews from Cramer Fish Sciences, with 
support from District staff and a volunteer from the California Conservation Corps, conducted 
sampling for O. mykiss with backpack electrofishers in middle Piru and Agua Blanca Creeks 
from November 7-11, November 14-18, and on November 28 and 30, 2022. Logistical 
adjustments were iteratively implemented to accommodate for inclement weather (rain and wind) 
during these periods; however, all project goals were met. As of November 27, 2022, a total of 
630 O. mykiss were implanted with Passive Integrated Transponder (PIT) tags, and 12 sites were 
sampled with multiple pass depletion electrofishing techniques during this fall season effort. Fish 
traps (fyke and rotary screw traps) were installed in preparation for operation during the 
December release of United’s State Water Project (SWP) Table A water from Pyramid Dam and 
will remain deployed throughout the 2022-23 winter season (dependent upon flow conditions). 
The final field sampling event associated with this project is planned for spring of 2023. 
 

• California Department of Water Resources (DWR) and Los Angeles Department of Water and 
Power (LADWP) FERC License (No. 2426) – South State Water Hydropower Project (Pyramid 
Lake) 

 
Staff has continued to coordinate and meet with stakeholders in regard to the Clean Water Act 
Section 401 water quality certification for the South State Water Project (SSWP) FERC 
relicensing and the District’s pursuit to increase importation of SWP deliveries. Stakeholders 
include DWR, LADWP, SWRCB, National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service (USFWS), U.S. Forest Service (USFS), California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife (CDFW), and American Whitewater. Meetings were conducted on November 2, 7, and 
16, 2022, and have focused on resolving DWR and United’s amendment request before the 
SWRCB as well as informing development of an evaluation under the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) to support a future amendment to the SSWP FERC license.  

 
• United Water Conservation District v. FERC, Court Case in Abeyance  

 
On September 29, 2010, the U.S. Court of Appeals granted the District a motion to hold the court 
case “United Water Conservation District v. FERC” in abeyance and directed the District to file 
status reports every 60-days. United filed the court case to challenge the biological opinion issued 
by National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) on FERC’s issuance of a license for the Santa 
Felicia Project. On November 11, 2022, the seventy-third status update was filed with the U.S. 
Court of Appeals for District of Columbia Circuit. 

 
 

 



 
4.6 Monthly Environmental Services Department Report  
 Information Item 
 

 

 
 
3 

2. Freeman Diversion Sediment Management 
 

On November 22, 2022, United successfully completed the “streamlined” sediment management 
work at the Freeman Diversion, which included extending the channel excavated in September 2022 
an additional 100 feet upstream. On November 7, 2022, United received an executed amendment 
from CDFW to the Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement, authorizing United to complete the 
channel extension for Freeman Sediment Management activities. On November 18, 2022, United 
received an Erosivity Waiver under the Construction General Permit from SWRCB, in accordance 
with the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES), authorizing the work. 
Environmental Services staff conducted supplemental project site surveys on November 9 and 18, 
2022, and provided an on-site biological monitor during excavation activities on November 21 and 
22, 2022. Environmental Services staff will prepare post-project reports in accordance with the 
project’s permits and authorizations and oversee implementation of compensatory mitigation 
measures for the project. 
 

3. Extraction Barrier and Brackish (EBB) Water Treatment Project 
 
On August 8, 2022, staff released a Request for Qualifications and Proposals (RFQ/P) for conducting 
environmental assessments consistent with California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), and providing associated environmental permitting consultant 
services to support the EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase. On September 15, 2022, 
United received five proposals. An interview panel consisting of Environmental Services, Water 
Resources, and Engineering staff interviewed the top three qualified firms during the month of 
November. Subsequent meetings were held with the top two firms. After staff deliberation, 
Environmental Science Associates (ESA) was selected as the most qualified firm to provide 
environmental consultant services for the EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase. 
Staff’s recommendation for consultant selection has been provided to the General Manager and will 
be presented to the Board of Directors in the form or a motion recommending the Board of Directors 
consider authorizing the General Manager to execute a contract with ESA in the amount of $908,256 
for the project. 

 
4. Quagga Mussel Management  
 

Staff continues to conduct routine monitoring under the Quagga Mussel Monitoring and Control Plan 
(QMMCP) including monthly water quality sampling, monthly veliger (microscopic planktonic 
larvae) sampling, monthly artificial substrate sampling in Lake Piru (plate sampling), and natural 
substrate sampling in lower Piru Creek (surface surveys).  

 
5. Miscellaneous 
 

• On November 15, 2022, Tessa Lenz and Randall McInvale accompanied Engineering and O&M 
staff to a workshop with DWR and LADWP in Castaic to discuss the Lake Piru Emergency 
Action Plan and Santa Felicia Dam Safety Improvement Project (SFDSIP). United seeks support 
from DWR and LADWP to reduce interim risk during construction of the SFDSIP. Following 
the workshop, staff was provided a tour of the Pyramid Dam facilities.  



 
4.6 Monthly Environmental Services Department Report  
 Information Item 
 

 

 
 
4 

• On October 26, 2022, Evan Lashly attended a meeting of the Watershed Wide Arundo 
Management group. The meeting was organized by Stillwater Sciences, the Santa Clara River 
Conservancy, and the University of California Santa Barbara who are collaborating with agencies 
and stakeholders on the development of a watershed wide Arundo management plan.  
 



 

 
 

 
Staff Report 

          
To: UWCD Board of Directors 
 
Through: Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
  
From: Josh Perez, Chief Human Resources Officer 

Tony Huynh, Risk and Safety Manager 
  
Date: November 30, 2022 (December 14, 2022, meeting) 
 
Agenda Item:     5.1 Resolution 2022-38 Adoption of Unmanned Aircraft System –  
  Authorization and Operations Policy 
    Motion   
 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
The Board will consider approving Resolution 2022-38, officially adopting an Unmanned 
Aircraft System (UAS) (drone) authorization and operations policy.  
 
Discussion: 
Based on industry best practices and the increased utilization of UAS, staff is recommending the 
formal adoption by the Board of Directors of a UAS – Authorization and Operations Policy. The 
applications of UAS, also known as drones, have expanded significantly over the past several 
years. From capturing footage for public outreach to inspections and public safety, the 
anticipated use of UAS will continue to rise. This extends to requests by third party productions 
who film at Lake Piru. While the benefits are great, there are also risks if remote pilots are not 
properly trained or fail to meet the necessary risk mitigation requirements. This policy sets forth 
the standards for all UAS remote pilots to fly safely with respect to all applicable federal, state, 
and local laws, especially in light of the proximity to nearby airports and potential naval flight 
operations. 
 
Based on a review of industry best practices, discussions with both SDRMA and legal counsel, 
and General Manager input, staff is requesting the Board to discuss and adopt the attached 
formal Unmanned Aircraft System – Authorization and Operations Policy covering District 
employees and authorized third parties at District facilities. This document will be reviewed 
annually with changes incorporated as necessary to ensure we maintain current standards of UAS 
regulations. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
Other than ensuring licensed pilots and facility managers understand the requirements set forth in 
this policy, there is no known direct fiscal impact associated with the adoption of this policy.  
 



Agenda Item:  5.1 Resolution 2022-38 Adoption of Unmanned Aircraft System – 
Authorization and Operations Policy 

   Motion   
 
 

 
 
 2 

 
Attachments:  

  A –  Resolution 2022-38 Adoption of Unmanned Aircraft System – Authorization and   
       Operations Policy 
  B – Adoption of Unmanned Aircraft System – Authorization and Operations Policy 
  C – Authorized Third Party Request to Operate Unmanned Aircraft System Form 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 2022-38 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT (DISTRICT)  

ADOPTING A USE OF UNMANNED AIRCRAFT SYSTEM AUTHORIZATION 
AND OPERATIONS POLICY 

 
 WHEREAS, United Water Conservation District has assigned an Unmanned Aircraft 
System (UAS) to employees, contractors, interns, or volunteers; or received a request from 
authorized third parties on the use of an UAS at District facilities; and  
 

WHEREAS, United Water Conservation District (“District”) is committed to ensuring that 
staff members are properly trained and have a detailed and thorough understanding and clear 
understanding of the organization’s UAS – Authorization and Operations policies; and 

 
WHEREAS this policy has been reviewed by staff as well as the Board of Directors as a 

best-in-class practice by local, state, and federal government partners, United Water Conservation 
has an obligation to formalize a specific UAS – Authorization and Operations Policy to 
appropriately direct employees and authorized third parties on the safe operation of UAS as well 
as to ensure appropriate risk mitigation efforts and best practices are followed. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE UNITED 
WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  

1) That the attached United Water Conservation District Unmanned Aircraft System – 
Authorization and Operations be adopted for all identified parties as noted above. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 14th DAY OF DECEMBER 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:_____________________________________ 

     Bruce E. Dandy, Board President 
 
 
 
ATTEST:_____________________________________ 

    Lynn E. Maulhardt, Board Secretary/Treasurer 



 

 

 
  

      

      

United Water Conservation District 
 
December 14, 2022   

Unmanned Aircraft System –  Authorization and Operations Policy 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
1. Policy Purpose ...................................................................................................... 2 

2. Scope and Application .......................................................................................... 2 

3. Definitions: ............................................................................................................ 2 

4. Procedure for Use of UAS by District Employees ................................................. 3 

5. Use by Authorized Third Parties ........................................................................... 3 

6. Coordination with Air Traffic Control ..................................................................... 4 

7. Authorized Third Party Request to Operate UAS Form ........................................ 4 

8. Privacy .................................................................................................................. 4 

9. District UAS Procurement and Registration .......................................................... 4 

10. Damage and/or Injury ........................................................................................... 4 

11. Insurance .............................................................................................................. 5 

12. Hold Harmless ...................................................................................................... 5 

13. Violations .............................................................................................................. 5 

 
  



 

 

1. Policy Purpose  

The United Water Conservation District (“District”) recognizes that Unmanned Aircraft Systems (“UAS”) 
offer opportunities, including but not limited to operational, facility survey, research, and commercial.  
Operation of an UAS is regulated by the United States Federal Aviation Administration (“FAA”) and by 
federal, state, local laws and/or regulations, and District procedures.  This policy is meant to define the 
restrictions and parameters for operating an UAS, commonly known as a “drone”, on or above District 
property and/or in connection with District activities, including but not limited to operational and/or 
commercial uses.  It is the intent of the District to allow UAS flight on District property for educational, 
operational, facility survey and limited commercial purposes while ensuring compliance with legal 
obligations and minimizing risks to safety, security, and privacy.  

2. Scope and Application  
 
This policy and the procedures set forth herein shall apply to all District employees and/or staff and 
authorized third parties as defined herein, that seek to operate an UAS on or above any District property.  
Operation of an UAS by an individual(s), entity(ies), and/or organization(s) not specified in this policy is 
expressly prohibited.  As specified herein, authorized third parties must receive written approval in advance 
of operating an UAS on or above District property.  

3. Definitions: 

District Property:  Any land, grounds, buildings, or facilities owned, leased, or controlled and/or used by 
the District per formal contractual or legal agreements.  

Unmanned Aircraft System (“UAS”):  Any remotely operated or controlled aircraft intended to fly within 
the National Airspace System.  Includes devices commonly referred to as drones and all of the associate 
support equipment, control station, data links, telemetry, communications and navigation equipment 
necessary to operate the unmanned aircraft.  FAA regulations apply to all types of UAS regardless of size 
or weight.  All UAS, excluding model aircrafts (as defined below), must be registered with the FAA and 
marked with a registration number prior to any flight operation.  

Small UAS (“sUAS”):  A UAS weighing less than 55 pounds, including everything that is onboard or 
otherwise attached to the aircraft, and can be flown without the possibility of direct human intervention from 
within or on the aircraft.  sUAS operated for non-hobby or non-recreational purposes are subject to FAA’s 
Small UAS Rule, Part 107. (14 C.F.R. Section 107).  

Model Aircraft:  Model aircrafts are considered differently by the FAA than other UAS and are subject to 
different regulations.  A model aircraft must be: (1) flown for hobby or recreational purposes; (2) capable of 
sustained flight in the atmosphere; and (3) flown within the visual line of sight of the aircraft operator.  It 
must not exceed a weight of 55 pounds.  Model aircrafts may be operated in one of two ways: (1) according 
to the FAA’s Special Rule for Model Aircrafts; or (2) according to the FAA’s sUAS Rule at Part 107.  Model 
aircrafts are expressly prohibited on District property.  

Certificate of Authorization (“COA”):  A certificate granted to an individual or entity by the FAA which 
outlines specific conditions for flight. The FAA may insert provisions during the approval process to ensure 
the UAS can be operated safety. A Public Use COA is granted to a public agency or organization to operate 
a specific aircraft for a specific purpose in a specific location. A Public Use COA is only issued after the 
process of determining public status, government use, and an operational and technical review. 

Certificate of Waiver (“CoW”):  The FAA allows an UAS operation to deviate from certain provisions of 
Part 107 if the FAA finds that the proposed operation can be safely conducted under the terms of that CoW. 
(14 C.F.R. § 107.205.)  



 

 

Reasonable Expectation of Privacy:  Locations where there is an objective expectation of privacy. 
Examples include but are not limited to restrooms and/or privately owned adjacent property.  
 
Remote Identification Rule:  Requires UAS to broadcast pertinent identification, location, and 
performance information of the UAS and control station.  The Remote Identification Rule may be satisfied 
by any of the following: the UAS broadcasting the signal itself, attaching a broadcast module to the UAS 
while in flight, or operating in an FAA-recognized identification area without broadcasting equipment and 
within visual line of sight.  The District may apply for an FAA-recognized identification area at its discretion.  

4. Procedure for Use of UAS by District Employees 
 
All District employees must obtain any required or necessary City permits, a FAA-approved COA, CoW, 
and/or comply with Title 14, Part 107 of the Code of Federal Regulations, in order to operate an UAS on or 
above District Property in the course of their employment.  Use of an UAS by a District employee on or 
above District Property is limited to those activities, obligations, and/or responsibilities that fall within the 
scope of their employment and during business hours.  Assuming District employee meets the requirements 
set forth herein to operate a UAS and has provided any and all required documentation specified herein to 
RiskManagement@unitedwater.org, no prior approval to operate a District-owned UAS during business 
hours is necessary.  District employees are prohibited from utilizing personally owned UAS on or above 
District Property.  A District employee may only utilize a District-owned and registered UAS on or above 
District Property.  District employee use of a District-owned UAS for personal purposes is expressly 
prohibited.  All data, files, images, photography, film, and/or information obtained and/or gathered on a 
District-owned UAS shall remain the property of the District.  
 
In the event that the use of a District-owned UAS by a District employee for purposes falling within the 
District employee’s scope of employment is required and/or necessary after business hours, said District 
employee shall notify the Risk & Safety Manager of the reasons for such after-hours use within 24 hours of 
such operation.   
 
If District employee uses a District-owned UAS during District sponsored event, the Risk & Safety Manager 
shall in advance notify all persons in attendance that an UAS may fly over them.  Notice may be provided 
in writing by posting the notice at the entry point of the event.  

5. Use by Authorized Third Parties  
 
Any authorized third party, defined herein as contractors hired by the District and limited commercial users 
(i.e., commercial filming, commercial photography, and/or commercial surveying), wishing to operate a UAS 
on or above District property must first complete and submit a Request to Operate UAS Form for approval 
through the District’s Risk & Safety Manager, who will consult and obtain approval from the District 
Department Head who is the responsible party managing the authorized third party. Authorized third parties 
are required to adhere to the requirements set forth in this policy as well as those set forth in the Authorized 
Third Party Request to Operate UAS Form.  All authorized third-parties must provide proof of any required 
or necessary City permits, a FAA approved COA, CoW, and/or compliance with Title 14, Part 107 of the 
Code of Federal Regulations at the time of submitting the Authorized Third Party Request to Operate UAS 
Form.  In addition, as specified herein, operation of an UAS on or above District property must be under a 
contract which holds the District harmless from any resulting claims or harm to individuals and damage to 
District property and provides insurance.   
  



 

 

6. Coordination with Air Traffic Control 
 
Portions of District property fall within 5 miles of an airport.  UAS operation of any size within 5 miles of an 
airport must be coordinated with air traffic control (ATC) and authorized operators are required to obtain a 
COA if required by the FAA for operation of an UAS within such space.  Any and all authorized operators 
of an UAS under the District’s policy (including District employees) must comply with all updated UAS 
Facility Maps and/or Grids, as well as any and all altitude limitations set forth in a COA.  UAS operation of 
any size within 2 miles of a heliport must be coordinated with heliport management.  ATC, heliport 
management and the District have the right to deny UAS operations within these zones. 

7. Authorized Third Party Request to Operate UAS Form  
 
All authorized third parties as defined herein, wishing to operate an UAS on or above District property must 
obtain prior written consent from the District’s Risk & Safety Manager and/or their designee by submitting 
an Authorized Third Party Request to Operate UAS Form to the District’s Risk Management Department at 
least 10 days before the flight. District’s Risk & Safety Manager will coordinate and ensure approval from 
the District Department Head managing the authorized third party operator prior to approval of the 
Authorized Third Party Request to Operate UAS Form.  If approved, a copy of the approved Flight 
Authorization Form must be in possession of the UAS operator at all times during flight activity.   

8. Privacy 

In operating UAS for purposes of recording or transmitting visual images or videography, all operators must 
take all reasonable measures to avoid areas normally considered private.  California state law provides that 
a person who knowingly or intentionally places a camera or electronic surveillance equipment that records 
images or data of any kind while unattended on the private property of another person without the consent 
of the owner or tenant of the private property is guilty of a misdemeanor.  No sound is to be monitored or 
recorded at any time by UAS.  

9. District UAS Procurement and Registration  

To ensure compliance with District policies and federal regulations, any District employee and/or District 
department wishing to purchase an UAS with District funds must first obtain prior authorization and approval 
from their Department head, followed by the District’s Risk & Safety Manager and/or their designee.  The 
physical maintenance, storage, and preparation of an UAS owned and operated by the District or its 
employees shall be in accordance with District practice and policy.  All District UAS must be registered with 
the FAA.  Documentation of District owned and/or purchased UAS must be provided to the District’s Risk 
Management Department specifying the make, model, and serial number, in order for it to be added to the 
District’s insurance coverage.     

10. Damage and/or Injury 

The Risk & Safety Manager and/or their designee should be immediately notified in the event of damage 
and/or injury during a UAS operation.  Additionally, all authorized third party operators are solely responsible 
for fulfilling FAA accident reporting requirements, when applicable.   
  



 

 

11. Insurance  

Prior to operating an UAS on or above District property, all authorized third parties, including any individuals 
other than District employees operating UAS in their capacities as employees, must provide a Certificate 
of Insurance indicating that the coverage is primary and the District is named as additional insured.  At a 
minimum, third parties must provide proof of coverage including: comprehensive General Liability insurance 
which provides for injuries including accidental death, per any occurrence in an amount not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 annual aggregate; property damage insurance in an amount 
not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 

12. Hold Harmless  

Any authorized third party operating an UAS on or above District property must agree to indemnify, hold 
harmless, and defend the District, its directors, officers, agents, employees and representatives from all 
claims, lawsuits or actions of every name, kind and description, brought for, or on account of injuries to or 
death of any person, including user or any employee, agent or invitee of user, or damage to property 
including intangible property and to whomsoever belonging, where such injuries, death or damages arise 
from or are due to user’s/operator’s use of the District’s Property or premises, user’s/operator’s use of an 
UAS on or above District Property, and/or the Request to Operate an UAS form, provided that this indemnity 
obligation shall not apply to injuries for which the District has been found in a competent jurisdiction to be 
solely liable by reason of its own negligence. 

13. Violations 

Adherence to this overall policy is enforced by the District. and include all District facilities including Lake 
Piru Recreation Area.  Any violations of District policies by an individual and/or entity operating a UAS will 
be dealt with in accordance with District policies and regulations, which may include revocation of District 
flight approval and future use.  Legal prohibitions regarding trespassing and other legal action may also be 
pursued against third parties that operate a UAS in violation of the District’s policy.    

 



 

006299.0000537
341096.1 

 

AUTHORIZED THIRD PARTY REQUEST TO OPERATE UNMANNED AIRCRAFT SYSTEM FORM 

Any Authorized Third Party (i.e. United Water Conservation District hired contractor and/or Limited 
Commercial Users) must complete and submit this Authorized Third Party Request to Operate Unmanned 
Aircraft System (UAS) Form to United Water Conservation District’s (“District”) HR/Risk Management 
Department for review and approval prior to any UAS operation on District property.  This document must 
be completed and submitted not less than ten (10) days in advance of flight operations.  The requestor 
will receive a response within 5 business days of receipt of the request.  If the HR/Risk Management 
Department requires more time to process the request or requires more information, they will notify the 
requestor as soon as reasonably possible.  Prior to submission of this form, the requestor must review the 
District’s Unmanned Aircraft System – Authorization and Operations Policy. Any omission of 
information requested in this form may result in the delay of processing.   

SECTION 1: REQUESTOR CONTACT INFORMATION  

(Contact information must be included for all UAS operators.  Please attach additional sheet, if needed.) 

Applicant Full Name: First ______________________ M.I. _____ Last __________________ 

Age __________       Affiliation: __________________________________________________  
                                                      (Current employee, vendor, etc.)  

Organization/Authorized Third Party _______________________________________________ 

Mailing Address _______________________________________________________________ 

Contact Phone ____________________________ Email Address ________________________ 

SECTION 2: PURPOSE OF UAS REQUEST/PROPOSED ACTIVITY  

Provide full details of flight purpose (research, operational, commercial, etc.), including identity of UAS 
operator(s) and/or flight team.  Provide all forms of data to be collected, such as imagery, and the 
intended use of such data.  Depending on your intended use and activities associated with the use of 
your UAS, there may be other District approvals required before you can operate your UAS on District 
Property.  (Please provide information on an additional sheet of paper if more room is needed.)  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 



          Authorized Third Party Request to Operate Unmanned Aircraft System 
                 Page 2  

 
Specific Location of Flight ______________________________________________________ 

Date(s) of UAS Flight __________________________  

Start Time ___________________ End Time _________________________ 

Photos/Videos will be taken? ___ Yes ____No 

SECTION 3: EXPERIENCE OF OPERATORS 

Provide full details on each UAS operator’s flight experience.  Provide information regarding all UAS 
operators’ licenses and/or certificates.  All operators must present proof of a Remote Pilot Certificate,  
FAA approved Certificate of Waiver or Authorization and/or any required or necessary City permits.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

SECTION 4: UAS DESCRIPTION  

Type/Model of UAS ____________________________________________________________ 

Weight/Dimensions _____________________________________________________________ 

Power Source/Serial # ___________________________________________________________ 

Equipment Attached (e.g. cameras, Geo-fencing, etc.) __________________________________ 

Previous Request Approved  Yes ____ No ____ 

If Yes, Date of Previous Approval ______________________ 

FAA Registration No. (not applicable to model aircraft) ______________________________ 

FAA Authorization and Expiration Date (not applicable to model aircraft) 
_____________________________________ 
  



          Authorized Third Party Request to Operate Unmanned Aircraft System 
                 Page 3  

 
I have attached an FAA Certificate of Waiver or Authorization Remote Pilot Certificate, any required or 
necessary City permits, and/or other relevant documentation for this request.  

Signature ____________________________________________ Date _____________________ 

Printed Name _________________________________________ 

By signing above, the individual/entity submitting this request attests to prior review of the District’s 
Unmanned Aircraft System – Authorization and Operations Policy, and agrees to and will abide by all 
District policies governing the use of UAS on or over District property.  A copy of the approved Authorized 
Third Party Request to Operate Unmanned Aircraft System (UAS) Form must be in the possession of the 
operator(s) at all times during the activity, and must be presented to any District official or representative 
with control or jurisdiction over the activity, upon request. The District reserves the right to request 
additional documentation as a condition of approval and operation. In addition, any operator violating any 
portion of the District UAS Policy will be held accountable for their actions. 

SECTION 5: UAS/Drone Operating Requirements  

Unless an individual is able to show proof of FAA approval of an exception, all third parties operating an 
UAS on or above District property, including model aircrafts, must comply with the requirements set forth 
in Attachment 1 to this form, which is incorporated into this form by this reference.   

SECTION 6: INSURANCE  

All third parties (any individuals other than District employees operating UAS in their capacities as 
employees) must submit a Certificate of Insurance with insurance providing primary coverage and naming 
the District as an additional insured.  Third parties shall procure and maintain the following coverage for 
the duration of this UAS authorization: Comprehensive General Liability insurance which provides for 
injuries including accidental death, per any occurrence in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and $2,000,000 annual aggregate and Property Damage insurance in an amount not less 
than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 

SECTION 7: HOLD HARMLESS, AGREEMENT, AND UNDERSTANDING 

I agree to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend in accordance with Civil Code Section 2778, the District, 
its directors, officers, agents, employees and representatives from all claims, lawsuits or actions of every 
name, kind and description, brought for, or on account of injuries to or death of any person, including user 
or any employee, agent or invitee of user, or damage to property including intangible property and to 
whomsoever belonging, where such injuries, death, or damages arise from or are due to user’s/operator’s 
use of the District’s premises or property, user’s/operator’s use of an UAS on or above District property, 
and/or the Authorized Third Party Request to Operate an UAS form, provided that this indemnity 
obligation shall not apply to injuries for which the District has been found in a competent jurisdiction to be 
solely liable by reason of its own negligence. 

Signature ____________________________________________ Date _____________________ 

Printed Name _________________________________________ 
 

  



          Authorized Third Party Request to Operate Unmanned Aircraft System 
                 Page 4  

 
______  (Initial) I agree to hold United Water Conservation District harmless from any claims of 

harm to individuals or property resulting from the operation of an Unmanned Aircraft 
System (UAS) or drone.   

______  (Initial) I understand and agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the District’s 
policy, federal law and regulations, state law, and any local ordinances related to the use 
of a UAS or drone. 

______ (Initial) I understand that I shall maintain the visual line of sight with the UAS or drone at 
all times. 

______ (Initial) I understand that the UAS or drone shall be kept away from any area reasonably 
considered private, including, but not limited to, restrooms and individual homes. 

______  (Initial) I understand that the District reserves the right to rescind my authorization for the 
use of a UAS or drone at any time. 

 

Signature______________________________________________ Date ___________________ 

 

____  Attached copy of Certificate of Waiver/Authorization or Exemption from the Federal Aviation 
Administration 

____ Attached copy of Remote Pilot Certificate 

____ Attached copy of any applicable or necessary City permits 

___  Attached copy of Certificate of Liability Insurance 

SECTION 8: RISK AND SAFETY MANAGER APPROVAL  

Request Approved   Yes ____ No ____ 
 
Request Approved By Department Head Responsible for Managing Authorized Third Party: 
 
Yes ____ No ____ 

Request Approved By Facility Manager  Yes ____ No ____ 

District comments or requirements for operation are listed below and must be observed.  If not approved, 
a summary of the decision is outlined.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 



          Authorized Third Party Request to Operate Unmanned Aircraft System 
                 Page 5  

 
Attachment 1 

UAS/Drone Operating Requirements 

• UAS must be registered with the FAA (exception: UAS weighing less than .55 pounds) 

• Conduct a pre-flight inspection to ensure airworthiness. 

• Fly below 400 feet or as restricted by a COA and remain clear of surrounding obstacles.  

• Keep the UAS within the visual line-of-sight at all times.  

• Remain clear of other aircraft, especially low-flying helicopters, and do not interfere with manned 
aircraft operations.   

• UAS must comply with remote identification requirements.  

• Do not fly UAS near emergency response efforts, i.e., fires.  

• Operator must not fly UAS while under the influence.  

• Operators must be aware of airspace requirements, including no fly zones.  

• Notify the airport and air traffic control tower prior to flying within five miles of an airport.  

• Fly a UAS under 55 pounds.   

• Do not fly near emergency response efforts.   

• Do not fly UAS directly over unprotected persons.   

• Do not recklessly attempt to perform maneuvers that could result in injury or damage.   

• Fly in accordance with any applicable community-based safety guidelines.   

• Do not use UAS for the unapproved recording of individuals or for any unlawful purpose. 

• Do not operate where radio-controlled equipment is prohibited by law. 

• Do not operate over non-District property at any time. 

• Do not attach non-manufacturer approved items to UAS (i.e., string, flag, additional sensors) 

• Only persons with appropriate certification and District approval may fly the UAS.  

• UAS may only be flown during nighttime when the remote pilot in command has completed a 
current initial knowledge test or recurrent training for nighttime operation and the sUAS has 
lighted anti-collision lighting visible for at least 3 statute miles and has a flash rate sufficient to 
avoid collision.  All other UAS may only be flown during daytime hours.  

• UAS may not be flown within 100 feet of buildings.  

• UAS may not be flown within 150 feet of persons or animals.  



          Authorized Third Party Request to Operate Unmanned Aircraft System 
                 Page 6  

 
• UAS may not be flown in adverse weather conditions such as in high winds or reduced visibility.  

• UAS may not be flown in a manner which interferes with ground vehicles or traffic.  

• UAS may not be flown inside buildings.  

• UAS may not be used to monitor or record sensitive institutional or personal information.  

• UAS may not conduct surveillance or photograph persons in areas where there is an expectation 
of privacy without the individual’s permission.   

• UAS may not be used to monitor or record areas where there is a reasonable expectation of 
privacy in accordance with accepted social norms.  These include but are not limited to rest 
rooms and/or individual homes.  

 

 



To: 

Through: 

From: 

Date: 

Agenda Item: 

Staff Report 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 

Dr. Maryam Bral, Chief Engineer 
Robert Richardson, Senior Engineer 

November 22, 2022 (December 14, 2022 meeting) 

5.2 Contract Award to Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. for Design 
Services Related to the Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish 
Water Treatment Project (CIP 8019) 
Motion 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Board will consider approval of the motion item authorizing the General Manager to execute 
a professional consulting services agreement with Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc.  in the amount 
of $2,069,912 [$1,881,738 plus 10% contingency ($188,174)] to complete the design and bid 
documents for Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish (EBB) Water Treatment Project 
(CIP 8019). 

Background: 
Degraded water quality is present in approximately ten (10) square miles of the Upper Aquifer 
System (UAS) in the area between Port Hueneme and Point Mugu which is the result of recent and 
historic episodes of seawater intrusion. United Water Conservation District (District) is proposing 
construction of a groundwater extraction well field to intercept the intrusion of seawater near the 
Mugu submarine canyon. The District is proposing a two-phased project approach that includes 
implementation of a partial groundwater extraction well field to intercept the intrusion of seawater 
near the Mugu submarine canyon in the first phase (Phase 1) and expansion of the extraction 
barrier, brackish water treatment, distribution of product water for potable and non-potable uses 
and disposal of brine in the second or ultimate phase (Phase 2) within the District service area.  

In 2019, the District engaged with the United States (U.S.) Navy with the objective to develop the 
Extraction Barrier and Brackish (EBB) Water Treatment Project at Naval Base Ventura County 
(NBVC) Point Mugu which is adjacent to the Mugu submarine canyon. The U.S. Navy has 
expressed support for the project as it would promote water supply reliability, resiliency, and 
accessibility critical to supporting military missions at NBVC and help achieve long-term 
groundwater sustainability.  

In December 2021, the District completed its feasibility study based on groundwater modeling 
supported by the Proposition 1 Groundwater Grant Program (GWGP) Planning Grant from the 
State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and published the study results in a technical 



5.2 Contract Award to Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. for Design Services 
Related to the Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water 
Treatment Project (CIP 8019) 

                 Motion 
 

 
 
 2 

memorandum titled: Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment Project Feasibility Study: 
Groundwater Modeling in December 2021. Multiple meetings were held with a Technical 
Advisory Committee (TAC) consisting of pertinent regulators and stakeholders including the Fox 
Canyon Groundwater Management Agency (FCGMA), various divisions of SWRCB, including 
the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (LA RWQCB), and Division of Drinking 
Water (DDW), and the U.S. Navy.  The feasibility study demonstrated that an extraction barrier 
will effectively draw saline water in the Oxnard aquifer back towards the coast and will stabilize 
or draw back the inland extent of saline water in the Mugu aquifer, to varying degrees depending 
on the extraction rate ranging from 5,000 to 20,000 acre-feet per year (AFY). 
 
In July 2022, the District completed a subsequent feasibility study that evaluated the efficacy of 
an extraction barrier with an extraction rate of 3,500 AFY as a Phase 1 of the EBB Water Treatment 
Project. The Phase 1 project will test the concept of an extraction barrier at NBVC Point Mugu 
before investing significant resources in the construction of the Phase 2. The Phase 1 project, 
including seven (7) extraction wells, five (5) in the Oxnard aquifer and two in the Mugu aquifer, 
is designed for specific data gathering purposes related to water quality, aquifer properties and 
vertical flow under pumping conditions. An additional objective of the Phase 1 project is to 
demonstrate the even a small extraction barrier can prevent seawater intrusion in both the Oxnard 
and Mugu aquifers and remediate some of the impacts associated with historic seawater intrusion 
events in the vicinity of NBVC Point Mugu.  
 
On July 15, 2022, the District submitted a full proposal for the Prop 1 GWGP Round 3 
Implementation Grant to SWRCB with a requested grant amount of $8.45 million to partially cover 
an estimated total Phase 1 project cost of $18.57 million.  The grant application included letters of 
support from the U.S. Navy, FCGMA, Ventura County Farm Bureau and CoLAB Ventura County. 
Preliminary award announcements are anticipated in Fall 2022 with grant agreement execution in 
early 2023. Should the District be successful in its pursuit of Prop 1 GWGP Round 3 grant funding, 
all construction and implementation activities must be complete by March 31, 2026. 
 
Additionally, the District has secured $1,317,900 for the construction of up to 18 monitoring wells 
or six (6) monitoring well clusters and data collection within the vicinity of the EBB Water 
Treatment Project. This grant funding is provided by the Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
Sustainable Groundwater Management (SGM) Grant Program through a grant agreement that was 
executed between DWR and FCGMA which included a subgrant agreement between FCGMA and 
the District for design and installation of the monitoring wells. There is no local cost share 
requirement for the SGM grant. The data collected from the monitoring wells will be in support of 
the EBB Water Treatment Project and the construction and implementation activities must be 
complete by March 31, 2025.  
 
Discussion: 
The District has been in direct collaboration with the U.S. Navy on the selection of locations for 
monitoring wells, extraction wells, pipelines and potential points of discharge for the Phase 1 
project at NBVC Point Mugu. A total of ten (10) construction sites have been pre-screened and 
selected for the construction of up to eighteen (18) monitoring wells and seven (7) extraction wells. 



5.2 Contract Award to Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. for Design Services 
Related to the Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water 
Treatment Project (CIP 8019) 

                 Motion 
 

 
 
 3 

Additionally, the District and the U.S. Navy have identified three potential alternatives for 
discharge of pumped brackish groundwater including: 1) the Mugu Lagoon, 2) the Pacific Ocean 
and 3) the Calleguas Municipal Water District (CMWD) Salinity Management Pipeline (SMP) 
with multiple options for each alternative. These alternatives will be evaluated, and one alternative 
will be selected during the environmental documentation, permitting and design phase.   
 
On August 12, 2022, the District issued a Request for Qualifications/Proposals (RFQ/P) for design 
services related to the Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish (EBB) Water Treatment 
Project. The District issued the RFQ/P using the online procurement platform BidNet Direct which 
included notice to over five hundred and seventy (570) vendors within the California Purchasing 
Group. Thirty-three (33) prospective consultants and subconsultants downloaded the RFQ/P. 
Questions were received by multiple consultants and responses were issued via addendum. On 
September 22, 2022, two (2) proposals were received and only one (1) proposal was deemed 
complete (Kennedy/Jenks Consultants). 
 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants (KJ) proposal includes the following key services: site-specific 
analyses, including but not limited to discharge options evaluation, well site suitability assessment, 
well piping alignments, materials, sizing and constructability evaluation. The results of the site-
specific assessments will be the basis of a preliminary design report (PDR), 30% design drawings 
and cost estimate development. Based on the criteria established in the PDR, KJ will develop three 
design packages, including (1) extraction well drilling design package consisting of technical 
specifications for the drilling, development construction and testing of the seven extraction wells, 
(2) extraction well equipping design package consisting of piping, mechanical, electrical and 
controls and communication infrastructure for the proposed seven extraction wells and provisions 
for future extraction well equipping, and (3) pipeline and discharge facility design package 
consisting of pipeline component of the project and site work construction. KJ will develop the 
design packages in 30%, 60% and 90% and 100% phases and implement District comments in the 
design plans during the design plans development. KJ will provide bid phase services for all the 
above listed design packages.  Additionally, KJ will assist the District with coordination efforts 
with regulatory agencies during the design phase, provide technical support services to the CEQA/ 
permitting team throughout the design phase on an as-needed basis and work closely with the 
CEQA/permitting team to ensure that a permittable discharge option is selected.  
 
K/J’s recent work in California include the Groundwater Banking Program in the Antelope Valley-
Eastern Kern County area, deep injection well facilities for the Pure Water Monterey Groundwater 
Replenishment Project and various well design, construction, and maintenance services for local 
agencies such as Casitas Water District, CMWD and the City of Oxnard. Staff is recommending 
award of a professional consulting services agreement with K/J to prepare the complete design and 
bid documents for Phase 1 of the EBB Water Treatment Project. 
 
Mission Goal: 
Meets Mission-Related Goal B, System Reliability – Ensure that the District’s existing and 
planned water supply, conveyance, and recharge systems meet regional needs, including 
emergency response.  



5.2 Contract Award to Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. for Design Services 
Related to the Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water 
Treatment Project (CIP 8019) 

                 Motion 
 

 
 
 4 

 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
The total design services cost of $2,069,912 is included in the total design budget of $3,057,473 
for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 Capital Improvement Project (CIP) Budget (GL 
Account: 051-400-81020, PA Account: 8019-815). Sufficient funds in the amount of $841,700 are 
available to carry the work through FY 2022-23.  
 
Attachments: 
Attachment A – Professional Consulting Services Agreement 



2022.07.22 1 

AGREEMENT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on 
________________, 2022, by and between the United Water Conservation District, 
Ventura County, California, (hereinafter “UNITED”), and Kennedy/Jenks 
Consultants, Inc. (hereinafter “CONSULTANT”). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, UNITED desires to professional design consultation services in 
connection with the Phase 1 Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water 
Treatment Project (“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, UNITED has selected CONSULTANT to provide such services; 
and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT represents that it has the skills, experience, 
license, and expertise to perform these professional services for UNITED; and  

WHEREAS, UNITED is desirous of engaging the services of CONSULTANT 
to perform these services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, based on the terms and covenants set forth herein, 
UNITED and CONSULTANT mutually agree as follows: 

1. EMPLOYMENT

A. UNITED hereby employs CONSULTANT to perform and complete the
professional engineering services as set forth in Exhibit “A” (“Scope of Work/Schedule 
of Charges”). CONSULTANT shall perform such professional services as set forth in 
Exhibit “A” and shall furnish or procure the use of incidental services, equipment, 
and facilities reasonably necessary for the completion of services. 

B. Any extra work over and above that included in the Scope of Work
included in Exhibit “A” shall be in compliance with Section 3D. 

C. CONSULTANT represents that its services shall be performed, within
the limits prescribed by UNITED, in a manner consistent with the level of care and 
skill ordinarily exercised by other engineering professionals under similar 
circumstances at the time and in the vicinity its services are performed. 

D. Kyle Olewnik shall: (a) personally perform or supervise the
performance of services on a day-to-day basis on behalf of CONSULTANT; and (b) 



2022.07.22 2 

maintain direct communication with UNITED’s Senior Engineer, Robert 
Richardson or designee in the performance of CONSULTANT’s services. 

E. CONSULTANT in the performance of services hereunder shall fully 
comply with any and all local, state and federal laws, regulations, ordinances, and 
policies applicable to its work, including any licensing laws applicable to 
CONSULTANT’s profession and anti-discrimination laws pertaining to employment 
practices. 

F. In the event of any conflict between the terms and conditions set forth 
in Exhibit A (Scope of Work/Schedule of Charges) versus those terms and conditions 
set forth in this Agreement, the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement 
shall govern and the conflicting terms and conditions in Exhibit A shall not apply. 

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

Unless otherwise earlier terminated as specified in Section 8, this Agreement 
shall commence on the date set forth above and shall expire on March 31, 2026. 

3. COMPENSATION 

Payment by UNITED for the consulting services shall be considered as full 
compensation for all personnel, materials, supplies, and equipment used in carrying 
out the work. 

A. Compensation and payments to the CONSULTANT shall be as 
described below: 

1. UNITED shall compensate CONSULTANT on a time and 
expenses basis not to exceed two million sixty-nine thousand nine-hundred 
twelve dollars ($2,069,912) that includes 10% contingency in the amount of 
$188,174 to be authorized only upon written notification from UNITED for 
performing all services authorized and required by this Agreement and specified in 
Exhibit “A.”  UNITED shall compensate CONSULTANT only for actual costs 
incurred on a time and expenses basis, but in no event shall the total compensation 
be greater than the not to exceed amount above.  However, the total amount paid on 
a time and expenses basis may be lower than the not to exceed amount above based 
on actual costs incurred.  Payment shall be made in accordance with 
CONSULTANT’s Schedule of Charges submitted to UNITED, included in Exhibit “A” 
attached and incorporated by reference herein. 

2. CONSULTANT shall provide UNITED with monthly itemized 
invoices. Invoices shall include the categories and identities of CONSULTANT’s 
employees performing services, a description of the services, the number of hours 
spent performing services, the hourly rate for each employee, CONSULTANT’s actual 
costs and expenses, and the total amount of compensation requested by 



2022.07.22 3 

CONSULTANT for that month.  Upon UNITED’s request, CONSULTANT shall 
include with its monthly invoices a detailed verification, including accounting 
records, of the work actually performed and costs and expenses incurred, along with 
any other documents or information reasonably requested by UNITED. 

B. UNITED shall pay CONSULTANT within thirty (30) days after receipt 
of CONSULTANT’s invoices, with the exception of any disputed amounts which shall 
be withheld until resolution of the dispute.  If UNITED has reasonable grounds to 
believe that CONSULTANT will be unable to materially perform the services under 
this Agreement, or there exists or may exist a claim against CONSULTANT arising 
out of CONSULTANT’s negligence or intentional acts , errors, omissions, or material 
breach of any provision of this Agreement, then UNITED may withhold payment of 
any reasonable amount due to CONSULTANT which is directly related to such 
negligence, intentional act, error, omission or material breach.  No payment made 
under this Agreement shall be conclusive evidence of CONSULTANT’s performance 
of the Agreement, either wholly or in part, and no payment shall be construed to be 
an acceptance by UNITED of CONSULTANT’s work. 

C. CONSULTANT shall notify UNITED in writing of the need for 
additional services required due to the circumstances beyond the CONSULTANT’s 
control (“Additional Services”). The CONSULTANT shall obtain written 
authorization from UNITED before rendering any Additional Services.  
Compensation for all approved Additional Services shall be negotiated and approved 
in writing by UNITED before such Additional Services are performed by 
CONSULTANT. No compensation shall be paid to the CONSULTANT for any 
Additional Services that are not previously approved by UNITED in writing.  

D. Reimbursable expenses, if applicable, are in addition to compensation 
for services outlined in the Scope of Work and Additional Services, and shall be paid 
to the CONSULTANT in accordance with the guidelines specified on Exhibit “B”.  
Reimbursable expenses are paid at the actual costs, without mark-ups, incurred by 
the CONSULTANT and the CONSULTANT’s employees in conduct of Agreement 
activities.  

4. SCHEDULE OF WORK 

CONSULTANT shall complete and deliver services and deliverables to 
UNITED in a diligent and professional manner, in accordance with the Project 
schedule set forth in Exhibit “A” attached and incorporated by reference herein. Time 
is of the essence in CONSULTANT’s performance of services hereunder. 

CONSULTANT’s Project Manager shall keep UNITED’s Senior Engineer, 
Robert Richardson or designee informed as to the progress of work by informal 
reports.  Neither party shall hold the other responsible for damages or delay in 



2022.07.22 4 

performance caused by acts of God, strikes, lockouts, accidents, or other events 
beyond the reasonable control of the other or the other’s employees and agents. 

 

5. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT 

This Agreement is a professional services contract.  CONSULTANT shall not assign 
this Agreement or any portion of the work without the prior written approval of 
UNITED.  Any such assignment without UNITED’s prior written approval shall be 
void.  UNITED may withhold such approval for any reason in its sole discretion. 

6. INDEMNIFICATION  

 To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT agrees to indemnify 
and hold UNITED entirely harmless from all liability arising out of: 

1. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability. Any and all 
claims under Workers’ Compensation acts and other employee benefit acts with 
respect to CONSULTANT’s employees or CONSULTANT’s subconsultant’s 
employees arising out of CONSULTANT’s work under this Agreement; and 

2. General Liability. To the extent arising out of, pertaining to, or 
relating to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the CONSULTANT, 
the CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend and hold UNITED harmless from any 
liability for damages for (1) death or bodily injury to person; (2) injury to, loss or theft 
of property; (3) any failure or alleged failure to comply with any provision of law; or 
(4) any other loss, damage or expense arising under either (1), (2), or (3) above, 
sustained by the CONSULTANT or UNITED, or any person, firm or corporation 
employed by the CONSULTANT or UNITED upon or in connection with the Project, 
except for liability resulting from the sole or active negligence, or willful misconduct 
of UNITED, its officers, employees, agents, or independent consultants who are 
directly employed by UNITED.  The CONSULTANT, at its own expense, cost, and 
risk, shall defend any and all claims, actions, suits, or other proceedings (other than 
professional negligence covered by Section A3 below) that may be brought or 
instituted against UNITED, its officers, agents, or employees, to the extent such 
claims, actions, suits, or other proceedings arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the CONSULTANT, and shall pay 
or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against UNITED, its officers, agents, 
or employees, in any action, suit or other proceedings as a result thereof.  Any costs 
to defend under this Section A2 shall not exceed the CONSULTANT’s proportionate 
percentage of fault; and 

3. Professional Liability. To the extent arising out of, pertaining to, 
or relating to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the 
CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold UNITED harmless 



2022.07.22 5 

from any loss, injury to, death of persons, or damage to property caused by any act, 
neglect, default, or omission of the CONSULTANT, or any person, firm, or 
corporation employed by the CONSULTANT, either directly or by independent 
contract, including all damages due to loss or theft, sustained by any person, firm, or 
corporation, including UNITED, arising out of, or in any way connected with, the 
Project, including injury or damage either on or off UNITED property; but not for any 
loss, injury, death, or damages caused by sole or active negligence, or willful 
misconduct of UNITED.  With regard to the CONSULTANT’s obligation to indemnify 
for acts of professional negligence, such obligation does not include the obligation to 
provide defense counsel or to pay for the defense of actions or proceedings brought 
against UNITED, but rather to reimburse UNITED for attorneys’ fees and costs 
incurred by UNITED in defending such actions or proceedings brought against 
UNITED, and such fees and costs shall not exceed the CONSULTANT’s 
proportionate percentage of fault. 

7. INSURANCE 

A. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of this 
Agreement, and for injuries which occur and claims which are made after the services 
herein are provided, insurance policies in accordance with the requirements set forth 
in Exhibit “C” attached and incorporated by reference herein.  CONSULTANT shall 
also provide UNITED with a certificate of insurance attesting to its professional 
liability (errors and omissions) coverage and all required additional insured 
endorsements. 

B. Submission of insurance certificates or endorsements or other proof of 
insurance shall not relieve CONSULTANT from liability under the indemnification 
provisions of Section 6.  CONSULTANT’s obligations in accordance with Section 6 
shall apply whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to 
apply to any of such claims, damage, lawsuits, losses or liabilities covered by Section 
6. 

C. By its signature hereto, CONSULTANT certifies that it is aware of the 
provisions of California Labor Code Section 3700 which requires every employer to 
be insured against liability for workers compensation’ or to undertake self-insurance 
as specified. CONSULTANT shall comply with these provisions before commencing 
work under this Agreement. 

8. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

A. Termination for Cause 

1. UNITED may terminate CONSULTANT’s services for cause, 
whereupon this Agreement shall terminate immediately.  Termination may occur 
regardless of whether CONSULTANT’s services are completed.  Any termination or 
special instructions from UNITED shall be made in writing. 



2022.07.22 6 

2. Termination for cause may occur upon any of the following events: 
(a) CONSULTANT’s material breach of this Agreement; (b) abandonment or lack of 
diligence in performance of the work by CONSULTANT; (c) cessation, suspension, 
revocation or expiration of any license needed by CONSULTANT to provide services 
hereunder; (d) failure of CONSULTANT to substantially comply with any local, state 
or federal laws, regulations, ordinances or policies applicable to its work hereunder; 
(e) filing by or against CONSULTANT of bankruptcy or any petition under any law 
for relief of debtors; or (f) conviction of CONSULTANT or its principal representative 
or personnel for any crime other than minor traffic offenses. 

3. Subject to the provisions of Section 3.B herein, CONSULTANT 
shall be paid for all approved services performed and approved expenses incurred to 
the date of termination for cause supported by documentary evidence, including 
payroll records and expense reports, up to the date of the termination.  In the event 
of termination for cause, all damages and costs associated with the termination, 
including increased consultant and replacement consultant costs, shall be deducted 
from any payments due to CONSULTANT. 

4. In the event a termination for cause is determined to have been 
made wrongfully or without cause, then the termination shall be treated as a 
termination for convenience in accordance with Section 8.B below, and 
CONSULTANT shall have no greater rights than it would have had if a termination 
for convenience had been effected in the first instance.  No other loss, cost, damage, 
expense or liability may be claimed, requested or recovered by CONSULTANT. 

B. Termination Without Cause/For Convenience.  This Agreement may be 
terminated without cause by UNITED or for UNITED’s convenience upon fourteen 
(14) days’ written notice to the CONSULTANT.  In the event of a termination without 
cause, UNITED shall pay the CONSULTANT for all approved services performed 
and all approved expenses incurred under this Agreement supported by documentary 
evidence, including payroll records and expense reports, up until the date of the notice 
of termination.  In addition, CONSULTANT will be reimbursed for reasonable 
termination costs through the payment of 3% beyond the sum due the CONSULTANT 
under this section through 50%  completion of the CONSULTANT’s portion of the 
Project and, if 50% completion is reached, payment of 3% of the unpaid balance of the 
contract to CONSULTANT as termination cost.  This 3% is agreed to compensate the 
CONSULTANT for the unpaid profit CONSULTANT would have made under the 
Project on the date of termination and is consideration for entry into this termination 
for convenience clause. 

C. In the event of termination with or without cause, CONSULTANT shall 
promptly provide to UNITED all Project Documents as defined in Section 9 below 
within five (5) calendar days from the effective date of termination.  Failure to provide 
all Project Documents as required shall be deemed a material breach of this 
Agreement. 



2022.07.22 7 

D. In the event of a dispute as to the performance of the work or an 
interpretation of this Agreement, or payment or nonpayment for work performed or 
not performed, the parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute.  Pending resolution 
of the dispute CONSULTANT agrees to continue the work diligently to completion.  
If the dispute is not resolved, CONSULTANT agrees it will neither rescind the 
Agreement nor stop the progress of work, but CONSULTANT’s sole remedy will be 
to submit such controversy to determination by a court having competent jurisdiction 
of the dispute as required by this Agreement after the Project has been completed 
and not before.  

9. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

A. The CONSULTANT is employed to render a professional service(s) only 
and any payments made to it are compensation solely for such services as it may 
render and recommendations it may make in the performance of services. 

B. All plans, specifications, construction documents, data, records, files, 
communications, information, reports and/or other documents that are prepared, 
generated, reproduced, maintained and/or managed by the CONSULTANT or 
CONSULTANT’s subconsultants arising from or in any way related to the services 
provided under this Agreement (regardless of medium, format, etc.) shall be and 
remain the property of UNITED (“Project Documents”).  UNITED may provide the 
CONSULTANT with a written request for the return of the Project Documents at any 
time.  Upon CONSULTANT’s receipt of UNITED’s written request, CONSULTANT 
shall return the requested Project Documents to UNITED within five (5) calendar 
days.  CONSULTANT may make copies of the work generated.  Failure to comply 
with any such written request above shall be deemed a material breach of this 
Agreement.  Nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed a waiver of any copyright in 
the Project Documents prepared by the CONSULTANT.  Any unauthorized reuse or 
modification of such Project Documents other than for purposes intended by 
CONSULTANT or for the Project shall be at UNITED’s risk and liability. 

C. CONSULTANT agrees that all dealings of the parties under this 
Agreement shall be confidential and no Project Documents or information developed, 
prepared or assembled by CONSULTANT under this Agreement, or any information 
made available to CONSULTANT by UNITED, shall be revealed, disseminated or 
made available by CONSULTANT to any person or entity other than UNITED 
without the prior written consent of UNITED, unless otherwise required by subpoena 
or applicable law or regulatory authority. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP 

It is expressly understood between the parties that no employee/employer 
relationship is intended, the relationship of CONSULTANT to UNITED being that of 
an independent contractor.  UNITED shall not be required to make any payroll 



2022.07.22 8 

deductions or provide Worker’s Compensation Insurance coverage or health benefits 
to CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT is solely responsible for selecting the means, 
methods and procedures for performing its services hereunder as assigned by the 
UNITED and for coordinating all portions of the work so the results will be 
satisfactory to UNITED.  CONSULTANT will supply all tools and instruments 
required to perform its services under this Agreement. 

11. ASSISTANCE BY UNITED 

It is understood and agreed that the UNITED shall, to the extent reasonable 
and practicable, assist and cooperate with CONSULTANT in the performance of 
CONSULTANT’s services hereunder. Such assistance does not include, in any 
manner, the exercise of professional judgment for which CONSULTANT is being 
retained herein. Such assistance and cooperation to be provided by UNITED as 
applicable includes, but shall not be limited to, providing right of access to work sites; 
providing material available from the UNITED’s files such as maps, as-built 
drawings, records and operation and maintenance information; and rendering 
assistance in determining the location of existing facilities and improvements which 
may be affected by the Project.  CONSULTANT shall otherwise be responsible for 
giving all notices and complying with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations and lawful orders of any public authority relating to the work. 

12. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

A. Examination of Records 

CONSULTANT agrees that UNITED shall have access to and the right to 
examine at any reasonable time and on reasonable notice CONSULTANT’s 
documents, papers and records, including accounting records, relating to its 
performance under this Agreement. 

B. Notice 

All notices or other official correspondence relating to contractual matters 
between the parties shall be made by depositing the same as first-class, postage paid 
mail addressed as follows: 

To CONSULTANT: Dawn Taffler 
    Vice President  

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants 
300 N. Lake Avenue, Suite 1020 
Pasadena, CA 91101 

   
To UNITED:   Robert Richardson 
    Senior Engineer 
    United Water Conservation District 



2022.07.22 9 

    1701 North Lombard Street, Suite 200 
    Oxnard, CA 93030 
 

or such other address as either party may designate hereinafter in writing delivered 
to the other party.  All notices shall be agreed to have been received three (3) days 
after mailing. 

C. No Waiver 

No failure or delay by UNITED in asserting any of UNITED’s rights and 
remedies as to any default of CONSULTANT shall operate as a waiver of the default, 
of any subsequent or other default by CONSULTANT, or of any of UNITED’s rights 
or remedies.  No such delay shall deprive UNITED of its right to institute and 
maintain any actions or proceedings which may be necessary to protect, assert or 
enforce any rights or remedies arising out of this Agreement or the performance of 
this Agreement. 

D. Integration 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
pertaining to the subject matter hereto, and supersedes all prior agreements, oral or 
written, and all prior or contemporaneous discussions or negotiations between the 
parties.  

E. Modification 

No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless 
made in writing and signed by the parties.   

F. Rules of Interpretation 

The terms of this Agreement have been negotiated by the parties and the 
language used in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the language chosen by the 
parties to express their mutual intent.  This Agreement shall be construed without 
regard to any presumption or rule requiring construction against the party causing 
such instrument to be drafted, or in favor of the party receiving a particular benefit 
under this Agreement.  No rule of strict construction shall be applied against any 
party to this Agreement. 

G. Partial Invalidity 

If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this Agreement is found by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of 
the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect, and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby. 



2022.07.22 10 

H. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits 

The foregoing recitals and exhibits are incorporated herein as though fully set 
forth. 

I. California Law; Dispute Resolution; Venue 

This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed pursuant to the laws of the 
State of California, regardless of whether this Agreement is executed by any party in 
another state or otherwise.  If a dispute arises between the parties related to this 
Agreement or the breach thereof, the parties shall first attempt in good faith to settle 
the matter through discussion, and if unsuccessful may in their discretion mutually 
agree to mediate the dispute prior to filing a judicial action.  The costs of a third party 
mediator, if utilized, shall be borne equally by the parties.  If either party elects to 
file an action in court, such action shall be filed and heard in a court of competent 
jurisdiction in the County of Ventura. 

J. Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, a complete set of 
which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which together shall comprise but 
a single document.  Signatures may be given via facsimile transmission and shall be 
deemed given as of the date of facsimile transmittal of the executed Agreement by 
one party to the other.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties 
hereto. 

     UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

 

     By ________________________________________ 
      Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
 
      

[CONSULTANT] 
 
 
     By ________________________________________ 
 
           Dawn Taffler, Vice President 



2022.07.22 1 

EXHIBIT “A” TO AGREEMENT FOR  

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

CONSULTANT shall provide professional engineering consultation services under 
this Agreement in accordance with work described in the attached Scope of Work 
and Schedule of Charges. 



   
 

   
 

 
 
  

18 November 2022 

United Water Conservation District 
 
 

Design Services Related to Phase 1 of the 
Extraction Barrier and Brackish (EBB) 
Water Treatment Project  
 
 
 

 



   
 

   
 

Scope of Work 
This section presents the proposed scope of work by Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. (KJ) to develop 
Phase 1 of the EBB Project through final design and bid services based on the scope of work presented in 
the Request for Proposal (RFP) released by United Water Conservation District (United or District) on 12 
August 2022. A summary of the proposed tasks, deliverables, including technical memorandum (TM), 
workshops and meetings is provided in Table 1. A detailed drawing list and general assumptions are 
provided at the end of this section. 
 
Table 1. A Summary Scope of Work  

TASK  MAJOR DELIVERABLES  MEETINGS  
Task 1 - Coordination with 
External Consultants and 
Permitting Agencies 

Meeting agendas, materials, and minutes  
 

External consultants (39 mtgs)  
Agency coordination (6 mtgs)  
As-needed meetings with CEQA/Permitting Team and 
regulatory agencies 

Task 2 - Progress 
Meetings and Design 
Workshops 

Meeting agendas, materials, and minutes  
 

Kickoff meeting (in person)  
Bi-weekly progress meetings (36 mtgs)  
United staff meetings (8 dept. mtgs)  
NAVFAC (6 in-person, mtgs)  
Design review workshops (2 in-person, 1 virtual)  
Site visits (3 visits to NAVFAC sites, 1 visit to SMP)  

Task 3 - Project 
Management  

Monthly invoices, progress status reports and 
project schedule updates  

Internal and subconsultant coordination  

Task 4 - Preliminary 
Design Investigations  

Data request, basemap, hydraulic model and 
profile, WQ summary tables, TM - Surge 
Evaluation  

Discuss topics during coordination meetings and 
workshops.  

Task 5 - Options 
Evaluation  

TM - Discharge Evaluation  
TM - Well Suitability Evaluation  
TM - Pipeline Alignment Constructability 
Evaluation  

Discuss topics during coordination meetings, workshops, 
and site visits.  

Task 6 - Well Drilling 
Design Criteria and Bid 
Phase Services  

TM - Well Design Criteria  
Well Drilling Package  

Discuss topics during coordination meetings, workshops, 
and site visits.  

Task 7 - Preliminary 
Design Report (PDR)  

PDR Outline  
PDR Draft and Final  

PDR (30%) design review workshop  
(in-person - under Task 2)  

Task 8 – 30% Design 
Drawings and Cost 
Estimate  

30% Design Drawings and Cost Estimate  
 

PDR (30%) design review workshop  
(in-person - under Task 2)  

Task 9 - Design Services 
for Extraction Well 
Equipping  

60%, 90%, and 100% Design Drawings, 
Specifications and Estimate for Well Equipping 
Package  

60% design review workshop (in-person - under Task 2)  
90% design review workshop (virtual – under Task 2)  

Task 10 - Design Services 
for Pipeline  

60%, 90%, and 100% Design Drawings, 
Specifications and Estimate for Pipeline and 
Discharge Facility Package  

60% design review workshop (in-person - under Task 2)  
90% design review workshop (virtual – under Task 2)  

Task 11 – Bid Phase 
Services 

Addenda, written answers to bidders’ questions 
 

Pre-bid meeting and site tour  
Up to a total of nine (9) addenda 

Task 12 (Optional) – 
Pipeline to SMP 
Preliminary (30%) Design 

Draft and final Pipeline to SMP PDR 
30% Pipeline to SMP Design Drawings and Cost 
Estimate 

Kickoff, coordination meetings and design workshops (36) 
Site visit 

Task 13 (Optional) – Well 
Drilling Observation 
Services 

Weekly status/update reports  
Draft and final Well Design Memo for seven wells  
Draft and final Recommended Pumping Rate and 
Depth Memorandum for seven wells  
Draft and final Summary of Well Construction 
Operations Report for seven wells  

Pre-construction meeting 



   
 

   
 

Task 1 – Coordination with External Consultants and Permitting Agencies  
This task includes coordination with external consultants and permitting agencies. This task is specific to supporting 
meetings, email correspondence, and coordination with the many entities involved in the project. KJ’s PM will lead 
all the coordination directly with United throughout the project, reporting directly to United’s PM, and serving as a 
liaison between the KJ Team, external consultants and permitting agencies. The PM will identify key technical 
resources from the multi-disciplinary team to aid project coordination. 

1.1 External Consultants Coordination 
KJ will coordinate with external consultants, to be selected by United and under separate contracts, to support the 
project. Coordination efforts may include virtual meetings, providing project and schedule updates, exchange of 
technical information, feedback from the design team, and other information sharing. It is assumed that the 
following meetings would be conducted during each phase of design. Meetings will be virtual and attended by up to 
two KJ staff, one of which will be KJ’s PM or PE.  

Task 1.1 Assumptions:  
• United will be the initial point of contact with consultants under separate contracts, included in all correspondence, 

responsible for scheduling meetings and identifying individuals for meeting attendance 
• KJ will provide direction to geotechnical engineer on boring locations, to the land surveyor on boundaries and features 

to survey and work with the right-of-way services to identify information needed for facility siting. 
• KJ’s trenchless design subconsultant, Mott MacDonald, will need to coordinate the work of the geotechnical engineer.  

Mott MacDonald will provide recommendations for the geotechnical engineer’s scope, including the number of 
boreholes for trenchless crossing(s), depth of boreholes, field and laboratory testing, and reporting.  Mott MacDonald 
will need input on liquefaction and lateral spreading potential, including minimum setback from channel and 
identification of liquefiable layers.  Mott MacDonald will review the results of the geotechnical engineer’s subsurface 
investigation and the Geotechnical Data Report (GDR) / Geotechnical Investigation Report (GIR) to provide 
recommendations for trenchless construction. 

• The District will contract potholing separately. KJ will provide direction on where potholes are needed as part of two 
meetings identified for this task. The plans will be updated with the potholing information. 

• The District will contract with a materials testing company separately.  KJ will provide direction to the materials testing 
company to obtain information about facilities that do not have as-built records or other information available, 
particularly the Laguna Road bridge. 

• Thirty-nine (39) 1-hour virtual meetings are assumed to align with design phases as identified by the table below. The 
timing can be flexible depending on project needs and United preferences. 

Task 1.1 Deliverables:  
• Meeting agendas and meeting minutes (.pdf or .doc format)  

 

External Consultant Estimated # of Meetings per Phase of Design 

 Prelim Evaluation/30% Design 60% Design 90% Design 100% Design TOTAL  

Geotechnical Engineer 3 1 1  5 

Land Surveyor 2    2 

Right of Way Services 1   1 2 

Potholing Services 1 1   2 

Materials Testing Company 2 1   3 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Team 10 2 2 1 15 

Permitting Services 2 4 1 2 9 

Grant Administration Services   1  1 

Total Coordination Meetings Scoped: 22 8 5 4 39 



   
 

   
 

 
1.2 Permitting Agency Coordination 
This task includes assisting United with coordination efforts with regulatory agencies during the design phase. 
Coordination will include attending meetings, providing project and schedule updates, technical details, feedback 
from the design, and other pertinent information. This task includes up to two (2) KJ Team members attending up 
to six (6) coordination meetings with various agencies, as requested.  

Task 1.2 Assumptions:  
• United will be the initial point of contact with the regulatory agencies, included in all correspondence, responsible for 

scheduling meetings, and identifying individuals for meeting attendance.  
• KJ’s PM will coordinate with United’s PM and receive explicit permission prior to contacting an outside agency.  
• Six (6) 1-hour virtual meetings are assumed, scheduled by United’s PM. The timing can be flexible depending on project 

needs and United’s preferences. 
• Permits will be obtained by external consultants leading permitting and/or CEQA services or contractors leading the 

construction work.  
• KJ will provide engineering and design information, as requested, to support obtaining these permits as part of Task 1.3  
Task 1.2 Deliverables:  
• Meeting agendas and meeting minutes (.pdf or .doc format)  

1.3 As-Needed CEQA and Permitting Technical Support 
KJ will provide additional technical support services to the CEQA/Permitting Team throughout the design phase of 
the project on an as-needed basis (as directed by United). Activities may include estimates of earthwork quantities, 
truck trips, identification of facility footprints and staging areas, estimation of energy use and other quantities 
related to the infrastructure being designed for wells and conveyance facilities. This task does not include discharge 
plume or water quality modeling. This task can also be used for additional meetings with the CEQA/Permitting Team 
and regulatory agencies beyond the hours assumed in Tasks 1.1 and 1.2, respectively.  

It is assumed that the project will be able to be performed under an Initial Study - Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(IS-MND) and that the CEQA/Permitting Team will lead the effort for all environmental documentation (CEQA, NEPA, 
IS-MND, EIR or other) and will be responsible to obtain permits needed prior to construction, as directed by United. 
Under this task, KJ will provide as-needed technical support up to approximately 110 hours. 

Task 2 – Project Meetings and Design Workshops 
This task includes coordination of the project with specific United departments, and includes regular progress 
meetings, workshops, and site visits with United to advance the design of the project in an efficient manner.  

2.1 Progress Meetings  
This task includes preparing for, attending, and conducting bi-weekly progress meetings to discuss outstanding 
items, solicit feedback, resolve issues, review scope status, schedule, budget and risks. KJ’s PM and/or PE will attend 
with additional key staff as appropriate. Individuals from United’s engineering, water resources, environmental, and 
operations & maintenance departments will participate in focused topic meetings to provide and obtain necessary 
technical details from the design, and other pertinent information. Navy staff may also be invited to attend progress 
meetings. United PM will identify and coordinate meeting participation.  

Meetings will be conducted in the MSO Teams environment to reduce travel expenses. A shared Microsoft Office 
(MSO) Teams project site will be created to share documents and could be hosted by KJ.  KJ will prepare and submit 
meeting agendas and meeting minutes for the progress meetings. Action items and assignments will also be provided 
for each meeting. This task also includes an in-person two-hour kickoff meeting at United’s headquarters. 

Task 2.1 Assumptions:  
• Thirty-six (36) 1-hour virtual bi-weekly meetings are assumed, attended by up to two KJ staff.  



   
 

   
 

• Eight (8) 1-hour virtual focused topic meetings are assumed to obtain input from each of the four departments. The 
timing can be flexible depending on project needs and United preferences. 

• United will identify and coordinate with the appropriate individuals from each department and/or from the Navy to 
attend 

• One 2-hour in-person project kickoff meeting is also included, to be attended by the KJ PM, PE and up to two additional 
KJ staff 

Task 2.1 Deliverables:  
• Meeting agendas (provided one week in advance to allow for District/Navy staffing needs) and meeting minutes (.pdf or 

.doc format)  

• Action item and assignment log (.xls format) 

2.2 NAVFAC In-person Meetings  
This task includes assisting United with in-person, focused topic meetings with NAVFAC, beyond the progress 
meetings identified in Task 2.1. Effort includes preparing for and attending meetings in person, as-requested. This 
task would require access to Point Magu, which is also needed for the site visits identified in Task 2.4. It is assumed 
that there will be six (6) coordination meetings with NAVFAC and United during the design phase, attended by up to 
two (2) KJ team members, one of which will be KJ’s PM or PE. When possible, site visits and in-person NAVFAC 
meetings will be aligned to minimize costs. Meetings are anticipated to be with the Public Works Office, Facilities, 
Engineering and Acquisition Division (FEAD) construction (environmental IR), and Pass and IDs security teams. 

Task 2.1 Assumptions:  
• KJ’s PM will coordinate with United’s PM and will not contact NAVFAC without explicit permission.  
• United’s PM will schedule all meetings with the Navy  
• Six (6) 2-hour in-person meetings are assumed, scheduled by United’s PM. The timing can be flexible depending on 

project needs and United preferences. 
• Access to the site is supposed to be made available through license agreements between United and the Navy. 
• NAVFAC staff may be invited in the Design Review Workshops (Task 2.3), as deemed appropriate by United.  
Task 2.2 Deliverables:  
• Meeting agendas and meeting minutes (.pdf or .doc format) 
 

2.3 Design Review Workshops  
KJ will prepare for and participate in three design review workshops, in which a PowerPoint presentation will be 
given to provide an update on the design. The workshops are anticipated to be two hours and will be attended by 
up to four KJ staff. 

• PDR (30%) Design Review Workshop (in-person) 
• 60% Design Review Workshop (in-person) 
• 90% Design Review Workshop (virtual)  

 

Task 2.2 Assumptions:  
• The three (3) workshops are assumed to be two-hours in duration and attended by up to four (4) KJ staff. Two of the 

three meetings will be in person. United will provide an in-person meeting location. 
• United will provide design information and coordinate with NAVFAC, as appropriate.  
Task 2.2 Deliverables:  
• Meeting agenda, PowerPoint Presentation, and meeting minutes (.pdf, .ppt or .doc format) 

2.4 Site Visits  
KJ will attend up to four (4) site visits, as summarized in the table below, and provide field observation notes, as 
applicable.  

Task 2.3 Assumptions:  



   
 

   
 

• Site visits will be six hours plus travel time per person.  
• United will secure access to the NAVFAC site.  
Task 2.3 Deliverables:  
• Field observation notes (.pdf or .doc format) 

 

Site Visit Description of Activities Phase of Design # People Duration (Hrs) 

1 Visit Overall Project Area and 
potential discharge locations 

Kickoff and Discharge 
Options Evaluation 4 8 

2 Drive alignments and walk well sites 
(within Navy Boundary) Preliminary Design 4 8 

3 Drive alignment to SMP* (outside 
Navy Boundary) Preliminary Design  4 8 

4 Revisit all facility sites 60% Design 4 8 

* United to consider inviting Calleguas Municipal Water District (CMWD) staff on site visit to SMP  

Task 3 – Project Management  
3.1 Monthly Progress Reporting  
Monthly project progress status reports and invoices will be provided to United, summarizing work performed, 
milestones achieved, activities for each major task, and work planned for the next period. The progress status report 
will include a table summarizing the total budget, expenditures to date, and estimates of percentage completion by 
task.  

Task 3.1 Assumptions: 
• Eighteen (18) monthly progress reports and invoices are assumed, aligning with the anticipated duration of the project 

through bid services.  
Task 3.1 Deliverables:  
• Monthly Progress Status Reports (electronic, .pdf format) 

3.2 Project Administration  
This task consists of general project administration activities and oversight by the KJ Principal-In-Charge, PM and PE 
to manage KJ in-house staff and subconsultant activities, including project startup, subcontracting activities, meeting 
health and safety protocols, and project closeout. KJ will allocate resources to meet project objectives based on this 
scope of work and will perform project control activities to accomplish day-to-day management of the work.  

3.3 Schedule Development and Update  
This task includes the development of a baseline project schedule for activities defined in this scope of work following 
the notice to proceed and maintenance of the schedule through the life of the project. The schedule will identify the 
major activities at a task and subtask level and will be updated monthly, or as needed. The schedule will be prepared 
using Microsoft Project software and delivered electronically to United. 

Task 3.3 Assumptions:  
• United will provide feedback on any anticipated schedule impacts related to activities by external consultants, NAVFAC 

or permitting agency discussions.  
Task 3.3 Deliverables: 
• Draft and final versions of Baseline Project Schedule (.pdf format). 
• Monthly updates of Project Schedule over eighteen (18) month project  

3.4 QA/QC 
This task includes providing QA/QC reviews throughout the course of the project, consistent with KJ policies. The KJ 
QA/QC and quality management procedures establish and maintain a structure for providing reviews of work 



   
 

   
 

products and adherence to industry design standards and are integrated into KJ’s project management system from 
project inception, through execution of final document submission. Experienced senior staff, familiar with, but not 
directly involved in the project work, will provide QA/QC review of work products and project deliverables. 
Deliverables will be assigned to and reviewed by a designated and qualified quality reviewer prior to submittal to 
United.  

Specific QA/QC efforts on this project will include: 
• Development of a Quality Assurance Plan, which will outline how QA/QC reviews will take place during the 

course of the work. 
• Internal Concept and Criteria Review (C&CR), which consists of the team presenting the design concepts to 

two independent senior engineers to ensure the design concepts are in accordance with industry 
standards and potential issues and project risks have been identified. 

• Review of all TMs, reports, cost opinions, calculations, design drawings and specifications by an 
appropriate reviewer independent of those performing the work. 

• Constructability review will be conducted at approximately the 90% design level.   

Task 4 – Preliminary Design Investigations  
4.1 Data Collection & Review  
Existing conditions will be defined based on available information and data from public sources, United, the Navy, 
and external consultants performing geotechnical, land surveying, right-of-way, CEQA, and permitting services. KJ 
will collect and review materials and records and incorporate the pertinent information into the design, as 
appropriate, requesting additional information, as needed. All Task 4 data will be uploaded and stored on the project 
MSO Teams site created under Task 1. 

Task 4.1 Assumptions: 
• United will provide pertinent information in digital format when available and coordinate with external consultants to 

obtain information, as appropriate.  
Task 4.1 Deliverables: 
• Data request provided within one (1) week of project kickoff and updated as needed.  

4.2 Utility Survey  
This task includes a desktop investigation of utilities present in the vicinity of project facilities to identify potential 
utility conflicts near pipeline alignments, well sites and discharge facilities. The utility survey will be performed by KJ 
utilizing Digalert (USA) to contact the local utility companies and receive maps showing the locations of the various 
gas, electric, telephone, communication, water, sewer, and other utilities based on available data. The NAVFAC GIS 
database with utility information will also be used. Utilities identified in the DigAlert and NAVFAC GIS records will be 
placed on the plan and profile sheets to show horizontal and vertical locations of the various utilities, and to guide 
design criteria and decisions.  

Task 4.2 Assumptions:  
• NAVFAC will provide recently updated GIS records of sewer, water, and gas, at no cost, to be incorporated into the 

analysis along with other pertinent utilities, including dry utilities, and subsurface information to support the design.  
• Since NAVFAC requirements for potholing are unknown at this time, potholing is not included in this task and is provided 

as an optional task.  
Task 4.2 Deliverables:  
• Utility information to be added into the survey basemap file.  

4.3 IRP Considerations  
This task includes considerations for construction activities to minimize impact to existing IRP remedies. KJ will 
review the available documentation on contamination, remediation, and sampling for the three IRP sites identified. 
A summary of potential contaminants will be identified for each site and specifications will be developed to be 



   
 

   
 

followed during construction in the event the contamination is identified. This summary and specifications will be 
included in the preliminary design report and 30% design package, respectively.  

Task 4.3 Assumptions: 
• NAVFAC will provide available documentation on remediation efforts and evaluation  
• It is assumed if additional site characterizations or assessments of hazardous materials are required, United would seek 

additional support to collect and analyze data through external consultants or an amendment to this contract.  
Task 4.3 Deliverable: 
• Table of list summarizing hazardous waste that may be encountered and recommended courses of action. 

 
4.4 Basemap with Survey Information  
This task includes development of a basemap to serve as the foundation for the design. The basemap will include 
collected existing site condition information from the field visits, existing literature, review of topographic surveys, 
utility investigations, geotechnical investigation, IRP investigation report and other available information. The 
basemap will be to scale and include: 

• Elevations  
• Surveying controls 
• Topography 
• 3” resolution Transparent aerial imagery 
• Locations of right-of-way, 
• Locations of easements (if any),  
• Locations of IRP sites that are likely to contain constituent concentrations in soil and GW that will restrict or 

influence project design and construction (including waste handling and disposal)  
• Locations of geotechnical work. 

 
Existing above and below ground utilities identified from Task 4.2 Utility Research. 

Task 4.4 Assumptions:  
• It is assumed that the boundary of the basemap for design includes the five well sites and their connecting pipeline 

alignments, shown by Figure 2-Project Location Map on page 15 of the RFP, as well as the area of discharge in Mugu 
Lagoon. This task does not include base-mapping along the alignment to the SMP nor the ocean outfall, which would be 
included in Optional Task 12, if needed.  

• Surveying will be completed by a United selected surveyor under a separate contract. KJ will coordinate with United’s 
surveyor to define the full scope of the surveying and will coordinate on the exchange of data and CAD files. Effort in 
this task includes review of survey data and integration by CAD designer into the preliminary design plans.  

• KJ to provide specific requirements for surveying to support the 30% design and allow the survey to be used for final 
design.  

• KJ requirements for the survey are as follows: Topography will be in United and/or Navy’s preferred format (assumed to 
be NAD 83 horizontal coordinates based on the California State Plane Coordinate System, NAVD 88 vertical coordinates, 
with benchmark and basis of bearing shown). Topography will show all significant above ground features on the site 
area including but not limited to piping, manholes, drainage swales, fencing, bridges, box culverts, channels, and other 
utility features and signs. Topography will show contours at 1-foot intervals, and will include the alignment, street 
paving limits, and 25 feet beyond the edge of pavement on both sides of the street. All critical property lines, if 
applicable, should be shown, including street centerline, parcel lines, and street monumentation. Survey file will be in 
AutoCAD 2021/22 format and should also include a surface file that can be used to develop a profile for the proposed 
pipeline alignment.  

• United will provide ROW services under a separate contract to review Property/Real Estate Assessments, if the need for 
easements on private property are required, or to address NAVFAC considerations. 

Task 4.4 Deliverable:  
• Basemap for area of pipeline, discharge facility and well design (.pdf and .CAD format)  



   
 

   
 

4.5 Hydraulic Evaluation  
This task includes developing a hydraulic model to size Phase 1 facilities, also considering future capacity 
requirements for the full Phase 2 project. A surge analysis will be performed to understand anticipated system 
hydraulics for Phase 1 and 2 conditions.  

4.5.1 Hydraulic Model Development & Analysis  
Flowrate maximum pumping capacity of the wells, as provided by the well suitability evaluation (see Task 5.2) will 
be used to conduct a hydraulic analysis of the system. A hydraulic model using Innovyze InfoWater Pro software 
will be developed. The model will be used to simulate the anticipated hydraulic performance of the system. The 
hydraulic analysis will be used to: 

• Identify minimum and maximum pressures  
• Identify pipeline velocities  

 
Task 4.5.1 Assumptions:  
• KJ will lead the hydraulic modeling of conveyance facilities  
• Well hydraulic assumptions will be provided through consultation with United’s hydrogeologists and RCSModel will be 

run with a steady state simulation  
• Boundary conditions for Phase 2 flow conditions, at buildout, will be defined by United. It is understood that the flow 

conditions for phase 2 (max pumping) will be speculative and may change in Phase 2. KJ will work with United to define 
a conservative maximum flow to support design elements that will need to serve Phase 2 flows 

Task 4.5.1 Deliverables  
• Hydraulic model (electronic files)  
• System hydraulic profile (to be included in PDR)  
• Summary of hydraulic properties of system (to be included in PDR) 

4.5.2 Surge Analysis  
Information will be reviewed including well station plans, sections, pump curves, valving, operations, etc., 
discharge pipeline plans, profiles materials, diameters, and pressure classes, discharge location plans and sections. 
A surge analysis model of the system will be developed, including up to seven wells and their discharge pipelines, 
and the associated delivery system under various flow conditions for Phase 1 and the full Phase 2 project. Surge 
analyses simulations for sudden well pump trip of the wells under operating flow conditions will be performed. 
Based on the results of the analyses, if necessary, KJ will determine surge protection measures required to protect 
the system. A draft and final TM summarizing the surge results and recommendations of the analysis will be 
provided.  

Task 4.5.2 Assumptions: 
• Scott Foster Engineering, as a subconsultant to KJ, will lead the surge analysis. 
Task 4.5.2 Deliverables:  
• Summary of required surge protection measures necessary to protect the system in the case of a power outage  
• TM – Surge Evaluation (Draft and Final) summarizing the outcomes of the surge analysis (to be included as an 

attachment of the PDR) 

4.6 Hydrology and Water Quality Evaluations 
Under this task, KJ will conduct a review and analysis of available hydrology and water quality information to support 
project design activities. Effort to support additional hydrologic or water quality evaluations being conducted by the 
CEQA/Permitting Team can be provided under Task 1.3.  

4.6.1 Hydrology Evaluation  
This task includes reviewing, analyzing, and summarizing hydrologic considerations as they relate to 
facility construction and operation. This task will provide information for the above ground facility 
design, civil/site grading requirements and support bid documentation. This task will include the review 



   
 

   
 

of the NAVFAC’s hydrology analyses that were conducted as part of its recent improvements to the base 
to fortify itself against storm surge and sea level rise and other studies or information provided by the 
CEQA/Permitting Team. Stormwater management considerations will be limited to localized at above 
ground sites that may need to be addressed during design to protect infrastructure during high water 
and storm events.  

Task 4.6.1 Assumptions:  
• United/NAVFAC will provide available recent analyses  
• Design with conform with UFC 3-210-10 Low Impact Development 
Task 4.6.1 Deliverable:  
• A summary of anticipated hydrologic considerations/impacts and how they may be mitigated in design/construction will 

be included in PDR 

4.6.2 Water Quality Evaluation  
This task includes performing a high-level mass-balance analysis of the anticipated discharge water 
quality based on a blend of extracted water from the five well locations. Concentrations of concern (e.g., 
salinity) will be identified through discussions with United and the CEQA/Permitting Team. Anticipated 
concentrations at each well will be sampled and provided as part of the drilling performed for Task 6. 
This evaluation will support the CEQA/Permitting Team discussion with regulatory agency as well as the 
selection of materials, monitoring requirements and other design considerations by the design team. 
The desktop water quality analysis will include spreadsheet calculations that estimate the overall water 
quality profile based on measured water quality concentrations and anticipated flows, from United’s 
GW model.  

Task 4.6.2 Assumptions:  
• The CEQA/Permitting Team will identify water quality constituents of concern and provide relevant water quality limits 

for the receiving water body for discharge  
• Hydraulic water quality modeling, including CFD modeling, will not be included in this effort  
Task 4.6.2 Deliverables:  
• Table summarizing individual and blended well and source water qualities  
• A summary of anticipated water quality considerations related to design/construction will be included in PDR. 

Task 5 – Preliminary Evaluations and Technical Memorandum (TM) 
KJ will apply information gathered from Task 4, United departments, and the CEQA/Permitting Team, to 
conduct an evaluation on discharge options, well suitability, and pipeline alignments. The approach will be 
to have a pre-screening of concepts to eliminate options with fatal flaws, then to take a closer look at facility 
requirements and costs to identify a concept to move toward preliminary 30% design. KJ will collaborate with United, 
the Navy, and the CEQA/Permitting team to develop criteria, assess benefits and limitations, and make 
recommendations. These evaluations will each have a TM that documents the analysis, outcomes and 
United’s preferred options. KJ will coordinate with United to finalize the recommendation, which will be 
progressed in the final design. Cost estimates for these analyses will be for capital infrastructure, at a Class 
V planning level, based on recent project experience and appropriate contingencies.  

5.1 Discharge Options Evaluation  
KJ will identify three (3) discharge alternatives based on location: 1) the Mugu Lagoon; 2) CMWD’s SMP; 
and 3) the Pacific Ocean.  Each of these alternatives will have options for the method of discharge. These 
options will be presented and discussed with United and the CEQA/Permitting Team in a project 
coordination meeting (Task 1). A fatal flaw criteria and analysis will be identified for evaluating the 
discharge options. Viable discharge options will be compared using a decision matrix and ranking criteria, 



   
 

   
 

as described in Task 5.1.4. KJ will produce a TM that summarizes the recommended discharge option for 
design.   

5.1.1 Mugu Lagoon Discharge Options 
KJ will identify and evaluate up to eight (8) discharge concepts direct to the Mugu Lagoon, which may 
include the following, though concepts may be modified as work commences:  

(1) Spray discharge from box culvert (bridge) 
(2) Point-discharge from box culvert (bridge) 
(3) Multi-port diffuser on box culvert (bridge) 
(4) Multi-port diffuser on the bed of lagoon 
(5) Bank outfall (screened) 
(6) Spray from bank 
(7) Repurpose existing infrastructure (dolphin tanks) 
(8) To be determined. 

This task will include developing high level concept layout of facilities and a description of the discharge 
concept to the Mugu Lagoon. KJ will coordinate with the CEQA/Permitting Team to identify if the options 
have fatal flaws or are potentially permittable. For the potentially permittable options, assume up to four 
(4) options move forward for further consideration, KJ will develop concept level (Class V) facility costs, 
identify implementation considerations and coordinate with the CEQA/Permitting Team to identify 
permitting requirements. The Mugu Lagoon discharge options will be compared with other discharge 
options in Task 5.1.4. 

5.1.2  SMP Discharge Option  
KJ will identify and evaluate a discharge concept to connect to the SMP. KJ will work with the District to 
define the anticipated design criteria, which will take into consideration the potential future use and 
anticipated future needed capacity for the pipeline to carry brine from a future desalination facility. It is 
anticipated that to convey flow to the SMP, additional pumping head will be required. KJ will conduct a 
desktop analysis of the hydraulics for the alignment provided in the RFP and identify the anticipated 
additional head requirements for conveyance of water to the SMP. KJ will develop a high level facility 
cost estimate (Class V) based on an estimated pipe length, diameter, and pumping requirements, 
identify an implementation considerations and coordinate with the CEQA/Permitting Team to identify 
permitting requirements. The SMP discharge options will be compared with other discharge options in 
Task 5.1.4. 

At this time, United would prefer not to discharge to the SMP for Phase 1 due to the higher capital and 
operational costs to discharge and the prolonged schedule, however, should the other discharge 
alternatives run into fatal flaws, the SMP is the back-up alternative. SMP Alignment options for this 
option will be analyzed as part of Task 5.3.2.  

5.1.3  Ocean Discharge Options 
KJ will identify and evaluate up to three (3) discharge concepts to the ocean:  

(1) Submerged ocean outfall 
(2) Subsurface diffuser concept - such as perforated pipe, French drain, or leach field,  
(3) spray to the ocean from an existing rock revetement. 

  



   
 

   
 

This task will include developing high level concept layout of facilities and a description of the discharge 
concept to the Mugu Lagoon. KJ will coordinate with the CEQA/Permitting Team to identify if the options 
have fatal flaws or are potentially permittable. For the potentially permittable option for ocean discharge 
be identified, KJ will develop concept level (Class V) facility costs, identify implementation considerations 
and coordinate with the CEQA/Permitting Team to identify permitting requirements. The ocean discharge 
options will be compared with other discharge options in Task 5.1.4. 

5.1.4  Compare Discharge Options and TM 

For the viable discharge options identified in Tasks 5.1.1 through 5.1.3 a comparison analysis will be 
conducted. Criterion will be developed for comparing the alternatives, using a decision matrix considering 
the benefits, risks, relative costs (Class V), and other criteria identified in collaboration with United and 
the CEQA/Permitting Team, presented in a second project coordination meeting (Task 1). It is assumed 
that one discharge option will move forward for Preliminary Design. If the SMP discharge option moves 
forward as the recommended discharge option, or as an alternate discharge, alternative alignments will 
be explored as part of Task 5.3.2. 

Work performed under this task will be summarized in a TM, which is anticipated to include the following 
for the recommended discharge alternative:  

• Conceptual design with text description of the recommended alternative 
• Diagram with anticipated location and receiving water body  
• Class 5 opinion of probable construction costs (OPCC)  
• Summary of permitting requirements/limitations, as provided by the CEQA/Permitting Team.  

 
Task 5.1 Assumptions:  
• CEQA/Permitting Team will provide allowable design parameters for meeting permit requirements including criteria 

such as permissible velocities, flow discharges, and permitting timelines/durations to inform the decision development 
matrix  

• United and the CEQA/Permitting Team will provide feedback and input into the high-level conceptual discharge 
methods and discharge matrix and select the preferred discharge alternative. 

• Does not include any CEQA/Permitting required water quality modeling, hydraulic or diffusion modeling of discharge 
alternatives  

• One (1) recommended discharge facility will proceed to the 30% and ultimately the final design 
Task 5.1 Deliverables:  
• Decision matrix of alternative discharge methods  
• TM – Discharge Evaluation (Draft and Final) summarizing the recommended discharge method, receiving water, and 

location 

5.2 Well Suitability Evaluation  
This task will begin with a field reconnaissance of each of the five (5) proposed well sites (as part of Task 
2.3) to observe current site conditions at each proposed wellsite property. The KJ Team (including RCS) 
will work with United and the Navy to identify logistical issues associated with the proposed well 
construction, discussing site parameters for the each of the well sites, such as: 

• Size and orientation of site for the placement of drill rig equipment and accessories and for 
storage of well construction materials, and where applicable, consideration of the possible 
construction layout for two wells.  

• Temporary construction and permanent footprints  will be identified to support real estate 
acquisition/land surveyor consultant and work on securing outgrant easements with the Navy. 



   
 

   
 

• Proximity of site to areas that may be sensitive to construction noise and activities (for noise 
mitigation & safety issues), such as office spaces, lodging facilities, RV and camping areas, 
residences, etc.  

• Presence of above ground and below ground utilities. 
• Evaluation of existing electrical system capacity and identification potential insufficiencies. 
• Source of makeup water for drilling. 
• Location of and distance to possible drainage structures or planned points of discharge required 

for the proper discharge of fluids from well development and well testing. 
• Ingress/egress of construction equipment and materials, and potential storage areas for 

equipment, materials, storage tanks, etc.  
• Level of risk from storm surge, sea level rise and flooding to the proposed infrastructure and 

identify cost-effective measures to mitigate impacts such as inundation, corrosion, and 
contamination. 

RCS will provide a hydrogeologic analysis of the data and information generated during the above tasks 
and prepare a TM with regard to the anticipated subsurface geologic/hydrogeologic conditions and 
logistical considerations at each of the five proposed properties on which wells are proposed to be drilled. 
The TM will include information for all seven of the proposed new wells. 

Task 5.2 Assumption:  
• Seven (7) extraction wells located at five (5) well sites will be evaluated, as described and shown in the RFP 
• That sufficient capacity will be available from nearby power lines; if the electrical system is determined to be insufficient 

additional scope would need to be developed.  
Task 5.2 Deliverable:  
• Draft and Final TM - Well Suitability (Draft and Final) (.doc, .pdf) 

5.3 Pipeline Alignment, Materials and Constructability Evaluation   
There are two sections of pipeline that will be evaluated as part of this task:  

1. Well Piping Alignments: These pipelines connect the wells to the anticipated discharge piping  

2. Pipeline to SMP: This pipeline may connect the wells to the SMP or provide a future alignment for 
a brine discharge 

The well piping and pipeline to SMP alignments will be screened and evaluated based on several criteria, 
including above-ground or below-ground installation, open cut or trenchless installation methods, 
potential utility conflicts, pipeline materials, and risks from potentially hazardous materials. The 
alignments will be scored based on weighted criteria and KJ will rank outcomes for United to select a 
preferred alignment. 

5.3.1 Well Piping Alignment Analysis  
KJ will use the pipeline alignments provided by United in Figure 2- Project Location Map (shown in solid 
green and dotted lines south of the Potential Pilot Treatment Location) in conjunction with the basemap 
to evaluate the proposed pipeline alignments. KJ will evaluate open cut or trenchless installation 
methods and identify the design criteria that will be used for the 30% design. This task will include the 
identification of a fatal flaw analysis that will include the avoidance of any potential hazardous 
materials.  

It is anticipated that based on the well siting locations that the pipeline will need to cross the Mugu 
Lagoon. An initial analysis will be conducted, looking for fatal flaws based on desktop studies on the 



   
 

   
 

preferred option for pipeline crossing of the Mugu Lagoon. Options that will be evaluated will include 
attaching the pipe to the existing bridge culvert, trenchless methods, or above ground.  

5.3.2 Pipeline to SMP Alignment Analysis 
This task will include identification and evaluation of up to three (3) alignment concepts for the pipeline 
to the SMP. These alignments will consider trenchless crossing under the Pacific Coast Highway (PCH, 
Highway 1) or a longer alignment that connects to the SMP further west. This initial analysis will identify 
fatal flaws for pipeline alignments based on desktop studies only. This task will consider environmental 
impacts, major roadways, total length, and will incorporate Navy preferences for the portion of the 
alignment within Navy property and CMWD preferences for the point of connection to the SMP. 
Implementation and permitting considerations will be part of identifying a preferred alignment. 

An optional Task 12 has been included to perform a Preliminary 30% Design for the preferred alignment 
to the SMP, which would be authorized as needed. A 60/90/100% design scope has not been developed 
as part of this effort. 

5.3.3 Pipeline Alignment Options and TM 

KJ will analyze the findings of Task 5.3.1 and 5.3.2 using screening criteria and a decision matrix. The 
criteria will be identified in coordination with the District, but is anticipated to include cost, permitting, 
and implementation considerations.  

The findings of the decision matrix and Tasks 5.3.1 and 5.3.2 will be summarized in a TM and will be used 
as the foundation for the 30% design. The TM summarizing the pipeline alignment constructability, which 
is anticipated to include the following:  

• Evaluation and identification of potential utility conflicts  
• Pipeline materials, including an evaluation of the corrosivity of the soils gathered as part of the 

geotechnical investigation. 
• Analysis of above ground/below ground pipeline options  
• Analysis of pipeline crossing on/attached to the bridge 
• Tunneling methods (if required)  
• Incorporate understanding of geotechnical report  
• Potential obstacles and methods of overcoming these obstacles 

  
Task 5.3 Assumptions:  
• Pipeline sizes will be assumed based on the Hydraulic Evaluation (Task 4.5). Pipeline sizes will be confirmed during final 

design after the actual well flow rates are determined.  
Task 5.3 Deliverable:  
• TM – Pipeline Alignment and Constructability Evaluation (Draft and Final) summarizing the pipeline alignment 

constructability  

Task 6 – Design Services for Extraction Well Drilling  
6.1 Technical Specifications  
RCS, as a subconsultant to KJ, will prepare one set of technical specifications for the drilling, development, 
construction, and testing of the seven new wells; all wells will be included in a single technical specification and bid 
package. While two general well designs will be considered in the documents (one design for the five proposed 



   
 

   
 

Oxnard aquifer wells, and a second design for the two proposed Mugu aquifer wells), the actual design of the wells 
will be based on the results of the pilot borehole drilling/testing at the selected sites. 

The technical specifications for the seven new wells will provide the technical requirements for the following well 
construction issues for each proposed well: 

• Site preparation activities (clearing, grubbing, grading). 
• Drilling/construction method for the well and drilling fluids control parameters and methods, along with 

parameters for plumbness and alignment of the pilot hole and final reamed borehole. 
• The well pump and discharge piping will not be located within a building or enclosure. 
• The pilot hole drilling depth. 
• Details for performing isolated aquifer zone testing. 
• Depth(s) and diameter(s) of borehole ream(s). 
• Casing material types, casing diameters and casing depths. 
• The type and size of casing perforations and lengths of such casing. 
• The depth(s) of possible deep cement annular sanitary seal(s) or aquifer seals. 
• The anticipated gravel pack gradation and depth placement. 
• Mechanical, chemical and pumping development criteria. 
• Water quality sampling and analysis for isolated aquifer zone testing and for the final well blend water 

quality samples. 
• Discharge permitting requirements as required, including NPDES requirements, sampling, analysis, 

treatment, and compliance measures, LARWQCB requirements, and other agencies that may require 
notification and reporting associated with fluid discharge. 

• Step drawdown test and constant rate pumping test criteria. 
• Criteria and equipment for the final dynamic and static spinner surveys and depth discrete sampling. 
• Final video survey, alignment survey and completion of each wellhead. 
• Selection of casing materials, borehole and casing diameters, required noise mitigation measures, onsite 

treatment and/or disposal of drilling fluids for the construction of the proposed wells and other aspects 
of the construction project will be specifically tailored to each proposed new well site.  

• Camera port and sounding tube details 

6.2 Well Drilling Cost Estimate 
RCS will prepare a detailed estimate for the probable cost of the drilling, construction and testing of the seven new 
proposed wells. The estimate will also include costs for on-site handling, temporary storage, testing, treatment, and 
disposal of all waste liquids and solids. The construction cost estimate will be based on recent contractor costs (as 
determined from several of our other current well construction projects).  

6.3 SWPPP for Extraction Well Drilling  
KJ will prepare a draft Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to be included with the extraction well drilling 
construction documents.  The contractor will be responsible for preparing the final SWPPP.       

Task 6 Assumptions:  
• Seven (7) extraction wells will be drilled, as described and shown in the RFP 
• Well drilling for the seven wells will be procured as one public construction works contract 
• United’s front-end document will be utilized 
• Finished improvements, such as the pump pedestal, will be provided as part of the well equipping construction 
Task 6 Deliverables:  
• Draft and final technical specifications (Word and .pdf) 
• Draft and final construction cost estimate (.pdf) 



   
 

   
 

Task 7 - Preliminary Design Report (PDR) 
KJ will prepare a PDR that will succinctly summarize the work completed in Tasks 4 and 5. The PDR will include:  

• Potential utility conflicts (Task 4.2)  
• Summary of IRP Investigation and Navy Procedural Evaluation (Task 4.3)  
• Completed basemap to scale with elevations (Task 4.4)  
• Hydraulic analysis including model development and findings (Task 4.5) 
• Water quality evaluation (Task 4.6.1)  
• Hydrology evaluation (Task 4.6.2) 
• Preliminary site layout for one discharge facility as recommended in the discharge options evaluation 

(Task 5.1). For scoping purposes, it is assumed the recommended discharge facility could be sprayers, a 
diffuser, or a point discharge (on a bank or attached to the bridge), any of which would ultimately 
discharge to the Mugu Lagoon. It is assumed that connection to the CMWD SMP, an ocean outfall, and 
repurposing the Navy’s abandoned dolphin tank structures will not be the recommended discharge 
facility.  

• Preliminary site layouts for the five sites and seven extraction wells, based on the outcomes of the well 
suitability evaluation (Task 5.2) 

• Preliminary alignments, based on the outcomes of the alignment evaluation (Task 5.3).  
o Effort does not include an alternative alignment to the potential pilot treatment location 
o Optional Task 12 includes PDR for an alignment to the SMP 

 Include trenchless sub to advise on techniques 
 State that Drawings, specs and cost estimates for 60/90/100% is not included as part 

of this contract 
o Effort includes option to cross Mugu Lagoon via bridge attachment or trenchless technique, 

identifying options and recommending a preferred option  
 Mott MacDonald will advise on trenchless construction methods. 

 
• Well suitability and hydraulics (Task 6) 
• 30% design drawings (Task 8.1) 

o Refer to the Drawing List at the end of this section for a list of the sheets provided at the 30% 
design and final design phases for both the extraction well and pipeline drawing packages. 

• OPCC (Task 8.2) 
• Preliminary instrumentation/controls descriptions and diagrams  
• Electrical infrastructure, assumed to include a step-down utility transformer to 480V, 

switchgear/switchboard/motor control center with VFDs/starters for equipment, 48-120/208V step-
down transformer, and 120/208V panelboard for auxiliary loads. 

• Identification of anticipated permits (based on coordination with CEQA/Permitting Team)  
• Preliminary site layouts for the five sites and seven extraction wells 
• List of technical specifications  
• Permitting requirements 

7.1 Draft PDR 
An outline and a Draft PDR will be provided for United’s review. The Draft PDR will include the information listed 
above and will be provided in .pdf and .doc formats. 



   
 

   
 

7.2 Final PDR  
A Final PDR will be issued to United, incorporating response to comments from United review and other input from 
Stakeholders (e.g., Navy). The Final PDR will be provided in .pdf and .doc formats.  

Task 7 Assumptions:  
• United will have a 4-week review period  
• Includes effort by Mott MacDonald to document work completed related to trenchless crossings 
• Comments and responses to comments will be provided either in Microsoft Word comments or through a comment log  
Task 7 Deliverable: 
• PDR (Draft and Final) 

Task 8 - Preliminary (30%) Design Drawings and Cost Estimate 
8.1 30% Preliminary Design Drawings  
KJ will produce 30% preliminary design level drawings for the equipping of the extraction wells and the associated 
conveyance pipelines and discharge location. Anticipated sheets included in the 30% drawings are included at the 
end of this section.  

8.2 30% Preliminary Design OPCC  
KJ will prepare an OPCC for the Project, following the principles and guidelines of the Association for the 
Advancement of Cost Engineering (AACE) and standard KJ cost estimating procedures. The OPCC will reflect an AACE 
Class 3 estimate. The OPCC will be projected to the midpoint of the construction period and will be organized by the 
anticipated bid package. 

Task 9 - Design Services for Extraction Well Equipping  
Based on the design concepts and criteria established in the PDR, KJ will prepare a 60%, 90%, and 100% design 
submittal package for the equipping of the extraction wells for United’s review. For the purposes of budgeting, the 
following well design assumptions are utilized: 

• Seven (7) extraction wells will be provided, as shown in Figure 2 - Project Location Map (RFP).  
• Extraction wells located at the same site, as shown in Figure 2 - Project Location Map (RFP), will share 

piping, mechanical, and electrical infrastructure as much as feasible.  
• Provisions will be provided to allow efficient installation of planned future wells, as shown in Figure 2 - 

Project Location Map (RFP). 
• Each extraction well will be equipped with a vertical turbine or submersible pump and motor. Pump 

selection will be provided as part of the PDR development. 
• VFD will be provided. The need for VFDs will be evaluated as part of the PDR.  
• The well site selection, well design, and associated infrastructure design will be based on the 

hydrogeology recommendations from United. KJ will be the engineer of record.  
• Remote SCADA communication and control via radio telemetry will be provided. A SCADA radio survey 

is not provided. 
• Communication may be achieved by either (1) one radio tower, with fiberoptics between wells or (2) 

multiple radio towers at each well site.  
• Each well site will be provided with a non-ornamental perimeter fence. 
• See detailed list of drawings and additional assumptions at the end of the scope. 

9.1 60% Extraction Well Equipping Submittal  
This task is associated with the submittal of 60% drawings, specifications, and estimate for the extraction well 
equipping bid package.  



   
 

   
 

9.1.1 60% Extraction Well Equipping Drawings  
KJ will incorporate the responses to the comments from the 30% design review, specific to the equipping of the 
extraction wells, and advance the 30% design drawings to 60% design, and develop additional drawings identified 
at the end of this section. 

9.1.2 60% Extraction Well Equipping Specifications 
KJ will develop 60% level well equipping specifications.  

9.1.3 60% Extraction Well Equipping Cost Estimate  
KJ will prepare an updated OPCC for the extraction well equipping component of the project, organized by 
anticipated bid package. This cost estimate will incorporate any changes from 30% design. KJ will follow the 
principles and guidelines of the AACE and standard KJ cost estimating procedures. The OPCC will meet the 
requirements of an AACE Class 2 estimate and will be projected to the midpoint of the construction period. 

9.2 90% Extraction Well Equipping Submittal  
This task is associated with the submittal of 90% drawings, specifications and estimate for the extraction well 
equipping bid package. KJ will incorporate United’s review comments on the 60% Design package and prepare the 
90% design submittal package for Owner review. The 90% phase will include further detailed design and refinement 
of the project elements developed in the preliminary and 60% design stages of the project. 

9.2.1 90% Extraction Well Equipping Drawings  
KJ will incorporate the responses to the comments from the extraction well equipping 60% design review, and 
advance the 60% design drawings to 90% design, and develop additional drawings identified at the end of this 
section. 

9.2.2 90% Extraction Well Equipping Specifications  
KJ will incorporate the responses to the comments from the extraction well equipping 60% design review and 
advance the 60% extraction well equipping specifications to 90% design. 

9.2.3 90% Extraction Well Equipping Cost Estimate  
KJ will prepare an updated OPCC for the extraction well equipping component of the project, organized by 
anticipated bid package. This cost estimate will incorporate any changes from 60% design. KJ will follow the 
principles and guidelines of the AACE and standard KJ cost estimating procedures. The OPCC will meet the 
requirements of an AACE Class 2 estimate and will be projected to the midpoint of the construction period. 

9.3 100% Extraction Well Equipping Submittal  
This task is associated with the submittal of 100% drawings, specifications, and estimate for the extraction well 
equipping bid package.  

9.3.1 100% Extraction Well Equipping Drawings  
KJ will incorporate the responses to the comments from the extraction well equipping 90% design review, and 
advance the 90% design drawings to 100% design, and develop additional drawings identified at the end of this 
section. 

9.3.2 100% Extraction Well Equipping Specifications  
KJ will incorporate the responses to the comments from the extraction well equipping 90% design review and 
advance the 90% extraction well equipping specifications to 100% design. 

9.3.3 100% Extraction Well Equipping Cost Estimate  
KJ will prepare an updated OPCC for the extraction well component of the project, organized by anticipated bid 
package. This cost estimate will incorporate any changes from 90% design. KJ will follow the principles and 
guidelines of the AACE and standard KJ cost estimating procedures. The OPCC will meet the requirements of an 
AACE Class 2 estimate and will be projected to the midpoint of the construction period. 



   
 

   
 

9.4 SWPPP for Well Equipping  
KJ will prepare a draft Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to be included with the extraction well 
equipping construction documents.  The contractor will be responsible for preparing the final SWPPP. 

Task 10 – Design Services for Pipelines and Discharge Facility  
Based on the design concepts and criteria established in the PDR, KJ will prepare a 60%, 90%, and 100% design 
submittal package for the extraction well discharge pipelines for United’s review. For the purposes of budgeting, the 
following well design assumptions are utilized: 

• The pipeline design package will include the discharge facility design.  
• For the basis of this proposal, it is assumed that there will be one discharge facility and location. The 

discharge facility could be sprayers, a diffuser, or a point discharge (on a bank or attached to the 
bridge), any of which would ultimately discharge to the Mugu Lagoon.  

• It is assumed that the pipeline can be constructed across the bridge or a trenchless crossing under the 
Mugu Lagoon. This task includes sufficient effort and number of sheets to design either type of crossing. 
Effort for subcontractor is included for trenchless design.  

• The effort and sheet count included assumes pipeline alignments and lengths similar to those presented in 
Figure 2 of the RFP. 

• Additional design services will be required if either the alignment to the SMP or the ocean discharge 
option is selected.  

10.1 60% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Submittal  
This task is associated with the submittal of 60% drawings, specifications, and estimate for the pipeline bid package.  

10.1.1 60% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Plans  
KJ will incorporate the responses to the comments from the 30% design review, specific to the pipelines, and 
advance the 30% design drawings to 60% design, and develop additional drawings identified at the end of this 
section.  KJ will also coordinate  

10.1.2 60% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Specs  
KJ will develop 60% level pipeline specifications.  

10.1.3 60% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Estimate  
KJ will prepare an updated OPCC for the pipeline component of the project, organized by anticipated bid package. 
This cost estimate will incorporate any changes from 30% design. KJ will follow the principles and guidelines of the 
AACE and standard KJ cost estimating procedures. The OPCC will meet the requirements of an AACE Class 2 
estimate and will be projected to the midpoint of the construction period. 

10.2 90% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Submittal  
This task is associated with the submittal of 90% drawings, specifications, and estimate for the pipeline bid 
package.  

10.2.1 90% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Plans  
KJ will incorporate the responses to the comments from the pipeline 60% design review, and advance the 60% 
design drawings to 90% design, and develop additional drawings identified at the end of this section. 

10.2.2 90% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Specs  
KJ will incorporate the responses to the comments from the pipeline 60% design review and advance the 60% 
pipeline specifications to 90% design.  

10.2.3 90% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Estimate  
KJ will prepare an updated OPCC for the pipeline component of the project, organized by anticipated bid package. 
This cost estimate will incorporate any changes from 60% design. KJ will follow the principles and guidelines of the 



   
 

   
 

AACE and standard KJ cost estimating procedures. The OPCC will meet the requirements of an AACE Class 2 
estimate and will be projected to the midpoint of the construction period. 

10.3 100% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Submittal  
This task is associated with the submittal of 100% drawings, specifications, and estimate for the pipeline and sitework 
construction package.  

10.3.1 100% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Plans  
KJ will incorporate the responses to the comments from the pipeline 90% design review and advance the 90% 
design drawings to100to 100% design, and develop additional drawings identified at the end of this section. 

10.3.2 100% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Specs  
KJ will incorporate the responses to the comments from the pipeline 90% design review and advance the 90% 
pipeline specifications to 100% design.  

10.3.3 100% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Estimate  
KJ will prepare an updated OPCC for the pipeline component of the project, organized by anticipated bid package. 
This cost estimate will incorporate any changes from 90% design. KJ will follow the principles and guidelines of the 
AACE and standard KJ cost estimating procedures. The OPCC will meet the requirements of an AACE Class 2 
estimate and will be projected to the midpoint of the construction period. 

10.4 Trenchless Design (Mott MacDonald) 
Mott MacDonald will prepare design documents for a trenchless crossing of Mugu Lagoon, including plans, 
specifications, calculations, and cost estimates for trenchless work at the 60%, 90%, and 100% design phases. KJ 
effort included to coordinate trenchless design efforts. 

10.5 SWPPP for Pipeline and Discharge Facilities  
KJ will prepare a draft Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to be included with the pipeline and 
discharge facility construction documents. The contractor will be responsible for preparing the final SWPPP. 

 

Design Service Deliverables (Tasks 8-10):  
• 30%, 60%, 90% and 100% design drawings (electronic, .pdf) 
• 60%, 90% and 100% specifications (electronic, .pdf) 
• 30%, 60%, 90% and 100% cost estimate (electronic, .pdf) 

*A list of general and design assumptions for Tasks 8-10 are provided at the end of the scope of work section 

Task 11 – Bid Phase Services 
KJ will provide Bid Phase services for both the Extraction Well Equipping and Pipeline and Discharge Facility 
construction packages.  

11.1 Extraction Well Drilling Bid Phase Services  
11.1.1 Extraction Well Drilling Pre-Bid Meeting 

KJ, along with subconsultant RCS, will attend a pre-bid meeting and site tour to be conducted by United for the 
construction contractors to allow acquaintance of potential contractors with the work for the Extraction Well 
Equipping bid package.  

11.1.2 Extraction Well Drilling Response to Bidder’s Questions  
KJ will prepare addenda during the bid period to clarify the well equipping design documents, with distribution of 
all addenda by United. KJ will also provide answers to written questions submitted to United by bidders and 



   
 

   
 

provided in writing to KJ. Contract requirements that are changed as a result of questions and answers will be 
included in the issued addenda. It is assumed that KJ will prepare up to one (1) addendum.  

11.1.3 Extraction Well Drilling Bid Analysis and Award Recommendation  
KJ will review all bids received from contractors for responsiveness, completeness, whether the contractor(s) are 
responsible, and the bid amounts and will advise United of any identified discrepancies by any of the bidders. KJ 
will evaluate the bid results for the three (3) lowest construction package bids received and provide written 
recommendation to United concerning award of the Construction Contract. 

11.2 Extraction Well Equipping Bid Phase Services  
11.2.1 Extraction Well Equipping Pre-Bid Meeting 

KJ will attend a pre-bid meeting and site tour to be conducted by United for the construction contractors to allow 
acquaintance of potential contractors with the work for the Extraction Well Equipping bid package.  

11.2.2 Extraction Well Equipping Response to Bidder’s Questions  
KJ will prepare addenda during the bid period to clarify the well equipping design documents, with distribution of 
all addenda by United. KJ will also provide answers to written questions submitted to United by bidders and 
provided in writing to KJ. Contract requirements that are changed as a result of questions and answers will be 
included in the issued addenda. It is assumed that KJ will prepare up to nine (9) addenda. 

11.2.3 Extraction Well Bid Analysis and Award Recommendation  
KJ will review all bids received from contractors for responsiveness, completeness, whether the contractor(s) are 
responsible, and the bid amounts and will advise United of any identified discrepancies by any of the bidders. KJ 
will evaluate the bid results for the three (3) lowest construction package bids received and provide written 
recommendation to United concerning award of the Construction Contract. 

11.3 Pipeline and Discharge Facility Bid Phase Services  
11.3.1 Pipeline and Discharge Facility Pre-Bid Meeting 

KJ will attend a pre-bid meeting and site tour to be conducted by United for the construction contractors to allow 
acquaintance of potential contractors with the work for the Pipeline and Discharge Facility bid package.  

11.3.2 Pipeline and Discharge Facility Response to Bidder’s Questions  
KJ will prepare addenda during the bid period to clarify the pipeline design documents, with distribution of all 
addenda by United. KJ will also provide answers to written questions submitted to United by bidders and provided 
in writing to KJ. Includes effort by Mott MacDonald to respond to bidder’s questions related to trenchless 
segments. Contract requirements that are changed as a result of questions and answers will be included in the 
issued addenda. It is assumed that KJ will prepare up to four (4) addenda. 

11.3.3 Pipeline and Discharge Facility Bid Analysis and Award Recommendation  
KJ will review all bids received from contractors for responsiveness, completeness, whether the contractor(s) are 
responsible, and the bid amounts and will advise United of any identified discrepancies by any of the bidders. KJ 
will evaluate the bid results for the three (3) lowest construction package bids received and provide written 
recommendation to United concerning award of the construction contract. 

Task 11 Assumptions:  
• United will prepare the agenda and minutes for the pre-bid meeting.  
• The pre-bid meeting and site tour will be on the same day and in-person, attended by two KJ staff. United will 

coordinate with NAVFAC and attendees for base access. 
Task 11 Deliverables: 
• Addenda (Electronic, .pdf format). 
• Written answers to bidders’ questions (Electronic, .pdf format). 
• Written Bid Analyses and Award Recommendations (Wells and Pipeline) (Electronic, .pdf format) 



   
 

   
 

OPTIONAL TASKS 

Task 12 (Optional) – Pipeline to SMP Preliminary (30%) Design    
Based on the evaluations of Task 5.1 Discharge Option Evaluation, if the pipeline alternate alignment to the SMP for 
discharge is identified as the preferred alignment, this task will include the preliminary design work and design 
services for the pipeline alternate alignment and connection to the CMWD SMP. The alignment could potentially 
include approximately 16,800 feet of additional pipeline and would require coordination with United’s surveyor and 
geotechnical engineer to obtain the additional survey and geotechnical investigation, an extended basemap, 
additional utility surveys, hydraulic and surge evaluations, water quality evaluations for discharge concentrations 
into the SMP, permitting and right-of-way considerations, and a connection to the SMP. This task would produce 
30%, design drawings and cost estimates for the alignment and connection to the SMP. The scope and budget for 
finalizing the design is not included as part of this effort. 

12.1 Pipeline to SMP Preliminary Investigations   
12.1.1 Pipeline to SMP Site Visit 
KJ will conduct a site visit to walk/drive the proposed alignment to evaluate existing conditions and 
identify potential conflicts. For budgeting purposes, four (4) people will attend the site visits assuming a 
duration of eight (8) hours. The site visit will include both the portion of the SMP alignment on Navy 
property as well as the portion of the alignment outside of the private property. United to consider 
inviting CMWD staff on site visit to SMP 

12.1.2 Pipeline to SMP Hydraulic Modeling   
A hydraulic model will be developed by KJ that will be utilized to simulate flows and confirm pressure 
conditions in the proposed alignment, based on available data. This analysis will include evaluation of 
the hydraulic head conditions at the groundwater pumps and the potential treatment facility to convey 
flows to the SMP. A hydraulic profile for the alignment will be developed under the anticipated Phase 1 
conditions. Extended period simulations (EPS) and transient analysis are not included in this analysis. 

12.1.3 Pipeline to SMP Utility Survey    
Utility survey will be performed by KJ utilizing Digalert (USA) to contact the local utility companies and 
receive maps showing the locations of the various gas, electric, water, telephone, and other utilities.  
The utilities will be placed on the plan and profile sheets in plan by KJ to show the locations of the 
various utilities, and to help determine whether the pipeline alignment should be in the public right-of-
way or on private land (or if needed, a mixture of both options).  

12.1.4 Pipeline to SMP Basemap with Survey Information    
This task includes development of a basemap to serve as the foundation for the design. The basemap will 
include collected existing site condition information from the field visits, existing literature, review of 
topographic surveys, utility investigations, geotechnical investigation, and other available information. 
The basemap will be to scale and include: 

• Elevations  
• Surveying controls 
• Topography 
• 3” resolution Transparent aerial imagery 
• Locations of right-of-way, 
• Locations of easements (if any),  
• Locations of geotechnical work. 



   
 

   
 

 
Existing above and below ground utilities identified from Task 12.1.3 Pipeline to SMP Utility Survey. 

12.1.5 Pipeline to SMP Permitting, Environmental Support & Coordination    
It is assumed that the CEQA/Permitting Team and District will serve as the CEQA Plus lead for the project 
(e.g., inclusion of the Federal cross-cutters for funding). KJ will coordinate with the CEQA/Permitting 
Team and District to identify potential environmental concerns and required permits. Effort for 
meetings with the CEQA/Permitting Team to support the 30% design is included in Task 12.4.  It is 
assumed that KJ will provide support up to approximately 80 hours. 

KJ will coordinate with permitting requirements, including encroachment permits for the County of 
Ventura (road) and County of Ventura Watershed Protection District and discussions with Ventura 
County about trenchless construction in the public right of way. This task assumes three (3) additional 
two-hour meetings, attended by up to 2 KJ staff, will be held with permitting agencies to support the 
30% design.  A preliminary list of anticipated permits for the project will be provided. 

12.1.6 Review and Integration of Pipeline Supporting Studies 
Similar to the pipeline design work scoped in Task 8, it is assumed that the District will provide 
geotechnical, land survey, right of way, potholing and materials testing services through external 
contracts. Effort for meetings with external consultant to support the 30% design is included in Task 
12.4. This task includes review the geotechnical study, survey data, ROW, potholing and materials 
testing information and incorporate this information into the 30% design and recommendations.  

12.2 Pipeline to SMP PDR  
12.2.1 Draft Preliminary Design Report for Pipeline to SMP    
30% design level work for the Pipeline to SMP will be summarized in a draft PDR, which will succinctly 
include the reference plans and data, and describe the purpose of the analysis, assumptions, hydraulic 
model outcomes, pipeline materials, appurtenances, and construction methods assuming cut and cover 
construction for most of the alignment. If needed, an evaluation of trenchless methods including 
selection of preferred trenchless methods will be provided. Information gaps and next steps will be 
highlighted. 

12.2.2 Final Preliminary Design Report for Pipeline to SMP    
KJ will incorporate the District’s comments into a final PDR for the Pipeline to the SMP.  

12.3 30% Pipeline to SMP Drawings  
12.3.1 Pipeline to SMP 30% Drawings   
Preliminary design drawings will be prepared at a 30% level, reflected on a drawing set that includes: 
general plan view of alignment, typical details for connection to existing pipelines, turnouts, relief 
valves/valve box, and other required apparatus (28 total sheets). The preliminary design will utilize 
survey data conducted by the District’s on call surveyor. 

12.3.2 Pipeline to SMP 30% OPCC     
Capital cost estimates will be developed at a Class IV level, representing preliminary design, and 
capturing anticipated material and labor costs by discipline. Cost estimates will be developed for the 
preferred alignment. Given current chain supply issues, an additional contingency will be included in the 



   
 

   
 

cost estimate to reflect increased bid prices received for pipeline projects in the area. Operations and 
Maintenance costs for the pipeline and appurtenances will be estimated.  

12.4 Project Coordination for SMP 30% Design    
12.4.1  Pipeline to SMP Project Meetings, Coordination and Workshop  
This task includes the following anticipated meetings:  

Anticipated Meeting Participants  Prelim Evaluation/30% Design Anticipated # of KJ Staff per 
Meeting 

SMP PDR Kickoff Meeting  1 2-3 

District Coordination  (incl. Navy) 8 2-3  

CMWD Coordination  4 2-3 

CEQA/Permitting Team Coordination  8 2 

Geotechnical Engineer 3 2 

Land Surveyor 2 1-2 

Right of Way Services 2 1-2 

Potholing Services 2 1 

Material Testing Company 2 1-2 

30% Design Workshop 1 4 

County of Ventura 3 2 

Total Coordination Meetings Scoped: 36  

 

External contractors are assumed to be provided by the District. These contractors include geotechnical, 
surveying, right-of-way, potholing, and CEQA/permitting. It is assumed that the scoping for external 
contractors will be led by United with input on the requirements and specifications of the scope and 
deliverables provided by KJ.  It is assumed that all the meetings will be one hour and will be virtual with 
the exception of the design workshop.  

12.4.2 Pipeline to SMP QA/QC   
This task includes providing QA/QC reviews throughout the course of the 30% design work, consistent with KJ 
policies. The KJ QA/QC and quality management procedures establish and maintain a structure for providing reviews 
of work products and adherence to industry design standards and are integrated into KJ’s project management 
system from project inception, through execution of final document submission. Experienced senior staff, familiar 
with, but not directly involved in the project work, will provide QA/QC review of work products and project 
deliverables. Deliverables will be assigned to and reviewed by a designated and qualified quality reviewer prior to 
submittal to United.  

Specific QA/QC efforts on this project will include: 
• Development of a Quality Assurance Plan, which will outline how QA/QC reviews will take place during the 

course of the work. 
• Internal Concept and Criteria Review (C&CR), which consists of the team presenting the design concepts to 

two independent senior engineers to ensure the design concepts are in accordance with industry 
standards and potential issues and project risks have been identified. 



   
 

   
 

• Review of all TMs, reports, cost opinions, calculations, design drawings and specifications by an 
appropriate reviewer independent of those performing the work. 
 

 Task 12 Assumptions:  
• Drawings, specs and cost estimates for 60/90/100% is not included as part of this effort 
• Hydraulic evaluation will not include EPS or surge analysis.  
• The District will provide the required geotechnical, surveying and potholing 
• The District will lead the scoping for external contractors. The District will provide external contractors for geotechnical, 

surveying, right-of-way, potholing and, CEQA/permitting.  
Task 12 Deliverables: 
• Draft and final Pipeline to SMP PDR 
• 30% Pipeline to SMP Design Drawings  
•  Pipeline to SMP Class IV OPPC  

Task 13 (Optional) – Well Drilling Observation Services 
As noted in the RFP, construction phase services (4.e) are not included in the scope of work. It was assumed that 
United staff may choose to perform well drilling observation services as part of the United staff effort defined in the 
grant application. Should United need additional support, this optional task includes effort by RCS, with support from 
KJ, to perform the necessary coordination, paperwork, field work and reporting to support well drilling. This task 
does not include engineering services during construction for well installation or equipping.  

Each subtask herein describes work to be performed for drilling each of the seven proposed new EBB wells proposed 
by the RFP. Therefore, each task below will be performed seven times, one time for each well constructed, with 
the exception of Task 15.1 project management activities.  

13.1 Well Drilling Observation Project Management 
Project management services for well drilling observation will include:  

• Project coordination and administration, 
• Providing a weekly status/update reports during the construction of the well,   
• RCS will maintain this registration throughout the project, and a registered Ventura County well inspector 

will remain in responsible charge of the RCS portion of the well construction project. This registration 
has been required of RCS for prior Ventura County well construction work 

13.2 Pre-Construction Meeting 
Prepare for and attend a pre-construction meeting for the well and review information provided by the drilling 
contractor who has been awarded the well construction contract by United. Discuss key issues in the technical 
specifications and review the Contractor-proposed mobilization and scheduling of personnel and equipment to the 
site. This meeting will also better acquaint the drilling firm with the well construction site and help define the 
logistical issues at the well site, such as: nearest available water and electrical supply; placement of equipment with 
respect to buried utilities; and disposal of drilling fluids. Importantly, it will be the driller’s responsibility during this 
meeting to inform United what will need to be done to prepare the site for the required work, and when work will 
actually commence, including a detailed schedule for completing each task of well construction. 

13.3 Conductor Casing and Rig Mobilization 
Provide a field geologist to observe the installation of the conductor casing into its borehole; log the drill cuttings 
collected by the driller; and perform telephone coordination during drill rig mobilization, drilling of the conductor 
casing, and installation of sound barrier walls. This subtask is to help keep United informed on the progress of the 
initial Contractor activities during mobilization and conductor casing installation. Ventura County Public Works will 
be contacted for a sanitary cement seal inspection by the drilling company at least 24 hours prior to pumping the 
cement into place. 



   
 

   
 

13.4 Geologic Logging of Pilot Hole 
As stated in the RFP for the project, United hydrogeologists estimate the depths of the target aquifers to be on the 
order of 250 to 340 ft bgs beneath the proposed well sites. RCS anticipates that the average drilling rate by the 
reverse circulation drilling method could be on the order of 10 feet per hour at each well site; thus, the Contractor 
will require approximately 25 to 34 hours of drilling time per well. Drilling is anticipated to be performed on a 24-
hour per day basis, so it is possible that such drilling could take approximately 2 days to complete per well. During 
drilling, the RCS geologist will be present on a part-time basis to geologically log the cuttings (formation samples) 
collected by the driller, because, in our opinion, there is sufficient control of the subsurface geologic data from 
historic wells in the region compiled by United to warrant this part-time work at the site. 

During pilot hole drilling, samples of representative formation materials will be collected by the Contractor during 
drilling to provide grain size distribution curves of these materials. Grain size testing is needed to select the final slot 
size for the casing perforations and the gradation of the final gravel pack. Grain size distribution tests will be 
performed on selected representative formation samples by the casing manufacturer. While onsite, the RCS 
geologist can be available to discuss drilling conditions and the results of in-progress geologic logging with United 
personnel; frequent emails will also be provided. 

13.5 Downhole Geophysical Survey Log Analysis 
RCS geologists will observe and review the downhole geophysical surveys (i.e., electric logs) of the pilot borehole at 
the well site to help identify the depths and thicknesses of the target Oxnard and Mugu aquifers. RCS will review and 
compare data from nearby geophysical logs (provided by United and from RCS-in house files, as available), along 
with the geologic log, to help select specific depth zones to be target for isolated aquifer zone testing (if performed), 
and for the casing perforations. 

Geophysical logging is conducted to accurately determine the depth(s) to water, and the thickness and lateral 
continuity of the target water-bearing formations (aquifers) in the subsurface, based on their electronic signatures. 
Geologic logging is used as physical evidence to help support any interpretations made on the depth and nature of 
subsurface materials penetrated. RCS will provide United with an independent opinion as to the correlated depths 
of the perched aquifer, the Oxnard Aquifer, and the Mugu aquifer at the wellsite, and well as the interpreted depths 
of key confining layers (aquitards). These data are needed to provide a recommendation for the specific water-
bearing zones to target as part of the isolated aquifer zone testing, and to help select the final depths for placement 
of the required blank and perforated casing. The new E-log will be correlated to the E-logs and cross sections 
previously reviewed and prepared by United. 

13.6 Isolated Aquifer Zone Testing (If Performed) 
RCS geologists will observe downhole isolated aquifer zone testing of groundwater in selected aquifers in the pilot 
hole at the drill site. RCS will select specific depth zones on the basis of review and analysis of drill cuttings, the new 
E-log, other E-logs for wells and test holes drilled in the area as compiled by United. At this time, a maximum of three 
(3) zones are anticipated to be selected for isolated aquifer zone testing in the open pilot borehole. Such down-hole 
testing in the open borehole is important to help identify the possible presence of certain groundwater analytes 
and/or contaminants that may currently be present near the borehole. 

RCS geologists will be present during the latter stages of zone development during temporary pumping with a 
submersible pump to collect samples for water quality testing. During pumping, our field geologist will 
observe/monitor the following field parameters in each test zone: 

• Temperature 
• pH 
• Electrical conductivity (EC) 
• Turbidity 
• Possible odors 
• Possible sand production 



   
 

   
 

• Static water levels 
• Pumping water levels 
• Pumping rates  
• Calculations of possible specific capacity values 

 
Monitoring of the above-listed parameters is necessary to help determine whether or not formation water is being 
produced and to help identify the rates of possible groundwater production from each tested zone. Further, the 
collected samples will need to be of sufficient clarity to obtain representative groundwater samples for water quality 
analysis. Monitoring of pumping water levels, static water levels and specific capacities of each zone will also provide 
preliminary data on the relative production capabilities of each zone. Costs for transport and analysis of the collected 
samples will be borne by the Contractor, as will be required by the technical specifications. 

13.7 Final Well Design Memorandum, Monitor Borehole Ream(s) and Caliper Survey 
Communicate in-progress findings to United and prepare a Draft of the Final Construction Design Memorandum for 
the new well. A Draft of this Final Well Design Memorandum will be submitted to United for review. Following receipt 
of any United comments, RCS will prepare the Final Design Memorandum and submit it to United and the driller. 
This Final Well Design Memorandum will provide the Final recommendations for the following elements: 

• Casing lengths and diameters. 
• Type and depths of the perforations. 
• Perforation sizes (slot sizes). 
• Accessory tubing. 
• The type and gradation of the gravel pack, based on testing of actual samples of selected drill cuttings. 
• Depth of the cement seal(s) and bottom-hole seal (if needed). 
• Recommended depth of the test pump intake for development and testing. 

Also, during this task, RCS will provide telephone communication with the driller during the final reaming of the 
borehole at the well site and will make one site visit to check on reaming operations. When reaming operations have 
been completed, the RCS field geologist will review the results of the caliper survey of the final reamed borehole at 
the well site to help verify the appropriate depths and diameters for the ream have been attained. 

13.8 Casing, Gravel Pack and Cement Seal Installation 
The installation of the casing, gravel pack and the cement seal are considered to be a vital task in the construction 
of the new well, because deviation from the recommended design could impact the production capacity of the well. 
RCS geologists will be present on a full-time basis to monitor, record and check for Contractor compliance with the 
Final well design during the installation of the recommended well blank and perforated casing, gravel pack, and 
cement seal for the initial well. Thus, such monitoring will be conducted to help permit conformance with the 
appropriate methods and materials in the specifications and/or recommendations based on downhole conditions.  

During casing installation, RCS geologists will spot check the slot width of the casing perforations, observe and record 
the lengths of the blank and perforated casing being installed, and observe and record the type and amount of gravel 
pack and cement being emplaced downhole.  

13.9 Well Development (Mechanical and Chemical Methods) 
Provide an RCS geologist on a part-time basis to monitor well development by mechanical and chemical methods 
for the new well. Monitoring development operations and checking for conformance with the technical 
specifications is useful because proper mechanical and chemical development of the new well is another vital activity 
during well construction. When onsite, the RCS geologist will spot check Contractor compliance with NPDES 
discharge requirements, and other discharge requirements as necessary.  



   
 

   
 

13.10 Well Development (Pumping Methods) 
An RCS geologist will be present on a part-time basis to monitor well development by pumping methods. The 
geologist will also be present during start-up of pumping development and at other occasional time intervals to spot-
check the progress of this pumping development. Contractor compliance with NPDES requirements (and any other 
applicable discharge requirements) will also be spot checked.  

13.11 Step Drawdown Testing 
RCS will provide a geologist to install a pressure transducer, and to also monitor step drawdown testing at the new 
well site, on a part-time basis. It is anticipated that four pumping rates will be recommended for this test. During 
testing, water levels in the new well will be recorded automatically with the use of an RCS pressure transducer, which 
will also be used to monitor and record water levels during the subsequent constant rate pumping test.  

13.12 Constant Rate Pumping Testing 
Provide an RCS geologist, on a part-time basis, in order to monitor water level drawdown and recovery after the final 
constant rate pumping test (aquifer test). Critical times will be those during the first few hours of drawdown and 
recovery measurements. The contractor’s pump crew will also be used to conduct occasional water level 
measurements (using their electric tape sounder) to maintain the monitoring schedule recommended by RCS 
geologists. It is anticipated, at this time, that the constant rate discharge test will be 24 to 48 hours in duration. The 
RCS pressure transducer used during the step test will also be used during the constant rate pumping test to 
automatically record changes in water levels. 

Field water quality values of pH, EC, temperature, and turbidity of the well discharge will be obtained by the RCS 
field geologist during both of the pumping tests. Water samples of the final well blend from the new well will be 
collected near the end of the constant rate test and delivered to a United-approved laboratory for water quality 
analyses.  

At the end of aquifer testing, the Contractor will be required in the technical specifications to perform a “dynamic” 
flow meter (spinner) survey of the well to help identify the current flow regime of the various perforated zones in 
the new well. The technical specifications will provide for appropriately-sized camera ports/sounding tubes to permit 
this survey. In addition, RCS geologists will be present to collect depth-specific samples and a complete suite of Title 
22 analytes, and the drilling Contractor will transport and have the samples analyzed at a State-Certified testing 
laboratory (which will be required by our technical specifications). 

The accurate collection of reliable aquifer test data is important to provide an adequate analysis of aquifer 
transmissivities and production capabilities for the new well. Further, these data are used in conjunction with water 
quality data to establish the final well blend water quality in the new well. Field monitoring of water levels in the 
new well during aquifer testing is vital in helping to determine the final operational pumping rate for the new well. 

13.13 Casing Alignment Testing, Video Survey, Static Spinner Survey, and Well 
Disinfection 
An RCS geologist will be present to observe a gyroscopic survey for the alignment/plumbness testing of the well 
casing, a video survey and a static spinner survey. Further, for the video survey, it is important to check that the 
survey log is of sufficient quality to reliably document as-built well conditions. Finally, a static spinner survey can be 
performed to document the down well flow regime under non-pumping conditions. Following these surveys, the 
Contractor will need to chlorinate the new well for final well disinfection. 

13.14 Recommended Pumping Rate and Pump Depth Setting Memorandum 
Based on the step drawdown and constant rate pumping test data, RCS shall provide a Memorandum to discuss 
static and pumping water levels, and the current specific capacity for the new well. This Memorandum will also 
provide our recommendations to United for the final operational pumping rate and pump depth setting for the 
permanent pump; these parameters will include factors for anticipated declines in specific capacity over time and 
anticipated seasonal variations in water levels based on modeling work by United. 



   
 

   
 

Thereafter, KJ engineers can provide all final design parameters for the permanent pump, wellhead, tie-in to the 
existing pipeline system, and other above ground structures/equipment. 

Because of our working knowledge of the changes in pumping rates, specific capacity, well efficiency and annual 
volumes of groundwater produced by former/existing United wells, RCS recognizes that the original post-
construction pumping rates from each new well during the final pumping tests will be greater than those that will 
eventually be available from each new well, over the long term. RCS will endeavor to account for the anticipated 
changes in pumping rates and volumes in each well over time by being conservative in its selection of a 
recommended pumping rate for the new permanent pump in each well.  

13.15 Preparation of Summary of Well Construction Operations Report 
A Summary of Well Construction Operations Report will be prepared to help document the drilling, construction, 
testing activities, and materials used during the construction. This report will include the following items: 

• A basic chronology of well construction and testing. 
• Description of earth materials encountered, including a copy of our geologic log.  
• Copies of all geophysical logs, including caliper and spinner surveys. 
• Results of sieve analysis, including plots of grain size curves. 
• Table of well construction materials and depths. 
• As-built well design drawings. 
• Field water quality results, water levels and discharge rates during zone testing and constant rate 

discharge tests. 
• Analytical reports showing water quality results for isolated aquifer zone testing and the final well blend 

sample.  
• Well development logs from the drilling contractor. 
• Pumping test data for the step drawdown test, constant rate test and water level recovery 

measurements. 
• Analysis of pumping test data, including well performance and plots of drawdown relationships as a 

function of flow rate and time. 
• Evaluation of the spinner log data and depth specific water quality sampling under pumping conditions. 
• Plumbness and alignment data.  
• Other pertinent data relating to materials used. 
• Conclusions and recommendations for basic operational use. 
• RCS will provide United with a Draft for review (without all supporting appendices) and then a Final 

Summary of Well Construction Operations report. The report, including all drawings, tables, and 
appendices, will be provided to United in .pdf format.  

• Seven separate, independent reports will be prepared, one for each of the new EBB Wells. 
 

Task 13 Assumptions:  
• Seven (7) extraction wells will be drilled, as described and shown in the RFP 
• Well drilling for the seven wells will be procured as one public construction works contract 
• The driller(s) will be required to obtain required Ventura County well drilling permits. 
• Well owner (United or Navy) to sign permits 
• RCS geologists will register as Well Inspectors with Ventura County 
• Level of effort assumes 3 zone tests are performed for each well 
Task 13 Deliverables:  
• Weekly status/update reports (email) 
• Draft and final Well Design Memorandum for seven wells (.pdf) 
• Draft and final Recommended Pumping Rate and Depth Memorandum for seven wells (.pdf) 



   
 

   
 

• Draft and final Summary of Well Construction Operations Report for seven wells (Word, .pdf) 

Task 14 (Optional) – Conformed Documents  
Task 14.1 – Extraction Well Equipping Conformed Documents  
KJ will prepare a conformed set of construction documents for extraction well equipping based on changes made via 
addenda during the bid phase. KJ will also incorporate the executed contract documentation for the selected bidder 
(provided by United). 

Task 14.1 Deliverables: 
• Conformed drawings for extraction well equipping (Electronic, .pdf). 
• Conformed Specifications for extraction well equipping (Electronic, .pdf). 

Task 14.2 - Pipeline Conformed Documents  
KJ will prepare a conformed set of construction documents for extraction well equipping based on changes made via 
addenda during the bid phase. KJ will also incorporate the executed contract documentation for the selected bidder 
(provided by United). 

Task 14.2 Deliverables: 
• Conformed drawings for pipeline (Electronic, .pdf). 
• Conformed Specifications for pipeline (Electronic, .pdf). 

Task 15 (Optional) – Scour Analysis 
Mott MacDonald, as a subconsultant to KJ, will perform and analysis of scour potential along the 
trenchless crossing for the pipeline under Mugu Lagoon which could be included during the preliminary 
design phase. Risk of pipeline exposure will be evaluated for event-based scour caused by strong tidal 
currents and/or nearby river flows (excluding tsunamis and waves).  Mott MacDonald will provide a 
Technical memorandum with recommendation for scour potential and minimum pipe depth. 

Task 16 (Optional) – As-Requested Support - Contingency  
This task provides an additional contingency for as-requested services, such as additional alternatives evaluations, 
meetings, 3D facilities rendering, potholing plans, presentations or other activities, on a time and materials basis. KJ 
can work with United to define level of effort and deliverables based on services requested.  

 

  



   
 

   
 

General Assumptions 

The following general assumptions apply to the scope of work in Tasks 1 to 11, as well as optional tasks, if authorized. 

General Design Assumptions: 
• The project will be competitively bid and constructed through a Design-Bid-Build project delivery approach. 

• Design effort assumes three separate bid packages.:  

• Bid Package 1: Well Drilling 

• Bid Package 2: Extraction Well Equipping 

• Bid Package 3: Pipeline and Discharge Facility  
• The 30% design will include bid packages 2 and 3 submitted together, while subsequent submittals will be separate, 

standalone bid packages.  

• All drawings will be prepared in AutoCAD format on 22x34 inch sheets.  

• All drawings and specifications will be stamped and signed by a California Registered Professional Engineer for each 
applicable discipline.  

• Specifications will be prepared in Microsoft Word format and in accordance with the Construction Specification 
Institute (CSI) Master Format.  

• United will be responsible for advertisement and PS&E reproduction  

• All hydrogeological modeling will be conducted by United; the KJ Team is not responsible for modeling or 
demonstrating the effectiveness of the extraction wells. 

• Well sites have been selected by United, the KJ Team will identify fatal flaws based on site investigation and well 
suitability evaluation, but is not responsible for the performance of the well or extraction barrier concept upon 
completion of Phase 1 

Structural Design Assumptions: 
• KJ standard details and specifications will be used for the structural design of the project.  

• It is anticipated this project will be designed in accordance with the 2022 California Building Code, ASCE 7-16, ACI 318-
19, AASHTO, Uniform Facilities Criteria (UFC), NAVFAC, and any applicable reference standards in the 2022 CBC. This 
will also include project specific design criteria where applicable.  

• It is assumed a geotechnical report will be provided with adequate information relating to the site conditions, provide 
design recommendations, seismic design criteria, site-specific response spectra, and other applicable information 
required to complete the design of this project. The geotechnical report will be provided within adequate time to 
complete the design. KJ to provide specific instructions to the geotechnical engineer (through United) on information 
that is needed as part of Task 1 external consultant coordination activities.  

• Record drawings, as-built, and/or record shop drawings will be provided at the start of the project for any portion of 
the work anticipated, including the existing bridge and any associated existing structures.  Testing, surveying, 
scanning of existing conditions is outside the scope of the structural design assumptions.  KJ will provide specific 
instructions to a materials testing company (through United) to obtain information about facilities that do not have 
as-built records or other information available as part of Task 1 external consultant coordination activities. 

• Existing bridge record drawings and existing calculations will be provided to verify additional weight to the structure.  

• Equipment anchorage design to be provided by others as deferred submittal and submitted to the EOR for review. KJ 
will review for compliance with the project specifications. 

Electrical Design Assumptions:  
• KJ will provide suggested equipment tagging and nomenclature standards for all equipment and instrumentation for 

review by United, prior to the 30% submittal.  Approved standards will be carried through final design. 

• Exterior lighting is limited to the immediate well areas. Roadway/pathway lighting is not included. 

• Design for a standby generator system is not included, however provisions to install one at a later date will be 
provided. 



   
 

   
 

• Design of auxiliary systems such as fire, PA, and security is not included 

• Electrical equipment will be housed in weather-resistant enclosures 

• Electrical switchgear design will be in accordance with Southern California Edison standards 

Geotechnical Assumptions:  
• Geotechnical investigations to support the design are being performed by an external contractor under a separate 

contract, are not included in this scope of work and are assumed to be the responsibility of United. KJ to provide 
specific instructions to the geotechnical engineer (through United) on information that is needed as part of Task 1 
external consultant coordination activities. 

Responsibilities and Exclusions: 
• Submittal review comments by United, NAVFAC and other stakeholders will be furnished as one conformed set of 

comments per submittal package and provided within four (4) weeks from submittal date. 

• Technical specifications will be prepared using KJ’ guide specifications and follow CSI Master Format. 

• SCADA and PLC programming is not included in our scope of work, as this is assumed to be provided by the 
Contractor.  KJ will provide performance specifications and HMI/SCADA templates to integrate the new system into 
the District’s existing SCADA system. 

• Acoustical analyses/noise study is not included in our scope of work. 

• Landscaping and irrigation design is not included in our scope of work. 

• Architectural design is not included in our scope of work. It is assumed that the electrical equipment at each well site 
will be housed in a prefabricated structure. 

• Automatic fire-extinguishing systems will not be required for any of the facilities. 

• Surveying services to support the design are not included in our scope of work and are assumed to be the 
responsibility of United. KJ will coordinate with the District’s surveyor regarding the scope of the survey as part of 
Task 1 external consultant coordination activities. 

• Field verification or potholing to determine the horizontal and vertical locations of the existing underground utilities is 
not included in this scope of work and is assumed to be provided by United.  The District will contract potholing 
separately. KJ will provide direction on where potholes are needed as part of meetings identified in Task 1.1.  The 
plans will be updated with the potholing information. 

• Preparation of a draft SWPPP is included in our scope of work. and finalizing and implementing the SWPPP is assumed 
to be the responsibility of Contractor. 

• Preparation of traffic control plans are not included in our scope of work and are assumed to be the responsibility of 
the Contractor, if required. 

• Design of a dewatering system is not included in our scope of work. 

• Design of a shoring system, falsework, formwork, bracing systems or temporary supports are not included in our scope 
of work. 

• Design for temporary services, including but not limited to water, sewer, electricity, telephone, and gas, are not 
included in our scope of work. 

• Engineering services during construction (ESDC) and startup and testing are not included in our scope of work and are 
assumed to be part of a future authorization. 

• County of Ventura Building or Engineering Department review or permits will not be required.  

• Permitting is assumed to be led by, and the responsibility of, United and its selected CEQA/Permitting consultant, 
including all required permitting fees. KJ has included an as-needed CEQA and permitting technical support task (Task 
1.3) to assist United in these efforts, if needed. 

• Navy documents indicate IRP Sites do not require further action and therefore environmental evaluation and 
mitigation, including contaminated soils or GW, should they be found during excavation, is not included in our current 
scope of work but can be provided on an as-needed basis under an amendment to this agreement. 



   
 

   
 

• KJ will provide the services required in accordance with the skill and care which would be exercised by comparable 
qualified design professionals performing similar services at the time and place such services are performed. 

• Project will start in January 2023 and Bid Phase Services will be completed by August 2024.  

 



   
 

   
 

Drawling Lists 
Table 2. Extraction Well Siting Sheets, Description and Design Level  

Extraction Well Siting  
Sheet  Description  30% 60% 90% 100% 

General           
G-1  Title, Vicinity Map and Location Map         
G-2 List of Drawings          
G-3 Abbreviations, Symbols and General Notes         
G-4 Overall Site Key Map         
G-5 Hydraulic Profile          
Civil            
C-1  Civil Notes and Abbreviations         
C-2 Civil Legend         
C-3 Site and Yard Piping Plan - Site 1         
C-4 Site and Yard Piping Plan - Site 2         
C-5 Site and Yard Piping Plan - Site 3         
C-6 Site and Yard Piping Plan - Site 4         
C-7 Site and Yard Piping Plan - Site 5         
C-8 Horizontal Control and Paving Plan - Site 1         
C-9 Horizontal Control and Paving Plan - Site 2         
C-10 Horizontal Control and Paving Plan - Site 3         
C-11 Horizontal Control and Paving Plan - Site 4         
C-12 Horizontal Control and Paving Plan - Site 5         
C-13 Grading and Drainage Plan - Site 1         
C-14 Grading and Drainage Plan - Site 2         
C-15 Grading and Drainage Plan - Site 3         
C-16 Grading and Drainage Plan - Site 4         
C-17 Grading and Drainage Plan - Site 5         
C-18 Standard General Civil Details -1          
C-19 Standard General Civil Details -2         
C-20 Standard General Civil Details -3         
C-21 Standard General Civil Details -4         
Mechanical            
M-1 Mechanical Plan - Site 1         
M-2 Mechanical Sections - Site 1         
M-3 Mechanical Plan - Site 2         
M-4 Mechanical Sections - Site 2         
M-5 Mechanical Plan - Site 3         
M-6 Mechanical Sections - Site 3         
M-7 Mechanical Plan - Site 4         
M-8 Mechanical Sections - Site 4         
M-9 Mechanical Plan - Site 5         
M-10 Mechanical Sections - Site 5         
M-11 Mechanical Details -1         
M-12 Mechanical Details -2         
Structural            
S-1 Structural General Notes and Abbreviations         
S-2 Special Inspection and Testing Notes         
S-3 Standard Details         
S-4 Foundation Plan - Site 1         
S-5 Sections and Details - Site 1         
S-6 Foundation Plan - Site 2         
S-7 Sections and Details - Site 2         
S-8 Foundation Plan - Site 3         
S-9 Sections and Details - Site 3         
S-10 Foundation Plan - Site 4         
S-11 Sections and Details - Site 4         
S-12 Foundation Plan - Site 5         
S-13 Sections and Details - Site 5         
Electrical            
E-1 Electrical Abbreviations and Notes         
E-2 Electrical Symbols - 1         
E-3 Electrical Symbols - 2         
E-4 Electrical Details - 1         
E-5 Electrical Details - 2         
E-6 Overall Electrical Site Plan         
E-7 Enlarged Area Plan - 1         
E-8 Enlarged Area Plan - 2         
E-9 Electrical Single Line Diagram - 1         
E-10 Electrical Single Line Diagram - 2         



   
 

   
 

Extraction Well Siting  
Sheet  Description  30% 60% 90% 100% 

E-11 Electrical Equipment Elevations         
E-12 Electrical Panelboard Schedules         
E-13 Electrical Luminaire Schedule         
E-14 Electrical Control Schematics - 1         
E-15 Electrical Control Schematics - 2         
E-16 Conduit Block Diagram - 1         
E-17 Conduit Block Diagram - 2         
E-18 Conduit Block Diagram - 3         
E-19 Conduit and Cable Schedules - 1         
E-20 Conduit and Cable Schedules - 2         
E-21 Conduit and Cable Schedules - 3         
E-22 Electrical Site Plan - Site 1         
E-23 Electrical Site Plan - Site 2         
E-24 Electrical Site Plan - Site 3         
E-25 Electrical Site Plan - Site 4         
E-26 Electrical Site Plan - Site 5         
Process Instrumentation            
I-1  Instrumentation Legend          
I-2 Process Legend          
I-3 Network Architecture Diagram          
I-4 Control Panel Elevations and BOM         
I-5 Control Panel Wiring Diagram         
I-6 P&ID - 1         
I-7 P&ID - 2         
I-8 P&ID - 3         
I-9 P&ID - 4         
I-10 P&ID - 5         
            
  Total # of Sheets Per Submittal = 30 73 82 87 

 

Table 3. Pipeline and Discharge Facility Sheets, Description and Design Level  

Pipeline  
Sheet  Description  30% 60% 90% 100% 

General           
G-1  Title, Vicinity Map and Location Map         
G-2 List of Drawings          
G-3 Abbreviations, Symbols and General Notes         
G-4 Overall Site Key Map         
G-5 Hydraulic Profile          
Civil            
C-1  Civil Notes and Abbreviations         
C-2 Civil Legend         
C-3 Plan and Profile -Groundwater Delivery - Segment 1 - Sta. 100+00 to Sta. 110+00         
C-4 Plan and Profile -Groundwater Delivery - Segment 1 - Sta. 110+00 to Sta. 120+00         
C-5 Plan and Profile -Groundwater Delivery -  Segment 1 - Sta. 120+00 to Sta. 129+00         
C-6 Plan and Profile -Groundwater Delivery -  Segment 2 - Sta. 200+00 to Sta. 210+00         
C-7 Plan and Profile -Groundwater Delivery - Segment 2 - Sta. 210+00 to Sta. 220+00         
C-8 Plan and Profile -Groundwater Delivery -  Segment 2 - Sta. 220+00 to Sta. 227+00         
C-9 Plan and Profile -Groundwater Delivery -  Segment 3 - Sta. 300+00 to Sta. 310+00         
C-10 Plan and Profile -Groundwater Delivery -  Segment 3 - Sta. 310+00 to Sta. 314+50         
C-11 Plan and Profile - Discharge Facility -  Sta. 0+00 to Sta. 10+00         
C-12 Plan and Profile - Discharge Facility -  Sta. 10+00 to Sta. 20+00         
C-13 Plan and Profile - Discharge Facility -  Sta. 20+00 to Sta. 25+00         
C-14 Discharge Facility Plan and Sections         
C-15 Discharge Facility Details         
C-16 Utility Relocation - Plan and Profile          
C-17 Trenchless Launch Site Enlarged Plan         
C-18 Trenchless Receiving Site Enlarged Plan         
C-19 Cathodic Protection Details - 1         
C-20 Cathodic Protection Details - 2         
C-21 Crossing Details          
C-22 Standard General Civil Details -1          
C-23 Standard General Civil Details -2         
C-24 Standard General Civil Details -3         
C-25 Standard General Civil Details -4         
Structural            
S-1 Structural General Notes and Abbreviations         
S-2 Special Inspection and Testing Notes         



   
 

   
 

Pipeline  
Sheet  Description  30% 60% 90% 100% 

S-3 Standard Details         
S-4 Bridge Pipe Support Plan - I         
S-5 Bridge Pipe Support Plan - II         
S-6 Bridge Pipe Support Details - I         
S-7 Bridge Pipe Support Details - II         
S-8 Discharge Facility  Details - I         
S-9 Discharge Facility  Details - II         
  Total # of Sheets Per Submittal = 21 33 37 39 

 

Table 4. Pipeline to SMP Preliminary Design Facility Sheets, Description for 30% Design Level Only 

Pipeline to SMP Preliminary (30%) Design 
Sheet  Description  30% 60% 90% 100% 

General           
G-1  Title, Vicinity Map and Location Map         
G-2 List of Drawings          
G-3 Abbreviations, Symbols and General Notes         
G-4 Overall Site Key Map         
G-5 Hydraulic Profile          
Civil            
C-1  Civil Notes and Abbreviations         
C-2 Civil Legend         
C-3 Plan and Profile STA: 0+00 to 10+00         
C-4 Plan and Profile STA: 10+00 to 20+00         
C-5 Plan and Profile STA: 20+00 to 30+00         
C-6 Plan and Profile STA: 30+00 to 40+00         
C-7 Plan and Profile STA: 40+00 to 50+00         
C-8 Plan and Profile STA: 50+00 to 60+00         
C-9 Plan and Profile STA: 60+00 to 70+00         
C-10 Plan and Profile STA: 70+00 to 80+00         
C-11 Plan and Profile STA: 80+00 to 90+00         
C-12 Plan and Profile STA: 90+00 to 100+00         
C-13 Plan and Profile STA: 100+00 to 110+00         
C-14 Plan and Profile STA: 110+00 to 120+00         
C-15 Plan and Profile STA: 120+00 to 130+00         
C-16 Plan and Profile STA: 130+00 to 140+00         
C-17 Plan and Profile STA: 140+00 to 150+00         
C-18 Plan and Profile STA: 150+00 to 160+00         
C-19 Plan and Profile STA: 160+00 to 170+00         
C-20 Plan and Profile STA: 170+00 to 178+00         
C-21 Utility Relocation - Plan and Profile          
C-22 Trenchless Launch Site Enlarged Plan         
C-23 Trenchless Receiving Site Enlarged Plan         
C-24 Connection Details - 1         
C-25 Connection Details - 1         
C-26 Cathodic Protection Details         
C-27 Cathodic Protection Details         
C-28 Standard General Civil Details - 1          
C-29 Standard General Civil Details - 2         
C-30 Standard General Civil Details - 3         
C-31 Standard General Civil Details - 4         
Structural            
S-1 Structural General Notes and Abbreviations         
S-2 Special Inspection and Testing Notes         
S-3 Standard Details         
S-4 Bridge Pipe Support Plan - I         
S-5 Bridge Pipe Support Plan - II         
S-6 Bridge Pipe Support Details - I         
S-7 Bridge Pipe Support Details - II         
S-8 Discharge Facility  Details - I         
S-9 Discharge Facility  Details - II         
  Total # of Sheets Per Submittal = 28 0 0 0 

 



   
 

   
 

Anticipated Project Schedule 
 

 

NTP 
1 Coordination with External Consultants and Permitting Agencies                          

1.1 External Consultant Coordination
1.2 Permitting Agency Coordination
1.3 As-Needed CEQA and Permitting Technical Support

2 Project Meetings and Design Workshops                                        
2.1 Progress Meetings
2.2 NAVFAC In-person Meetings 
2.2 Design Review Workshops (3)   

2.3 Site Visits (4)    

3 Project Management 
4 Preliminary Design Investigations 
5 Preliminary Evaluations and Technical Memorandum ™

5.1 Discharge Options Evaluations     

5.2 Well Suitability Evaluation     

5.3 Pipeline Alignment, Materials and Constructability Evaluation      

6 & 11 Well Drilling Design & Bid-Phase Services 
13 Well Drilling Construction (2 drill rigs) **
7 Preliminary Design Report    

8 Preliminary (30%) Design Drawings and Cost Estimate    

9 Design Services for Extraction Well Equipping 
9.1 60% Design   

9.2 90% Design   

9.3 100% Design 

11 Bid Phase Services -Well Equipping 

** Well Equipping Construction   
10 Design Services for Pipelines 

10.1 60% Design   

10.2 90% Design   

10.3 100% Design 

11 Bid Phase Services -Pipeline 

** Pipeline Construction   

Pipeline to SMP (Optional) 12 Pipeline to SMP Preliminary (30%) Design **

12.1 Pipeline to SMP Preliminary Investigations **

12.2 Pipeline to SMP PDR **    

12.3 Pipeline to SMP 30% Drawings **    

12.4 Project Coordination for SMP 30% Design **

Right-of-Way ** MOU & Easement Acquisition 
Environmental Documentation ** CEQA/NEPA Documentation 

** Apply & Obtain Permits 

Permit Compliance & Monitoring Reports 
** Preparation of PAEP

PAEP Annual Updates 
Additional Outreach & Coordination ** Regulators, Navy, Public Meetings 

LEGEND:  NTP  Draft Submittal  Pre-Bid Meeting  Indicates that consideration of permitting through coordination with permitting team is required ** Indicates task not scoped but included in schedule 
 Call/Meeting  Final Submittal  Construction Start  Indicates that a permit is required for task Work under separate contracts
 Workshop  4-Week United/Navy Review Period 

Sept-Dec

Preliminary Design & Well 
Drilling 

Oct
Category Task / Description 2022 2023

Mar Apr May Jun

Project Coordination & 
Management 

Mar Apr May

2024
Jan-MarFebJul Aug Nov Dec Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan-AugJanSepNov Dec Jan Feb

Permits 

Project Assessment & Evaluation Plan

Permitting

External Activities 

Pipeline & Discharge 

Well Equipping 

20262025



   
 

   
 

Budget 
Table 5. Summary of Estimated Level of Effort and Cost for Tasks 1 to 11 + Optional Tasks 

TASK DESCRIPTION KJ Total 
Hours 

KJ Total 
Labor 

Subconsultants (incl. markup) 
ODCs 

Total Labor 
+ Subs + 
Expenses RCS Scott 

Foster Mott MacDonald RF Yeager 

Task 1 – Coordination with External Consultants and Permitting Agencies  338 $80,155 - - $5,405 - $0 $85,560  

Task 2 – Project Meetings and Design Workshops 454 $112,610 $1,898 - - - $3,960 $118,468  

Task 3 – Project Management    410 $104,900 - - $35,780 - $0 $140,680  

Task 4 – Preliminary Design Investigations   318 $63,690 $4,777 $18,876 - - $880 $88,223  
Task 5 –  Preliminary Evaluations and Technical Memorandum 595 $127,115 $38,500 - $40,561 $21,956 $0 $228,132  
Task 6 – Well Drilling Design Criteria and Bid-Phase Services  46 $10,730 $28,296 - - - $0 $39,026  
Task 7 -  Preliminary Design Report (PDR) 200 $45,680 $8,749 - $31,427 - $0 $85,856  
Task 8 - Preliminary (30%) Design Drawings and Cost Estimate  942 $187,995 - - - - $0 $187,995  
Task 9 - Design Services for Extraction Well Equipping   2,178 $451,185 - - - - $0 $451,185  
Task 10 – Design Services for Pipelines  1,214 $233,180 - - $174,015 - $0 $407,195  
Task 11 – Bid Phase Services   141 $32,430 $4,743 - $9,604 - $2,640 $49,417  

TOTAL Tasks 1-11 6,836 $1,449,670  $86,964  $18,876  $296,792  $21,956  $7,480  $1,881,738  
         

OPTIONAL TASKS DESCRIPTION KJ Total 
Hours 

KJ Total 
Labor 

Subconsultants (incl. markup) 
ODCs 

Total Labor 
+ Subs + 
Expenses RCS Scott 

Foster Mott MacDonald RF Yeager 

Task 12 (Optional) – Pipeline to SMP Preliminary (30%) Design    1,439 $290,325 - - $31,427 - $0 $321,752  
Task 13 (Optional) –  Well Drilling Observation Services 245 $61,845 $741,833 - - - $0 $803,678  
Task 14 (Optional) – Conformed Documents  100 $17,420 - - - - $0 $17,420  
Task 15 (Optional) – Scour Analysis 28 $6,420 - - $30,840 - $0 $37,260  
Task 16  (Optional) – As-Requested Support - Contingency  255 $50,000 - - - - $0 $50,000  

TOTAL Optional Tasks 12-16 2,067 $426,010  $741,833  $0  $62,267  $0  $0  $1,230,110  



   
 

   
 

Table 6. Summary of Estimated Level of Effort and Cost for Tasks 1 to 11 + Optional Tasks (by Fiscal Year) 

TASK DESCRIPTION Total Phase 1 
Fee 

FY  
2022/23 

FY 
2022/24 

FY 
2022/25 

Task 1 – Coordination with External 
Consultants and Permitting 
Agencies  

$85,560  $42,780  $29,946  $12,834  

Task 2 – Project Meetings and Design 
Workshops 

$118,468  $53,310  $35,540  $29,617  

Task 3 – Project Management    $140,680  $47,831  $46,424  $46,424  

Task 4 – Preliminary Design Investigations   $88,223  $70,579  $17,645  $0  

Task 5 –  Preliminary Evaluations and 
Technical Memorandum 

$228,132  $171,099  $57,033  $0  

Task 6 – Well Drilling Design Criteria and 
Bid-Phase Services  

$39,026  $3,903  $35,124  $0  

Task 7 -  Preliminary Design Report (PDR) $85,856  $42,928  $42,928  $0  
Task 8 - Preliminary (30%) Design Drawings 

and Cost Estimate  
$187,995  $28,199  $159,796  $0  

Task 9 - Design Services for Extraction Well 
Equipping   

$451,185  $22,559  $360,948  $67,678  

Task 10 – Design Services for Pipelines  $407,195  $0  $0  $407,195  
Task 11 – Bid Phase Services   $49,417  $0  $0  $49,417  

TOTAL Tasks 1-11 $1,881,738  $483,189  $785,384  $613,165  

     

 
    

OPTIONAL TASKS DESCRIPTION Total Fee (if 
authorized) 

FY  
2022/23 

FY 
2022/24 

FY 
2022/25 

Task 12 (Optional) – Pipeline to SMP 
Preliminary (30%) 
Design    

$321,752  $160,876  $160,876  $0  

Task 13 (Optional) –  Well Drilling 
Observation Services 

$803,678  $80,368  $723,311  $0  

Task 14 (Optional) – Conformed 
Documents  

$17,420  $0  $0  $17,420  

Task 15 (Optional) – As-Requested Support 
- Contingency  

$37,260  $12,668  $12,296  $12,296  

Task 16  (Optional) – As-Requested 
Support - Contingency  

$50,000  $17,000  $16,500  $16,500  

TOTAL Optional Tasks 12-16 $1,230,110  $253,912  $896,482  $29,716  
 



January 1, 2022 Rates KJ Sub Sub Sub Sub KJ KJ KJ

 
 es

 
nt

 
 

Classification: Total La
bo

r

R
ic

ha
rd

 S
la

de
 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s

Sc
ot

t F
os

te
r 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

M
ot

t 
M

ac
D

on
al

d

R
F 

Ye
ag

er

Su
b -

M
ar

ku
p

O
D

C
s

O
D

C
s 

M
ar

ku
p

To
ta

l
La

bo
r

To
ta

l
Su

bs

To
ta

l
Ex

pe
ns

es

To
ta

l L
ab

or
 +

 
Su

bs
 +

 E
xp

en
se

s

C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

Sr
. C

A
D

-T
ec

h

Pr
oj

ec
t A

ss
is

ta
n

A
dm

in
. A

ss
is

t.

En
g-

Sc
i-3

Ev
el

yn
 C

En
g-

Sc
i-3

Ja
ck

 S

En
g-

Sc
i-3

R
ic

ar
do

 M

En
g-

Sc
i-3

Jo
na

th
an

 M
 O

En
g-

Sc
i-2

St
af

f E
ng

En
g-

Sc
i-6

Ja
ke

 S

En
g-

Sc
i-6

M
ar

k 
P

En
g-

Sc
i-6

Ja
ne

t H

En
g-

Sc
i-5

A
ar

on
 C

En
g-

Sc
i-5

C
at

rin
a 

P

En
g-

Sc
i-4

K
ev

in
 C

/K
at

ie
 M

En
g-

Sc
i-7

Pe
te

r S

En
g-

Sc
i-6

K
yl

e 
O

En
g-

Sc
i-6

M
ik

e 
W

En
g-

Sc
i-6

R
ay

 L

En
g-

Sc
i-6

Pa
ul

 C

En
g-

Sc
i-6

B
ra

nd
on

 H

En
g-

Sc
i-9

D
av

id
 F

En
g-

Sc
i-8

B
ill

 Y
/M

ilt
 L

En
g-

Sc
i-8

D
aw

n 
T

En
g-

Sc
i-8

Je
ff 

M

En
g-

Sc
i-7

G
re

gg
 B

 /
Sa

ra
h 

K

En
g-

Sc
i-8

St
ev

e 
M

En
g-

Sc
i-7

Pa
ul

 P

En
g-

Sc
i-7

Za
ch

 D

Hourly Rate: $310 $295 $295 $295 $275 $295 $275 $275 $275 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $220 $220 $205 $190 $190 $190 $190 $165 $160 $145 $130 $110 Hours Fees Fees Fees Fees Fees 10% Fees 10% Fees

Task 1 – Coordination with External Consultants and Permitting Agencies 

1.1 External Consultants Coordination (39 mtgs) 6 24 8 78 39 4 39 198 $48,265 $4,914 $491 $0 $48,265 $5,405 $0 $53,670

1.2 Permitting Agency Coordination (6 mtgs) 6 12 12 30 $7,650 $0 $0 $7,650 $0 $0 $7,650

1.3  As-Needed CEQA and Permitting Technical Support 2 4 2 2 2 2 2 24 4 8 4 12 16 12 14 110 $24,240 $0 $0 $24,240 $0 $0 $24,240

Task 1 - Subtotal 2 10 32 10 2 0 2 2 0 114 55 8 4 4 0 0 0 0 12 0 55 12 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 338 $80,155 $0 $0 $4,914 $0 $491 $0 $0 $80,155 $5,405 $0 $85,560

Task 2 – Project Meetings and Design Workshops

2.1 Progress Meetings (36 progress mtgs, 1 kickoff, 8 focused topic meetings) 28 52 52 12 144 $36,020 $1,725 $173 $400 $40 $36,020 $1,898 $440 $38,358

2.2 NAVFAC Coordination (6 mtgs, in person) 8 16 48 48 120 $30,600 $0 $800 $80 $30,600 $0 $880 $31,480

2.3 Design Review Workshops (3) 6 2 18 12 12 50 $11,990 $0 $1,600 $160 $11,990 $0 $1,760 $13,750

2.4 Site Visits (4) 16 32 32 24 16 20 140 $34,000 $0 $800 $80 $34,000 $0 $880 $34,880

Task 2 - Subtotal 0 14 62 0 0 0 0 0 0 150 144 24 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 44 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 454 $112,610 $1,725 $0 $0 $0 $173 $3,600 $360 $112,610 $1,898 $3,960 $118,468

Task 3  – Project Management   

3.1 Monthly Progress Reporting (18 reports) 27 9 10 46 $10,120 $0 $0 $10,120 $0 $0 $10,120

3.2 Project Administration 12 108 72 8 200 $48,680 $32,527 $3,253 $0 $48,680 $35,780 $0 $84,460

3.3 Schedule Development and Updates 6 6 12 24 $5,220 $0 $0 $5,220 $0 $0 $5,220

3.4 QA/QC 36 64 8 8 4 4 8 4 4 140 $40,880 $0 $0 $40,880 $0 $0 $40,880

Task 3 - Subtotal 36 64 20 8 4 0 0 0 4 149 91 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 410 $104,900 $0 $0 $32,527 $0 $3,253 $0 $0 $104,900 $35,780 $0 $140,680

Task 4 – Preliminary Design Investigations  

4.1 Data Collection & Review 4 4 4 4 16 4 36 $6,560 $4,343 $434 $0 $6,560 $4,777 $0 $11,337

4.2 Utility Survey 2 4 8 32 4 50 $8,710 $0 $800 $80 $8,710 $0 $880 $9,590

4.3 IRP Evaluation 16 8 24 $5,680 $0 $0 $5,680 $0 $0 $5,680

4.4 Base Mapping with Survey Information  8 8 12 40 68 $12,600 $0 $0 $12,600 $0 $0 $12,600

4.5 Hydraulic Evaluation  0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

4.5.1 Hydraulic Model Development & Analysis 4 12 48 64 $13,040 $0 $0 $13,040 $0 $0 $13,040

4.5.2 Surge Analysis 4 4 8 $1,860 $17,160 $1,716 $0 $1,860 $18,876 $0 $20,736

4.6 Hydrology & Water Quality Evaluations 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

4.6.1 Hydrology Evaluation 4 4 4 24 36 $7,760 $0 $0 $7,760 $0 $0 $7,760

4.6.2 Water Quality Evaluation  8 4 4 16 32 $7,480 $0 $0 $7,480 $0 $0 $7,480

Task 4 - Subtotal 12 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 34 16 0 12 16 0 0 0 0 8 0 96 24 0 0 48 40 0 0 8 318 $63,690 $4,343 $17,160 $0 $0 $2,150 $800 $80 $63,690 $23,653 $880 $88,223

Task 5 –  Preliminary Evaluations and Technical Memorandum 

5.1 Discharge Options Evaluation  0

5.1.1 Mugu Lagoon Discharge Options 1 6 2 6 4 16 24 59 $11,885 $0 $0 $11,885 $0 $0 $11,885

5.1.2  SMP Discharge Option 1 6 2 12 4 16 24 65 $13,355 $0 $0 $13,355 $0 $0 $13,355

5.1.3  Ocean Discharge Options 1 24 2 4 4 16 24 75 $16,345 $0 $0 $16,345 $0 $0 $16,345

5.1.4  Compare Discharge Options and TM 2 6 2 4 8 24 8 54 $10,070 $0 $0 $10,070 $0 $0 $10,070

5.2 Well Suitability Evaluation 2 2 4 8 16 16 48 $10,710 $35,000 $3,500 $0 $10,710 $38,500 $0 $49,210

5.3 Pipeline Alignment, Materials and Constructability Evaluation 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

5.3.1 Well Piping Alignment Analysis 8 2 16 12 32 8 24 102 $23,030 $0 $0 $23,030 $0 $0 $23,030

5.3.2 Pipeline to SMP Alignment Analysis 8 2 16 12 32 8 24 102 $23,030 $0 $0 $23,030 $0 $0 $23,030

5.3.3  Pipeline Alignment Options and TM 8 2 8 4 24 8 28 8 90 $18,690 $36,874 $19,960 $5,683 $0 $18,690 $62,517 $0 $81,207

Task 5 - Subtotal 2 26 5 0 42 0 0 0 0 18 74 28 16 0 88 0 12 0 0 0 56 0 0 0 188 0 0 0 16 595 $127,115 $35,000 $0 $36,874 $19,960 $9,183 $0 $0 $127,115 $101,017 $0 $228,132

Task 6 – Well Drilling Design

6.1 Technical Specifications 1 8 9 $2,255 $21,470 $2,147 $0 $2,255 $23,617 $0 $25,872

6.2 Construction Cost Estimate 1 4 4 9 $2,255 $2,127 $213 $0 $2,255 $2,340 $0 $4,595

6.3 SWPPP for Extraction Well Drilling 4 8 16 28 $6,220 $2,127 $213 $0 $6,220 $2,340 $0 $8,560

Task 6 - Subtotal 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 20 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46 $10,730 $25,724 $0 $0 $0 $2,572 $0 $0 $10,730 $28,296 $0 $39,026

https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/WIBUMarketingStaff/Proposals/United_Water_Conservation_District_CA/2022_EBB_Phase1_DesignServices/06_Negotiations/UWCD EBB Phase 1 Fee_FINAL.xlsm © 2008 Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc.

Table 7. Detailed Fee Estimate for Tasks 1 to 11 



January 1, 2022 Rates KJ Sub Sub Sub Sub KJ KJ KJ

 
 es

 
nt

 
 

Classification: Total La
bo

r

R
ic

ha
rd

 S
la

de
 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s

Sc
ot

t F
os

te
r 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

M
ot

t 
M

ac
D

on
al

d

R
F 

Ye
ag

er

Su
b-

M
ar

ku
p

O
D

C
s

O
D

C
s 

M
ar

ku
p

To
ta

l
La

bo
r

To
ta

l
Su

bs

To
ta

l
Ex

pe
ns

es

To
ta

l L
ab

or
 +

 
Su

bs
 +

 E
xp

en
se

s

C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

Sr
. C

A
D

-T
ec

h

Pr
oj

ec
t A

ss
is

ta
n

A
dm

in
. A

ss
is

t.

En
g-

Sc
i-3

Ev
el

yn
 C

En
g-

Sc
i-3

Ja
ck

 S

En
g-

Sc
i-3

R
ic

ar
do

 M

En
g-

Sc
i-3

Jo
na

th
an

 M
 O

En
g-

Sc
i-2

St
af

f E
ng

En
g-

Sc
i-6

Ja
ke

 S

En
g-

Sc
i-6

M
ar

k 
P

En
g-

Sc
i-6

Ja
ne

t H

En
g-

Sc
i-5

A
ar

on
 C

En
g-

Sc
i-5

C
at

rin
a 

P

En
g-

Sc
i-4

K
ev

in
 C

/K
at

ie
 M

En
g-

Sc
i-7

Pe
te

r S

En
g-

Sc
i-6

K
yl

e 
O

En
g-

Sc
i-6

M
ik

e 
W

En
g-

Sc
i-6

R
ay

 L

En
g-

Sc
i-6

Pa
ul

 C

En
g-

Sc
i-6

B
ra

nd
on

 H

En
g-

Sc
i-9

D
av

id
 F

En
g-

Sc
i-8

B
ill

 Y
/M

ilt
 L

En
g-

Sc
i-8

D
aw

n 
T

En
g-

Sc
i-8

Je
ff 

M

En
g-

Sc
i-7

G
re

gg
 B

 /
Sa

ra
h 

K

En
g-

Sc
i-8

St
ev

e 
M

En
g-

Sc
i-7

Pa
ul

 P

En
g-

Sc
i-7

Za
ch

 D

Hourly Rate: $310 $295 $295 $295 $275 $295 $275 $275 $275 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $220 $220 $205 $190 $190 $190 $190 $165 $160 $145 $130 $110 Hours Fees Fees Fees Fees Fees 10% Fees 10% Fees

Task 7 -  Preliminary Design Report (PDR) 

7.1 Draft Preliminary Design Report 4 8 8 4 2 4 4 16 8 16 2 12 4 24 18 8 142 $32,960 $7,954 $795 $0 $32,960 $8,749 $0 $41,709

7.2 Final Preliminary Design Report  2 2 2 4 4 8 6 2 12 12 4 58 $12,720 $28,570 $2,857 $0 $12,720 $31,427 $0 $44,147

Task 7 - Subtotal 6 10 10 4 2 0 4 4 0 20 12 24 2 18 6 0 0 0 0 0 36 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 12 200 $45,680 $7,954 $0 $28,570 $0 $3,652 $0 $0 $45,680 $40,176 $0 $85,856

Task 8 - Preliminary (30%) Design Drawings and Cost Estimate 

8.1 30% Preliminary Design Drawings  0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

30% Extraction Well Equipping Drawings  22 26 76 6 33 12 12 15 24 45 51 24 82 165 593 $121,055 $0 $0 $121,055 $0 $0 $121,055

30% Pipeline Drawings  10 3 39 6 23 73 134 19 307 $57,380 $0 $0 $57,380 $0 $0 $57,380

8.2 30% Preliminary Design OPCC  4 4 24 4 4 2 42 $9,560 $0 $0 $9,560 $0 $0 $9,560

Task 8 - Subtotal 0 0 0 22 10 0 26 76 9 0 33 43 12 16 21 0 24 0 0 47 49 128 24 82 0 134 184 0 2 942 $187,995 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $187,995 $0 $0 $187,995

Task 9 - Design Services for Extraction Well Equipping  

9.1 60% Extraction Well Equipping Submittal  0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

9.1.1 60% Extraction Well Equipping Drawings  26 31 91 7 8 32 32 17 29 53 61 29 98 197 711 $145,250 $0 $0 $145,250 $0 $0 $145,250

9.1.2 60% Extraction Well Equipping Specifications 8 8 4 24 4 4 24 24 4 104 $22,680 $0 $0 $22,680 $0 $0 $22,680

9.1.3 60% Extraction Well Equipping Cost Estimate  2 4 16 6 28 $6,530 $0 $0 $6,530 $0 $0 $6,530

9.2 90% Extraction Well Equipping Submittal  0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

9.2.1 90% Extraction Well Equipping Drawings  26 31 91 7 8 32 32 17 29 53 61 29 98 197 711 $145,250 $0 $0 $145,250 $0 $0 $145,250

9.2.2 90% Extraction Well Equipping Specifications  16 16 4 24 2 4 24 24 12 126 $27,470 $0 $0 $27,470 $0 $0 $27,470

9.2.3 90% Extraction Well Equipping Cost Estimate  2 2 12 6 22 $5,060 $0 $0 $5,060 $0 $0 $5,060

9.3 100% Extraction Well Equipping Submittal  0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

9.3.1 100% Extraction Well Equipping Drawings  13 15 46 4 4 16 16 9 14 27 31 14 49 99 357 $72,950 $0 $0 $72,950 $0 $0 $72,950

9.3.2 100% Extraction Well Equipping Specifications  8 8 2 16 2 2 16 16 8 78 $16,700 $0 $0 $16,700 $0 $0 $16,700

9.3.3 100% Extraction Well Equipping Cost Estimate  1 2 8 2 13 $3,075 $0 $0 $3,075 $0 $0 $3,075

9.4 SWPPP for Well Equipping 4 8 16 28 $6,220 $0 $0 $6,220 $0 $0 $6,220

Task 9 - Subtotal 0 0 0 65 0 0 109 260 18 4 43 0 80 152 43 8 36 10 0 88 211 217 72 245 0 0 493 0 24 2178 $451,185 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $451,185 $0 $0 $451,185

Task 10 – Design Services for Pipelines and Discharge Facility

10.1 60% Pipeline  and Discharge Facility Submittal  0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

10.1.1 60% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Drawings 12 3 8 32 7 27 87 160 23 359 $66,640 $0 $0 $66,640 $0 $0 $66,640

10.1.2 60% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Specs  4 4 16 24 4 52 $11,000 $0 $0 $11,000 $0 $0 $11,000

10.1.3 60% Pipeline  and Discharge Facility Estimate  2 4 16 4 26 $6,150 $0 $0 $6,150 $0 $0 $6,150

10.2 90% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Submittal  0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

10.2.1 90% Pipeline  and Discharge Facility Drawings 8 3 8 32 7 27 87 160 23 355 $65,540 $0 $0 $65,540 $0 $0 $65,540

10.2.2 90% Pipeline  and Discharge Facility Specs  4 4 16 24 12 60 $11,880 $0 $0 $11,880 $0 $0 $11,880

10.2.3 90% Pipeline  and Discharge Facility Estimate  2 4 12 4 22 $5,170 $0 $0 $5,170 $0 $0 $5,170

10.3 100% Pipeline and Discharge Facility Submittal  0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

10.3.1 100% Pipeline  and Discharge Facility Drawings 4 2 4 16 3 14 44 80 11 178 $32,910 $0 $0 $32,910 $0 $0 $32,910

10.3.2 100% Pipeline  and Discharge Facility Specs  2 2 12 16 8 40 $7,900 $0 $0 $7,900 $0 $0 $7,900

10.3.3 100% Pipeline and Discharge Facility  Estimate  2 2 8 4 16 $3,700 $0 $0 $3,700 $0 $0 $3,700

10.4 Trenchless Design (Mott MacDonald) 4 8 12 16 8 48 $10,080 $158,195 $15,820 $0 $10,080 $174,015 $0 $184,095

10.5 SWPPP for Pipelines and Discharge Facility 8 12 30 8 58 $12,210 $0 $0 $12,210 $0 $0 $12,210

Task 10 - Subtotal 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 0 8 12 56 146 0 0 17 0 36 0 0 98 0 310 0 0 0 400 73 0 24 1214 $233,180 $0 $0 $158,195 $0 $15,820 $0 $0 $233,180 $174,015 $0 $407,195

Task 11 – Bid Phase Services  

11.1 Extraction Well Drilling Bid Phase Services  0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

11.1.1 Extraction Well Drilling Pre-Bid Meeting 4 2 6 $1,470 $500 $50 $800 $80 $1,470 $550 $880 $2,900

11.1.2 Extraction Well Drilling Response to Bidder’s Questions  1 2 3 $735 $2,500 $250 $0 $735 $2,750 $0 $3,485

11.1.3 Extraction Well Drilling Bid Analysis and Award Recommendation 1 2 3 $735 $1,312 $131 $0 $735 $1,443 $0 $2,178

11.2 Extraction Well Equipping Bid Phase Services  0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

11.2.1 Extraction Well Equipping Pre-Bid Meeting 4 4 8 $1,960 $0 $800 $80 $1,960 $0 $880 $2,840

11.2.2 Extraction Well Equipping Response to Bidder’s Questions  4 3 3 3 3 3 6 16 3 6 6 3 59 $13,800 $0 $0 $13,800 $0 $0 $13,800

11.2.3 Extraction Well Bid Analysis and Award Recommendation 1 2 4 7 $1,495 $0 $0 $1,495 $0 $0 $1,495

11.3 Pipeline and Discharge Facility Bid Phase Services  0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

11.3.1 Pipeline and Discharge Facility Pre-Bid Meeting 4 4 8 $1,960 $0 $800 $80 $1,960 $0 $880 $2,840

11.3.2 Pipeline and Discharge FacilityResponse to Bidder’s Questions  4 2 2 4 8 4 6 8 2 40 $8,780 $8,731 $873 $0 $8,780 $9,604 $0 $18,384

11.3.3 Pipeline and Discharge Facility Well Bid Analysis and Award Recommendation 1 2 4 7 $1,495 $0 $0 $1,495 $0 $0 $1,495

Task 11 - Subtotal 4 4 0 3 0 0 3 3 5 21 22 8 6 16 7 0 0 0 0 0 14 6 0 0 0 8 6 0 5 141 $32,430 $4,312 $0 $8,731 $0 $1,304 $2,400 $240 $32,430 $14,347 $2,640 $49,417

Tasks 1-11 Total 62 130 129 112 98 0 144 345 44 526 566 281 152 222 182 8 112 10 20 249 561 763 96 327 236 582 756 32 91 6836 $1,449,670 $79,058 $17,160 $269,811 $19,960 $38,599 $6,800 $680 $1,449,670 $424,588 $7,480 $1,881,738

https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/WIBUMarketingStaff/Proposals/United_Water_Conservation_District_CA/2022_EBB_Phase1_DesignServices/06_Negotiations/UWCD EBB Phase 1 Fee_FINAL.xlsm © 2008 Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc.

Table 7. Detailed Fee Estimate for Tasks 1 to 11 (con't)



January 1, 2022 Rates KJ Sub Sub Sub Sub KJ KJ KJ

 
 es

 
nt

 
 

Classification: Total La
bo

r

R
ic

ha
rd

 S
la

de
 

&
 A

ss
oc

ia
te

s

Sc
ot

t F
os

te
r 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g

M
ot

t 
M

ac
D

on
al

d

R
F 

Ye
ag

er

Su
b-

M
ar

ku
p

O
D

C
s

O
D

C
s 

M
ar

ku
p

To
ta

l
La

bo
r

To
ta

l
Su

bs

To
ta

l
Ex

pe
ns

es

To
ta

l L
ab

or
 +

 
Su

bs
 +

 E
xp

en
se

s

C
A

D
-D

es
ig

n

Sr
. C

A
D

-T
ec

h

Pr
oj

ec
t A

ss
is

ta
n

A
dm

in
. A

ss
is

t.

En
g-

Sc
i-3

Ev
el

yn
 C

En
g-

Sc
i-3

Ja
ck

 S

En
g-

Sc
i-3

R
ic

ar
do

 M

En
g-

Sc
i-3

Jo
na

th
an

 M
 O

En
g-

Sc
i-2

St
af

f E
ng

En
g-

Sc
i-6

Ja
ke

 S

En
g-

Sc
i-6

M
ar

k 
P

En
g-

Sc
i-6

Ja
ne

t H

En
g-

Sc
i-5

A
ar

on
 C

En
g-

Sc
i-5

C
at

rin
a 

P

En
g-

Sc
i-4

K
ev

in
 C

/K
at

ie
 M

En
g-

Sc
i-7

Pe
te

r S

En
g-

Sc
i-6

K
yl

e 
O

En
g-

Sc
i-6

M
ik

e 
W

En
g-

Sc
i-6

R
ay

 L

En
g-

Sc
i-6

Pa
ul

 C

En
g-

Sc
i-6

B
ra

nd
on

 H

En
g-

Sc
i-9

D
av

id
 F

En
g-

Sc
i-8

B
ill

 Y
/M

ilt
 L

En
g-

Sc
i-8

D
aw

n 
T

En
g-

Sc
i-8

Je
ff 

M

En
g-

Sc
i-7

G
re

gg
 B

 /
Sa

ra
h 

K

En
g-

Sc
i-8

St
ev

e 
M

En
g-

Sc
i-7

Pa
ul

 P

En
g-

Sc
i-7

Za
ch

 D

Hourly Rate: $310 $295 $295 $295 $275 $295 $275 $275 $275 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $245 $220 $220 $205 $190 $190 $190 $190 $165 $160 $145 $130 $110 Hours Fees Fees Fees Fees Fees 10% Fees 10% Fees

OPTIONAL TASKS
Task 12 (Optional) – Pipeline to SMP Preliminary (30%) Design   

12.1 Pipeline to SMP Preliminary Investigations 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

12.1.1 Pipeline to SMP Site Visit 8 8 8 8 32 $7,400 $0 $0 $7,400 $0 $0 $7,400

12.1.2 Pipeline to SMP Hydraulic Modeling 8 24 32 $6,520 $0 $0 $6,520 $0 $0 $6,520

12.1.3 Pipeline to SMP Utility Surveying 2 4 20 32 40 98 $16,950 $0 $0 $16,950 $0 $0 $16,950

12.1.4 Pipeline to SMP Basemap with Survey Information 8 12 20 40 80 $15,100 $0 $0 $15,100 $0 $0 $15,100

12.1.5 Pipeline to SMP Permitting, Environmental Support & Coordination 26 22 44 92 $20,120 $0 $0 $20,120 $0 $0 $20,120

12.1.6 Review and Integration of Pipeline Support Studies 4 8 12 16 16 32 40 128 $25,520 $28,570 $2,857 $0 $25,520 $31,427 $0 $56,947

12.2 Pipeline to SMP PDR 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

12.2.1 Draft PDR for Pipeline to SMP 4 2 12 16 24 40 40 8 146 $30,590 $0 $0 $30,590 $0 $0 $30,590

12.2.2 Final PDR for Pipeline to SMP 2 2 4 8 12 20 20 4 72 $15,100 $0 $0 $15,100 $0 $0 $15,100

12.3 Pipeline to SMP 30% Drawings 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

12.3.1 Pipeline to SMP 30% Drawings 4 104 40 148 288 584 $108,460 $0 $0 $108,460 $0 $0 $108,460

12.3.2 Pipeline to SMP 30% OPCC 2 2 4 24 8 4 44 $10,120 $0 $0 $10,120 $0 $0 $10,120

12.4 Project Coordination for SMP 30% Design 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

12.4.1 Pipeline to SMP Project Meetings, Coordination and Workshop 12 33 16 8 8 77 $19,025 $0 $0 $19,025 $0 $0 $19,025

12.4.2 Pipeline to SMP QA/QC 38 8 4 2 2 54 $15,420 $0 $0 $15,420 $0 $0 $15,420

Task 12 - Subtotal 0 48 24 0 0 4 0 0 0 99 98 188 8 0 0 0 24 0 0 0 202 292 0 0 32 408 0 0 12 1439 $290,325 $0 $0 $28,570 $0 $2,857 $0 $0 $290,325 $31,427 $0 $321,752

Task 13 (Optional) –  Well Drilling Observation Services

13.1 Well Drilling Observation Project Management 35 70 105 $25,725 $64,911 $6,491 $0 $25,725 $71,402 $0 $97,127

13.2 Pre-Construction Meeting 14 14 28 $6,860 $11,291 $1,129 $0 $6,860 $12,420 $0 $19,280

13.3 Conductor Casing and Rig Mobilization 0 $0 $15,344 $1,534 $0 $0 $16,878 $0 $16,878

13.4 Geologic Logging of Pilot Hole 0 $0 $19,187 $1,919 $0 $0 $21,106 $0 $21,106

13.5 Downhole Geophysical Survey Log Analysis 0 $0 $27,153 $2,715 $0 $0 $29,868 $0 $29,868

13.6 Isolated Aquifer Zone Testing (If Performed) 0 $0 $71,393 $7,139 $0 $0 $78,532 $0 $78,532

13.7 Final Well Design Memorandum, Monitor Borehole Ream(s) and Caliper Survey 14 14 14 42 $11,200 $75,264 $7,526 $0 $11,200 $82,790 $0 $93,990

13.8 Casing, Gravel Pack and Cement Seal Installation 0 $0 $57,596 $5,760 $0 $0 $63,356 $0 $63,356

13.9 Well Development (Mechanical and Chemical Methods) 0 $0 $36,309 $3,631 $0 $0 $39,940 $0 $39,940

13.10 Well Development (Pumping Methods) 0 $0 $36,309 $3,631 $0 $0 $39,940 $0 $39,940

13.11 Step Drawdown Testing 0 $0 $25,193 $2,519 $0 $0 $27,712 $0 $27,712

13.12 Constant Rate Pumping Testing 0 $0 $33,467 $3,347 $0 $0 $36,814 $0 $36,814

13.13 Casing Alignment Testing, Video Survey, Static Spinner Survey, and Well Disinfection 0 $0 $24,780 $2,478 $0 $0 $27,258 $0 $27,258

13.14 Recommended Pumping Rate and Pump Depth Setting Memorandum 14 14 14 42 $11,200 $65,828 $6,583 $0 $11,200 $72,411 $0 $83,611

13.15 Preparation of Summary of Well Construction Operations Report 14 14 28 $6,860 $110,369 $11,037 $0 $6,860 $121,406 $0 $128,266

Task 13 - Subtotal 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 91 0 0 126 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 245 $61,845 $674,394 $0 $0 $0 $67,439 $0 $0 $61,845 $741,833 $0 $803,678

Task 14 (Optional) – Conformed Documents 

14.1 Extraction Well Equipping Conformed Documents 2 8 8 8 44 70 $11,870 $0 $0 $11,870 $0 $0 $11,870

14.2 Pipeline Conformed Documents 2 4 8 16 30 $5,550 $0 $0 $5,550 $0 $0 $5,550

Task 14 - Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 16 0 0 0 16 44 0 0 100 $17,420 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $17,420 $0 $0 $17,420

Task 15 (Optional) – Scour Analysis

Scour Analysis (Mott MacDonald) 4 8 8 8 28 $6,420 $28,036 $2,804 $0 $6,420 $30,840 $0 $37,260

Task 15 - Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 8 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28 $6,420 $0 $0 $28,036 $0 $2,804 $0 $0 $6,420 $30,840 $0 $37,260

Task 16  (Optional) – As-Requested Support - Contingency 

As-Requested Support 4 4 8 24 24 8 8 8 8 30 30 30 20 24 25 255 $50,000 $0 $0 $50,000 $0 $0 $50,000

Task 16 - Subtotal 4 4 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 24 24 8 8 8 0 0 0 0 8 0 30 30 0 0 30 20 24 0 25 255 $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $0 $0 $50,000

OPTIONAL Tasks  12-16 Total 32 52 32 0 0 4 0 0 0 214 130 208 150 16 0 0 24 0 8 0 248 338 0 0 62 444 68 0 37 2067 $426,010 $674,394 $0 $56,606 $0 $73,100 $0 $0 $426,010 $804,100 $0 $1,230,110

https://kjcnet.sharepoint.com/sites/WIBUMarketingStaff/Proposals/United_Water_Conservation_District_CA/2022_EBB_Phase1_DesignServices/06_Negotiations/UWCD EBB Phase 1 Fee_FINAL.xlsm © 2008 Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc.

Table 8. Detailed Fee Estimate for Tasks 12 to 16



   
 

   
 

Schedule of Charges   

 

 



   
 

   
 

EXHIBIT “B” TO AGREEMENT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

CONSULTANT shall adhere to the following Guidelines for Expense 
Reimbursement:  

Incidental expenditures incurred by CONSULTANT in the course of performing work 
under this Agreement and submitted for reimbursement by UNITED shall comply 
with the following guidelines.  

Receipts are required for all reimbursable expenses (with an exception for meals and 
lodging) and shall be furnished with the invoice. Reimbursable expenditures shall not 
be subject to mark-up. Only actual costs of expenditures within the limits presented 
below are eligible for reimbursement.  

1. Reimbursable Expenditures 

A. Travel Expenses 

Expenses for airfare or other travel accommodations shall not exceed costs that 
would reasonably be expected for comparable economy or coach class 
accommodations. 

Personal vehicles may be used when appropriate and mileage will be 
reimbursed at the standard Internal Revenue Service (IRS) business mileage rate 
(e.g., 62.5 cents per mile for calendar year 2022, but for a total cost no greater than 
the cost that would reasonably be expected for round trip economy or coach class 
airfare. With the exception of extenuating circumstances (e.g. transport of specialized 
equipment), mileage for any trip over 500 miles shall be reimbursed at a total cost no 
greater than would reasonably be expected for round trip economy or coach class 
airfare. Extenuating circumstances shall be pre-approved by UNITED.  

Rental vehicle costs are reimbursable when justified by the nature of the trip. 
With the exception of extenuating circumstances (e.g. transport of more than 4 people 
or excessive cargo) the total expense for the rental vehicle shall not exceed a cost that 
would reasonably be expected for a standard class vehicle. Insurance for rental 
vehicles is not reimbursable and must be in accordance with all insurance 
requirements set forth in this Agreement. 

B. Lodging  

The cost of lodging incurred on approved CONSULTANT business trips is 
reimbursable. UNITED will reimburse lodging at the standard U.S. General Services 
Administration (GSA) rate for Ventura County (e.g., $182.00 per night [excluding 



   
 

   
 

taxes] for the months of October 2020 and January – September 2021). GSA rates are 
annually updated in October. 

C. Meals 

The cost of meals incurred on approved CONSULTANT Projects is 
reimbursable.  

If UNITED is reimbursing the CONSULTANT for lodging, UNITED will 
reimburse for meals at the appropriate standard GSA rate for Ventura County (i.e., 
$49.50 (or 75% of a daily rate) per day for first and last calendar day of PROJECT 
work, and $66.00 per day for additional PROJECT work days for calendar year 2021. 

If UNITED is not reimbursing the CONSULTANT for lodging, UNITED will 
not reimburse the CONSULTANT for meals.  

D. Equipment 

All reimbursable equipment must be purchased or rented at a reasonable cost, 
in accordance with industry standards.  

E. Expendable Items 

Items that are expendable (depleted) will not be returned to UNITED, as the 
items will be “used up” in the course of CONSULTANT’s work. 

F. Non-Expendable Items 

Items that are non-expendable (not depleted) will be returned to UNITED upon 
completion of CONSULTANT’s work. 

 



   
 

   
 

EXHIBIT “C” TO AGREEMENT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and 
for injuries that occur and claims which are made after the services herein are 
performed, insurance against claims or injuries to persons or damages to property, 
which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder 
by CONSULTANT, its agents, representatives, or employees.  

Minimum Scope of Insurance  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence 
Form CG 00 01 or its equivalent). 

2. Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering Automobile 
Liability, Code 1 or its equivalent (any auto). 

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and 
Employer's Liability Insurance. 

4. Errors & Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to the CONSULTANT’s 
profession.  Architects’ and engineers’ coverage is to be endorsed to include 
contractual liability. 

5. Valuable Document Insurance on all plans, specifications and other documents 
as may be required to protect UNITED in the amount of its full equity in such 
plans, specifications and other documents. 

Minimum Limits of Insurance  

CONSULTANT shall maintain limits no less than: 

1. General Liability: 
Including operations, products 
and completed operations, as 
applicable. 

$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily 
injury, personal injury and property 
damage.  If Commercial General 
Liability Insurance or other form with a 
general aggregate limit is used, either 
the general aggregate limit shall apply 
separately to this project/location or the 
general aggregate limit shall be twice 
the required occurrence limit. 

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 
and property damage. 



   
 

   
 

3. Employer’s Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 
or disease. 

4. Errors & Omissions Liability: $1,000,000 per claim. 

5. Valuable Document Insurance Full Equity of all Documents 

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by 
UNITED.  At the option of UNITED, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects UNITED, its directors, officers, 
officials, employees and agents; or CONSULTANT shall provide a financial 
guarantee satisfactory to UNITED guaranteeing payment of losses and related 
investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 

Other Insurance Provisions 

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or 
be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

6. For all policies required by this Agreement, UNITED and its directors, officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered as additional named 
insureds as respects: liability arising out of work or operations performed by 
or on behalf of the CONSULTANT; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the CONSULTANT. 

7. For any claims related to this Project, the CONSULTANT’s insurance coverage 
shall be primary insurance as respects UNITED and its directors, officers, 
officials, employees and agents.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained 
by  UNITED, its directors, officers, officials, employees or agents shall be 
excess of the CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

8. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that 
coverage shall not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days 
prior written notice has been provided to UNITED (with the exception of ten 
(10) days for nonpayment of premium). 

If General Liability, Contractors Pollution Liability and/or Asbestos Pollution 
Liability and/or Errors & Omissions coverages are written on a claims-made form: 

9. The retroactive date must be shown, and must be before the date of the contract 
or the beginning of contract work. 

10. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for 
at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 



   
 

   
 

11. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective date, 
the CONSULTANT must purchase an extended period coverage for a 
minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work. 

12. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to UNITED for 
review. 

13. If the services involve lead-based paint or asbestos identification/ remediation, 
the Contractors Pollution Liability shall not contain lead-based paint or 
asbestos exclusions.  If the services involve mold identification/ remediation, 
the Contractors Pollution Liability shall not contain a mold exclusion and the 
definition of “Pollution” shall include microbial matter including mold. 

Acceptability of Insurers 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers qualified to do business in the State of 
California with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A: VII, unless otherwise 
acceptable to UNITED.  Exception may be made for the State Compensation 
Insurance Fund when not specifically rated. 

Verification of Coverage 

CONSULTANT shall furnish UNITED with original certificates and amendatory/ 
additional insured endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause.  The 
endorsements should be on forms provided by UNITED or on other than UNITED’s 
forms provided those endorsements conform to UNITED requirements.  All 
certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by UNITED before 
work commences.  However, failure to do so shall not operate as a waiver of these 
insurance requirements. UNITED reserves the right to require complete, certified 
copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements effecting the 
coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

Waiver of Subrogation 

CONSULTANT hereby agrees to waive subrogation, which any insurer of contractor 
may acquire from vendor by virtue of the payment of any loss.  CONSULTANT agrees 
to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. 

The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in 
favor of the entity for all work performed by the CONSULTANT, its employees, 
agents and subcontractors. 

 



Page 1 of 2 

To: 

Through: 

From: 

Date: 

Agenda Item: 

Staff Report 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 

Dr. Maryam Bral, Chief Engineer 
Tessa Lenz, Associate Environmental Scientist 

November 22, 2022 (December 14, 2022, Meeting) 

5.3 Authorize a Contract with Environmental Science Associates (ESA) to 
provide Consultant Services for CEQA and NEPA Documentation 
and Regulatory Permitting for the  Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier 
and Brackish Water Treatment Project 
Motion 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Board will consider authorizing the General Manager to execute an agreement with 
Environmental Science Associates (ESA) in the amount of $908,256 [$825,687 + 10% 
contingency ($82,569)] to provide consultant services for the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Documentation, Processing, and 
Regulatory Permitting for the Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment 
Project (EBB Water). 

Background: 
Degraded water quality is present in approximately ten (10) square miles of the Upper Aquifer 
System (UAS) in the area between Port Hueneme and Point Mugu which is the result of recent and 
historic episodes of seawater intrusion. United Water Conservation District (District) is proposing 
construction of a groundwater extraction well field to intercept the intrusion of seawater near the 
Mugu submarine canyon (Phase 1) and a brackish water treatment plant, to treat the extracted 
water (Phase 2) for beneficial use within the District service area.  

In 2019, the District engaged with the U.S. Navy to develop the Extraction Barrier and Brackish 
(EBB) Water Project at Naval Base Ventura County (NBVC) Point Mugu, which is adjacent to the 
Mugu submarine canyon. The U.S. Navy has expressed support for the project as it would provide 
water supply reliability, resiliency, and accessibility, critical to supporting military missions at 
NBVC and help achieve long-term groundwater sustainability in the Oxnard and Pleasant Valley 
Basin.   

The District is also planning the future implementation phase of the project (Phase 2) that will 
involve treatment and distribution of product water for potable and non-potable uses, and disposal 
of brine. In May 2022, an Extended Desktop Treatment Modeling Evaluation Report was prepared 



Agenda Item:   5.3 Authorize a Contract with ESA to provide Consultant Services for 
CEQA and NEPA Documentation and Regulatory Permitting for the 
Phase 1 of the Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment 
Project 

  Motion 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 

by Trussell Technologies, Inc. using expanded groundwater sampling data that was collected 
between 2020 and 2021. The report indicated that treatment is feasible and that further evaluation 
is needed on the efficacy of pre-treatment technologies. The District has also engaged with the 
Calleguas Municipal Water District (CMWD) regarding the use of the Salinity Management 
Pipeline (SMP) which is located within the project vicinity and appears to have available capacity 
to accept brine from the District’s proposed and future treatment facility.   
 
In April 2022, United completed a screening-level CEQA Initial Study and permitting work plan 
identifying environmental regulatory needs of the project. These products were developed in 
collaboration with the U.S. Navy and are the basis for the contract up for consideration. With 
agreement and engagement from the U.S. Navy, the current contract would cover CEQA and 
NEPA requirements to streamline the analysis on both the state and federal level.  
 
Discussion:  On August 8, 2022, District staff issued a Request for Qualifications/Proposals 
(RFQ/P) via BidNet Direct for consultant services to support CEQA and NEPA document 
development and environmental permitting for EBB Water, demonstration phase. On September 
15, 2022, the District received five proposals. An interview panel consisting of environmental 
services, water resources, and engineering staff reviewed all five proposals and shortlisted the top 
three proposals for further evaluation. Staff coordinated individual interviews with the top three 
qualified firms over three consecutive weeks in the month of November. Staff shortlisted the top 
two firms for subsequent meetings. After staff deliberation and contacting the firm’s references, 
ESA was selected as the most qualified firm to provide environmental consultant services for 
Phase 1 of the EBB Water Project. Under the agreement, ESA will provide consultant services for 
CEQA and NEPA documentation, processing, and regulatory permitting for the Phase 1. ESA will 
build upon the developed screening-level CEQA initial study and collaborate with the design team 
to provide regulatory guidance.   
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the general manager to execute an agreement with ESA 
with a contract amount of $908,256.  
 
Fiscal Impact:   
The agreement has a not-to-exceed contract total amount of $908,256 [$825,687 + 10% 
contingency ($82,569)] is included in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 EBB Water 
Capital Improvement Project (CIP) Budget, CEQA/permits task (051-400-81080; 8019-825). 
Sufficient funds in the amount of $350,000 are available to carry the work through FY 2022-23. 
 

Attachment: 
Attachment A – Professional Consulting Services Agreement between United Water Conservation 

District and ESA (partially executed) 



1 

AGREEMENT FOR 
PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on 
________________, 2022, by and between the United Water Conservation 
District, Ventura County, California, (hereinafter “UNITED”), and Environmental 
Science Associates, (hereinafter “CONSULTANT”). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, UNITED desires to obtain professional environmental consultation 
services in connection with the Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment 
Project, Demonstration Phase. (“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, UNITED has selected CONSULTANT to provide such services; 
and 

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT represents that it has the skills, experience, 
license, and expertise to perform these professional services for UNITED; and  

WHEREAS, UNITED is desirous of engaging the services of CONSULTANT 
to perform these services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, based on the terms and covenants set forth herein, 
UNITED and CONSULTANT mutually agree as follows: 

1. EMPLOYMENT

A. UNITED hereby employs CONSULTANT to perform and complete the
professional environmental services as set forth in Exhibit “A” (“Scope of 
Work/Schedule of Charges”). CONSULTANT shall perform such professional 
services as set forth in Exhibit “A” and shall furnish or procure the use of incidental 
services, equipment, and facilities reasonably necessary for the completion of 
services. 

B. Any extra work over and above that included in the Scope of Work
included in Exhibit “A” shall be in compliance with Section 3D. 

C. CONSULTANT represents that its services shall be performed, within
the limits prescribed by UNITED, in a manner consistent with the level of care and 
skill ordinarily exercised by other environmental professionals under similar 
circumstances at the time and in the vicinity its services are performed. 

D. Tom Barnes shall: (a) personally perform or supervise the
performance of services on a day-to-day basis on behalf of CONSULTANT; and (b) 



2 

maintain direct communication with UNITED’s Tessa Lenz or designee in the 
performance of CONSULTANT’s services. 

E. CONSULTANT in the performance of services hereunder shall fully 
comply with any and all local, state and federal laws, regulations, ordinances, and 
policies applicable to its work, including any licensing laws applicable to 
CONSULTANT’s profession and anti-discrimination laws pertaining to employment 
practices. 

F. In the event of any conflict between the terms and conditions set forth 
in Exhibit “A” (Scope of Work/Schedule of Charges) versus those terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement, the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement shall govern and the conflicting terms and conditions in Exhibit “A” 
shall not apply. 

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

Unless otherwise earlier terminated as specified in Section 8, this Agreement 
shall commence on the date set forth above and shall expire on June 30, 2024.  

3. COMPENSATION 

Payment by UNITED for the consulting services shall be considered as full 
compensation for all personnel, materials, supplies, and equipment used in carrying 
out the work. 

A. Compensation and payments to the CONSULTANT shall be as 
described below: 

1. UNITED shall compensate CONSULTANT on a time and 
expenses basis not to exceed $908,256 (nine hundred and eight thousand, two 
hundred and fifty six dollars) for performing all services authorized and required by 
this Agreement and specified in Exhibit “A.”  UNITED shall compensate 
CONSULTANT only for actual costs incurred on a time and expenses basis, but 
in no event shall the total compensation be greater than the not to exceed amount 
above.  However, the total amount paid on a time and expenses basis may be lower 
than the not to exceed amount above based on actual costs incurred.  Payment shall 
be made in accordance with CONSULTANT’s Schedule of Charges submitted to 
UNITED, included in Exhibit “A” attached and incorporated by reference herein. 

2. CONSULTANT shall provide UNITED with monthly itemized 
invoices. Invoices shall include the categories and identities of CONSULTANT’s 
employees performing services, a description of the services, the number of hours 
spent performing services, the hourly rate for each employee, CONSULTANT’s 
actual costs and expenses, and the total amount of compensation requested by 
CONSULTANT for that month.  Upon UNITED’s request, CONSULTANT shall 



3 

include with its monthly invoices a detailed verification, including accounting 
records, of the work actually performed and costs and expenses incurred, along with 
any other documents or information reasonably requested by UNITED. 

B. UNITED shall pay CONSULTANT within thirty (30) days after receipt 
of CONSULTANT’s invoices, with the exception of any disputed amounts which 
shall be withheld until resolution of the dispute.  If UNITED has reasonable 
grounds to believe that CONSULTANT will be unable to materially perform the 
services under this Agreement, or there exists or may exist a claim against 
CONSULTANT arising out of CONSULTANT’s negligence or intentional acts , 
errors, omissions, or material breach of any provision of this Agreement, then 
UNITED may withhold payment of any reasonable amount due to CONSULTANT 
which is directly related to such negligence, intentional act, error, omission or 
material breach.  No payment made under this Agreement shall be conclusive 
evidence of CONSULTANT’s performance of the Agreement, either wholly or in 
part, and no payment shall be construed to be an acceptance by UNITED of 
CONSULTANT’s work. 

C. CONSULTANT shall notify UNITED in writing of the need for 
additional services required due to the circumstances beyond the CONSULTANT’s 
control (“Additional Services”). The CONSULTANT shall obtain written 
authorization from UNITED before rendering any Additional Services.  
Compensation for all approved Additional Services shall be negotiated and 
approved in writing by UNITED before such Additional Services are performed by 
CONSULTANT. No compensation shall be paid to the CONSULTANT for any 
Additional Services that are not previously approved by UNITED in writing.  

D. Reimbursable expenses, if applicable, are in addition to compensation 
for services outlined in the Scope of Work and Additional Services, and shall be paid 
to the CONSULTANT in accordance with the guidelines specified on Exhibit “B”.  
Reimbursable expenses are paid at the actual costs, without mark-ups, incurred by 
the CONSULTANT and the CONSULTANT’s employees in conduct of Agreement 
activities.  

4. SCHEDULE OF WORK 

CONSULTANT shall complete and deliver services and deliverables to 
UNITED in a diligent and professional manner, in accordance with the Project 
schedule set forth in Exhibit “A” attached and incorporated by reference herein. 
Time is of the essence in CONSULTANT’s performance of services hereunder. 

CONSULTANT’s Project Manager shall keep UNITED’s Tessa Lenz or 
designee informed as to the progress of work by informal reports.  Neither party 
shall hold the other responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts 



4 

of God, strikes, lockouts, accidents, or other events beyond the reasonable control of 
the other or the other’s employees and agents. 

5. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT 

This Agreement is a professional services contract.  CONSULTANT shall not 
assign this Agreement or any portion of the work without the prior written approval 
of UNITED.  Any such assignment without UNITED’s prior written approval shall 
be void.  UNITED may withhold such approval for any reason in its sole discretion. 

6. INDEMNIFICATION  

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT agrees to 
indemnify, defend and hold UNITED entirely harmless from all liability arising out 
of: 

1. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability:  Any and all 
claims under Workers’ Compensation acts and other employee benefit acts with 
respect to CONSULTANT’s employees or CONSULTANT’s subconsultant’s 
employees arising out of CONSULTANT’s work under this Agreement; and 

2. General Liability:  Liability for damages for (1) death or bodily 
injury to person; (2) injury to, loss or theft of property; (3) any failure or alleged 
failure to comply with any provision of law or (4) any other loss, damage or expense 
arising under either (1), (2), or (3) above, sustained by the CONSULTANT or 
UNITED, or any person, firm or corporation employed by the CONSULTANT or 
UNITED upon or in connection with the Project, except for liability resulting from 
the sole or active negligence, or willful misconduct of UNITED, its officers, 
employees, agents or independent consultants who are directly employed by 
UNITED; 

3. Professional Liability:  Any loss, injury to or death of persons or 
damage to property caused by any act, neglect, default or omission of the 
CONSULTANT, or any person, firm or corporation employed by the 
CONSULTANT, either directly or by independent contract, including all damages 
due to loss or theft, sustained by any person, firm or corporation including 
UNITED, arising out of, or in any way connected with the services performed by 
CONSULTANT in accordance with this Agreement, including injury or damage 
either on or off UNITED property; but not for any loss, injury, death or damages 
caused by the sole or active negligence, or willful misconduct of UNITED. 

4. The CONSULTANT, at its own expense, cost, and risk, shall 
defend any and all claims, actions, suits, or other proceedings, arising out of 
Sections 6.A.1 and 6.A.2 above, that may be brought or instituted against UNITED, 
its directors, officers, agents or employees, on any such claim or liability, and shall 



5 

pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against UNITED, its officers, 
agents or employees in any action, suit or other proceedings as a result thereof. 

7. INSURANCE

A. CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of this
Agreement, and for injuries which occur and claims which are made after the 
services herein are provided, insurance policies in accordance with the 
requirements set forth in Exhibit “C” attached and incorporated by reference 
herein.  CONSULTANT shall also provide UNITED with a certificate of insurance 
attesting to its professional liability (errors and omissions) coverage and all 
required additional insured endorsements. 

B. Submission of insurance certificates or endorsements or other proof of
insurance shall not relieve CONSULTANT from liability under the indemnification 
provisions of Section 6.  CONSULTANT’s obligations in accordance with Section 6 
shall apply whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to 
apply to any of such claims, damage, lawsuits, losses or liabilities covered by 
Section 6. 

C. By its signature hereto, CONSULTANT certifies that it is aware of the
provisions of California Labor Code Section 3700 which requires every employer to 
be insured against liability for workers compensation’ or to undertake self-
insurance as specified. CONSULTANT shall comply with these provisions before 
commencing work under this Agreement. 

8. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

A. Termination for Cause

1. UNITED may terminate CONSULTANT’s services for cause,
whereupon this Agreement shall terminate immediately.  Termination may occur 
regardless of whether CONSULTANT’s services are completed.  Any termination or 
special instructions from UNITED shall be made in writing. 

2. Termination for cause may occur upon any of the following
events: (a) CONSULTANT’s material breach of this Agreement; (b) abandonment or 
lack of diligence in performance of the work by CONSULTANT; (c) cessation, 
suspension, revocation or expiration of any license needed by CONSULTANT to 
provide services hereunder; (d) failure of CONSULTANT to substantially comply 
with any local, state or federal laws, regulations, ordinances or policies applicable to 
its work hereunder; (e) filing by or against CONSULTANT of bankruptcy or any 
petition under any law for relief of debtors; or (f) conviction of CONSULTANT or its 
principal representative or personnel for any crime other than minor traffic 
offenses. 



6 

3. Subject to the provisions of Section 3.B herein, CONSULTANT 
shall be paid for all approved services performed and approved expenses incurred to 
the date of termination for cause supported by documentary evidence, including 
payroll records and expense reports, up to the date of the termination.  In the event 
of termination for cause, all damages and costs associated with the termination, 
including increased consultant and replacement consultant costs, shall be deducted 
from any payments due to CONSULTANT. 

4. In the event a termination for cause is determined to have been 
made wrongfully or without cause, then the termination shall be treated as a 
termination for convenience in accordance with Section 8.B below, and 
CONSULTANT shall have no greater rights than it would have had if a termination 
for convenience had been effected in the first instance.  No other loss, cost, damage, 
expense or liability may be claimed, requested or recovered by CONSULTANT. 

B. Termination Without Cause/For Convenience.  This Agreement may be 
terminated without cause by UNITED or for UNITED’s convenience upon fourteen 
(14) days’ written notice to the CONSULTANT.  In the event of a termination 
without cause, UNITED shall pay the CONSULTANT for all approved services 
performed and all approved expenses incurred under this Agreement supported by 
documentary evidence, including payroll records and expense reports, up until the 
date of the notice of termination.  In addition, CONSULTANT will be reimbursed 
for reasonable termination costs through the payment of 3% beyond the sum due 
the CONSULTANT under this section through 50% completion of the 
CONSULTANT’s portion of the Project and, if 50% completion is reached, payment 
of 3% of the unpaid balance of the contract to CONSULTANT as termination cost.  
This 3% is agreed to compensate the CONSULTANT for the unpaid profit 
CONSULTANT would have made under the Project on the date of termination and 
is consideration for entry into this termination for convenience clause. 

C. In the event of termination with or without cause, CONSULTANT 
shall promptly provide to UNITED all Project Documents as defined in Section 9 
below within five (5) calendar days from the effective date of termination.  Failure 
to provide all Project Documents as required shall be deemed a material breach of 
this Agreement. 

D. In the event of a dispute as to the performance of the work or an 
interpretation of this Agreement, or payment or nonpayment for work performed or 
not performed, the parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute.  Pending resolution 
of the dispute CONSULTANT agrees to continue the work diligently to completion.  
If the dispute is not resolved, CONSULTANT agrees it will neither rescind the 
Agreement nor stop the progress of work, but CONSULTANT’s sole remedy will be 
to submit such controversy to determination by a court having competent 
jurisdiction of the dispute as required by this Agreement after the Project has been 
completed and not before.  



7 

9. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

A. The CONSULTANT is employed to render a professional service(s) 
only and any payments made to it are compensation solely for such services as it 
may render and recommendations it may make in the performance of services. 

B. All plans, specifications, construction documents, data, records, files, 
communications, information, reports and/or other documents that are prepared, 
generated, reproduced, maintained and/or managed by the CONSULTANT or 
CONSULTANT’s subconsultants arising from or in any way related to the services 
provided under this Agreement (regardless of medium, format, etc.) shall be and 
remain the property of UNITED (“Project Documents”).  UNITED may provide the 
CONSULTANT with a written request for the return of the Project Documents at 
any time.  Upon CONSULTANT’s receipt of UNITED’s written request, 
CONSULTANT shall return the requested Project Documents to UNITED within 
five (5) calendar days.  CONSULTANT may make copies of the work generated.  
Failure to comply with any such written request above shall be deemed a material 
breach of this Agreement.  Nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed a waiver of 
any copyright in the Project Documents prepared by the CONSULTANT.  Any 
unauthorized reuse or modification of such Project Documents other than for 
purposes intended by CONSULTANT or for the Project shall be at UNITED’s risk 
and liability. 

C. CONSULTANT agrees that all dealings of the parties under this 
Agreement shall be confidential and no Project Documents or information 
developed, prepared or assembled by CONSULTANT under this Agreement, or any 
information made available to CONSULTANT by UNITED, shall be revealed, 
disseminated or made available by CONSULTANT to any person or entity other 
than UNITED without the prior written consent of UNITED, unless otherwise 
required by subpoena or applicable law or regulatory authority. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP 

It is expressly understood between the parties that no employee/employer 
relationship is intended, the relationship of CONSULTANT to UNITED being that 
of an independent contractor.  UNITED shall not be required to make any payroll 
deductions or provide Worker’s Compensation Insurance coverage or health benefits 
to CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT is solely responsible for selecting the means, 
methods and procedures for performing its services hereunder as assigned by the 
UNITED and for coordinating all portions of the work so the results will be 
satisfactory to UNITED.  CONSULTANT will supply all tools and instruments 
required to perform its services under this Agreement. 

11. ASSISTANCE BY UNITED 



8 

It is understood and agreed that the UNITED shall, to the extent reasonable 
and practicable, assist and cooperate with CONSULTANT in the performance of 
CONSULTANT’s services hereunder. Such assistance does not include, in any 
manner, the exercise of professional judgment for which CONSULTANT is being 
retained herein. Such assistance and cooperation to be provided by UNITED as 
applicable includes, but shall not be limited to, providing right of access to work 
sites; providing material available from the UNITED’s files such as maps, as-built 
drawings, records and operation and maintenance information; and rendering 
assistance in determining the location of existing facilities and improvements which 
may be affected by the Project.  CONSULTANT shall otherwise be responsible for 
giving all notices and complying with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations and lawful orders of any public authority relating to the work. 

12. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

A. Examination of Records 

CONSULTANT agrees that UNITED shall have access to and the right to 
examine at any reasonable time and on reasonable notice CONSULTANT’s 
documents, papers and records, including accounting records, relating to its 
performance under this Agreement. 

B. Notice 

All notices or other official correspondence relating to contractual matters 
between the parties shall be made by depositing the same as first-class, postage 
paid mail addressed as follows: 

To CONSULTANT: Tom Barnes 
Environmental Science Associates 
626 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 1100 
Los Angeles, CA 90017  

     
 
To UNITED:   Tessa Lenz 
    United Water Conservation District 
    1701 North Lombard Street, Suite 200 
    Oxnard, CA 93030 
 

or such other address as either party may designate hereinafter in writing delivered 
to the other party.  All notices shall be agreed to have been received three (3) days 
after mailing. 

C. No Waiver 



9 

No failure or delay by UNITED in asserting any of UNITED’s rights and 
remedies as to any default of CONSULTANT shall operate as a waiver of the 
default, of any subsequent or other default by CONSULTANT, or of any of 
UNITED’s rights or remedies.  No such delay shall deprive UNITED of its right to 
institute and maintain any actions or proceedings which may be necessary to 
protect, assert or enforce any rights or remedies arising out of this Agreement or the 
performance of this Agreement. 

D. Integration 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 
pertaining to the subject matter hereto, and supersedes all prior agreements, oral or 
written, and all prior or contemporaneous discussions or negotiations between the 
parties.  

E. Modification 

No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless 
made in writing and signed by the parties.   

F. Rules of Interpretation 

The terms of this Agreement have been negotiated by the parties and the 
language used in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the language chosen by the 
parties to express their mutual intent.  This Agreement shall be construed without 
regard to any presumption or rule requiring construction against the party causing 
such instrument to be drafted, or in favor of the party receiving a particular benefit 
under this Agreement.  No rule of strict construction shall be applied against any 
party to this Agreement. 

G. Partial Invalidity 

If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this Agreement is found by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder 
of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect, and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby. 

H. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits 

The foregoing recitals and exhibits are incorporated herein as though fully 
set forth. 

I. California Law; Dispute Resolution; Venue 

This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed pursuant to the laws of 
the State of California, regardless of whether this Agreement is executed by any 



10 



1 

EXHIBIT “A” TO AGREEMENT FOR  

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

CONSULTANT shall provide professional environmental consultation services 
under this Agreement in accordance with work described in the attached Scope of 
Work and Schedule of Charges. 



United Water Conservation District 
Proposal to Prepare CEQA Documentation, Processing, and 
Regulatory Permitting for the  
Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment Project 
Demonstration Phase

September 15, 2022 Project Team Leader: Tom Barnes Environmental Science Associates 
323.829.1221 | tbarnes@esassoc.com esassoc.com 



2 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

Section C: Scope of Work and Project Schedule 

Project Scope 
Task 1: Project Management 
ESA will manage the scope, schedule and budget performance and ensure consistency and accuracy in work products. 
Over the 24-month project schedule, up to four ESA staff will participate in up to 8, 2-hour team conference calls with 
UWCD and Navy staff. In addition, ESA staff will attend bi-weekly one-hour project status meetings virtually, totally 25 
meetings over the two-year period.  Depending on the agenda, between one and four ESA staff may attend these project 
status meetings. The regular meetings help to maintain focus on action items and are essential to effective schedule 
management. We have added an additional 14 meetings for two staff to coordinate with the engineering team. ESA’s 
Project Manager, Tom Barnes will track and update the budget and schedule. Written monthly progress reports will be 
submitted with billings that identify target dates for completion of current work tasks, deliverables, and meetings. 

Task 2: Background Review, Project Initiation, and Project Description 
ESA will review all existing documentation provided by UWCD and Navy team, including the Screening Level Initial Study 
previously prepared by UWCD, Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment Project Feasibility Study: Groundwater 
Modeling, December 2021, the Phase 1 Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment Project Feasibility Study: 

Groundwater Modeling, July 2022 prepared by UWCD, and the Final Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan for 
Naval Base Ventura County Point Mugu and Special Areas, March 2019; and Coastal Adaptation Vision for Naval Base 
Ventura County Point Mugu, September 2020 prepared by the Navy. 

Tom Barnes and Kevin Smith, Deputy Project Manager, will be available to attend an initial kickoff meeting in person or 
via a video conference platform to discuss the proposed Project and meet with United Water Conservation District’s 
(UWCD) staff. During this meeting, ESA and UWCD will determine the appropriate level and protocol for communication 
with UWCD and Naval staff. ESA will present an overall Project approach and schedule, including milestones, for 
feedback from UWCD staff. A project approach will be refined and ESA will provide a project information request 
itemizing additional data considered necessary for project understanding. 

In addition, ESA will participate in up to 8 progress calls with UWCD and Naval staff; typically, once every two weeks 
during preparation of the MND/EA. ESA will prepare brief meeting minutes and compile actionn items t  the end of each 
meeting to be circulated to the team. The meeting summaries and action items will be emailed to all meeting attendees 
for review and concurrence. 

ESA will develop a data request for additional information after review of project materials provided by UWCD and Naval 
team. ESA will review and update the existing Project Description prepared for the preliminary IS. We assume that the 
Project Description will need to reflect the most likely discharge alternative. ESA will prepare and submit a draft Project 
Description in electronic format (2 rounds of revisions), including project location figures and graphics. This scope assumes 
GIS or CAD data will be provided by the UWCD and Naval team for project figures. The Final Project Description will bee used
as the basis for the CEQA/NEPA analysis. The Project Description will include explanation of the construction, operation, 
and maintenance all project components, including the extraction wells, conveyance pipelines, outfall, and diffusor. 

ESA assumes UWCD will review and provide comments to be addressed on two rounds of Project Description 
deliverables: one administrative draft and one screencheck draft. It is assumed one set of consolidated comments will be 
provided to ESA. The Project Description will be the basis for initial agency consultation as well as preparation of the 
technical reports. 

Deliverables 



3 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

 Draft Project Description (Microsoft Word and PDF format). Two rounds of revisions. ESA will revise the Draft Project 
Description based on receipt of consolidated set of electronic comments.

Task 3: Permitting Compliance Strategy and Alternative Evaluation 
The RFP identifies three distinct discharge alternatives. Each of these alternatives presents unique technical study and 
permit requirements as outlined in Table 1. We recommend that the IS/MND analyze one discharge alternative. For 
purposes of this proposal, we have provided a full list of studies and permits required to discharge to Mugu Lagoon. ESA 
proposes to host a workshop with UCWD and the Navy to clarify work completed to date (including informal agency 
consultations), define alternatives, identify constraints and schedule objectives, outline screening criteria, and develop a 
strategy to most efficiently advance the demonstration phase of the project. We have proposed to formalize this 
strategic evaluation by preparing a Technical Memorandum summarizing the process and the rationale for pursuing a 
preferred project. 

Table 1 Technical Studies and Permits for Each Alternative 

LAGOON OUTFALL ALTERNATIVE BEACH OUTFALL ALTERATIVE SMP OUTFALL ALTERNATIVE 

Technical Studies 

 Air emissions/GHG/Energy 
 BRTR- Upland habitat 
 Protocol surveys (if needed)
 Jurisdictional Delineations of 

Wetlands/Lagoon 
 Cultural Resources Report/

Phase 1
 Tribal Assembly Bill (AB) 52 
 Lagoon and Marine Biology

Study/EFH Assessment
 Lagoon Discharge Dispersion and

Mixing Study
 TMDL Consideration Study

(optional)
 Sea Level Rise Assessment

 Air emissions/GHG/Energy 
 BRTR- Upland habitat 
 Protocol surveys (if needed)
 Cultural Resources Report/

Phase 1
 Tribal AB 52 
 Marine Biology Study/EFH

Assessment/Eel Grass survey
 Ocean Discharge Dispersion and

Mixing Study
 Sea Level Rise Assessment

 Air emissions/ GHG/Energy 
 BRTR- Upland habitat and 

Pipeline Route
 Cultural Resources Report/

Phase 1
 Tribal AB 52 
 Sea Level Rise Assessment
 Update to SMP Outfall Discharge

Dispersion Model (if necessary)

Permits 

 RWQCB-Individual NPDES Permit-
Discharge Permit or Dewatering
Permit

 Construction Stormwater Permit 
 USFWS/NMFS Section 7 and

EFH/MSA
 USACE-CWA Section 404/RHA

Section 10 
 RWQCB 401 
 NHPA Section 106 
 CZMA Federal Consistency

Determination 
 State Lands Lease (if needed) 
 CCC CDP (if needed)
 CDFW 1602 (if needed) 

 RWQCB-Individual NPDES Permit-
Discharge Permit

 Construction Stormwater Permit 
 USFWS/NMFS Section 7 and

EFH/MSA
 USACE-CWA Section 404/RHA

Section 10 
 RWQCB 401 
 NHPA Section 106 
 CZMA Federal Consistency

Determination 
 State Lands Lease 
 CCC CDP (if needed)

 RWQCB – Updated ROWD for
existing permit

 Construction Stormwater Permit 
 NHPA Section 106 
 CZMA Federal Consistency

Determination 
 CCC CDP (if needed)



4 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

As directed by UWCD, ESA will evaluate each alternative against a list of screening criteria to support: (1) the decision to 
advance one alternative through CEQA/NEPA, and (2) the need to develop a defensible alternatives analysis that will be 
required to obtain a 401 Certification from the LARWQCB. ESA will prepare a brief Technical Memorandum presenting the 
results of the alternative screening workshop. ESA will provide a draft memorandum for review by UWCD and the Navy. 
ESA will incorporate comments into a Final Memorandum to support project implementation. 

The table below outlines our initial assessment of technical studies and permits required for each alternative. This list 
may be modified as we better understand the status of the project designs and informal agency consultations. 

Deliverables 

 Workshop Presentation draft and final

 Draft Alternatives Evaluation and Selection Technical Memorandum draft and final. 

Task 4: Technical Studies 
Based the review of the RFP, this scope of work assumes the following technical studies will be needed to support the 
environmental documentation: 

 Air Quality Assessment, GHG Emissions Assessment, Energy Usage Assessment

 Terrestrial Biological Resources Technical Report 

 Focused Surveys (Optional)

 Lagoon and Marine Environment Technical Memorandum

 Lagoon Discharge Dispersion and Mixing Study 

 TMDL Considerations Study (Optional)

 Jurisdictional Delineations of Wetlands 

 Cultural Resources Technical Report 

 Sea Level Rise Study

The scopes for these Technical Studies are included below. This scope of work assumes that no visual simulations, noise 
measurements, or traffic report will be required for purposes of CEQA/NEPA and preparation of the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration/Environmental Assessment (MND/EA). This scope of work assumes that all technical analysis related to 
groundwater and surface hydraulic modeling will be provided by UWCD or its engineering design consultant. 

The RFP provides a list of potential technical studies that may be required to support the project. To clarify our approach 
to the scope of work, Table 2 reproduces that list and identifies where in the ESA scope these technical issues will be 
compiled and assessed either through stand-alone technical studies or within the body of the IS/MND. 



5 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

Table 2 ESA’s Approach to the Potential Technical Studies 

POTENTIAL TECHNICAL STUDY LISTED IN RFP ESA’S APPROACH 

Air quality/greenhouse gas emissions analysis Air and GHG emissions modeling using CalEEMod described 
in IS with model outputs included in an Appendix 

Discharge location alternative evaluation Alternative Screening Technical Memorandum  

Discharge diffusion and mixing study Diffusion and Mixing Study for Mugu Lagoon 

Biological resources assessment – including marine 
biological resources and essential fish habitat 

Terrestrial Biological Resources Technical Report (BRTR) 
Lagoon and Marine Resources Technical Report 
Jurisdictional Delineation of wetlands 

Marine life impacts – including water quality and Ocean 
Plan consistency (if applicable) 

Included as analysis in IS supported by Lagoon and Marine 
Resources Technical Report 

Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas (ESHA) 
assessment 

Included in BRTR 

Growth/ need for the project Analysis included in IS 

Cultural/ paleontological studies Cultural Resources Technical Study 

Sea level rise assessment Sea Level Rise Technical Study 

Flood hazards assessment Analysis included in IS 

Seismic and tsunami risk assessment Analysis included in IS 

Geology/ soils report Analysis included in IS based on existing geotechnical 
information 

Noise study Analysis included in IS. No stand-alone study proposed. 

Traffic study Analysis included in IS. No stand-alone study proposed due 
to project type. 

Visual impact analysis Analysis included in IS. No simulations proposed. 

Environmental justice analysis Analysis included in IS 

1. Air Quality Assessment, GHG Emissions Assessment, Energy Usage Assessment

AIR EMISSIONS

The construction activities at the Project site along with Project operation would result in emissions of criteria air 
pollutants such as particulate matter, ozone precursors (including volatile organic compounds commonly used in 
laboratories) and toxic air contaminants. The Project Site is located within the South Central Coast Air Basin (Air Basin), 
which is under the local jurisdiction of the Ventura County Air Pollution Control District (VCAPCD). ESA will quantify the 
Project’s construction and operational regional emissions using the VCAPCD recommended California Emissions 
Estimator Model (CalEEMod) and the on-road vehicle emissions factor (EMFAC) model and the regional construction and 
operational emissions will be compared to the VCAPCD thresholds of significance as stated in the VCAPCD Air Quality 
Assessment Guidelines. The calculation of the Project’s construction emissions will be based on the number and types of 
construction equipment that would be used at the Project site during the Project construction phases (e.g., site 
preparation, drilling, etc.). With regard to operational emissions, the Project’s mobile-source emissions will be estimated 
based, in part, on the Project’s trip generation rates and on vehicle miles traveled (VMT) based on CalEEMod modeling 
defaults or information provided by the UWCD. 



6 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

ESA will assess consistency of the Project with the most recent VCAPCD Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP) and any 
pertinent air quality statutes and regulations at the local, regional, state, and federal level that are applicable to the 
Project. ESA will assess cumulative impacts by identifying new related Projects within the vicinity and address the CEQA 
consideration that the Project may have impacts that, although not individually significant, could be cumulatively 
considerable. 

With regard to the air quality analysis, ESA assumes that the UWCD will provide reasonably complete and comprehensive 
data regarding construction and operations. Such data include but are not limited to construction schedule and fleet 
information, construction materials, size and location of buildings to be demolished, and cubic yards of soil to be 
excavated, hauled or imported out. In regard to operations, ESA assumes that UWCD will provide information regarding 
hazardous materials and stationary equipment used at the Project site. This data includes hazardous materials safety 
data sheets and stationary equipment specification sheets. ESA assumes construction and operational emissions will be 
analyzed for one construction scenario and one operational scenario. ESA assumes no standalone Air Quality technical 
report will be required. Modeling results will be appended to the MND/EA. 

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 

The State Office of Planning and Research (OPR) published revised CEQA guidelines, effective on March 18, 2010, which 
requires a GHG analysis be prepared. ESA proposes to analyze GHG emissions in accordance with these guidelines. In 
general, the guidelines allow Lead Agencies to determine if a quantitative or qualitative analysis is most appropriate, 
and to establish specific significance criteria. The VCAPCD have not adopted specific numeric thresholds of significance 
applicable to the Project. However, other agencies, such as the neighboring South Coast Air Quality Management District 
(SCAQMD) have proposed draft thresholds. 

The GHG assessment for the Project will evaluate the potential impacts associated with the Project’s generation of GHG 
emissions during construction and operations. Similar to the air quality task, the GHG analysis will include an estimation 
of the Project’s GHG emissions, which would be attributed to Project-related construction equipment, vehicle trips, area 
sources (e.g., use of landscaping equipment), energy consumption (electricity and natural gas), water consumption, and 
solid waste generation. Construction- and operations-related GHG emissions will be quantified using the CalEEMod and 
EMFAC models as discussed under the Air Quality task above. GHG emissions impacts are exclusively cumulative in 
nature and there are no Project-level only impacts from a GHG emissions perspective. Therefore, the GHG analysis will 
also satisfy the CEQA requirement for a cumulative impact analysis. ESA assumes no standalone GHG technical report 
will be required. Modeling results will be appended to the MND/EA. 

ENERGY USAGE 

ESA will quantify the project’s anticipated construction energy needs based on water use for dust suppression and 
estimated fuel consumption for construction equipment, haul trucks, vendor trucks, and construction workers utilizing 
the project information and assumptions described under the Air Quality and GHG tasks. ESA will also quantify the 
project’s anticipated new operational (maintenance) energy needs at full buildout conditions based on the estimated 
electricity usage for the project. The project would result in electricity usage from the pressure sustaining facility, the 
conveyance and distribution of water, operation of the production/extraction wells and associated monitoring wells; any 
increase above the baseline condition will be included in the estimated electricity usage. ESA will also estimate the 
transportation-related energy needs based on the estimated fuel consumption for vehicle trips and from the project for 
the routine maintenance and operation of the production/extraction and monitoring wells. ESA will summarize the 
project’s anticipated energy needs and conservation measures, including project commitments, design features, and 
mitigation measures that would minimize and reduce the project’s consumption of fuel and energy. 



7 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

2. Terrestrial Biological Resources Technical Report
ESA will prepare a biological resource analysis to assess the potential terrestrial biological impacts that may arise from 
implementation of the proposed project. ESA biologists will conduct a reconnaissance-level biological resources survey 
of the project site and surrounding area to confirm current biological site conditions. The biological study area (BSA) 
includes a 500-foot buffer of the proposed seven (7) extraction wells and raw water pipelines including the alternate raw 
water pipeline. Additionally, ESA biologists will document wildlife species and vegetation communities/land cover types 
observed within the project site and surrounding areas. The field effort will require two biologists two 12-hour field days 
(including travel time and the Aquatics Resources Delineation) to observe and document current site conditions. 

Prior to the biological survey, ESA biologists will conduct a desktop review to identify potential sensitive biological 
resources that may occur in the project area. ESA will query the following databases for records of special-status species 
within the project parcels: California Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB), California Native Plant Society (CNPS) Inventory 
of Rare and Endangered Plants in California, and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s (USFWS’s) on-line Official Species List 
request tool (Information, Planning and Conservation System [IPaC]). These queries will provide up-to-date documentation 
on special-status species occurrences and other biological resources to support the CEQA and NEPA documentation. 

Upon preliminary desktop review of the aforementioned biological databases, the project site at minimum has the 
potential to contain suitable habitat to support a multitude of sensitive wildlife species. These sensitive wildlife species 
include though not limited to western snowy plover (Charadrius nivosus nivosus), southwestern willow flycatcher 
(Empidonax trailii extimus), tidewater goby (Eucyclogobius newberryi), Belding's savannah sparrow (Passerculus 
sandwichensis beldingi), light-footed Ridgway's rail (Rallus obsoletus levipes), California least tern (Sterna antillarum 
browni), and least Bell's vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus). Additionally, the project site has the potential to contain suitable 
habitat to support sensitive plant species including Ventura marsh milk-vetch (Astragalus pycnostachyus) and salt marsh 
bird's-beak (Chloropyron maritimum ssp. maritimum). During the field portion of the biological resources survey the 
biologists will evaluate the potential for habitat located within the BSA to sustain these sensitive species. Furthermore, 
we will provide a summary for any recommended or required focused surveys for these sensitive species. 

ESA will produce a CEQA- and NEPA-level review of the biological resources present within and adjacent to the project 
site. The biological resources review will provide the following: (1) a discussion of the existing site conditions and 
findings; (2) an evaluation of the potential for sensitive species and their habitats to occur; (3) a discussion of potential 
project impacts to biological resources and any potential jurisdictional resources; (4) potential avoidance and 
minimization measures; and (5) any additional recommended surveys. The biological summary will also include a 
vicinity map, sensitive species location map if sensitive species are observed, vegetation communities map, map of 
potential jurisdictional resources, and photographs of the project site. The findings of the desktop review and biological 
survey will be summarized and incorporated into a standalone Biological Resources Technical Report (BRTR) to support 
project environmental review. 

We assume that UWCD will provide the aerial basemap and project limits for mapping purposes of the project. 
Additionally, it is assumed that no more than one project design will be analyzed. Additional project designs can be 
analyzed under a separate scope and fee. This scope assumes that ESA will respond to two rounds of consolidated 
comments from UWCD and prepare a final version in response to the comments received. ESA assumes no focused 
biological surveys would be required at this time and therefore, are excluded from this scope of work. 

OPTIONAL SUBTASKS – ADDITIONAL BIOLOGICAL SURVEYS 

Surveys for rare plants, western snowy plover, California least tern, Belding's savannah sparrow, least Bell’s vireo, 
southwestern willow flycatcher, and tidewater goby are included below as optional because the specific survey 
requirements for these species will be determined based on the initial habitat assessments. 



8 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

FOCUSED RARE PLANT SURVEYS 

ESA biologists will conduct focused surveys to determine the presence/absence of rare plant species within suitable 
habitat areas. Species of primary concern include. Special focus will be given to federally and state-listed plant species 
including Ventura marsh milk-vetch and salt marsh bird's-beak. The surveys will be timed to maximize detection based 
on the blooming periods of species with potential to occur within the survey area. Target species will be determined as 
part of the general biological survey and habitat assessment. It is expected that surveys will consist of up to two separate 
field visits that will be timed to maximize the capture of the blooming periods of rare plant species with potential to 
occur in the survey area. The locations of any observed rare plant individuals or populations will be recorded and 
mapped. A summary of rare plants detected and a map depicting rare plant locations and GIS data of any rare plants 
detected will be included in the BRTR. 

Assumptions 

 This scope and cost assumes that two rare plant surveys will be completed in two days by two biologists. Suitable
habitat is subject to verification based on the results of the general biological survey and habitat assessment. 

 This scope assumes that up to two surveys will allow for adequate detection of the rare plant species with potential
to occur. If the habitat assessment indicates that additional surveys are warranted, these will be scoped and costed
under an amendment.



9 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

FOCUSED RARE PLANT SURVEYS 

ESA biologists will conduct focused surveys to determine the presence/absence of rare plant species within suitable 
habitat areas. Species of primary concern include. Special focus will be given to federally and state-listed plant species 
including Ventura marsh milk-vetch and salt marsh bird's-beak. The surveys will be timed to maximize detection based 
on the blooming periods of species with potential to occur within the survey area. Target species will be determined as 
part of the general biological survey and habitat assessment. It is expected that surveys will consist of up to two separate 
field visits that will be timed to maximize the capture of the blooming periods of rare plant species with potential to 
occur in the survey area. The locations of any observed rare plant individuals or populations will be recorded and 
mapped. A summary of rare plants detected and a map depicting rare plant locations and GIS data of any rare plants 
detected will be included in the BRTR. 

Assumptions 

 This scope and cost assumes that two rare plant surveys will be completed in two days by two biologists. Suitable
habitat is subject to verification based on the results of the general biological survey and habitat assessment. 

 This scope assumes that up to two surveys will allow for adequate detection of the rare plant species with potential
to occur. If the habitat assessment indicates that additional surveys are warranted, these will be scoped and costed
under an amendment.

AVIAN SURVEYS 

An initial habitat assessment for special status avian species including southwestern willow flycatcher, least Bell’s vireo, 
Belding’s savannah sparrow, western snowy plover and California least tern surveys will be conducted as part of the 
BRTR. If determined that habitat is present within the BSA fixed radius point-count and area-transect locations will be 
placed/developed strategically within the bird survey area to maximize coverage of potential breeding and foraging 
areas for each of the species potentially present. The point-count and area-transect locations will be visited weekly 
during the breeding (both species) and juvenile dispersal (tern) surveys described below. 

During the breeding season (March-July, five months), surveys will be conducted weekly at each of the established point-
count locations and within the area-transect locations. Documentation will include all individuals and type of activity 
observed, nesting attempts and success/failure (e.g., abandoned or predated), foraging within the open ocean or 
estuary, and berm status. After the breeding season, visual surveys will be conducted weekly during the juvenile tern 
dispersal period (August through October, three months) to document tern foraging use of BSA. All bird surveys will start 
15 minutes after sunrise and continue up to five hours following sunrise. Following completion of the surveys, ESA will 
prepare draft and final versions of a 45-day letter report. 

Belding's savannah sparrow surveys will be conducted within suitable habitat. There is no official protocol for Belding's 
savannah sparrow therefore ESA recommends four site visits during the period from late February to June. Following 
completion of the surveys, ESA will provide a summary of the survey results within the BRTR. 

Least Bell’s vireo surveys will be conducted based on the USFWS Least Bell’s Vireo Survey Guidelines which recommends 
8 site visits at least 10 days apart during the period from April 10 to July 31. If there are no delays in the survey schedule, 
all 8 site visits can be completed by the end of June. Following completion of the surveys, ESA will prepare draft and final 
versions of a 45-day letter report. 

Southwestern willow flycatcher surveys will be conducted by a permitted biologist in accordance with A Natural History 
Summary and Survey Protocol for the Southwestern Willow Flycatcher which requires a minimum of 5 project-related 
surveys spaced at least 5 days apart with a minimum of one survey from May 15 to May 31, two surveys from June 1 to 
June 24, and two surveys from June 25 to July 17. Up to four of the five surveys will be completed as part of this subtask 
after submitting a pre-survey notification letter. 



10 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

Surveys will be conducted starting from approximately 1 hour before sunrise until 9:00 to 10:30 AM, depending on the 
temperature, wind, rain, background noise, and other environmental factors. When possible, surveys will be conducted 
from within rather than from the perimeter of suitable habitat areas. If surveys cannot be conducted from within the 
habitat, surveys will be conducted by walking along the perimeter and entering habitat at intervals to broadcast the 
vocalizations and listen for responses. At 20-to-30-meter intervals, surveyors will listen for 10 seconds for singing 
flycatchers. If singing flycatchers are not heard during the initial listening period, the willow flycatcher song recording 
will be broadcast for 10 to 15 seconds; then surveyors will listen for approximately 1 minute for a response. 

Following completion of the surveys, ESA will prepare draft and final versions of a 45-day letter report. 

Assumptions 

 This scope and cost assumes that up to 22 breeding surveys for species will be completed.

 This scope and cost assumes that up to 13 juvenile California least tern surveys will be completed.

 To reduce the costs associated with this task, the southwestern willow flycatcher surveyor will be accompanied by 
the least Bell’s vireo surveyor. Should least Bell’s vireo surveys not be authorized by the District, additional
authorization would be necessary to include an additional staff person during these surveys for safety purposes.

TIDEWATER GOBY SURVEYS AND REPORTING 

ESA will complete a tidewater goby habitat assessment and focused presence/absence surveys in accordance with 
USFWS-approved protocol. The habitat assessment will include a 1-day field survey to describe habitat suitability for 
tidewater goby within the project site. The habitat assessment will also focus on project impact areas and will evaluate 
the project site to propose mitigation strategies for tidewater goby, if it is determined that the species could be impacted 
by the project. 

It is assumed that the habitat assessment results will indicate that focused presence/absence surveys for tidewater goby 
are warranted prior to project construction. These surveys should be timed to occur no more than 1-year prior to project 
construction so that negative survey results would still be considered valid at the time of construction. Surveys are 
assumed to take two field days with two biologists and would be completed in accordance with a methodology that is 
acceptable to USFWS (likely methods include beach seining and minnow traps). 

Assumptions 

 Fish surveys must be conducted in two sampling periods between July 1 and October 31, separated by at least 30
days as per USFWS recommendation. 

 If tidewater goby are encountered in the first fish survey, ESA will consult with the USFWS on whether a second
presence/absence survey is required.

 If tidewater goby are detected and USFWS requests relocation as mitigation, preparation and implementation of a
relocation plan would be a separate effort. The surveys are not scoped to be relocation efforts. The final memo will
not include a formal relocation plan.

 One meeting with two staff to support the District in consultation with USFWS.

EEL GRASS SURVEY

Aquatic vegetation community surveys will be conducted within the affected portion of Mugu Lagoon to detect the 
presence and map the extent of eel grass beds and other aquatic vegetation communities. We assume a team of 4 or 5 
divers to cover both sides of the causeway. The survey would be conducted within one day. A draft survey report will be 
prepared including a map of identified plant communities. UWCD comments will be incorporated into a Final Survey 
Report.  



11 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

Assumptions 

 One day will be needed to obtain security clearances at the Navy Base.

 Level of effort includes travel time to and from the site for certified divers.

 The dive team may be provided by a third-party vendor that ESA will subcontract to. ESA will be responsible for
quality control of the dive effort and report.

 One draft and one final version of the survey report will be prepared.

3. Lagoon and Marine Environment Technical Memorandum
LWA will prepare a Technical Memorandum (TM) that summarizes the existing literature and available information on 
the status of the water quality and habitat of the Mugu Lagoon and near-shore marine environment. The TM will be 
based on existing information sources which will be updated as needed based on site-specific reconnaissance surveys 
conducted for this project. The analysis will include descriptions of intertidal and subtidal habitats; descriptions of the 
fish and invertebrate communities; a discussion of important and sensitive marine habitats including eelgrass beds and 
other Habitat Areas of Particular Concern (HAPC); a description of the Essential Fish Habitat (EFH) resources; and a 
discussion of sensitive and protected marine resources, including harbor seal haul out areas. Following the review and 
description of existing resources, LWA will describe applicable regulations for the project, and utilizing an Environmental 
Checklist consistent with Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, prepare an analysis of anticipated project- and project 
alternative-related impact to existing resources, including EFH. Where appropriate, LWA will propose appropriate 
mitigation measures to minimize and reduce impacts to less-than-significant levels. In addition, the document will 
include a description of need and required timing for follow-up studies, including pre-construction eelgrass surveys and 
possible monitoring requirements. 

4. Lagoon Discharge Dispersion and Mixing Study
LWA will conduct a mixing model to assess the dynamics of dilution within mixing zones in the lagoon. The approach to 
modeling will incorporate the proposed mode of diffusion or dispersion of the discharged extracted groundwater. The 
initial task is to evaluate the proposed mode of discharge to Mugu Lagoon. A single pipe discharge would be modeled 
differently from a diffuser (or pipe connected to a manifold with multiple outlets), as would a discharge at the mean tide 
level compared to a submerged discharge. Ambient tidal conditions, and density will be evaluated with proposed mode 
of discharge to determine the appropriate modeling framework. As Mugu Lagoon is relatively shallow, CORMIX may be 
the best suited dilution modeling framework for the proposed discharge. However, Visual Plumes will be evaluated as 
well. A system designed to spray water over the surface of the lagoon would require a more customized spreadsheet-
based mass-balance approach. It is assumed that both the brackish groundwater and the reverse osmosis concentrate 
(ROC) are less dense than the ambient Mugu Lagoon water. The second task is to obtain data satisfying the selected 
model inputs, which generally include the physical configuration (geometry), and flowrate and density of the discharge; 
and the local benthic geometry, tidal cycle information, and ambient density/density stratification. It is assumed all 
necessary flows and densities will be provided by United Water. This scope assumes up to three scenarios of discharge 
flowrate and density may be modeled. The third task is to compile scenarios considered, model development, and 
calculated available dilution into a summary technical memorandum. A draft memo will be prepared and circulated for 
comment before finalizing. 

5. TMDL Considerations Technical Memorandum
LWA will prepare a Technical Memorandum that will evaluate the potential for the proposed lagoon discharge to affect 
impairments that were addressed by the TMDLs. Six TMDLs are currently in effect for the Calleguas Creek Watershed 
(CCW): 

 Nitrogen and Related Effects (in effect July 2003)



12 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

 Organochlorine Pesticides, Polychlorinated Biphenyls, and Siltation (OCP/PCBs) (in effect March 2006)

 Toxicity (in effect March 2006)

 Salts (in effect December 2008) 

 Metals & Selenium (in effect March 2007)

With the exception of the Salts TMDL, the CCW TMDLs established numeric targets for Mugu Lagoon that apply to 
multiple matrices (water, sediment, fish tissue, and bird eggs). In addition, the Metals & Selenium TMDL established total 
allowable daily loads (lbs./day) of pertinent pollutants that can enter Mugu Lagoon through Revolon Slough or Calleguas 
Creek; such limits were established assuming those influents were the predominant discharges to Mugu Lagoon. A 
combined TMDL monitoring program has been underway since 2008 that includes wet and dry weather sampling events, 
and annual or triennial sediment and tissue sampling events. In addition, numerous special studies have been 
conducted that were required by the TMDLs that in some cases were used as the basis for TMDL modification or are 
currently being considered by the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board to support target revision. 

The requirements in the CCW TMDLs that apply to Mugu Lagoon and the current status of compliance with targets and 
allocations will be summarized using results from the CCW TMDL monitoring program. TMDL limits that will potentially 
be affected by the proposed lagoon discharge will be identified by comparing the predicted quality of the discharge with 
existing data on Mugu Lagoon water quality and TMDL numeric targets, and qualitatively evaluating other effects of the 
discharge that could worsen or alleviate impairments that were addressed by the TMDLs, such as through sediment 
resuspension, and changes to macroalgal biomass and dissolved oxygen levels within the lagoon. 

We assume that projected blended discharge water quality data for the pertinent analytes will be provided to LWA by 
UWCD and that LWA will provide one draft and one final Memorandum. 

6. Jurisdictional Delineations of Wetlands
ESA will conduct a delineation of aquatic resources, including wetlands, to identify potential waters of the U.S. subject to 
the regulatory jurisdiction of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) pursuant to Section 404 of the federal Clean 
Water Act (CWA); waters of the State subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the Regional Water Quality Control Board 
(RWQCB) pursuant to Section 401 of the federal CWA and the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act; and streambed 
and riparian habitat subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) 
pursuant to Sections 1600 et seq. of the California Fish and Game Code. 

The survey area for the aquatic resources delineation will include a 100-foot buffer of the project site. Prior to conducting 
the field delineation, ESA will review soils, vegetation, and watershed data available for the project area. The formal field 
delineation will include collection of data sufficient to determine the type, location, and extent of potentially 
jurisdictional wetlands and waters of the U.S. and State within the project area, as well as areas potentially subject to 
Section 1600 of the Fish and Game Code. All aquatic resources within the project area, including storm water facilities 
will be evaluated for their potential jurisdictional status. 

An Aquatic Resources Delineation Report (ARDR) will be prepared based upon these findings and criteria outlined within 
agency guidance documents and manuals, including the Army Corps Minimum Standards for Acceptance of Aquatic 
Resources Delineation Reports (March 2017), and current guidance/procedures applicable to RWQCB and CDFW. This 
report will be suitable for submittal to USACE, RWCQB, and CDFW. Contents of the report will include: 

 A description of the regulatory framework surrounding aquatic resources including federal and state

 A description of the methods used in the aquatic resources delineation;

 A soils map of the project site;



13 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

 A site characterization for jurisdictional features and regional hydrology;

 A list of all potential jurisdictional features on the project parcels, including area (in acres);

 A map of said features at a scale no less than one inch equals 400 feet (or 1:4800);

 Wetland Delineation and/or ordinary high water mark data sheets from the field survey, if applicable; and 

 Representative site photographs.

Deliverables

 Draft and Final ARDR

Assumptions

 Access to the survey area will be provided by the District

 The fieldwork for the aquatic resources delineation would be completed concurrently with the biological resources
field effort.

 The District will provide project description information needed to prepare the ARDR. It is assumed that the ARDR 
will be based on a single version of project design.

 Permitting support, agency coordination or information requests, or additional site visits such as field verifications
are not included in this task.

7. Cultural Resources Technical Report
ESA cultural resources staff will prepare a Cultural Resources Assessment Report that will be compliant with CEQA and 
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. The purpose of the assessment will be to identify any 
archaeological and/or paleontological resources within the project area or immediate vicinity that could be impacted by 
the project. 

Area of Potential Effects Delineation. ESA cultural resources staff, in consultation with the UWCD and the Navy, will 
delineate an APE pursuant to Section 106 (36 CFR 800.4(a)). The APE will encompass the direct and indirect areas of 
potential impact where proposed infrastructure will be constructed, including staging and maintenance yards. A map 
depicting the draft APE will be submitted to UWCD and the Navy for review and approval. 

Records Searches and Archival Research. ESA cultural resources staff will conduct a records search at the South 
Central Coastal Information Center. The purpose of the records search will be to identify previous cultural resources 
investigations and previously recorded archaeological resources within a 1-mile radius of the APE and historic 
architectural resources within 0.25 miles of the APE. Additional research will include review of available historic maps 
and aerial photographs, geotechnical studies, the National Register of Historic Properties (NRHP), the California Register 
of Historical Resources (CRHR), and the California Office of Historic Preservation’s (OHP) Built Environment Resource 
Directory. A desktop geoarchaeological review of the APE will also be conducted by an ESA geoarchaeologist to 
determine the likelihood for encountering subsurface archaeological deposits and at what depths they may be 
encountered. ESA will also request an EDR search to obtain high-resolution Sanborn maps and historic aerial imagery of 
the APE. 

Native American and Interested Party Consultation. A Sacred Lands File search will be requested from the California 
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) to solicit information on sensitive or undocumented Native American 
cultural resources in the vicinity of the project and to obtain a list of Native American contacts who are culturally and 
traditionally affiliated with the APE. ESA will prepare draft AB 52 and Section 106 notification letters on behalf of UWCD 
and the Navy, respectively, As identified in the RFP, the six tribes to be notified include Barbareno/Ventureno Band of 
Mission Indians, Chumash Council of Bakersfield, Coastal Band of the Chumash Nation, Northern Chumash Tribal 



14 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

Council, San Luis Obispo County Chumash Council, and Santa Ynez Band of Chumash Indians. Others may also be 
notified based on the NAHC’s listing as directed by UWCD and the Navy. All notification letters will include a description 
of the proposed project, maps, and contact information. ESA will follow-up with two rounds of phone calls to ensure the 
parties received the information, to answer questions, and to receive comments or concerns about the proposed project. 
All outreach and correspondence (letters, emails, phone calls) will be documented in a tracking log. ESA will also send 
letters of inquiry via email to identified local historical societies and preservation organizations seeking historical 
information on the project area and vicinity. Copies of all correspondence and the tracking log will be appended to the 
draft cultural resources report. If needed, ESA will also support to the UWCD during consultation meetings if any are 
requested. This scope of work assumes ESA cultural resources staff will attend one in-person meeting in support of AB 52 
consultation. 

Pedestrian Survey. A pedestrian survey of the APE will be conducted to identify and document archaeological and 
historic architectural resources. Archaeological survey will follow professional standards, using transects spaced no 
greater than 15 meters apart. The survey will be conducted by two ESA staff over a period of one 8-hour day plus travel 
time. Cultural resources encountered in the APE will be recorded on California State Department of Park and Recreation 
(DPR) 523 site record forms and plotted with sub-meter handheld GPS instruments. Previously recorded resources will 
be relocated and documented on DPR 523 update forms. This scope of work assumes no new cultural resources will be 
identified within the APE as a result of the records search or the cultural resources survey. Should cultural resources be 
identified any additional work associated with the formal documentation and evaluation of resources will be conducted 
under a separate scope and cost. Subsurface geoarchaeological testing, if needed, would also be conducted under a 
separate scope and cost. 

Cultural Resources Assessment Report. ESA will prepare a Cultural Resources Assessment Report addressing CEQA and 
Section 106 requirements. The report will follow the guidelines in Archaeological Resource Management Reports (ARMR): 
Recommended Contents and Format, Department of Parks and Recreation, Office of Historic Preservation, State of 
California, 1990. The report will incorporate the methods and results of the archival research and will provide 
background context for the APE and its vicinity. The report will present the methods and results of the survey and will 
provide recommendations regarding further treatment of any potentially significant resources identified as a result of 
the study. The report will also recommend a Finding of Effect conclusion. A draft report will be provided to UWCD and the 
Navy. A final report, incorporating one round of comments, will be prepared and one hard copy and an electronic copy 
(PDF) will be provided. 

Paleontological Resources Archival Research and Reporting. A paleontological fossil locality check will be requested 
from the Natural History Museum of Los Angeles County, and ESA’s qualified paleontologists will conduct a literature 
review to identify paleontological resources within or in the vicinity of the project area and to provide an assessment of 
the project area’s paleontological sensitivity. ESA will prepare a Paleontological Resources Assessment Report which will 
summarize the methods and results of the paleontological resources archival research. If the archival research indicates 
the project area is sensitive for the presence of paleontological resources at surface, a paleontological survey may be 
recommended under a separate scope and cost. 

Deliverables 

 APE map figure

 Draft and Final Cultural Resources Assessment Report (Microsoft Word and PDF format): ESA will revise the draft
Report based on receipt of one round of consolidated set of electronic comments in tracked edits. 

 Draft and Final Paleontological Resources Assessment Report (Microsoft Word and PDF format): ESA will revise the
draft Report based on receipt of one round of consolidated set of electronic comments in tracked edits.



15 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

8. Sea Level Rise Study
As described in the subtasks below, ESA will perform a sea level rise analysis (SLR) and a SLR Analysis Report for the 
project. ESA will define the planning horizon for the project and SLR scenarios. We expect the planning horizon to be 80 
to 100 years. We also expect to use SLR scenarios from the California Ocean Protection Council’s (OPC) State of California 
Sea-Level Rise Guidance (OPC 2018 Update), including the “H++” extreme risk aversion SLR scenario recommended for 
critical infrastructure. 

ESA will gather available data on coastal flood and erosion hazards with SLR for the well locations to assess the potential 
vulnerability of the proposed wells as well as future supply wells in the same proximity to sea level rise. ESA will then 
identify and describe potential adaptation strategies to reduce these vulnerabilities. ESA will document the hazard data, 
vulnerability assessment, and adaptation strategies in a SLR Analysis Report. 

Coastal hazards. ESA will gather coastal flood and erosion hazards with SLR as follows: 

 Coastal flood and erosion: ESA will gather coastal storm flooding, beach erosion, and groundwater hazard data with
SLR from the U.S. Geological Survey’s (USGS) Coastal Storm Modeling System (CoSMoS) 3.0.

 Coastal storm wave runup: ESA will gather and prepare wave runup hazard data from the Coastal Resilience Ventura
data prepared by ESA. Since CoSMoS only provides the maximum extent of wave runup, rather than the high velocity
wave hazard zone (similar to FEMA coastal V Zone), ESA will refine the Coastal Resilience Ventura wave runup hazard
data for the project area to provide site-specific wave hazard zone data to supplement CoSMoS data.

Vulnerability assessment. ESA will compile and map the above project components and hazard data in GIS to identify and 
assess project component vulnerability. ESA will meet with UWCD and the Navy to review these vulnerability maps and 
discuss potential vulnerabilities and potential adaptation strategies. 

Task 5: Mitigated Negative Declaration/Environmental Assessment 

Administrative Draft MND/EA 
ESA will prepare a joint MND/EA that describes and analyzes the type and magnitude of potential environmental effects 
resulting from implementation of proposed pilot Project that will determine if the project will cause significant impacts. 
The No Action Alternative will also be analyzed in accordance with NEPA requirements. Additionally, the MND/EA will 
include an Environmental Justice and Socioeconomics section to address NEPA requirements; ESA will use USEPA EJ 
Screen to conduct the analysis. The MND/EA also will include a “crosscutter analysis” describing consistency of the 
project with federal laws. The MND/EA will contain appropriate graphics including regional and local vicinity maps and 
relevant environmental issue area graphics. 

ESA will prepare the Administrative Draft MND/EA for submission to the UWCD. 

Deliverables 

 Administrative Draft MND/EA (Microsoft Word and PDF format) 

Screencheck Draft MND/EA 
Once ESA has received comments from the UWCD on the Administrative Draft MND/EA, ESA will prepare the Screencheck 
Draft MND/EA that will be submitted jointly to UWCD and Navy. One clean copy and one track change copy will be 
provided to the UWCD and Navy. 

Deliverables 

 Screencheck Draft MND/EA (Microsoft Word and PDF format): ESA will revise the Administrative Draft MND/EA based
on receipt of consolidated set of electronic comments. 



16 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

Public Draft MND/EA and Notice of Intent 
ESA will incorporate the comments received on the Screencheck Draft MND/EA and prepare the Public Draft MND/EA for 
publication. Per CEQA Guidelines Section 15072, ESA will prepare a Notice of Intent (NOI) to Adopt a MND for review by 
UWCD. The NOI together with the Public Draft MND/EA will be publicly distributed for 30 days as required by the CEQA 
Guidelines. ESA will work with the UWCD to develop a mailing list of trustee and responsible agencies, key stakeholders, 
members of the public, and persons requesting notice. ESA will coordinate with UWCD to submit the MND/EA and Notice 
of Completion (NOC) to the State Clearinghouse, as well as the Ventura County Clerk, and will submit the NOI to the local 
newspaper of general circulation (e.g., Ventura Star) for one-day posting of a public notice. 

ESA will follow the Navy’s implementing procedures for public review of the MND/EA. ESA will also work with the Navy to 
prepare a Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) documenting no significant effects would result from the Project. 

Deliverables 

 Mailing list for the Public Draft MND/EA 

 Public Draft MND/EA with NOI, NOC, and FONSI 

 Newspaper Public Notice with assumption for associated fees 

Final MND/EA 
After the required 30-day review period, ESA will compile all written comments received on the Public Draft MND/EA. ESA 
will conduct an initial review of all comments received on the Public Draft MND/EA, number them, and categorize them 
by subject. ESA will then prepare responses to each comment received. ESA will prepare one draft and one final 
responses to comments document for UWCD review. The Final MND/EA presented to the UWCD Board of Directors for 
consideration will consist of the Public Draft MND/EA, the comments received, the responses to comments, and the 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP). ESA’s Project Manager will be available for virtual attendance at 
one UWCD Board of Directors meeting to present the Final MND/EA and answer questions, if needed. The Public Draft 
MND/EA will not be reprinted or modified from its original version. This scope of work assumes a total of up to 5 
comment letters will be received and that no more than 40 hours are required to respond to the letters. 

ESA will prepare the MMRP to identify and delineate responsible parties for implementing mitigation measures 
presented in the Final MND/EA. The MMRP will include all mitigation measures, responsibility for their implementation, 
and method and schedule for reporting on their implementation. In addition, ESA will prepare a draft Notice of 
Determination (NOD) and submit to UWCD for review. Within five working days after the Board of Directors decision to 
approve the project, ESA will file the final NOD with the Ventura County Clerk and the State Clearinghouse. Our scope of 
work does not include CEQA filing fees (e.g., County Clerk, California Department of Fish and Wildlife). 

NEPA Coordination  
Our scope of work assumes that a joint CEQA/NEPA document will be prepared. To ensure the best pathway to 
accomplish NEPA, ESA will coordinate with the Navy to ensure appropriate content, format, and process requirements 
are achieved to the Navy’s expectations. It is unclear at this time the Navy’s review schedule and process needs for NEPA 
compliance. We have provided this subtask to accommodate discussion and incorporation of NEPA requirements 
needed to achieve a joint document.  

Assumptions 

 Assumes up to three coordination meetings with the Navy to discuss joint document requirements.

 Assumes minor format and content additions or modifications may be needed to prepare a joint document
deliverable.



17 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

Deliverables 

 Draft and Final Responses to Comments and MND/EA (Microsoft Word and PDF format): ESA will revise the draft and
final documents based on receipt of one round of consolidated set of electronic comments.

Draft and Final MMRP and NOD (Microsoft Word and PDF format): ESA will 
revise the draft and final documents based on receipt of one round of 
consolidated set of electronic comments.Task 6: Resource Permitting 

Agency Coordination 
ESA will support UWCD and the Navy with agency consultation as directed. We propose to meet initially with the 
LARWQCB, USFWS, NMFS, and potentially CDFW in a workshop setting to introduce or update the regulators on the 
proposed project status and discharge alternatives under consideration. Selecting the preferred discharge alternative 
will be influenced by the responses of the regulatory agencies. UWCD may already have an idea of the preferences of 
each agency, in which case the initial workshop will be held to solidify the approach and be clear about expectations and 
timelines. A key issue to evaluate is whether impacts to sensitive species will require mitigation such as habitat 
enhancement. If NMFS, USFWS, or CDFW suggests that mitigation is required, the project implementation schedule will 
be at risk. After the initial workshop held in fall 2022, we anticipate the need for three to four additional meetings with 
the remaining regulators, including the State Lands Commission, USACE, and California Coastal Commission if a permit 
is required from them. These meetings would provide project overviews and establish permit timeline expectations. We 
anticipate that the project will require approvals from the following agencies: 

Los Angeles Regional Water Quality 
Control Board 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Discharge of 
Groundwater from Construction and Project Dewatering to Surface Waters (Order 
No. R4-2018-0125) 

Individual NPDES Permit (Clean Water Act §402) 

NPDES Construction Stormwater General Permit (Order No. 2009-0009-DWQ as 
amended by 2010-0014-DWQ and 2012-0006-DWQ) 

Clean Water Act §401 (33 USC 1341) Water Quality Certification 

US Army Corps of Engineers Clean Water Act §404 (33 USC 1344) and Rivers and Harbors Appropriation Act §10 
(33 USC 403), Nationwide permit (NWP) 7 (outfall structures) 

US Fish and Wildlife Service 
National Marine Fisheries Service 

Endangered Species Act §7 (16 USC 1531); 
Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act (16 USC 661-667); Marine Mammal Protection 
Act (16 USC 1374); Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act 
(16 USC 1855) 

State Historic Preservation Officer National Historic Preservation Act §106 (16 USC 470); California AB 52 

California State Lands Commission Public Resources Code §6000; (14 CCR 1900) 

California Coastal Commission California Coastal Act, Coastal Development Permit 

California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife 

California Fish and Game Code §1602 



18 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

Permit Applications 

DEWATERING NPDES PERMIT (CLEAN WATER ACT §402) 

The RFP notes that the LARWQCB has expressed some openness in considering the project’s demonstration well 
extraction water discharges to the Mugu Lagoon under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
Discharge of Groundwater from Construction and Project Dewatering to Surface Waters (Order No. R4-2018-0125). If this 
strategy is selected, LWA would prepare the application for coverage under this General Order. Use of the SMP would not 
require coverage under this General Order. Technical information needed for this permit would be provided largely by 
UWCD including a map, design, water quality data, and a reuse infeasibility statement. 

INDIVIDUAL POINT SOURCE NPDES PERMIT (CLEAN WATER ACT §402) 

If the LARWQCB will not allow the discharge under the General Dewatering Permit, LWA will prepare an application for 
coverage under an Individual Point Source NPDES permit. LWA will prepare the ROWD and NOI. UWCD would supply 
water quality and toxicity test results. LWA’s scope is summarized below. 

REVIEW AND SUMMARIZE DATA 

LWA will review the applicable groundwater and receiving water data provided by United Water and specified by the Los 
Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Water Board). LWA will provide a detailed data-gathering list to 
facilitate the compilation of discharge and receiving water characterization data. To facilitate electronic data compilation, 
LWA will work with the United Water to access the data on CIWQS or GeoTracker and compare that data provided 
through analytical laboratory reports. In consultation with United Water, LWA will assess the data to confirm that it is 
representative of extracted groundwater quality and receiving water conditions and to identify any potential outliers. 

REASONABLE POTENTIAL ANALYSIS AND EFFLUENT LIMIT EVALUATION 

LWA will evaluate the groundwater and receiving water quality data compiled under Task 1 and prepare a Reasonable 
Potential Analysis (RPA) for each regulated constituent in accordance with the Policy for the Implementation of Toxics 
Standards for Inland Surface Waters, Enclosed Bays, and Estuaries of California (SIP). The RPA is utilized to determine if 
there is reasonable potential for discharges to cause or contribute to exceedance of a water quality objective. LWA will 
conduct this analysis for priority pollutants in the California Toxics Rule and other applicable constituents from the Los 
Angeles Region Basin Plan. The results will be compared to the effluent limits specified in the Groundwater General 
Permit or effluent limits will be calculated for constituents with identified reasonable potential to determine if an 
individual NPDES permit will be required. If needed, LWA will conduct a similar analysis for discharges to the Pacific 
Ocean based on the California Ocean Plan requirements or to the SMP based on Calleguas MWD’s requirements. LWA will 
prepare a memorandum summarizing the results of the analysis. For discharges to the SMP, Dr. Phil Roberts would 
provide strategic council on the need for revising the plume dispersion modelling. Dr. Roberts prepared the original 
plume dispersion modeling supporting the SMP’s current NPDES permit. 

DETERMINE APPROPRIATE PERMITTING MECHANISM 

Based on the analyses conducted in Tasks 1 and 2, LWA will evaluate the regulatory implications for discharges to Mugu 
Lagoon compared to discharges into the SMP or direct discharge to the Pacific Ocean. This will include required effluent 
limits, additional infrastructure that may be needed, and ease of obtaining the permit. Included in this task is one 
meeting with the Regional Water Board or Calleguas MWD to discuss specific permit conditions and additional requests 
for information and documentation. 

PREPARE PERMIT APPLICATION 

Once the permitting mechanism is identified, LWA will prepare the Notice of Intent (NOI) for the Groundwater General 
Permit, Report of Waste Discharge (ROWD) for an individual NPDES permit, or the application for discharge into the 
Calleguas MWD SMP. LWA will coordinate with the Navy and United Water to obtain any additional information that may 



19 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

be required. The budget is based on preparation of an NOI (or ROWD for individual permit) for discharge to Mugu Lagoon 
and includes completion of all standard forms, topographical maps, compilation of constituent data and data analysis, 
feasibility of reuse of water, and toxicity test results. 

PERMIT ADOPTION 

If the Groundwater General Permit is utilized, LWA will review the draft Notice of Applicability (NOA) for any requirements 
that may affect operation of the Demonstration Phase. If an individual permit is required, LWA will review the draft 
permit and assess the findings, requirements, and compliance ramifications. LWA Team will provide written comments 
on the draft NOA or permit and work with United Water staff to prepare a comment letter that will be submitted to the 
Regional Water Board. LWA will then work with United Water and Regional Water Board staff to address issues of concern 
and negotiate outcomes that can be supported by United Water. The NOA will be issued directly from the Regional Water 
Board Executive Officer. If an individual permit is required, LWA will support United Water during preparation for the 
permit adoption hearing including preparing draft presentation materials as needed. In addition, LWA will attend the 
permit hearing to assist United Water staff in responding to public comments or questions posed by Regional Water 
Board members. For discharges to the Pacific Ocean, LWA will respond to comments or requests as needed from the 
Regional Water Board or from Calleguas MWD to finalize permit requirements or final permit documents from Calleguas 
MWD as applicable. 

NPDES CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER GENERAL PERMIT (ORDER NO. 2009-0009-DWQ AS 
AMENDED BY 2010-0014-DWQ AND 2012-0006-DWQ) 

Construction of the Demonstration Phase will require coverage under the Construction Stormwater General NPDES 
Permit (CGP) if the work results in the disturbance of an acre or more of land. The State Water Resources Control Board is 
in the process of reissuing the CGP with an anticipated effective date of September 1, 2023. LWA will assist United Water 
in the preparation of the Notice of Intent (NOI) and preliminary Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the 
proposed project. The preliminary SWPPP will then be updated by the construction contractor to incorporate 
construction and contract specific requirements prior to the commencement of construction. 

As the regulatory requirements are currently in flux, LWA will closely coordinate with United Water and the Navy to 
develop the approach for the SWPPP including determination of whether the Linear Underground Utility Project (LUP) or 
Traditional Construction Project requirements of the reissued permit would be most beneficial for the project. The tasks 
to obtain CGP coverage will include: 

 Compile and evaluate data on the proposed project design to complete the NOI including determination of the
project risk factor or LUP type.

 Draft preliminary site specific SWPPP based on industry standard templates (e.g., CASQA template) including:

— Pollutant Source Assessment including relevant Total Maximum Daily Loads

— RUSLE2 modeling if needed for the Calleguas Creek Metals TMDLs 

— Identification of Best Management Practices (BMPs) to address pollutant sources 

— Site and SWPPP maps based on the design plans provided by the District or Navy 

— Construction Site Monitoring Program 

— Incorporation of the permanent post construction BMPs provided by the District or Navy if needed. 

 Final preliminary SWPPP revised based on comments from the United Water and the Navy



20 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

USACE/RWQCB: RIVERS AND HARBORS ACTION SECTION 10/CLEAN WATER ACT SECTION 404 
PERMIT/CLEAN WATER ACT SECTION 401 CERTIFICATION 

ESA will prepare permit applications pursuant to Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act and Section 404 of the Clean 
Water Act for the proposed discharge. We assume that technical studies may include plume modeling and underwater 
conditions assessments, biological assessment (BA) and biological opinion (BO), Section 106 Report and SHPO 
concurrence letter. These technical studies scopes are described below. 

Based on our current understanding of the project, it is anticipated that the project can be permitted under Nationwide 
Permit 7: Outfall Structures and Associated Intake Structures, assuming the project would have no more than minimal 
impacts on aquatic resources as determined by USACE. A Nationwide Permit Pre-Construction Notification (PCN) Form 
will be prepared for the project, including a project description (with all pertinent maps and plans), along with 
documentation the project has satisfied all appropriate General and Regional Conditions. The Biological Assessment and 
cultural resources report will also be included in the PCN package. ESA will compile information, including project 
designs and water quality protection best management practices to be employed during construction, and include this 
information with the permit application. 

Section 401 of the CWA requires the discharge of dredged or fill material into waters of the United States, including 
wetlands, does not violate state water quality standards. As required by Section 404, a WQC must be obtained or waived 
prior to USACE issuing a Section 404 permit. ESA will prepare a Section 401 WQC application package for submittal to the 
RWQCB for the proposed project, including information required by the State Procedures for Discharges of Dredged or 
Fill Material to Waters of the State (Procedures). For purposes of this proposal, it is assumed that UCWD will provide an 
alternatives analysis to satisfy the alternative analysis requirements under the Procedures. 

Endangered Species Act §7 (16 USC 1531) U.S Fish and Wildlife Service and National 
Marine Fisheries Service; Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act (16 USC 661-667); Marine 
Mammal Protection Act (16 USC 1374); Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and 
Management Act (16 USC 1855) 

SECTION 7 CONSULTATION 

The Navy is required under the Endangered Species Act to consult with USFWS and NMFS for actions that could impact 
critical habitat or listed species. As a result, irrespective of the NPDES permit approved by the LARWQCB, discharges to 
the Mugu Lagoon or to the beach will require consultation with both USFWS and NMFS. Use of the SMP would not require 
Section 7 consultation since the discharge facility is already approved. For the two new discharge location options, our 
initial approach will be to evaluate the potential for a No Effect determination. We assume that two meetings with 
USFWS and NMFS will be required to evaluate the approach. If a finding of Not Likely to Adversely Affect determination is 
pursued, ESA will prepare a BA as described in this scope. As noted in the RFP, numerous listed species occur in the area. 
However, impact avoidance measures should be effective in eliminating the potential for effect for most species. A not 
likely to adversely affect assessment for the fish species and marine mammals should complete the consultation. 

ESA has recently (July 2022) obtained Biological Opinions from NMFS and USFWS for a new ocean outfall for the City of 
Ventura covering most of the species of concern potentially present at Mugu Lagoon. We bring the same biological 
resources and permitting team to this effort, including Ramona Swenson for assessment of impacts to tidewater goby 
and Garret Liedy for impacts to marine mammals and Southern California steelhead. 

MAGNUSON-STEVENS FISHERY CONSERVATION AND MANAGEMENT ACT 

We propose to comply with Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act coincidentally with Section 7 
consultation. The BA will include an EFH Assessment required by the Act. The BA will include conclusions regarding 
consistency with the Act. 



21 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

MARINE MAMMAL PROTECTION ACT 

We propose to comply with Marine Mammal Protection Act coincidentally with Section 7 consultation. The BA will 
include an assessment of potential impacts to marine mammals as required by the Act. The BA will include conclusions 
regarding consistency with the Act. 

BIOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT 

ESA will prepare a Biological Assessment (BA) in support of the Section 7 Consultation with USFWS. The federally listed 
or proposed species to be addressed in the BA will be limited to the species known to have some potential to occur in the 
project impact area. The BA will have the content outlined and described below. The effects analysis and determination 
will be prepared for each project component. 

Introduction – The introduction will describe the purpose and overview of the BA, which will also include a complete and 
detailed project description. The introduction will also include proposed avoidance, minimization, and compensation 
measures that would be implemented for the proposed project. 

Environmental Setting – The environmental setting will describe the current habitat conditions of the action area, based 
on existing data, consistent with the baseline biological resources information discussed in the project BRR and the 
results of vegetation mapping and reconnaissance-level surveys. Information in this section will include vegetation 
classification for the project area, as well as topography, and soils, as relevant. 

Federally Listed Species – The BA will list all federally threatened and endangered species potentially affected by the 
project and will describe their legal status, likelihood of occurrence in the project area, and the likelihood of being 
affected by implementation and operation of the project. 

Effects Determination – The BA will analyze all pertinent data and will formulate an “effects determination” for any 
federally listed species that the project may affect. It is possible that the proposed project may reach a “not likely to 
adversely affect” determination for some federally listed species. However, when this is not possible, this determination 
will attempt, through reasonable assumption, to quantify any effects on species for the purpose of issuance of an 
Incidental Take Permit by USFWS. 

National Historic Preservation Act §106 (16 USC 470); California AB 52 
ESA will support the Navy’s compliance with the NHPA through preparation of a cultural resources technical report that 
is sufficient for Section 106 compliance. ESA will also support UWCD with AB 52 compliance. Prior to publishing the 
IS/MND, UWCD will need to consult with Native American tribes interested in consultation. ESA will prepare a 
consultation request letter for UWCD as described in the Cultural Resources Technical Report scope or work. 

State Lands Commission Lease 
The California State Lands Commission (SLC) has jurisdiction and management control over those public lands of the 
state received by the State upon its admission to the United States in 1850 (“sovereign lands”), including all ungranted 
tidelands and submerged lands, among other areas. Due to its location along the Pacific Ocean coastline, the project will 
require authorization from the SLC through issuance of a new lease. ESA will prepare a lease application with 
attachments for submittal to the SLC via the agency’s Online System for Customer Applications and Records (OSCAR). 
The application package will generally include a completed application form, supplemental information to support the 
application form, Project plans, existing available technical studies, and verification or status of other permits. The 
agency requires the submitted plans to display the SLC’s jurisdictional boundary (i.e., the mean high tide line) that has 
been field-verified by a licensed professional land surveyor within 6-months prior to submittal to the SLC. This scope 
assumes the survey will be prepared by others. The supplemental information will include a detailed permitting Project 
description, along with a summary of the CEQA document’s findings regarding environmental impacts. 



22 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

CZMA Federal Consistency Determination / Coastal Development Permit (CDP) Support 
(if needed) 
ESA will prepare a Coastal Zone Management Act (CZMA) consistency analysis. We assume that the analysis will consist 
of a project description and a matrix including relevant goals and policies of the CZMA with project consistency 
assessments and conclusions. ESA will conform with the Navy’s requested format and content for this analysis. 

Although not included in the RFP, we are proposing scope to initiate consultations with the California Coastal 
Commission (CCC) and prepare a Coastal Development Permit (CDP) application for submittal to the CCC. A CDP may be 
needed to install Mugu Lagoon or beach discharge equipment, or would be required to construct a connection to the 
SMP. ESA will support UWCD’s consultation with the CCC, augmenting the application as required by the CCC. The CDP 
application will include project designs provided by UWCD, the CEQA document, and impact avoidance measures. 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife; Fish and Game Code 1602 (if needed) 
Although not included in the RFP, we anticipate that the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) may retain 
jurisdiction over actions taken by a state agency in CDFW jurisdictional areas. If UWCD and the Navy have confirmed that 
CDFW jurisdiction is not required, then this scope would not be necessary. If necessary, ESA would prepare a Streambed 
Alteration Agreement for submittal to CDFW that will include all of the data collected regarding the existing conditions of 
the lagoon and the potential impacts of the proposed project. ESA would recommend meeting with CDFW to review the 
project details in order to expedite permitting. 

Project Schedule 
Figure C-1 shown below is ESA’s proposed timeline to complete this project. 



23 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022 esassoc.com 

Figure C-1 Project Schedule 



9 EBB Water Treatment Project Demonstration Phase CEQA & Permitting Environmental Science Associates 
September 15, 2022      esassoc.com 

Organizational Chart 
Figure E-1 Organizational Chart, which appears below, shows the extensive depth and reporting structure of the ESA team. 

Figure E-1   Organizational Chart 



ESA Labor Detail and Expense Summary

Nielson

Vader/Shapiro Rhode

Jackson Ehringer Steiner/Papin Sweet Gick

Calantas R. Swenson M. Lau Sako Ings Leidy Clark Cardoza
Strauss Barnes D. Swenson Behrens Smith Witmer Matroni Cadena GIS Admin

Labor Category Senior Principal 
Consultant 3

Senior Principal 
Consultant 2 Managing Consultant 5 Managing Consultant 4 Managing Consultant 2 Senior Consultant 3 Senior Consultant 1 Associate Consultant 2 Project Technician 3 Project Technician 2

Task # Task Name/Description $295 $272 $238 $224 $195 $167 $140 $137 $112 $87
1 Project Management and Meetings 4 76 12 4 125 12 60 293.00 56,843$  
2 Background Review and Project Initi 4 16 24 4 8 56.00 11,656$  

3 Permitting Compliance Strategy/Alternatives Evaluation and Technical Study Need 
Assessment 4 32 4 32 24 96.00 19,764$  

4 Technical Studies - -$  
4.1 Air Emissions, GHG, Energy Assessment 24 32 4 60.00 11,068$  

4.2 BRTR- Upland habitat 8 4 24 32 24 2 94.00 16,934$  

4.3 Focused Surveys (Optional) - -$  

Focused Surveys - Rare Plants (Optional) 2 6 24 40 8 80.00 11,382$  

Focused Surveys - avian species (Optional) 1 6 210 300 24 541.00 80,266$  

Focused Surveys - tidewater goby (Optional) 50 6 20 76.00 16,410$  

Focused Surveys - aquatic vegetation (eelgrass) (Optional) 8 32 20 80 40 180.00 28,572$  

4.4 Lagoon and Marine Biology Study/EFH Assessment 24 12 36.00 9,216$  

4.5 Lagoon Discharge Dispersion and Mixing Study 24 24.00 5,376$  

4.6 TMDL Considerations Study 4 4.00 896$  

4.7 Jurisdictional Delineations of Wetlands/Lagoon/ include Department of Defense 
requirements 2 8 24 2 36.00 6,676$  

4.8 Cultural Resources Report/Phase 1/AB 52/include Department of Defense 
requirements/Paleo Assessment  16 24 75 65 8 2 190.00 34,891$  

4.9 Sea Level Rise 24 80 8 24 4 140.00 30,948$  

5.0 CEQA/NEPA Initial Study/Environmental Assessment - -$  

5.1 Admin Draft MND 8 60 16 8 60 16 120 80 16 8 392.00 68,900$  
5.2 Public Draft MND 40 8 8 32 4 20 40 8 16 176.00 32,052$  
5.3 Final MND/Response to comments RTC 4 8 40 20 40 8 120.00 20,132$  
5.3 NEPA Coordination and EA Formatting 8 24 40 72.00 12,456$  

6 Resource Permitting - -$  

6.1 Agency Engagement 8 24 16 16 64.00 15,816$  

6.2 RWQCB-NPDES Permit-Discharge Permit and Construction Stormwater 
Permit/ROWD - -$  

6.3 Endangered Species Act Section 7 16 8 24 24 40 16 128.00 26,208$  
6.4 USACE-CWA Section 404/RHA Section 10 8 40 24 4 4 80.00 17,172$  
6.5 CZMA Federal Consistency Determination 24 16 4 4 48.00 8,748$  
6.6 State Lands Lease 24 16 4 4 48.00 10,092$  
6.7 CCC CDP (if needed) 4 8 24 40 40 16 2 134.00 24,434$  
6.8 CDFW 1602 (if Needed) 2 2 40 80 4 2 130.00 22,476$  

- -$  
Total Hours 104 326 405 132 558 398 441 620 192 122 3,298 
Total Labor Costs 30,680$  88,672$  96,390$  29,568$  108,810$  66,466$  61,740$  84,940$  21,504$  10,614$  599,384$  
Percent of Effort - Labor Hours Only 3.2% 9.9% 12.3% 4.0% 16.9% 12.1% 13.4% 18.8% 5.8% 3.7% 100.0%
Percent of Effort - Total Project Cost 4.5% 12.9% 14.0% 4.3% 15.8% 9.6% 9.0% 12.3% 3.1% 1.5% 87.0%

PROJECT COST ESTIMATE SUMMARY TABLE
ESA Labor C (Including Optional surveys) 599,384$

ESA Non-Labor Expenses
Reimbursable Expenses (see Attachment A for detail) 4,000$  
ESA Equipment Usage (see Attachment A for detail) -$

Subtotal ESA Non-Labor Expenses 4,000$  

Subconsultant Costs (see Attachment B for detail) 222,303$

PROJECT TO  (Not Including Optional Survey Tasks) 689,057$

Total Including Optional Surveys 825,687$

Employee Names 

Total Hours Labor Price

H:Z:\Shared\Proposals\2022\SC\P202200975.00 - UWCD EBB Water Treatment Demonstration CEQA+Permitting\00 Working Files\cost\UWCD EBB cost_revised-ESA Labor Cost & Project Total



Attachment B
Cost Proposal: Subconsultant Detail

Subtotal Percent Total
Subconsultant 1 Subconsultant 2 Subconsultant 3 Subconsultant Fee @ Subconsultant

LWA Padre Dr. Roberts Cost 5% Project Cost

1 meetings 7,500$  4,000$  11,500$  575$  12,075$             
-$  -$  -$  

2 Alternatives 2,500$  2,500$  125$  2,625$
-$  -$  -$  

3 Technical Studies 8,000$  10,000$  18,000$  900$  18,900$             
-$  -$  -$  

4 TMDL Tech Memo 20,334$  20,334$  1,017$             21,351$             
Mixing Model 35,394$  35,394$  1,770$             37,164$             

5 CEQA/NEPA 25,000$  10,000$  35,000$  1,750$             36,750$             
-$  -$  -$  

6 Permitting 62,989$  11,000$  15,000$  88,989$  4,449$             93,438$             
-$  -$  -$  

7 -$  -$  -$  
-$  -$  -$  

8 -$  -$  -$  
-$  -$  -$  

9 -$  -$  -$  
-$  -$  -$  

10 -$  -$  -$  
-$  -$  -$  
-$  -$  -$  
-$  -$  -$  
-$  -$  -$  

159,217$ 37,500$ 15,000$ 211,717$              10,586$           222,303$           Subconsultant Total

Task Number / Description

Subconsultant Costs

Insert Budget By Task

H:Z:\Shared\Proposals\2022\SC\P202200975.00 - UWCD EBB Water Treatment Demonstration CEQA+Permitting\00 Working Files\cost\UWCD EBB cost_revised-Input Subconsultant Detail HERE



Cost Proposal: ESA Non-Labor Expenses by Task
0%

Reimbursable Costs on Costs

Project Supplies -$  -$  -$  
Printing/Reproduction 250$  -$  250$  
Document and Map Reproductions (CD + Digital Photo) -$  -$  -$  
Postage and Deliveries 500$  -$  500$  
Mileage 750$  -$  750$  
Vehicle Rental -$  -$  -$  
Lodging -$  -$  -$  
Airfare -$  -$  -$  
Other Travel Related -$  -$  -$  

 SCCIC, EDR, and LACM Fees 2,500$  -$  2,500$             
- -$  -$  -$  
- -$  -$  -$  

Total Reimbursable Costs (for all tasks)  4,000$  -$  4,000$             
Reimbursable Costs by Task (including mark-up)

Total Subtotal

H:Z:\Shared\Proposals\2022\SC\P202200975.00 - UWCD EBB Water Treatment Demonstration CEQA+Permitting\00 Working Files\cost\UWCD EBB cost_revised-Input 
Expense Detail HERE



1 

Exhibit B 
Environmental Science Associates & Subsidiaries 

2022 Schedule of Fees 

I. Personnel Category Hourly Rates
Charges will be made at the Category hourly rates set forth below for time spent on project 
management, consultation or meetings related to the project, field work, report preparation and 
review, travel time, etc. The following table lists hourly rates per staff category and experience 
level. 

Labor Category Billing 
Step I 

Billing 
Step II 

Billing 
Step III 

Billing Step 
IV 

Billing 
Step V 

Billing 
Step VI 

Senior Principal 
Consultant 

250 272 295 318 341 364

Principal Consultant 199 219 239 259 279 299
Managing Consultant 180 195 209 224 238 253
Senior Consultant 140 153 167 181 194 208
Associate Consultant 128 137 146 155 164 173
Consultant 89 97 105 114 122 135

Project Technician 62 87 112 136 161 186

(a) The range of rates shown for each staff category reflects ESA staff
qualifications, expertise and experience levels. These rate ranges allow our
project managers to assemble the best project teams to meet the unique
project requirements and client expectations for each opportunity.

II. Subcontracts
Subcontract services will be invoiced at cost multiplied by 1.05. 



1 

EXHIBIT “B” TO AGREEMENT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

CONSULTANT shall adhere to the following Guidelines for Expense 
Reimbursement:  

Incidental expenditures incurred by CONSULTANT in the course of performing 
work under this Agreement and submitted for reimbursement by UNITED shall 
comply with the following guidelines.  

Receipts are required for all reimbursable expenses (with an exception for meals 
and lodging) and shall be furnished with the invoice. Reimbursable expenditures 
shall not be subject to mark-up. Only actual costs of expenditures within the limits 
presented below are eligible for reimbursement.  

1. Reimbursable Expenditures

A. Travel Expenses

Expenses for airfare or other travel accommodations shall not exceed costs
that would reasonably be expected for comparable economy or coach class 
accommodations. 

Personal vehicles may be used when appropriate and mileage will be 
reimbursed at the standard Internal Revenue Service (IRS) business mileage rate 
(i.e., 62.5 cents per mile for last 6 months of calendar year 2022), but for a total cost 
no greater than the cost that would reasonably be expected for round trip economy 
or coach class airfare. With the exception of extenuating circumstances (e.g., 
transport of specialized equipment), mileage for any trip over 500 miles shall be 
reimbursed at a total cost no greater than would reasonably be expected for round 
trip economy or coach class airfare. Extenuating circumstances shall be pre-
approved by UNITED.  

Rental vehicle costs are reimbursable when justified by the nature of the trip. 
With the exception of extenuating circumstances (e.g., transport of more than 4 
people or excessive cargo) the total expense for the rental vehicle shall not exceed a 
cost that would reasonably be expected for a standard class vehicle. Insurance for 
rental vehicles is not reimbursable and must be in accordance with all insurance 
requirements set forth in this Agreement. 

B. Lodging

The cost of lodging incurred on approved CONSULTANT business trips is
reimbursable. UNITED will reimburse lodging at the standard U.S. General 



2 

Services Administration (GSA) rate for Ventura County (i.e., $182.00 per night 
[excluding taxes] January – September 2022). GSA rates are annually updated in 
October. 

C. Meals

The cost of meals incurred on approved CONSULTANT Projects is
reimbursable. 

If UNITED is reimbursing the CONSULTANT for lodging, UNITED will 
reimburse for meals at the appropriate standard GSA rate for Ventura County (i.e., 
$55.50 per day for first and last calendar day of PROJECT work, and $74.00 per 
day for additional PROJECT work days for calendar year 2022). 

If UNITED is not reimbursing the CONSULTANT for lodging, UNITED will 
not reimburse the CONSULTANT for meals.  

D. Equipment

All reimbursable equipment must be purchased or rented at a reasonable
cost, in accordance with industry standards. 

E. Expendable Items

Items that are expendable (depleted) will not be returned to UNITED, as the
items will be “used up” in the course of CONSULTANT’s work. 

F. Non-Expendable Items

Items that are non-expendable (not depleted) will be returned to UNITED
upon completion of CONSULTANT’s work. 



1 

EXHIBIT “C” TO AGREEMENT FOR 

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES 

CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and 
for injuries that occur and claims which are made after the services herein are 
performed, insurance against claims or injuries to persons or damages to property, 
which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder 
by CONSULTANT, its agents, representatives, or employees.  

Minimum Scope of Insurance  

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence
Form CG 00 01 or its equivalent).

2. Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering Automobile
Liability, Code 1 or its equivalent (any auto).

3. Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and
Employer's Liability Insurance.

4. Errors & Omissions Liability insurance appropriate to the CONSULTANT’s
profession.  Architects’ and engineers’ coverage is to be endorsed to include
contractual liability.

5. Valuable Document Insurance on all plans, specifications and other
documents as may be required to protect UNITED in the amount of its full
equity in such plans, specifications and other documents.

Minimum Limits of Insurance  

CONSULTANT shall maintain limits no less than: 

1. General Liability:
Including operations, products
and completed operations, as
applicable.

$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily 
injury, personal injury and property 
damage.  If Commercial General 
Liability Insurance or other form with a 
general aggregate limit is used, either 
the general aggregate limit shall apply 
separately to this project/location or the 
general aggregate limit shall be twice 
the required occurrence limit. 

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 
and property damage. 



2 

3. Employer’s Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 
or disease. 

4. Errors & Omissions Liability: $1,000,000 per claim. 

5. Valuable Document Insurance Full Equity of all Documents 

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by 
UNITED.  At the option of UNITED, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects UNITED, its directors, 
officers, officials, employees and agents; or CONSULTANT shall provide a financial 
guarantee satisfactory to UNITED guaranteeing payment of losses and related 
investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 

Other Insurance Provisions 

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or 
be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 

6. For all policies required by this Agreement, UNITED and its directors, 
officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered as additional 
named insureds as respects: liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the CONSULTANT; or automobiles owned, 
leased, hired or borrowed by the CONSULTANT. 

7. For any claims related to this Project, the CONSULTANT’s insurance 
coverage shall be primary insurance as respects UNITED and its directors, 
officers, officials, employees and agents.  Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by  UNITED, its directors, officers, officials, employees or agents 
shall be excess of the CONSULTANT’s insurance and shall not contribute 
with it. 

8. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that 
coverage shall not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days 
prior written notice has been provided to UNITED (with the exception of ten 
(10) days for nonpayment of premium). 

If General Liability, Contractors Pollution Liability and/or Asbestos Pollution 
Liability and/or Errors & Omissions coverages are written on a claims-made form: 

9. The retroactive date must be shown, and must be before the date of the 
contract or the beginning of contract work. 

10. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided 
for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work. 



3 

11. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective date, 
the CONSULTANT must purchase an extended period coverage for a 
minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work. 

12. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to UNITED 
for review. 

13. If the services involve lead-based paint or asbestos identification/ 
remediation, the Contractors Pollution Liability shall not contain lead-based 
paint or asbestos exclusions.  If the services involve mold identification/ 
remediation, the Contractors Pollution Liability shall not contain a mold 
exclusion and the definition of “Pollution” shall include microbial matter 
including mold. 

Acceptability of Insurers 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers qualified to do business in the State of 
California with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A: VII, unless otherwise 
acceptable to UNITED.  Exception may be made for the State Compensation 
Insurance Fund when not specifically rated. 

Verification of Coverage 

CONSULTANT shall furnish UNITED with original certificates and amendatory/ 
additional insured endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause.  The 
endorsements should be on forms provided by UNITED or on other than UNITED’s 
forms provided those endorsements conform to UNITED requirements.  All 
certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by UNITED before 
work commences.  However, failure to do so shall not operate as a waiver of these 
insurance requirements. UNITED reserves the right to require complete, certified 
copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements effecting the 
coverage required by these specifications at any time. 

Waiver of Subrogation 

CONSULTANT hereby agrees to waive subrogation, which any insurer of contractor 
may acquire from vendor by virtue of the payment of any loss.  CONSULTANT 
agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this waiver of 
subrogation. 

The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of subrogation 
in favor of the entity for all work performed by the CONSULTANT, its employees, 
agents and subcontractors. 

 



To: 

Through: 

From: 

Date: 

Staff Report 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 

Brian Collins, Chief Operations Officer 
Craig Morgan, Engineering Manager 

November 14, 2022 (December 14, 2022, Meeting) 

Agenda Item:   5.4 Authorize an Amendment to the University of Iowa Contract for the 
Physical Modeling of the Vertical Slot for the Freeman Expansion 
Project  
Motion 

_________________________________________________________________ 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Board will consider approval of the motion authorizing an amendment to the University of 
Iowa contract for the operational and stress physical modeling of the Vertical Slot for the Freeman 
Expansion Project in the amount of $387,165.  The original professional consulting services 
agreement between UWCD and University of Iowa was executed on September 3, 2021; the first 
amendment to the agreement, executed on March 2, 2022, extended the scope of work for the 
original agreement with University of Iowa. 

Discussion: 
On November 23, 2020, per a Federal Court order, staff delivered a physical model plan that 
contained a schedule to conduct physical modeling at one laboratory with a completion date of 
August 15, 2023. A Motion to Modify was filed with the Court to get relief of the November 1, 
2021, physical model completion date listed in the Stipulation Order. A partial time extension was 
granted and the newly mandated completion date of October 31, 2022. 

To complete the physical modeling, consisting of 1:12 and 1:24 model of the hardened ramp and 
a 1:12 and 1:24 scale model of the vertical slot, within the mandated timeline, two modeling labs 
are being utilized. The Bureau of Reclamation (BOR) is conducting the physical modeling for the 
hardened ramp and the University of Iowa is conducting the physical modeling for the vertical 
slot.  

On December 8, 2021, the Board approved modeling expenditures of $667,774 to conduct a 1:8 
scale modeling for the vertical slot alternative. The 1:8 scale modeling will not be performed.  

The physical modeling effort at the University of Iowa will require the additional funding of 
$387,165 to accomplish the vertical slot operational and stress test (1:12 and 1:24) modeling.  



Agenda Item: 5.4 Authorize an Amendment to the University of Iowa Contract for the 
Physical Modeling of the Vertical Slot for the Freeman Expansion 
Project 
Motion 

 
 
 2 

Fiscal Impact: 
Approval of this item would result in an expenditure of $387,165. Funding for this motion was 
approved in the December 8, 2021 Board Meeting, supplemental appropriation, agenda item 4.2.  
 
Attachments: 
Attachment A – UWCD University of Iowa Physical Modeling Contract Amendment for Vertical 
     Slot PSA Amendment No. 2 
 



Construction and Materials testing 
services in Connection with the  
Freeman Diversion Rehabilitation Project Page 1 of X Amendment No. 2 

AMENDMENT No. 2 
TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

The Professional Service Agreement (hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”) made effective 
September 3, 2021, by and between United Water Conservation District (hereinafter "United"), 
and the University of Iowa (hereinafter referred to a “Consultant”), for the purpose of providing 
professional construction and materials testing services in connection with Freeman Diversion 
Rehabilitation Project, is here by amended as follows: 

Agreement 
On September 3, 2021, United Water Conservation District entered into an agreement with the 
University of Iowa to obtain professional construction and materials testing services provided 
in connection with Freeman Diversion Rehabilitation Project. 

Scope of Work 
This amendment dated December __, 2022, provides for additional services consisting of an 
extension work scope timeline to complete operational and stress physical modeling. The scope 
of work is listed in more detail in the attached proposal. 

Contract Term 

This contract amendment will extend the period of performance to March 31, 2023. 

Compensation 
The not to exceed cost for the additional work described above is $387,165. The total amended 
contract amount is $2,087,910. The conditions of the original Agreement dated September 3, 
2021, shall remain in full force and effect except as amended herein. 

United Water 
Conservation District 

University of Iowa 

Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr. Wendy Beaver 
General Manager Executive Director, Sponsored 

Programs 



Construction and Materials testing 
services in Connection with the  
Freeman Diversion Rehabilitation Project Page 2 of X Amendment No. 2 

 
 

AMENDMENT No. 2 
TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

Attachment A – Scope of Work and Schedule 
 



College of Engineering 
IIHR—Hydroscience and Engineering 
University of Iowa 
100 C. Maxwell Stanley Hydraulics Lab 
Iowa City, Iowa 52242-1585 
319-335-5238 
iihr.uiowa.edu 
 

November 15, 2022 
 
Brian Collins   
Chief Operations Officer 
United Water Conservation District 
brianc@unitedwater.org 
 
RE: Contract Amendment #2 – Detailed Hydraulic Testing and Schedule Extension for the Freeman 
Diversion Rehabilitation Project 
 
Mr. Collins: 
 
Below are the scope of work items and cost summary for further modifications and detailed hydraulic 
testing on the 1:12 and 1:24 scale models for the Vertical Slot Fish Ladder alternative for the Freeman 
Diversion.  The scope of work and associated costs in this amendment are in lieu of the previous 
authorization of $667,774 for the 1:8 scale model which is no longer being pursued.  The scope of work 
includes the following tasks: 

1. Continue revisions and testing of the desander on the 1:24 scale model until desired performance 
is achieved. 

2. Once the desander design is complete, perform detailed hydraulic testing on the 1:24 scale model 
to support Stantec’s hydraulic design requests. These tests include measurements of water surface 
elevation and flow velocity at specified locations inside and outside of the diversion and its 
associated structures.  

3. Modify the 1:12 scale model to include the secondary AWS screen panels and modify the 
secondary screen floor to a parabolic shape. 

4. Perform detailed hydraulic testing on the 1:12 scale model to support Stantec’s hydraulic design 
requests.   

5. Perform comprehensive tests on the 1:24 scale model with the final desander in support of 
diversion operations and sediment management.  

6. Write a second technical report that summarizes all model testing from Nov. 1, 2022, through the 
end of the project.   

7. Decommission the physical models upon completion of the project. 
 
All costs associated with completing the remaining scope of work and extending the project schedule 
from October 31, 2022, to March 31, 2023, are shown below. 
 
  

mailto:brianc@unitedwater.org


New SOW Budget Breakdown 
 

 
 
 
Overall Budget Breakdown 
 

 
 
 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions, need additional information, or would like to discuss the 
scope of work, budget, or schedule. The budget and scope can be revised as needed in the future based on 
results from physical model testing and future decisions by United.    
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Troy Lyons, P.E., Ph.D. 
Associate Director 
IIHR – Hydroscience and Engineering |The University of Iowa 
319-335-5319 | 319-321-2669 (m) 
iihrengineering.com; iihr.uiowa.edu 

Cost Category Labor Non-labor Total
Management/Travel $32,342 $0 $32,342
Construction $143,374 --- $143,374
Model Ops $153,847 --- $153,847
Materials/Supplies/Machine Rentals --- $57,601 $57,601
Total $329,564 $57,601 $387,165

Original NTE Contract Amount $1,364,024
Am. 1, Additional SOW Part A $336,721
Am. 1, Additional SOW Part B $667,774
Current NTE Contract Amount $2,368,519
This Am. 2 proposal, Removes Am. 1 SOW Part B ($667,774)
This Am. 2 proposal, Supplemental SOW $387,165
New Revised NTE Contract Aount $2,087,910

https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fiihrengineering.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cbrianc%40unitedwater.org%7C276d2f2b58e145c6868008d9abac3b81%7C06b56b7db93a470fb723b35b724630a4%7C1%7C0%7C637729578493608426%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=6S4u6s47X9yxO1jN%2FnbXzy8%2FrS8imdujCoCwTb%2FltZA%3D&reserved=0
https://nam04.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.iihr.uiowa.edu%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cbrianc%40unitedwater.org%7C276d2f2b58e145c6868008d9abac3b81%7C06b56b7db93a470fb723b35b724630a4%7C1%7C0%7C637729578493618393%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=uV%2BFTU%2F%2BB75lyzYSAWlomQXnf6qLXQHEl0n2CoCoydo%3D&reserved=0


LOCAL NEWS

Coordinated animal poaching crew in 
Ventura County busted by Fish and 
Wildlife 
by: Travis Schlepp 
Posted: Dec 6, 2022 / 01:50 PM PST 
Updated: Dec 6, 2022 / 02:22 PM PST 

Gilberto Lopez Hernandez, Jaime Mendoza Avila, and Walfre Lopez posing with a deer taken on Nov. 
7, 2020 (Ventura County District Attorney’s Office/California Fish and Wildlife) 

Six people are in custody and a seventh is being sought by authorities after California 
Fish and Wildlife game wardens busted an alleged poaching ring that spanned several 
years and involved the cooperation of a local grocery market. 

They’re called the E-Bike Crew, a group of six men who are believed responsible for 
dozens of illegal kills of local wildlife. 

https://ktla.com/news/local-news/
https://ktla.com/author/travis-schlepp/


On Monday, Ventura County District Attorney Erik Nasarenko announced that 21 
charges have been filed against the men, including allegations of forgery, conspiracy, 
receiving of stolen property, animal cruelty and possession of an untagged bear. 

The investigation into the illegal poaching activities spanned more than a year. 

The men involved, identified in public records as Martin M. Bravo, Martin Bravo Sr., 
Jaime Mendoza Avila, Walfre Lopez y Lopez, Gilberto Lopez Hernandez and Cristian 
Lopez Perez, are accused of working in concert together to fraudulently obtain 
California hunting tags, licenses and other entitlements. 

The group allegedly worked with the cooperation of Juventino Reyes Guerrero, the 
operator of a Fish and Wildlife licensing desk located within Lizette’s Market in Piru. 

From June 2019 to October 2021, the men allegedly falsified and reprinted hunting tags 
to allow them to skirt California hunting regulations and harvest more animals than 
legally allowed. Their motivation, court documents allege, was profit, personal gain and, 
simply, entertainment. 

California has restrictions on the amount of animals that can be taken throughout the 
year. The restrictions exist to protect California’s wildlife species and prevent over-
hunting, which can cause devastating results for the local ecosystem. 

For example, California law prohibits more than two deer hunting tags to be issued per 
year. 

While printing legal tags for the group, Reyes Guerrero allegedly regularly re-printed 
tickets, blaming it on poor print quality. In reality, 
game wardens allege, Guerrero was giving the men 
involved in the poaching group additional tags. 

Juventino Reyes Guerrero operating the licensing terminal at 
Lizette’s Market in this undated photo (Ventura County District 
Attorney’s Office/California Fish and Wildlife) 

Each reprinted ticket is tracked through the state’s 
Automated License Data System. During the time 
that the alleged crimes took place, no licensed 
dealer in the state of California had more reprinted 
tickets than Lizette’s Market, authorities said. 

A warden began taking notice of the scheme after 
coming across the group while on patrol in the Los 
Padres National Forest in northern Ventura County. 
The men were riding electric bicycle with their 
firearms on their person. One of the men received a 

https://ktla.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/4/2022/12/Screen-Shot-2022-12-05-at-8.35.29-PM-e1670363170773.png


warning for riding with a live round in the chamber of his gun. 

One of the men, who documents identify as Mendoza Avila, spontaneously told the 
warden that they were part of the “E-Bike Crew from Oxnard.” 

They group would ride their bikes across Ventura County and parts of Santa Barbara 
County, hunting animals and then using their e-bikes and trailers to transport them from 
where they fell. 

Over the next year, that warden would receive several complaints and tips alleging that 
the same E-Bike Crew was responsible for multiple illegal kills, including some that took 
place in local wildlife sanctuaries and on a restricted oil field. 

On one occasion, a Fish and Wildlife officer contacted several members of the group 
and found that some of their tags were only partially filled out. State law requires that 
these tags be filled out completely to prevent the same tag being used for multiple kills. 
It was just one of the examples of the group playing coy with their hunting tags, 
authorities allege. 

The group was coordinated, wore camouflage and communicated via radio. 

But the alleged poachers were not coordinated enough to avoid detection. They were 
spotted numerous times on camera as they hunted illegally in the Sespe Condor 
Sanctuary, which is closed off to the public because it’s a nesting ground for the 
endangered California Condor. 

Investigators were able to get a clear idea of all the men involved in the poaching 
activity and later identified the source of their hunting tags as Lizette’s Market. 

Additional tags were also found to have been printed and reprinted at a Walmart in 
Oxnard. 

In total, 64 tags were found to have been reprinted and more than 120 tags were never 
reported. 

Reyes Guerrero, who operates Lizette’s Market, allegedly was printing and reprinting 
the tags under his stepdaughter’s name. When contacted, the stepdaughter told 
investigators she had no idea about the operation. 

It was later found that the poaching group and their associates accounted for 100% of 
all reprints at Lizette’s Market, Fish and Wildlife said. 

On Dec. 8, 2021, search warrants were issued at locations across Ventura County that 
were associated with members of the E-Bike Crew. 



During the search, officials recovered dozens of trophies, antlers and animal skulls that 
were believed to have been harvested illegally. Among them was a skull of a mountain 
lion, whom Martin M. Bravo allegedly tried to pass off as a bobcat skull. Hunting 
mountain lions is strictly prohibited in California. 

• Gilberto Lopez Hernandez poses 
with a recently killed bear on Sept. 25, 2021. (Ventura County District Attorney’s Office/California Fish 
and Wildlife) 

• 
Various animal parts and frozen meat are seen in this photo taken on Dec. 8, 2021 during a raid at the 
home of Martin M. Bravo of Oxnard.(Ventura County District Attorney’s Office/California Fish and 
Wildlife) 



• 
A mounted trophy of a deer believed to be harvested illegally is seen in a shed belonging to Martin M. 
Bravo, photographed during a search warrant on Dec. 8, 2021 (Ventura County District Attorney’s 

Office/California Fish and Wildlife) 

• A 
photograph of a bear taken on Oct. 18, 2020 from a seized cell phone (left) and what is believed to be 
the same bear located at a taxidermist shop in Oxnard several months later. (Ventura County District 
Attorney’s Office/California Fish and Wildlife) 



• 
Gilberto Lopez Hernandez poses with a recently killed bear on Sept. 25, 2021. (Ventura County District 
Attorney’s Office/California Fish and Wildlife) 

• Various 
animal parts and frozen meat are seen in this photo taken on Dec. 8, 2021 during a raid at the home of 
Martin M. Bravo of Oxnard.(Ventura County District Attorney’s Office/California Fish and Wildlife) 
 



At Bravo’s home, they also recovered metal slashing weapons that can be affixed to the 
feet of chickens, which are often associated with cock fighting, another illegal activity in 
California. 

Bravo also allegedly admitted to killing a bear that was in the process of being 
taxidermized. The bear was never reported. 

Freezers that were searched were also found to be filled with various animal meats, 
including both deer and bear — the bulk of which was believed to be obtained illegally. 

Lizette’s Market was also among the locations searched. Physical and electronic 
evidence of the reprinting scheme was obtained during that search, officials said. 

During interviews with the accused members of the E-Bike crew, many of the 
participants admitted to killing more than the legally allowed number of animals, 
improperly using the hunting tags and discussing how to get reprinted tags. Several of 
them also admitted to exchanging and bartering illegally obtained animal parts and 
meat. 

The owners of Lizette’s Market denied knowingly participating in the scheme, court 
documents state. 

Review of text message and WhatsApp conversations also shed light on the process 
and revealed many of those involved in the scheme discussed the illegal activity openly 
with one another. 

In the summary findings of the investigation, Fish and Wildlife officials allege that the 
group was responsible for an undetermined amount of illegal kills over the years, 
including dozens of deer and several bears, and either simply didn’t report the kills or 
used fraudulent tags in an attempt to cover their tracks. 

“With the reprint scheme enacted, the Wildlife Trafficking Organization (WTO) was 
allowed to go into the surrounding wilderness areas in and around Ventura County and 
provided the means to illegally kill any game animal at any given time with a safeguard 
in place in the event the group was confronted by law enforcement. The execution of 
this scheme has resulted in a significant loss to wildlife resources within the county, the 
deprivation of lawful hunting opportunity for law abiding citizens, and the illegal 
commercialization of native wildlife for personal gain or profit,” the arrest warrant states. 

Martin M. Bravo and his father, Martin Bravo Sr., Jaime Mendoza Avila, Gilberto Lopez 
Hernandez, Cristian Lopez Perez and Juventino Reyes Guerrero were arraigned on 
Monday and remain in custody with bail set at $200,000. Walfre Lopez y Lopez has not 
yet been located and has an active arrest warrant. 

The men are due back in court on Wednesday in Ventura County Superior Court. 



The Desert Sun - 12/01/2022 Page : A14

December 1, 2022 7:59 am (GMT -8:00) Powered by TECNAVIA

14A | THURSDAY, DECEMBER 1, 2022 | T H E D E S E RT S U N

Nicky Loomis
Opinion Editor

Julie Makinen
Executive Editor

Gloria Franz
Community Member 

Terria Smith
Community Member 

Rob Moon
Community Member

Laura James
Community Member

Ezekiel Bonillas 
Community Member

Funding for the Desert Sun’s opinion editor comes
from the nonprofit Coachella Valley Journalism
Foundation, which you can read about at cvjf.org

EDITORIAL
BOARD

OPINION
“Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of religion, or
prohibiting the free exercise thereof; or abridging the freedom of speech
or of the press; or the right of the people peaceably to assemble, and to
petition the Government for a redress of grievances.”

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE U.S. CONSTITUTION

JEFF KOTERBA

To me, almost all the Palm Springs 
sexual business rules are anti-sex

In a Nov. 28 Desert Sun article, “Changes to sexual-
business rules weighed,” Palm Springs Councilmember
Geoff Kors, who advocates that such rules be relaxed in
Palm Springs, stated that some of the present rules are
“anti-sex.”

I would go a couple of steps further and state that just
about all of the rules are anti-sex and stem from a long
anti-sex history in America that held that myriad forms
of sex are dangerous and must be pushed into the closet
which were seen as a form of protecting our children.

The irony is that, in reality, protection was needed
not from adult businesses but from churches which
preached anti-sexual dogmas. Their often celibate lead-
ers preached a poisonous pedagogy that hurt countless
generations of young people.

Young people need to be protected from adult sexual
proselytizing church leaders more than from adult busi-
nesses.

Barry M. Dank, Palm Desert

Keep adult sexually oriented 
business off Palm Canyon Drive

1. The south end of Palm Canyon needs revitalization
not condemnation as the seedy part of town.

2. Once established these businesses will never
leave. It’s permanent. Think liquor stores on South Palm
Canyon that have been there for over 60 years.

3. Gay? Straight? Who cares. The patrons are not the
best of the best. Be real. There will be hookups in the
parking lot, prostitution, crime, drug deals for sure. And
then there’s the homeless right there on the sidewalk. A
great mix. 

4. The city council report compares Palm Springs to
San Francisco, San Diego and Los Angeles. The last I
heard, people come here to get away from those gritty,
depressing, unsafe cities.

5. My impression is that Palm Springs is a glamorous,
fun, welcoming, bright, sophisticated and safe city for
everyone: Gay, straight, families, children, cute dogs.
Why wreck it?

6. There are other areas for adult-oriented business
within the city other than our iconic Main Street. Bring
all parts of Palm Canyon Drive up to standard for every-
one to enjoy. Please don’t ruin such a well-known and
well-traveled thoroughfare. 

Karen Braff, Palm Springs 

Trump is running for president; 
he should know who he is dining with

Donald Trump recently dined with white nationalist
Nick Fuentes. According to the Anti-Defamation
League, Nick Fuentes jokingly compared 6 million Jews
burning in ovens to “6 million cookies.” By his calcula-
tion, it would be impossible to bake this many cookies in
5 years. He said, “the math doesn’t seem to add up, may-
be 200,000 to 300,000 cookies.” He is in effect, denying
the magnitude of the Holocaust as well as trivializing it
by comparing human lives to cookies.

Trump claims he did not know who Nick Fuentes is.
Trump is running for president. He should know who he
is dining with.

Mark Susskind, Rancho Mirage

LETTERS TO THE EDITOR

As California confronts another extended drought
and its impacts, it is more obvious than ever that the
state has failed to address its water supply and man-
agement challenges for far too long.

The immediate fallout of the unprecedented situa-
tion we find ourselves in is frightening: local residents
with wells running dry; urban water rationing and criti-
cal shortages; massive fallowing of some of the nation’s
most productive agricultural land and the resulting im-
pacts on food prices; and significant uncertainty about
our ability to adapt to the future. The long-term effects
are even more dire.

The viability of California’s $3.4 trillion economy is
at stake. Consequences to the state’s agricultural en-
terprise have already begun to show, with rural com-
munities experiencing $1.2 billion in direct losses and
hundreds of thousands of acres fallowed in 2021, and
more expected in 2022.

Our arrival at this alarming place is rooted in history.
The supply and delivery system for 32 million people,
more than 2 million acres of farmland, and businesses
across the state is faltering for numerous reasons.

Despite tens of billions of dollars in voter-approved
water resource bonds over the last 25 years, Califor-
nians have been unable to build any significant storage
or conveyance facilities due to permitting delays and
bureaucracy.

In August, Gov. Gavin Newsom unveiled strategies to
address the water crisis. He called for legislation to
streamline permitting for ocean desalination, brackish
groundwater treatment and stormwater capture – the
types of projects water suppliers have been doing, or
attempting to do, for decades.

Climate modeling predicts a future with fewer but
more intense years of significant rain, interspersed by
dry periods. Our water system, once the envy of the
country, has been stretched to its limits and must adapt
to this changing future. 

California needs to build projects now, with the
same urgency state leaders demonstrated in quickly re-
building freeways after the 1994 Northridge earthquake
and repairing Oroville Dam after it was damaged by
heavy rains in 2017. The state needs to rapidly imple-
ment an all-of-the-above approach to water supply re-

liability – which must include improved conveyance
systems and more water storage.

Enhanced conveyance will enable us to move water
rapidly during the years it’s available to store for peri-
ods when Mother Nature is less generous. There are
multiple solutions to this challenge, including restoring
the capacity of existing infrastructure that has been
damaged, like the San Luis Canal, the California Aque-
duct and the Delta-Mendota Canal, as well as con-
structing new and improved projects like the Delta
Conveyance Project. Each project would eliminate mil-
lions of gallons of water loss, protect thousands of acres
of habitat, increase flows to communities south of the
Delta during wet years and allow for additional ground-
water basin storage.

Increased water storage is a critical tool to a more
resilient water future for all Californians. Storage sys-
tems like Sites Reservoir and expanding existing reser-
voirs like San Luis Reservoir and Los Vaqueros Reser-
voir have been on the drawing board for too long. These
improvements, which have all been decades in devel-
opment, will capture enough water from extreme rainy
seasons to supply over 3.8 million households for a
year. There is no question that these projects, if con-
structed, would help to mitigate the impacts during the
difficult drought we are currently experiencing.

Now is the time for the state to eliminate environ-
mental logjams and bureaucratic red tape to start
building these projects and solve its water supply crisis.
Planning is not enough, nor is the timeworn advice to
the public to just conserve. Conservation is not enough
to solve this problem.

California has built major water supply infrastruc-
ture before. We can do it again. But it takes bold, imme-
diate action from our political leaders. We challenge
you to bring these projects to fruition, today.

Tom Coleman has served as general manager at
Rowland Water District in Rowland Heights, Calif.,
since 2014. He can be reached at tcoleman@rwd.org.
Federico Barajas is executive director of the San Luis
& Delta-Mendota Water Authority in Los Baños, Calif.
He can be reached at federico.barajas@sldmwa.org.

Editor’s note: Nine other water district managers
have endorsed this piece. They are: Erik Hitchman of
the Walnut Valley Water District; Matt Litchfield of
the Three Valleys Municipal Water District; Darin Ka-
samoto of the San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water
District; Dennis LaMoreaux of the Palmdale Water
District; Mauricio Guardado of the United Water Con-
servation District; Thomas W. Birmingham of the
Westlands Water District; Jim Prior of the San Gabriel
County Water District; Chris White of the San Joaquin
River Exchange Contractors Water Authority; Lisa Ya-
mashita-Lopez of the Rubio Cañon Land and Water
Association. 

California needs to be bold, enact
water supply infrastructure now

Your Turn
Federico Barajas and Tom Coleman

Guest columnists

For several months, Gov. Gavin Newsom has
waged a war of words on California’s petroleum in-
dustry, accusing it of price-gouging and asking the
Legislature to impose a tax on its soaring profits.

“Big oil is ripping people off at the pump, and
they’re making more in profits off of Californians
than in any other state — that’s why we need a price
gouging penalty to hold them accountable and get
these profits into your pockets,” Newsom said on Oct.
27 as he summarized what he said were huge in-
creases in third quarter profits.

“These record profits came as Californians saw
price hikes at the pump despite the cost of crude oil
going down and no change in state taxes or fees,”
Newsom continued. “Instead, the cost of gasoline
skyrocketed purely because refineries wanted to put
more in their own pockets.”

On Tuesday, the state Energy Commision, an arm
of Newsom’s administration, staged a hearing that
delved into the ups and downs of California’s gaso-
line prices, particularly their differences with those
in other states.

The state’s refiners refused to participate in the
hearing. Paul Davis of PBF Energy told the commis-
sion in a letter that “The politicization of this issue by
Governor Newsom, heightened by the misleading in-
formation he released and commented on relating to
our (2022 third-quarter) earnings, precludes us from
participating in this hearing.” Davis specifically ob-
jected to Newsom’s characterization of refiners’ gross
operating margins as profits, saying it is “intentional-
ly misleading to consumers and inflates purported
‘profits’ by purposefully excluding California’s high-
est-in-the-nation operating and regulatory costs
that significantly lower actual profits.”

Despite the industry boycott, presentations by the
commission’s staff largely bolstered industry asser-
tions that global and in-state factors largely beyond
their control, rather than arbitrary price-gouging,
caused the sharp spike in pump prices.

They include declining refinery capacity due to
high operating costs, periodic maintenance outages
in the few remaining refineries, an uptick in gasoline
imports whose prices are affected by the global oil
market and transport costs, and a gradual decrease
in California’s gasoline demand.

So where does that leave the excess profits tax
that Newsom is demanding, but so far has not laid
out in detail?

Gas prices spiked at more than $6 a gallon earlier
in the year, but lately have been declining. This week,
regular gas was selling in Sacramento for under
$4.50 a gallon and by the time the Legislature would
take up Newsom’s profits tax, several months hence,
prices could be below $4.

A new tax would require two-thirds legislative
votes and while Democrats have more than those
numbers in both legislative houses, the oil industry
has been active in the campaign arena and will con-
tend that any tax will eventually be passed on to con-
sumers in higher pump prices. The highly unionized
industry can also count on support from union lead-
ers.

All of that aside, there are some odd aspects to
Newsom crusade against the industry, beginning
with the fact that his personal wealth was founded on
oil money. 

The seed money for Newsom’s PlumpJack chain of
wineries, hotels and restaurants came from the trust
of Gordon Getty, an heir of oil industry pioneer J. Paul
Getty. The Getty trust was managed by Newsom’s
late father, William Newsom, who had been a long-
time advisor to the elder Getty.

CalMatters is a public interest journalism venture
committed to explaining how California’s state Capi-
tol works and why it matters.

CalMatters Commentary
Dan Walters

Columnist

What’s next 
for Newsom and
oil profits tax?



 
State grants could help 
PWD projects 
Board approves application to gain additional 
funding 

• By ALLISON GATLIN Valley Press Staff Writer 
• Nov 30, 2022 

 
The Pure Water AV demonstration and learning facility is one project for which the Palmdale Water 
District is applying for $42 million in state grants. Artist concept courtesy of Palmdale Water District 

 

PALMDALE — The Palmdale Water District could see financial help for several pending 
projects, should all or part of its application for $42 million in state grants be awarded. 

The Board of Directors, on Monday, unanimously approved the application for the grant 
under the state’s 2022 Urban Community Drought Relief Grant Program. 

The funding would go toward the following District projects: drilling and equipping two 
new wells, the Pure Water AV demonstration and learning facility, a recycled water line 
on Avenue Q to supply water to the Pure Water AV facility for advanced treatment and 



the District’s turf reduction program, which pays for customers to remove water-hungry 
turf. 

The Pure Water AV facility will be the first step in a system for turning recycled water 
into groundwater and augmenting the Valley’s potable water for use. Located at the 
District’s offices on Avenue Q, it will be used to demonstrate the treatment process to 
validate it for regulators before moving on to the full-scale treatment plant. The facility 
will also be an educational center to acquaint customers with the process. 

This facility is one of the largest projects in the application, for which the District seeks 
$11.25 million in grant funding. 

The Avenue Q recycled water line, for which the District is seeking $1.03 million, 
already has partial funding through a $587,000 state grant, Engineering Manager Scott 
Rogers said.pect a new wave of plant-based pasta, savory-sweet treats,  

The largest project on the list has been the subject of other grant applications: covering 
the Palmdale Ditch — the open trench that carries water from Littlerock Dam to Lake 
Palmdale. For that project, with a total cost of $22 million, the District is requesting 
$16.95 million. 

The state requires a 25% match from the District to accompany the grant funds in 
supporting the projects. For all the projects listed, the District would be required to 
provide $14.2 million, which is already part of the District’s budgeting from the 2019 rate 
study, Rogers said. 

Overall, the projects listed are estimated to save the District 11,598 acre-feet of water 
annually, “which would be substantial,” Rogers said. 

An acre-foot is 325,851 gallons.  To be eligible for grant funding, projects must be 
completed by Dec. 31, 2026. The projects in the District’s application all may be 
completed by March 2026, according to the staff report. 



 
‘It’s a disaster.’ Drought dramatically shrinking California farmland, costing 

$1.7 billion 
 

BY IAN JAMESSTAFF WRITER  

NOV. 23, 2022 UPDATED 7:19 AM PT 

In the fall, rice fields in the Sacramento Valley usually shine golden brown as they 
await harvesting. This year, however, many fields were left covered with bare dirt. 

“It’s a disaster,” said rice farmer Don Bransford. “This has never happened. Never. 
And I’ve been farming since 1980.” 

Bransford typically farms about 1,800 acres of rice. But the drought was so severe this 
year that water deliveries to area farms were drastically cut. Bransford, board 
president of the Glenn-Colusa Irrigation District, didn’t plant a single acre. Many 
other farms went idle as well. 

 
Rice grower Don Bransford stands in an irrigated field near the city of Williams in the Sacramento Valley, 
in this 2013 photo. (Brian van der Brug / Los Angeles Times) 

https://www.latimes.com/people/ian-james


California has just gone through the state’s driest three-year period on record, and this 
year the drought has pushed the fallowing of farmland to a new high. 

In a new report on the drought’s economic effects, researchers estimated that 
California’s irrigated farmland shrank by 752,000 acres, or nearly 10%, in 2022 
compared with 2019 — the year prior to the drought. That was up from an estimated 
563,000 acres of fallowed farmland last year. 

Nearly all the farmland that was left unplanted and dry falls within the Central Valley, 
and a large portion of it in the valley’s northern half. The state’s main rice-growing 
regions in Sutter, Colusa and Glenn counties were hit particularly hard, the report 
said, with about 267,000 acres fallowed this year. 

“The severity of the ongoing drought has been unprecedented for the Sacramento 
Valley,” said Josué Medellín-Azuara, a water resources economist and associate 
professor of civil and environmental engineering at UC Merced. “It’s been more 
severe over the past year, and you have the cumulative effects of the previous dry 
years.” 

Medellín-Azuara and colleagues from UC Merced, UC Davis and the Public Policy 
Institute of California prepared the report for the California Department of Food and 
Agriculture. They estimated changes in the acreage of irrigated land by surveying 
irrigation districts, analyzing water data and reviewing satellite data. 

http://drought.ucmerced.edu/


 
A lateral canal flows off the Glenn-Colusa Canal near the city of Williams in the Sacramento Valley, in this 
file photo. (Brian van der Brug / Los Angeles Times) 

They found that water deliveries in the Central Valley were cut by nearly 43% in both 
2021 and 2022. Growers partially made up for those reductions by pumping more 
groundwater. 

Gross crop revenues fell $1.7 billion, or 4.6%, this year. Revenues of the state’s food 
processing and manufacturing industries declined nearly $3.5 billion, or 7.8%. 

An estimated 12,000 agricultural jobs were lost, representing a 2.8% decline. 

“Those farmworkers suffer the most during the droughts,” Medellín-Azuara said. 

The researchers said California lacks sufficient programs to assist laborers who lose 
farm jobs. They said it’s crucial “to identify and assist communities that rely on 
seasonal and permanent agricultural jobs that are vulnerable to drought.” 



 
Dry cracked earth reveals an empty irrigation ditch in a fallowed rice field in this 2021 file photo. (Max 
Whittaker/For The Times) 

The amount of farmland left dry this year surpassed the peak of fallowed land during 
California’s last drought from 2012 to 2016. 

Medellín-Azuara said the situation could have been worse this year if reservoirs that 
supply the San Joaquin Valley hadn’t risen somewhat with rains in late 2021, making 
more water deliveries possible. 

Still, the losses for agriculture were severe. 

“It’s a really remarkable hit,” said Daniel Sumner, a professor of agricultural 
economics at UC Davis. He said the effects on the farm economy in the Sacramento 
Valley, which typically has more water and fares better than the San Joaquin Valley, 
were especially pronounced, representing the biggest contraction he has seen in the 
region in decades. 

High milk prices helped mitigate the overall decline in farm revenues, Sumner said. 
And farmers made various adjustments to cope with reduced water supplies. 

“We cut back on cotton. We cut back on some other crops. And the fruits and 
vegetables that we’re most known for, we continue to produce most of them,” Sumner 
said. “California agriculture is incredibly resilient.” 



But pressure on agriculture is increasing as climate change unleashes more intense 
and longer-lasting droughts, as well as heat waves that can harm crop yields. 

 
Rice grower Kim Gallagher stands in a fallowed rice field in Knights Landing in 2021. (Max Whittaker/For 
The Times) 

During the past two years, growers have dramatically increased groundwater pumping 
in the Central Valley, including many areas where water levels are declining and 
a growing number of household wells have gone dry. The researchers estimated that 
farms have pumped 27% more groundwater this year than in 2019. 

Such heavy reliance on wells will face new limitations in the coming years. Local 
water agencies across the San Joaquin Valley are required to begin reining in 
overpumping under California’s Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, which 
requires them to balance water use with available supplies by 2040. Researchers have 
projected that meeting the law’s sustainability rules will require that vast areas of 
farmland be taken out of production permanently. 

For now, farmers with wells have been able to rely on aquifers. But in areas where 
rice farms have long depended solely on flows from the Sacramento River, many 
growers have no wells. Without water flowing in canals, farmers were left without 
options. 

California harvested the state’s smallest rice crop since the severe drought of 1977-78, 
according to the U.S. Department of Agriculture. 

https://www.latimes.com/projects/california-farms-water-wells-drought/
https://www.latimes.com/environment/story/2021-12-16/its-a-race-to-the-bottom-for-agricultural-wells
https://www.ppic.org/wp-content/uploads/water-and-the-future-of-the-san-joaquin-valley-overview.pdf
https://www.ppic.org/wp-content/uploads/water-and-the-future-of-the-san-joaquin-valley-overview.pdf
https://www.ers.usda.gov/webdocs/outlooks/105183/rcs-22j.pdf?v=6987.3#:~:text=U.S.%20rice%20imports%20in%202022,the%20highest%20share%20on%20record.


“We typically plant about 100,000 acres of rice in our district. And this year, we 
planted 1,000 acres,” said Thad Bettner, general manager of the Glenn-Colusa 
Irrigation District. “It’s just a massive, massive impact.” 

 
A shrinking Shasta Lake reveals a bare, brown shoreline in this September photo. (Jason Armond/Los 
Angeles Times) 

With the Sacramento River watershed parched and Shasta Lake at low levels, wildlife 
officials dedicated some water to try to help the spawning of endangered winter-run 
Chinook salmon, which contributed to the cuts in water deliveries to farms, Bettner 
said. 

“Unfortunately, those protections for winter-run didn’t help the fish,” Bettner said. 
“We’re seeing, basically, very few of them survive.” 

Now many rice farmers are feeling uneasy about what might happen if the drought 
persists next year, Bettner said. “We’re very concerned about how many small family 
farms that we have in our district continue to stay in business.” 

Bransford said he has crop insurance and can receive compensation for the rice he 
couldn’t plant. He has kept a couple of employees on his payroll. But much of the 
area’s farming economy has shriveled, leaving many laborers suffering. 

“It’s devastating,” Bransford said. “The greatest impacts are to the farmworkers.” 

https://www.latimes.com/projects/can-endangered-california-chinook-salmon-be-saved-from-extinction/
https://www.latimes.com/projects/can-endangered-california-chinook-salmon-be-saved-from-extinction/


“They’re an embedded, important part of our community,” he said. “And the problem 
we have as owners of farms is if these people leave, there’s no replacement.” 

California farms primarily produce short- and medium-grain Japonica rice, which is 
used for sushi and other dishes. The rice is sold domestically and also exported to 
Asia and other parts of the world. 

The area’s vast rice fields have long provided habitat for migrating birds, which over 
the last century have lost most of the natural wetlands where they once stopped to rest 
and feed. 

Usually, after growers harvest their crops, the fields are left with chopped-up rice 
straw and fallen kernels. The farmers will again send water flowing to fields, 
attracting geese, ducks and other birds, which arrive in large flocks to feed. 

With many fields now bone dry, Bransford and other farmers say they’re concerned 
about how the birds and other species will fare. 

The California Rice Commission said this year’s rice crop is estimated to be 
about half the size of a typical harvest. The organization said the drastic water cuts 
have also dried up what were once reliable habitats for more than 200 wildlife species, 
among them migrating ducks and geese, which typically depend on rice fields for a 
large portion of their food during the fall and winter. 

Tim Johnson, the commission’s president and CEO, said the lack of water now 
threatens millions of wetland-dependent birds, and could affect the migratory path 
along the Pacific Flyway. He said while the long-term environmental effects are 
unknown, rice farmers have been working with government agencies and 
conservation groups to provide as much habitat as possible and “assist in tracking the 
impacts this historic drought will have on waterbirds, with the goal of using that 
science to better help the Pacific Flyway in the years ahead.” 

On the west side of the Sacramento Valley, waterbirds typically move between 
wildlife refuges and rice fields. Because the local wildlife refuges had their water 
deliveries cut this year, Bransford said, the irrigation district sold the government 
additional water to help nourish the habitats. 

https://calrice.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/California-Drought-Statement-November-2022-UPDATED.pdf
https://www.watereducation.org/aquapedia/pacific-flyway


 
The sun sets over a flooded rice field in the Sacramento Valley.  
(Brian van der Brug / Los Angeles Times) 

With fewer rice fields to turn to, the birds will likely be concentrated where there is 
water, Bransford said. And such concentrations of birds can lead to outbreaks of avian 
botulism or other deadly illnesses. A wave of avian flu has already left millions of 
birds dead in parts of North America, and has been circulating in California. 

“Hopefully, it will not have an impact on the waterfowl. But there is potential for 
that,” Bransford said. 

Because migrating birds are also encountering parched landscapes elsewhere, he said, 
“it’s really going to be difficult on them.” 
 

https://www.usgs.gov/centers/nwhc/science/avian-botulism
https://www.usgs.gov/centers/nwhc/science/avian-botulism
https://www.latimes.com/california/story/2022-10-03/infectious-bird-flu-spreads-california-chickens-wild-birds
https://www.latimes.com/california/story/2022-10-03/infectious-bird-flu-spreads-california-chickens-wild-birds


State water agency wades into 
lawsuit to maintain its authority over 
groundwater plans 
NOVEMBER 18, 2022 
 
• by Rose Horowitch, SJV Water reporting intern 

The Delta-Mendota Subbasin covers a large swath of the northwestern San Joaquin 
Valley. A lawsuit contends that groundwater plans intended to bring overpumped 
aquifers in the region back into balance will not achieve their goals. SCREEN SHOT 

 
:  



 

A lawsuit over groundwater plans in the northern end of the San Joaquin Valley is being closely 

watched as it could have implications for how the state’s groundwater mandate moves forward, 

according to a recent briefing on the issue at the Kern Groundwater Authority. 

At the Nov. 16 meeting, authority attorney Valerie Kincaid explained that the lawsuit, filed in 

2020, seeks to have a court invalidate six groundwater plans in the Delta-Mendota Subbasin, 

which runs along the western edge of the valley from west of Fresno north to west of Modesto. 

The Department of Water Resources filed an amicus brief in the suit, which was bought by the 

California Sportfishing Protection Alliance, Kincaid explained. An amicus, or friend of the court 

brief, can be filed by a group that has a strong interest in a case. 

“In that amicus, DWR said: ‘We don’t think that the court has the authority to review the 

substance of a plan for compliance with SGMA, that in fact is the job of DWR,’” Kincaid said. 

DWR claimed that the Legislature did not intend for the courts to decide the validity of the plans. 

Kincaid noted DWR had not addressed whether the court could intervene after DWR had 

decided whether a groundwater plan was adequate. 

Groundwater plans are required under the state’s Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

(SGMA) and were initially filed with DWR  in 2020. Most were found incomplete and were 

resubmitted in July 2022 for re-evaluation, which is ongoing. 

It’s unclear how the process would move forward if groups can have courts intervene before 

plans are fully evaluated by the state. 

Groundwater sustainability plans are highly technical studies that must consider a number of 

variables in order to achieve SGMA’s goal of bringing overpumped aquifers into balance by 

2040. That generally means more water shouldn’t be pumped out than goes back in. 

But groundwater plans must also avoid certain “undesirable” results including:  chronic lowering 

of groundwater tables; water quality degradation; land subsidence (sinking); reduced 



groundwater storage; depletion of interconnected surface water (river water being sucked into a 

groundwater deficit, for example); and seawater intrusion. 

California Sportfishing’s suit claims the six groundwater plans covering the Delta-Mendota 

Subbasin aren’t likely to achieve their sustainability goals. 

 

The parties in the suit have so far not responded to the amicus brief, which DWR filed on 

October 27. 

The court will ultimately decide whether it has the authority to assess groundwater sustainability 

plans, as well as whether the Delta-Mendota Subbasin’s plans should be invalidated. 

 



 
The largest dam demolition in history is 
approved for a Western river 
November 17, 20222:54 PM ET 

THE ASSOCIATED PRESS 

 
The Iron Gate Dam, powerhouse and spillway is seen in 2020 on the lower Klamath River near 

Hornbrook, Calif.  Gillian Flaccus/AP 

 
PORTLAND, Ore. — U.S. regulators approved a plan Thursday to demolish four dams on a California 
river and open up hundreds of miles of salmon habitat that would be the largest dam removal and river 
restoration project in the world when it goes forward. 

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission's unanimous vote on the lower Klamath River dams is the 
last major regulatory hurdle and the biggest milestone for a $500 million demolition proposal 
championed by Native American tribes and environmentalists for years. The project would return the 
lower half of California's second-largest river to a free-flowing state for the first time in more than a 
century. 



Native tribes that rely on the Klamath River and its salmon for their way of life have been a driving force 
behind bringing the dams down in a wild and remote area that spans the California and Oregon border. 
Barring any unforeseen complications, Oregon, California and the entity formed to oversee the project 
will accept the license transfer and could begin dam removal as early as this summer, proponents said. 

"The Klamath salmon are coming home," Yurok Chairman Joseph James said after the vote. "The people 
have earned this victory and with it, we carry on our sacred duty to the fish that have sustained our 
people since the beginning of time." 

The dams produce less than 2% of PacifiCorp's power generation — enough to power about 70,000 
homes — when they are running at full capacity, said Bob Gravely, spokesperson for the utility. But they 
often run at a far lower capacity because of low water in the river and other issues, and the agreement 
that paved the way for Thursday's vote was ultimately a business decision, he said. 

PacifiCorp would have had to invest hundreds of millions of dollars in fish ladders, fish screens and 
other conservation upgrades under environmental regulations that were not in place when the aging 
dams were first built. But with the deal approved Thursday, the utility's cost is capped at $200 million, 
with another $250 million from a California voter-approved water bond. 

"We're closing coal plants and building wind farms and it all just has to add up in the end. It's not a one-
to-one," he said of the coming dam demolition. "You can make up that power by the way you operate the 
rest of your facilities or having energy efficiency savings so your customers are using less." 

Approval of the order to surrender the dams' operating license is the bedrock of the most ambitious 
salmon restoration plan in history and the project's scope — measured by the number of dams and the 
amount of river habitat that would reopen to salmon — makes it the largest of its kind in the world, said 
Amy Souers Kober, spokesperson for American Rivers, which monitors dam removals and advocates for 
river restoration. 

More than 300 miles of salmon habitat in the Klamath River and its tributaries would benefit, she said.

 

Jamie Holt, lead fisheries technician for the Yurok Tribe, right, and Gilbert Myers count dead chinook 

salmon pulled in June 2021 from a trap in the lower Klamath River in Weitchpec, Calif. Several tribes in 

the region, including the Yurok, have been fighting for years to see dams on the river come down to aid 

the recovery of struggling salmon populations. 

Nathan Howard/AP 



The decision is in line with a trend toward removing aging and outdated dams across the U.S. as they 
come up for license renewal and confront the same government-mandated upgrade costs as the Klamath 
River dams would have had. 

Across the U.S., 1,951 dams have been demolished as of February, including 57 in 2021, American Rivers 
said. Most of those have come down in the past 25 years as facilities age and come up for relicensing. 

Commissioners on Thursday called the decision "momentous" and "historic" and spoke of the 
importance of taking the action during National Native American Heritage Month because of its 
importance to restoring salmon and reviving the river that is at the heart of the culture of several tribes 
in the region. 

"Some people might ask in this time of great need for zero emissions, 'Why are we removing the dams?' 
First, we have to understand this doesn't happen every day ... a lot of these projects were licensed a 
number of years back when there wasn't as much focus on environmental issues," said FERC Chairman 
Richard Glick. "Some of these projects have a significant impact on the environment and a significant 
impact on fish." 

Glick added that, in the past, the commission did not consider the effect of energy projects on tribes but 
said that was a "very important element" of Thursday's decision. 

Members of the Yurok, Karuk and Hoopa Valley tribes and other supporters lit a bonfire and watched 
the vote on a remote Klamath River sandbar via a satellite uplink to symbolize their hopes for the river's 
renewal. 

"I understand that some of those tribes are watching this meeting today on the (river) bar and I raise a 
toast to you," Commissioner Willie Phillips said. 

The vote comes at a critical moment when human-caused climate change is hammering the Western 
United States with prolonged drought, said Tom Kiernan, president of American Rivers. He said allowing 
California's second-largest river to flow naturally, and its flood plains and wetlands to function normally, 
would mitigate those impacts. 

"The best way of managing increasing floods and droughts is to allow the river system to be healthy and 
do its thing," he said. 

The Klamath Basin watershed covers more than 14,500 square miles (37,500 square kilometers) and 
the Klamath itself was once the third-largest salmon producing river on the West Coast. But the dams, 
constructed between 1918 and 1962, essentially cut the river in half and prevent salmon from reaching 
spawning grounds upstream. Consequently, salmon runs have been dwindling for years. 

The smallest dam, Copco 2, could come down as early as this summer. The remaining dams — one in 
southern Oregon and two in California — will be drained down very slowly starting in early 2024 with 
the goal of returning the river to its natural state by the end of that year. 

Plans to remove the dams have not been without controversy. 

Homeowners on Copco Lake, a large reservoir, vigorously oppose the demolition plan and rate payers in 
the rural counties around the dams worry about taxpayers shouldering the cost of any overruns or 



liability problems. Critics also believe dam removal won't be enough to save the salmon because of 
changing ocean conditions the fish encounter before the return to their natal river. 

"The whole question is, will this add to the increased production of salmon? It has everything to do with 
what's going on in the ocean (and) we think this will turn out to be a futile effort," said Richard Marshall, 
head of the Siskiyou County Water Users Association. "Nobody's ever tried to take care of the problem 
by taking care of the existing situation without just removing the dams." 

U.S. regulators raised flags about the potential for cost overruns and liability issues in 2020, nearly 
killing the proposal, but Oregon, California and PacifiCorp, which operates the hydroelectric dams and is 
owned by billionaire Warren Buffett's company Berkshire Hathaway, teamed up to add another $50 
million in contingency funds. 

PacifiCorp will continue to operate the dams until the demolition begins. 

The largest U.S. dam demolition to date is the removal of two dams on the Elwha River on Washington's 
Olympic Peninsula in 2012. 

 



Proposed Central Valley dam 
likely to move forward after 
judge’s ruling 
NOVEMBER 5, 2022 

• by Jesse Vad and Rose Horowitch, SJV Water

The proposed Del Puerto dam would store water in the mountains above Patterson. 



 

Both sides of a controversial proposed Central Valley dam hailed a Nov. 3 court ruling kicking 

back the project’s environmental documents as a success. 

A Stanislaus County Superior Court Judge ruled there was insufficient information about a road 

relocation that is part of the proposed Del Puerto Canyon Reservoir project, which would sit just 

above the town of Patterson in the Diablo Range on the west side of the San Joaquin Valley.  

More definitive information on the proposed realignment of Del Puerto Canyon Road will have 

to be provided in the Environmental Impact Report by project proponents, the Del Puerto Water 

District and the San Joaquin River Exchange Contractor Authority.  

But that’s the only redo required. 

The judge denied a host of other complaints about the project brought by environmental groups 

as well as all of the challenges levied by another group of irrigators, the Friant Water Supply 

Protection Association. 

Still, environmental groups counted the ruling as a win. 

“The project cannot go forward as it stands,” said Peter Broderick, senior attorney with the 

Center for Biological Diversity, one of the environmental groups. “At the end of the day, the 

result of this ruling will be the need to go back to the drawing board.” 

Yes, agreed Anthea Hansen, general manager of Del Puerto, but the ruling doesn’t stop the 

project. 

“I don’t think that it really impacts our schedule,” Hansen said. “The one thing it does do is put 

the work that we needed to do on the road relocation, it puts that front and center now.” 

At a Nov. 4 Exchange Contractor Authority board meeting, the group’s attorney said there had 

been some uncertainty about where to place the Del Puerto Canyon Road when the project was 

finalized. The county had disapproved of the proposed placement, he added. 

https://sjvwater.org/proposed-dam-project-sparks-opposition-from-fellow-water-users/
https://sjvwater.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/Del-Puerto-Canyon-Reservoir-Ruling.pdf


The proposed dam would cover 800 acres and hold 82,000 acre feet of water. Some of the water 

would be captured from Del Puerto creek but other supplies, up to 40,000 acre feet, would be 

diverted from the Delta-Mendota Canal from the Exchange Contractors’ federal allocation, 

according to court documents. 

It was that canal diversion that caused concern among contractors on the Friant Division of the 

Central Valley Project. 

The Friant group asserted that the dam could allow Exchange Contractors to hold on to water in 

flush years and still demand a full allocation from the federal Bureau of Reclamation in dry 

years, which could affect their supplies. 

The judge ruled there was no evidence that the Exchange Contractors had, essentially, hoarded 

water to Friant’s detriment. 

That lack of evidence, the judge wrote in his Nov. 3 ruling, “…is fatal to Friant’s factual 

contention.” 

The often fraught relationship between the Exchange Contractors and Friant Division contractors 

goes back to the formation of the Central Valley Project in the 1930s. 

The Federal Government built the Friant Dam to create Millerton Lake on the San Joaquin River 

near Fresno in order to bring that water to farms and towns all the way south to Arvin. But there 

were already farmers along the western portion of the San Joaquin River using that water.  

So, the feds contracted with those water users promising to provide them water from the 

Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta through the Delta-Mendota Canal in “exchange” for their river 

water.  

That contract has resulted in the delivery of about 840,000 acre feet in normal years and 650,000 

acre feet in dry years to the Exchange Contractors, a group of four agricultural water districts 

that stretch from Mendota in western Fresno County north to near the City of Patterson.  



Exchange Contractor districts 

  

It’s the dry year allocations that can, and have, had a major impact on supplies to Friant 

contractors.  

In fact, this year, Friant contractors received only 20% of their allocated water partly because the 

Bureau of Reclamation had to dip into Friant supplies held in Millerton to fulfill its obligation to 

the Exchange Contractors. 

During the extreme drought of 2014 and 2015, Friant contractors received 0% of their allocation 

so the feds could supply the Exchange Contractors, who then sold some water back to Friant. 

The federal contract with the Exchange Contractors is open for renegotiation this year and there 

have been calls from environmental groups as well as the Los Angeles Times editorial board for 

the feds to strike a more even deal.  

https://www.latimes.com/opinion/story/2022-10-16/water-rights-giveaway


In a letter to the Bureau of Reclamation, the Natural Resources Defense Council claims the 

contract has been so lopsided on behalf of the Exchange Contractors, that those districts have 

actually received more water than they would have if the San Joaquin River had never been 

dammed. 

Exchange Contractors would have to agree to any proposed changes in the contract. 

At the Nov. 4 Exchange Contractor meeting, directors referenced an earlier statement in which 

they said they were “in conversation” with the Bureau of Reclamation, but that they would not 

agree to change the contract. 

Directors said they would seek other solutions. 

 

https://sjvwater.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/nrdc_letter_to_reclamation_re_exchange_contract_5-26-22.pdf


 

 
They defied California and drained an important salmon 
stream. Their fine: $50 per farmer  
BY RYAN SABALOW  

UPDATED NOVEMBER 10, 2022 10:17 AM  

For eight straight days this summer, farmers in far Northern California drained almost all of the 
water out of a river in defiance of the state’s drought regulations. The move infuriated 
environmentalists and salmon-dependent Native American tribes downstream. California now 
knows the cost of the farmers’ blatant defiance: Less than $50 per farmer.  

It’s the latest example of California’s lax water-use enforcement process — problems that were 
first exposed in a sweeping Sacramento Bee investigation published online last week. On Friday, 
a day after The Bee’s story went online, the State Water Resources Control Board proposed 
issuing a $4,000 fine against the Shasta River Water Association, an irrigation district serving 
about 100 farmers and ranchers in Siskiyou County.  

In August, the association disregarded a state drought order and turned on its pumps for eight 
days, sucking out nearly two-thirds of the water flowing down the Shasta River. State and federal 
biologists said the pumping almost certainly killed protected salmon. Despite the alleged 
ecological harms — and the irrigation district making no secret it took the water to fill dry 
livestock ponds — a fine of $500 a day was the maximum amount the water board could levee 
on the farmers, said Robert Cervantes, the water rights enforcement program manager at the 
water board.  

Cervantes acknowledged that less than $50 per farmer isn’t much of a deterrent, but the ranchers 
were savvy enough to shut off their pumps a few days before the fines would have increased to 
up to $10,000 a day. He called the Shasta Water Users Association case the “poster child” for 
changing the law to give his agency more authority to crack down on violations.  

“In the face of increased climate change and more severe droughts,” he said, “we’re going to 
need to be able to have the tools we need to make a positive impact and manage watersheds 
throughout the state, not just in Siskiyou County.”  

Two farmers on the association’s board didn’t return a message from The Bee Wednesday for 
this story, but one of them told CalMatters they might just keep fighting back.  

“I don’t want to pay them a dime. I want to take them to court,” The association’s president, Jim 
Scala, told CalMatters. “Because if we pay them $4,000 or $10,000, that’s like admitting that we 
were in the wrong.”  



Downstream from the where the Shasta River flows into the Klamath River, members of the 
Karuk Tribe are furious that the fines amounted to less than a tank of gas in each of the farmers’ 
pickups — hardly a disincentive.  

“What’s preventing them from doing it again next year?” asked Arron “Troy” Hockaday, a 
Karuk tribal councilman. The Karuk and other area tribes have been fighting for years to urge 
regulators to force farmers to leave more water in the Shasta River to provide habitat for salmon 
that play an important role in their economic, cultural and spiritual lives. The tribes have 
watched in horror as salmon numbers in the Klamath Basin have declined substantially over the 
years.  

The Bee’s investigation last week revealed how badly unprepared California’s regulators are to 
police water use over California’s 189,454 miles of rivers, which suffer from chronic water 
shortages and the threat of an ecosystem collapse.  

▪ On average, just 11% of farms and cities have complied with a 2015 state law requiring them to 
accurately monitor and report their water use to the State Water Resources Control Board. In the 
Shasta River valley, the compliance rate is 7%. Even if compliance were to improve, the state 
water board lacks the tools to analyze the data properly to determine if unauthorized diversions 
are taking place.  

▪ California’s difficulties in getting a handle on water consumption can lead to poor outcomes for 
the environment. One glaring example: A federal program to restore salmon on the San Joaquin 
River has struggled because billions of gallons of water disappear from the river some years. No 
one can say for sure who exactly is taking it, and whether it’s even legal for them to do so.  

▪ California lacks a robust system for metering water flowing through its rivers. There are just 
1,000 functioning stream gauges on a river system that’s 189,454 miles long. A recent report by 
a consortium of state agencies says the shortage of gauges “results in data gaps that hamper 
effective management of California’s limited water resources.”  

▪ Crackdowns on violators are rare. And when penalties are issued, cases can drag on for years in 
administrative hearings and courtrooms before anyone is actually forced to pay.  

In the case of the Shasta River Water Association, which was featured prominently in The Bee’s 
investigation, the $4,000 fine issued Friday isn’t necessarily the final say. There’s a mandatory 
20-day waiting period before it takes effect. The farmers also can request a hearing, or they can 
follow through on Scala’s threat and go to court, dragging out the process that began in August 
for even more months.  

The Bee’s findings “should serve as a wake up call” for the Legislature and the Governor’s 
Office to change the law to give the water board authority to act quickly and decisively to 
enforce the state’s water-sharing rules, said Richard Frank, the director of the California 
Environmental Law & Policy Center at UC Davis.  



Frank noted that other environmental regulatory agencies, such as the California Coastal 
Commission, aren’t nearly as hamstrung as the water board is when it comes enforcing the rules 
governing the resources they’re tasked with protecting.  

“I can’t for the life of me understand why in an area so important as fair and equitable use of a 
limited water supply,” Frank said, “why the water board doesn’t have comparable powers.”  

Read more at: 
https://www.sacbee.com/news/investigations/article268432332.html#storylink=cpy 

 

https://www.sacbee.com/news/investigations/article268432332.html#storylink=cpy

	2022-12-14 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting REVISED Agenda FINAL
	I First Open Session
	1.2 Oath of Office - Kimball, Keeling, Hasan MOTION
	1.2 Attachment A Kimball Div 1 Oath of Office
	1.2 Attachment B Keeling Div 2 Oath of Office
	1.2 Attachment C Hasan Div 2 Oath of Office

	II. Second Open Session
	2.5 Board of Directors' Activities Reports
	2.5 Attachment A Berger Sheldon Nov 2022 activities report
	2.5 Attachment B Hasan Mohammed A. Nov 2022 activities report
	2.5 Attachment A Mobley Michael November 2022 activities report
	2.5 Attachment A Mobley Michael October 2022 activities report
	2.5 Attachment A Naumann Daniel November 2022 Activities Report
	2.5 Attachment B UWCD 2022 Standing Committee and Outside Agency meetings schedule
	2.5 Attachment C AWA_2022_CALENDAR_OF_EVENTS
	2.6 General Manager Report

	III. Consent Calendar
	3.A 2022-11-07 UWCD Special Board of Directors Meeting MINUTES draft
	3.A 2022-11-09 UWCD Board Meeting MINUTES draft
	3.A Attachment A MINUTES 2022-11-09
	3.B GW Basin Status Report 2022 12-14
	3.B Monthly Hydro Conds Report 2022 12
	3.C  Monthly Investment Report October 2022 - Staff Report
	3.C Attachment - Combined Investment Report October 2022_ SIGNED
	3.D  First Quarter FY 2022-2023 Financial Reports - Staff Report
	3.D Attachment A - CIP Status FY 2022-2023 First Quarter Financial Reports Executed
	3.D Attachment B - First Quarter FY 2022-2023 Financial Reports
	3.E Resolution 2022-45 staff report
	3.E Attachment A Resolution 2022-45 AB_361_Resolution_Subsequent_Adoption

	IV. Information Items - Departments' Monthly Reports
	4.1 Monthly Operations and Maintenance Dept Report -Dec
	4.1 Attachment A Operations Log 2022-11
	4.2 Monthly Park and Recreation Department Report DRAFT - December 2022
	4.3 Monthly WR Dept Report and SGMA - GSAs Updates 2022 Dec BoardMeeting
	4.4 Admin Monthly Staff Report
	4.5 Monthly Engineering Dept. Report - For December Meeting
	4.6 Monthly Environmental Services Dept Rpt 12-14

	V. Motion Items
	5.1 Resolution 2022-38 UWCD Unmanned Aircraft System - Authorization and Operations Policy staff report
	5.1 Attachment A - Resolution 2022-38 Adoption of Unamnned Aircraft System - Authorization and Operations Policy
	5.1 Attachment B - Unmanned Aircraft System – Authorization and Operations Policy
	5.1 Attachment C - Authorized Third Party Request to Operate Unmanned Aircraft System Form
	5.2  Contract Award to KennedyJenks Consultants for Design Services Related to the EBB Water Treatment Project - Staff Report
	5.2 Attachment A - Design Services Award to KennedyJenks for the EBB Water Treatment Project - Agreement
	5.3  CEQA Contract Award to ESA for the EBB Water Treatment Project - Staff Report
	5.3 Attachment A - UWCD ESA Professional Services Agreement MB
	5.4  University of Iowa Physical Modeling Contract Amendment for Vertical Slot  - Staff Report
	5.4 Attachment A -UWCD University of Iowa Physical Modeling Contract Amendment for Vertical Slot  - Amendment

	VI. Nov-Dec Board reading file



